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CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING ST ATEMENTS

Any statements included in this prospectus, inclgdiny statements in the document that are incatpdmy reference herein that are not strictlyohisal are forwardeoking
statements within the meaning of the safe harbowigions of the Private Securities Litigation RefoAct of 1995. Any such forwartboking statements contained
incorporated by reference herein should not bedalipon as predictions of future events. Certaat $arward-looking statements can be identifiedhmsy use of forwardeoking
terminology such as “believes,” “expects,” “mayWifl,” “should,” “seeks,” “approximately,” “intend$ “plans,” “pro forma,” “estimates” or “anticipa® or the negative there
or other variations thereof or comparable termigg|®r by discussions of strategy, plans, interionanticipated or projected events, results aditmns. Such forwardboking
statements are dependent on assumptions, datatbodsethat may be incorrect or imprecise and they fme incapable of being realized. Such forwlaagking statemen
include statements with respect to:

the declaration or payment of dividends by

the ownership, management and operation of pr@e

potential acquisitions or dispositions of our pndjgs, assets or other busines:

our policies regarding investments, acquisitionspasitions, financings and other matte
our qualification as a real estate investment tmasker the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as andemd@ch we refer to as the Coc
the real estate industry and real estate markegsriaral

the availability of debt and equity financir

interest rates

general economic conditior

supply of real estate investment opportunities @ggmand

trends affecting us or our asse

the effect of acquisitions or dispositions on calpgition and financial flexibility

the anticipated performance of our assets and aquiisedd properties and businesses, including, withicitation, statements regarding anticipated rees, cas
flows, funds from operations, earnings before id&rdepreciation and amortization, property nerating income, operating or profit margins andsgerity to
economic downturns or anticipated growth or improeats in any of the foregoing; a

our ability, and that of our assets and acquiregerties and businesses to gr

You are cautioned that, while forwalabking statements reflect our good faith beligf®y are not guarantees of future performance lagy involve known and unknown ris
and uncertainties. Actual results may differ matrifrom those in the forwartboking statements as a result of various factdhe information contained or incorporatec
reference in this report and any amendment heiedfjding, without limitation, the information skidrth in “ITEM 1A- Risk Factors'below or in any risk factors in docume
that are incorporated by reference in this regdentifies important factors that could cause sdifferences. We undertake no obligation to publigiease the results of ¢
revisions to these forward-looking statements thay reflect any future events or circumstances.
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General

Winthrop Realty Trust is a real estate investmamdttformed under the laws of the State of Ohio.dafeduct our business through our wholly owned afieg partnership, Wk
Realty L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, whieh refer to as the Operating Partnership. All rfees to the “Trust”, “we”, “us”, “our”, “WRT" orhte “Company’refer tc
Winthrop Realty Trust and its consolidated subsidg including the Operating Partnership.

We are engaged in the business of owning real pip@ad real estate related assets which we cagegorto three reportable segments: (i) the owriprsifi investmer
properties, including properties in joint ventu@solidated or accounted for on an equity methasish which we refer to as operating propertiggtié origination an
acquisition of senior loans, mezzanine loans arf securities secured directly or indirectly by epercial and multfamily real property, which we refer to as loanedssan
(iii) the ownership of equity and debt securitiether real estate investment trusts (REITs), vhie refer to as REIT securities.

At December 31, 2011 we held (i) interests in ofiegaproperties totaling $442,209,000 containingragimately 7.8 million square feet of rentable ;pand 4,347 apartm
units; (ii) loan assets totaling $217,174,000 @®BIT securities with a market value of $28,856,88d (iv) cash and cash equivalents of $40,952,000.

Our executive offices are located at 7 BulfinchcBlaSuite 500, Boston, Massachusetts 02114 andJewoho Plaza, Jericho, NY 11753. Our telephonebmims (617) 570-
4614 and our web site is locatechétp://www.winthropreit.com The information contained on our web site dodscoastitute part of this Annual Report on FormKL0On oul
web site you can obtain, free of charge, a copguwfAnnual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly RepomsForm 10-Q, Current Reports on FornK&nd amendments to thc
reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 18¢al5(d) of the Exchange Act of 1934, as amendsdsoon as reasonably practicable after we fith suaterial electronical
with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Excha@mmmission, which we refer to as the SEC.

History

We began operations in 1961 under the name FirgirlJReal Estate Equity and Mortgage InvestmentsceSidanuary 1, 2004, we have been externally manbge=UF
Advisors LLC, which we refer to as FUR Advisorsaur Advisor. FUR Advisors is an entity owned by aurrent executive officers and senior manageniediiding Michae
L. Ashner who is the managing member of FUR Adwdsaord members of senior management of AREA Proattners, a New York based real estate investatisor.

Commencing January 1, 2004, we began to seek org pmportunistic investments across the real esfgetrum, whether they be operating properties lssets or RE
securities. On January 1, 2005 we elected to ftvenQperating Partnership and contributed all ofansets to the Operating Partnership in exchang&0@?e of the ownersh
interests in the Operating Partnership. Our OpsgaRartnership structure, commonly referred to mumbrella partnership real estate investment thusivides us wit
additional flexibility when acquiring properties a&nables us to acquire properties for cash arz/assuing to sellers, as a form of consideratimnited partnership interests
our operating partnership thereby enabling usrtectire transactions which may defer tax gainsafeeller while preserving our available cash ftveopurposes.

Management

Under the terms of the Advisory Agreement betwedRFAdvisors and us, FUR Advisors administers otfaies including seeking, servicing and managing iovestments. F
providing these and other services, FUR Advisoceikes a base management fee and is entitled tocentive fee after common shareholders have reded return of
specified amount which is based on a fixed pric&fommon Shares outstanding at December 31, 2Q@3tpé issuance price for Common Shares issueéatter together wi
a cumulative 7% annual return thereon. See “Emp@s¥ybelow for a description of the fees payablEtiR Advisors.
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Pursuant to our bylaws, the consent of our Boart@irabtees is required to acquire or dispose ohaastment with a value in excess of $10,000,000.e&ecutive officers a
permitted to acquire or dispose of an investmett an aggregate value of $10,000,000 or less wittimiconsent of our Board of Trustees. Howevesudh transaction is wi
(i) our Advisor (and any successor advisor), Midhisghner, or any of their respective affiliates) @ertain stated entities which are, or were liatd with us; (iii) a beneficii
owner of more than 4.9% of our outstanding Commioar&s, either directly or upon the conversion of ahour preferred shares; or (iv) a beneficial ewaf more than 4.9%
any other entity in which we hold a 10% or greatéerest, then regardless of the amount of thes&ration, such transaction must be approved by arityapf our independe
trustees, acting in their capacity as members ofCanflicts Committee.

Investment, Operating and Capital Strategy

We are engaged in the business of owning and magagal property and real estate related assetsb@iness objective is to maximize long term shalder value through
total return value approach to real estate invgs#s a result of our emphasis on total return |levhie seek to achieve a stable, predictable diddenour shareholders, we
not select or manage our investments for short-téinidend growth, but rather towards achieving @llesuperior total return. While this approach nragult in shortern
uneven earnings, we believe this approach wilmdtely result in long term increased share value.

We are a diversified REIT and as such we are abieviest in transactions which a dedicated REIThwidrrow investment parameters would be unablemsider resulting in
broad range of investment opportunities. These dppities include different investment types, sest@nd geographic areas all at varying levelhédapital stack. As suc
from time to time the types of real estate investimeve will acquire may vary. In addition, becao$®ur size we are able to make investments instrations that are smal
and would generally be disregarded by larger retdte investors. In this regard, as opportunitie=sgnt themselves and as market conditions dictegewill focus ou
investment activity in one or more of our threeibass segments (i) operating properties; (ii) laasets; and (iii) REIT securities, and aggressipelysue such opportuniti
That is, subject to economic and credit market @@, we will seek to:

. acquire operating properties of specific propeypes and locations that we belie

. are undervaluec
. present an opportunity to outperform the markeplabile providing recurring current or potentiaticurring cash flow, ¢
. can provide superior returns through an infusionagfital and/or improved manageme

. acquire portfolios or interests in portfolios abperties within characteristics similar to the adsic

. acquire loan assets using the same criteria forabipg properties, as well as consideration of lagsets that may present an opportunity for usctpiee throug
foreclosure an equity interest in the underlyingl estate collatera

. acquire securities issued by other REITs we bela&eeundervalued; ar

. divest investments as they mature in value to tietpvhere we may be unlikely to achieve bettenthearket returns in order to redeploy capital tatme believe to
higher yielding opportunities. Consistent with éotal return approach to investing, it is not pbkesto predict when we will exit any particular estment

We acquire assets through direct ownership asaserough strategic alliances and ventures. Gorgoy sources of income are rental income and teremoveries from leas
of our operating properties, interest income argtalint accretion from our loan assets, and inteaedt dividend income and appreciation from our gtweents in REI
securities.

Based on market conditions in 2011, we focusedimegstment activity in our loan asset segment and lesser extent, REIT securities, specifically@eRealty Trust, In
common shares. We seek to enter into venturesthiitth parties who have a presence, experience gpettise in specific geographic areas and/or sjpeasfset types. Furth
with respect to ventures that we manage, we se@al@ance our total return with asset managementotiret fees, and promoted economic interests apdeajtion. W
currently expect that our focus on loan assetsanifitinue in 2012. Currently we expect to conceatoar investment activities in assets that weelveliare higher quality offic
retail and multi-family properties, along with higimd hospitality assets. We generally do not putBose investments in which there is a significasrhponent of raw lan
specialty real estate or condominiums, unless ¢dinel@minium project can be converted to a conveationulti-family property.

To enhance our total return, we utilize leverage $&ek to limit risk associated with utilizationle¥erage by seeking to make our investments thraligcrete single purpc
entities in which we do not guaranty, other thastemary environmental and recourse casueguarantees and, in certain instances, intgrestantees as credit enhancem:
the debt of our single purpose subsidiaries, thelietiting the risk of loss to that particular instenent or joint venture.
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As a REIT, we are primarily dependent on extermplity and debt financing to fund the growth of dwsiness because of the dividend requirements REIE whicl
significantly limits our ability to ranvest cash flow and capital proceeds. We haveficstlly used public equity markets, joint vent@guity, and secured financing
our primary sources of capital including raisingital through public offerings as we did in Novemi2911 through the issuance of our 9.25% Seriesubh@ative
Redeemable Preferred Shares, which we refer toeeiesSD Preferred Shares. We expect to continueirtd our investments through one or a combinatibrcast
reserves, borrowings under our credit facility,epidyment of capital from timely asset sales, priypleans, the issuance of debt or equity secusritied the formation
joint ventures. Finally, we maintain a stock pus#hand dividend reinvestment plan which enablesgisting shareholders to reinvest their divideasisvell as purcha
additional shares at a discounted price.

Assets
Operating Properties
See Item 2. Properties for a description of ourr@jieg Properties

Operating Property Acquisition Activities

450 West 14th Street / 446 High Line LLC Investrme®n May 13, 2011 we committed to invest up to $16,000 for a preferred equity interest in the entitgt hold
the leasehold interest in a newly constructed 70p4&éeased 105,000 square foot retail and office pgdecated on the High Line at 450 West 14th StrBletw York
New York. At December 31, 2011, we had investecb$9,000. The investment is subject to a first magey loan with an outstanding balance of $49,5854
December 31, 2011 plus any future advances uplitaiaof $54,000,000. Our preferred equity entities to a 10% current cash return on our investéahbe plus a
equity interest. In October 2011, the joint venttirat owns the property obtained its temporaryifteate of occupancy from the New York City Buildjs Departmei
which enabled us to exercise our right to becoreentanaging member of the entity. The exercise ofi sight became effective on November 1, 2011. Assalt of thi
change in control, effective November 1, 2011, wesplidated the operations of the property.

Vintage Housing Holdings LLC Investment3a March 8, 2011 the first stage of the Vintage $iog Holdings LLC, which we refer to as Vintagearsaction close
pursuant to which we acquired developer fees ardraxks receivable owed by real estate partneréhips purchase price of $7,000,000. On June 241 204 closed ¢
the second phase of the Vintage transaction toicépr $18,200,000, plus a contribution of its yioeisly purchased receivables, an effective 75%rest in the Vintac
venture entitling us to a 12% preferred return fraumrent cash flow. Vintage owns general partngrgfierests and certain developer fees and advaecessable fror
partnerships owning 25 multifamily and senior hagsproperties comprising 4,167 units located prilyan the Pacific Northwest and California. We acat for ou
investment in Vintage using the equity method afoamting.

We have already made additional investments udieg\Vintage platform and during the third and fougtharter of 2011 made contributions to the ventotaling
$7,510,000. The venture’s new investments inclualé&d,500,000 contribution to a planned 231 unittirfamily project in Tacoma, Washington, a $4,300,80quisitior
of noncontrolling partner interests in seven of the emgstVintage investments and $1,710,000 toward &lmse agreement to acquire 75% interests in therg
partners of two multifamily properties comprisingpaoximately 490 units located in California andviséa.

Operating Property Disposition Activities

Marc Realty—On June 1, 2011 we sold to our partner, Marc Refity$18,544,000 our equity interest in three @rbigs in our Marc Realty Portfolio (8 South Michit
11 East Adams and 29 East Madison). The purchase was paid $6,000,000 in cash and $12,544,0@@gnegate secured promissory notes which eachifteaest ¢
8% per annum, require payments of interest onlyraatire on May 31, 2016. We have received paymieritgl satisfaction of its $4,910,000 8 South Mighn loan an
$2,265,000 11 East Adams loan. In addition, Maralfyemade $1,369,000 in payments on its 29 Eastidéadoan. At December 31, 2011, the 29 East Madists a
outstanding balance of $4,000,000.

Properties in Discontinued Operationsin August 2011, we sold our Knoxville, Tennessegpprty for net proceeds of $2,151,000 and in De@srdb11 we sold our ¢
Louis, Missouri property for net proceeds of $1,280.



Operating Property Financing Activities

Newbury Apartments Loan ModificatierOn February 24, 2011 we reached an agreement lgtfirst mortgage lender on our Newbury Apartmemtperty to repay ¢
past due interest and fees of approximately $8%88,@0fund escrows of approximately $83,000, toppseMarchs debt service inclusive of escrows of approxiny
$150,000 and to pay a modification fee of approxetya$119,000 (0.5% of the loan balance). In exgesathe lender waived all defaulted interest, medifihe paymen
to interest only and extended the maturity datéebruary 1, 2014. This loan was subsequently refied in October 2011. Sed.ban Restructure’below.

Plantation, Florida Property Level Financing-On March 4, 2011 we financed our Plantation, Fgdoperty with an $11,000,000 first mortgage lbaaring interest
6.483% and maturing on April 1, 2018. The net pealseof approximately $10,676,000 were used togirsatisfy a mortgage loan payable on other pribgse

Sealy Northwest Atlanta Loar-On June 23, 2011 we made a $20,641,000 bridgetmaur Sealy Northwest Atlanta joint venture. Ouidge loan enabled the jo
venture to satisfy its $28,750,000 first mortgagenl at a discounted payoff amount of $20,500,000.S8ptember 29, 2011 the joint venture obtainedacemer
financing in the amount of $14,000,000 bearingriege at LIBOR + 5.35% and maturing on September28d5. In connection with the financing, the joirgnture
purchased an interest rate cap which caps LIBOR/athrough October 1, 2013. Net proceeds from #w lwan plus additional capital contributions of&&D,000 fror
us and of $3,100,000 from Sealy were utilized tp @i the bridge loan due to us.

Loan Satisfaction—On July 13, 2011, we satisfied the $23,773,00Q fin@rtgage loan on our wholly owned Lisle, lllinogoperties for a discounted payoff
$14,500,000 plus reserves held by the lender afceipately $736,000.

Financing—On October 18, 2011, we obtained a $21,000,000gaget loan secured by our Newbury Apartments, 580@&rporetum and 701 Arboretum proper
The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 2.5%, mat@ret®ber 2014, subject to two, ogear extension terms, and requires payments akistenly through the initial ter
and payments of principal and interest based db year amortization schedule during the extendedgseln connection with the financing, we purchaaadnterest ra
cap which caps LIBOR at 1.0% through October 18,420rhe proceeds from the loan, together with axprately $3,160,000 of reserves, were used to fgatiie
existing approximately $23,875,000 loan encumbelewbury Apartments discussed above.

Churchill, PA Litigation Settlement

On September 30, 2011 we entered into a settleagmeement which provides for the dismissal of @wsuit against CBS Corporation. The settlement igexV for ¢
payment to us of $6,500,000, the conveyance td apgroximately 148 acres of land and the waivealb§round lease payments by us for 2011.

In connection with the settlement, we also enténéol a new net lease with Westinghouse Electric famy LLC, which we refer to as Westinghouse, fquragimately
57,000 square feet of space at the Churchill pigpethe lease has a term of 12 years and requinesiah rent of $750,000 per year, increasing anpuby
3%. Westinghouse is responsible for all costs aaset with the leased space and can terminatectigelat any time after the fifth anniversary by imgla terminatio
payment of $4,400,000 which decreases each yessafter. The lease requires that we make certaprawements and utility upgrades with an anticipatedt o
approximately $1,000,000.

Under the terms of the settlement agreement, weedgto market for sale both the portion of the prgpleased to Westinghouse and the remaining qowi the
property. Toward that end, in December 2011 we geda national broker to begin marketing the Méestinghouse parcel with an auction scheduled fardd 201z
The Westinghouse parcel is expected to be markitgdg the fourth quarter of 2012. Upon completifrihe marketing, we have agreed to pay CBS 50%ehet sale
proceeds received from the sale, or if not soldo % the value as determined by the bids for treperty received, in each case in excess of $6,600@ny proceec
from the sale or bidding process are in additiotheosettlement amount already received.
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Loan Assets

The following table sets forth certain informatigrating to our loans receivable, and loan seasitiarried at fair value. All information presenigea@s of December 31, 2011

thousands).

Name

Loans Receivabl
Magazine *

160 Spea

160 Spea

Hotel Wales *
Legacy Orchart
Rennaisance Walk
San Marbey:
Rockwell

Marc 29 East Madiso
50(-512 7th Ave
180 N. Michigan (6
Wellington Tower

Loan Securitie!
WBCMT 2007 WHL8
West Olive

Loans in Equity Investmer(9
Socal Office Portfolio *
Riverside Plazi

Preferred Equity
180 North Michigar
Vintage Housing

Loan Stated Interest  Carrying Par Maturity Senior
Position Asset Type Location Rate (1) Amount (2) Value Date (3) Debt (4)
Mezzanine  Multi-Family Various LIBOR + 1.23% 18,80t 20,00( 07/09/1: 120,00(
B Note Office San Francisco, C 9.75% 11,55¢ 15,000(5) 06/09/1% 35,00(
Mezzanine Office San Francisco, C 15.00% 4,84¢ 4,80( 06/09/1: 50,00(
Whole loan Hotel New York, NY LIBOR + 4% (7 20,10: 20,00( 10/05/1+ —
Securec  Corporate Loa n/a 15.00% 9,75( 9,750(5) 10/31/1¢ —
Mezzanine Mixed use Atlanta, GA LIBOR + 12% 3,00¢ 3,00¢ 01/01/1% 4,00(
Whole loan  Multi-Family Tempe, AZ 5.88% 26,50: 30,46¢ 01/01/1¢ —
Mezzanine Industrial Shirley, NY 12.00% 27t 1,49% 05/01/1¢ 16,76¢
Mezzanine Office Chicago, IL 8.00% 4,02¢ 4,00( 05/31/1¢ 10,49«
B Note Office New York, NY 7.19% 9,97¢ 11,400 07/11/1¢ 244,88°
Mezzanine Office Chicago, IL 8.50% 2,93( 2,93( 12/31/1¢ 17,60:
Mezzanine Mixed use New York, NY 6.79% 2,561 3,501 07/11/1° 22,50(
CMBS Hotel Various LIBOR + 1.75%$ 34 1,13( 06/09/1: 1,351,66
Rake Bond: Office Burbank, CA 5,27¢ 6,36¢ 02/28/1% 15,66¢
$ 5,30¢
C Note Office Various LIBOR + 3.10%$ 72,62¢ 86,06« 08/09/1% 678,79
B Note Retail Riverside, CA 12.00% 7,88t 7,800 12/01/1: 54,40(
$ 80,50¢
Preferred Equit Office Chicago, IL 8.50% $ 4,02( 3,92¢ — 21,79¢
Preferred Equit Multi-Family ~ Tacoma, WA 12.00% 1,50( 1,50¢ — —
$ 5,52(

* Loan Asset was acquired in 2011. Additional loaseasletails are described belo

(1) Represents contractual interest rates without gieffect to loan discount and accretion. The stategtest rate may be significantly different thaur effective intere

rate on certain loan investmer

(2)  Carrying amount includes all applicable accruedriggt and accretion of discou

(3)  After giving effect to all contractual extensiol

(4) Debt which is senior in payment and priority to tean.

5) Par Value is presented at the borrowers discoyvagdff option (DPO) amoun

(6) Represents a tenant improvement and capital exjpgadoan collateralized by a subordinate mortgamgéhe ownership interest in the property ow!

(@) Minimum rate of 7%
(8) Ranges from LIBOR + 0.65% to LIBOR + 1.60

(9) Does not include our equity interests in Concorl, BDO Management and WI-Elad which invested in Sullivan Center which cloge@012.
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Loan Asset Acquisition Activiti¢

Magazine Mezzanine LoarOn June 1, 2011 we acquired from Concord Debt HgkliLLC, which we refer to as Concord, for a pusehprice of $17,525,000 a $20,000,
senior mezzanine loan collateralized by a pledgéhefequity interest in six cros®llateralized apartment communities, totaling B,1its located in Orlando, Saras
Bradenton and Palm Beach Gardens, Florida. Theifoanbordinate to $120,000,000 of senior deltuisently paying one month LIBOR plus 123 basisyoand is schedul
to mature on July 9, 2012.

Loan Asset Origination

Hotel Wales—On October 6, 2011 we originated a $20,000,000 gaget loan collateralized by the Hotel Wales locateanhattan, New York which loan bears intere
LIBOR plus 4%, with a 3% LIBOR floor (i.e. a minimu7% rate on the loan), and matures in October 2@1tB a oneyear extension right. Subsequently, we sold a I40D(
senior participation to Concord Real Estate CDOtd.,Lwhich we refer to as CDO- which bears interest at LIBOR plus 1.25% witl3% LIBOR floor, and retained
$6,000,000 junior participation which provides fioterest payments equal to the interest payablieroan less the amount payable on the senioicipation for an initial rat
of 13.4%.

Renaissance Wa—On December 12, 2011 we originated a $3,000,00@zam#ze loan collateralized by the Renaissance \padkerty comprised of 140 residential rental
condominium units, over 30,000 square feet of rsfadce plus structured parking and amenities 6radres, located in downtown Atlanta, Georgia. @ is subordinate
$4,000,000 of senior debt, bears interest at LIFDR 12% with a 2% LIBOR floor, and is scheduleartature on January 1, 2014.

127 West 25th Street©On October 25, 2011 we committed to make a $9,@@0slibordinate mortgage loan collateralized bycttramercial property located at 127 West .
Street, Manhattan, New York. The loan is subjedh®satisfaction by the borrower of certain candi on or prior to the loan funding date. If fuddéhe loan will mature ¢
October 1, 2014, bear interest at a rate equdlaateater of 14% per annum or LIBOR plus 10%, regghire minimum monthly payments equal to inteesstvell as principi
payments. In connection with entering into the lagneement, we received an origination fee of $8@,Mur commitment may be extended by the borrawea monthly bas
through March 24, 2012 by paying a monthly commiitrfee of $105,000. The loan, when and if made, élsubordinate to a first mortgage loan with ats@nding princip:
balance expected to be not more than $35,200,008.pfoperty is net leased to the Bowery Resideédoshmittee, Inc., a New York not-fgrofit corporation, which obtai
funding from the City of New York.

Loan Asset Modification

San Marbeya Loan Receivable Participation Intere®n January 14, 2011 we restructured the San Marfisyanortgage loan to create a $15,150,000 sqradticipation whic
bears interest at 4.85% and a $15,744,000 junidicigtion which bears interest at 6.4% and corentty issued the senior loan participation to CD@t par.

Loan Assets Repaid During the Y:

CDH-CDO LLC—As of August 8, 2011 we received final payment lo& $3,498,000 compliance loan we had previouslyetadCDH CDO LLC, which we refer to as Cl
CDO, an entity in which we hold a 33.3% interesteDutstanding loan plus accrued interest totajmgroximately $3,669,000 was fully repaid.

In addition, on February 15, 2011, we sold to Cedddebt Funding Trust, which we refer to as CDFytelly owned subsidiary of CDH CDO and the soleiggowner o
CDO-1, tranche E bonds with a face amount of $9@issued by CDQ- In exchange for the bonds, we received a noteéramount of our original purchase price
accrued interest. The note plus accrued interégdirig approximately $763,000 was repaid in fullApril 15, 2011.

Metropolitan TowerOn March 31, 2011 we received repayment of the dfpetitan Tower BNote and Rake Bond at par in the amount of $2308Dresulting in an annualiz
return of 112.7%. We acquired the investments ocebwer 16, 2009 for $11,750,000.

Siete Square Loan-©n June 9, 2011 the borrower on our Rabticipation B Interest exercised its discountaglgff option and repaid the loan for $2,500,000e Téan ass
was originally acquired in June 2009 for $2,460,866d generated an annualized return of 19.7%.
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Beverly Hills Hiltor— On September 15, 2011 ourNBte receivable was paid off at par. We receivgzhyenent of $10,000,000 on the loan which was oaifjinacquired o
December 9, 2009 for $5,250,000 and generated raumadined return of 48.7%.

Moffet Towers—On October 25, 2011 we received payment of $2300®4plus accrued interest in full satisfaction af senior participation in a Blote secured by a fii
mortgage lien on the Moffet Tower office complextire amount of $21,558,000 and additional advawéetl,476,000 made under the terms of the note. BiNote wa:
originally acquired on October 29, 2010. This irtwesnt generated an annualized return of 8.8%.

Westwood Business Park©n December 19, 2011 we received repayment onstarfiortgage loan secured by four class B officddings in Phoenix, Arizona. The fi
mortgage loan was originally purchased on OctoBefR10. This investment generated an annualizedref 11.5%.

Loan Asset Acquisitions and Other Loan Asset Tretita Activity through our Equity Investmel

Gotham Hotel—Joint Venture Loan AcquisitierOn February 23, 2011 we acquired for $15,628,0@@réorming $16,303,000 first mortgage secured igraon a recent
constructed, 26tory, 66 room limited service boutique hotel lechin New York, New York through a 50/50 joint verg. The loan earned interest at a rate of 9.33%
matured on May 4, 2011. On May 24, 2011 we receregdyment of $8,638,000 on our $8,037,000 mata-share of the equity investment resulting imanualized return
34%.

Lakeside Eag—Joint Venture Loan Acquisition-On March 22, 2011 we purchased through a 50/5Q pémture, two norperforming first mortgage loans at par for
aggregate price of $35,558,000. The loans werateolllized by two retail centers located in RiveesCounty, California. Both notes matured on Aprik010 and were
maturity default. The notes bore interest at thlgfault rate of 8.92% (4.92% stated note rate gis default rate). Upon acquisition, the joint vemtlbegan foreclosu
proceedings. In May 2011 we received repaymentthertwo non-performing first mortgage loans. Weereed repayments totaling $18,650,000 on our $IB(I® prorate
share of the equity investment resulting in an afined return of 30%.

Sofitel / LW Sofi LLC InvestmentOn June 2, 2011 we entered into a 50/50 joint ventamed LW SOFI LLC, which we refer to as LW SOWith Lexington Realty Trus
which we refer to as Lexington. We and Lexingtonteeontributed approximately $5,760,000 to LW SGJ. June 3, 2011 LW SOFI acquired from Concordafgproximatel
$11,520,000, 100% of the economic rights and obtiga in a $71,530,000 mezzanine loan collaterdlizg an interest in the Sofitel hotel in New YorkyC The loan require
payments of interest only at a rate of LIBOR pl&5 basis points and was scheduled to mature orukigbi, 2012. The loan was encumbered by a $5600Q:epurchas
obligation that bore interest at a variable interate of 1-month LIBOR plus 100 basis points whighs scheduled to mature on December 31, 2012.

On October 31, 2011 the venture received $71,580008s accrued interest in full satisfaction of thezzanine loan, the proceeds of which were utilipesatisfy the repurche
obligation encumbering the loan receivable resgltmnet proceeds of $15,876,000. We received @3%7000 distribution from LWSOFI on November 2, 2011 resulting ir
annualized return of 89.1%.

Southern California Office Portfolio Note-We contributed approximately $71,000,000 to a wentWRTSocal Lender, which owns an approximately 73% egein Soc:
Office Portfolio Loan LLC, which we refer to as $bd.oan. On November 4, 2011 Socal Loan acquiredafpurchase price of $96,700,000 a $117,900,0000t@- in the
$798,000,000 first mortgage encumbering a 4,5005fi@re foot, 31 property portfolio of office profes situated throughout southern California. Tblote, which is th
controlling holder of the mortgage loan, bearsriggéat a rate of LIBOR plus 310 basis points, regupayments of interest only and matures on Augu2012.

On January 6, 2012 Socal Loan obtained a $40,000@8urchase facility on the Bete. All of the net proceeds from the repurchasglify were distributed entirely to us
partial redemption of our interest in Socal Loarsuteng in a decrease in our ownership interestSocal Loan to approximately 56%. Pursuant to theuneshas
facility: (i) monthly payments on the funds advame a rate of LIBOR (with a 1% LIBOR floor) plu&®are required to be made by Socal Loan (on Jar26r2012 the ventu
purchased an interest rate cap which caps LIBOR/@t (ii) interest at the rate of 2% is added te thpurchase price; (iii) Socal Loan is requiredepurchase the Gote or
January 6, 2014, however Socal Loan has the ragifiiect to certain conditions including the paymefnd 0.5% extension fee, to extend the repurchase for two, sixnontt
extensions; (iv) Socal Loan is permitted to voluitfarepurchase the Glote at any time, provided, however, if such repase is made prior to April 30, 2013, Socal Loz
required to pay a make-whole amount equal to tterést payable
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on the amount advanced through April 30, 2013 éessinterest previously paid; and (v) upon repuseh&ocal Loan is required to pay an exit fee 8¥4lif such repurchase
during the initial term or 1.0% if during an extexnlterm. The repurchase date is subject to actieleria the event of customary payment and covedefdults by Socal Lo:
but not a default on the C-Note so long as Socahlapntinues to make the required payments uneeaetiurchase facility.

The obligations under the repurchase facility aiy frecourse to Socal Loan. In addition, we havevigled the purchaser under the repurchase faailgyaranty for custome
“bad-boy” acts, including bankruptcy, fraud or intentionakrepresentation, bad faith contesting of a clainthieypurchaser under the repurchase facility, l@nthe C Note, ar
misappropriation of funds. In addition, we haveesgt to guaranty all interest payments under therobpse facility during its term. Our joint ventyrartner, New Valley LLC
has agreed to reimburse and indemnify us for iip@rtionate share of any payments required to beerbst us on account of the guarantees providedby u

Sullivan Center—On December 23, 2011 we formed a 50/50 joint ventith a subsidiary of Elad Canada Inc., which efer to as Elad. The joint venture entered int
agreement to acquire an approximately $145,000d@®8ulted first mortgage loan which includes defediinterest, for a purchase price of approxima$d#8,500,000. The lo
is collateralized by the Sullivan Center, a 942,860are foot mixed use property located in Chicdiiopis comprised of approximately 200,000 squiget of retail space a
742,000 square feet of office space.

On February 3, 2012 the acquisition of the loanagurchase price of approximately $128,000,000 eemsummated. In connection with the consummatiothe transactiol
we formed two substantially identical 50/50 joimtinéures with Elad; one to hold a mezzanine loarckiie refer to as the ML joint venture, and theeotio hold a future profi
participation interest in the mezzanine loan boegwhich we refer to as the PP joint venture. Upoquisition, the original loan was restructurebiri) a $100,000,000 non-
recourse mortgage loan provided by a third paryée; (ii) a $47,500,000 mezzanine loan (inclusifadditional advances for reserves, property eggeand transaction cos
held by the ML joint venture; and (iii) a profitauicipation in the property held by the PP joiehture.

The $100,000,000 non-recourse mortgage loan hasea-year term, is pneayable without premium after 20 months, bearsrésteat 11% per annum, of which up to
accrues, and requires payments of interest onlg.[@hder has also agreed to provide up to an additi$8,650,000 in advances for tenant improvemégasing commissiol
and capital expenditures. This loan is a bridgdifato be used for the completion of the prop&tease-up.

The $47,500,000 mezzanine loan has a six year teears interest at 15% per annum, 5% of which &scam a compounded basis, and requires paymeirttenést only. If th
mezzanine loan is not satisfied at maturity oraené of default occurs, the borrower is requiregay an additional $18,000,000 together with a ¥8¥hpounded return on st
amount, which represents the discount on the psechéce paid by the ML joint venture and the PRtjeenture together with accrued default inteegsl expenses. In additic
the ML joint venture has agreed to provide appratigty $4,400,000 to fund the costs associated tivircompletion of the build out of the two retaikchors, Target and DS!
as well as for 80% of additional tenant improversetgasing commissions and capital expendituresumated under the mortgage loan. Both the intenast and compound
return are subject to adjustment as described below

The PP joint venture acquired a 65% future prgfasticipation. The profits participation is in esseof all amounts due under the mezzanine loaa.$8,000,000 princip
payment is made on the mezzanine loan on or miBrecember 31, 2012, the interest rate and compmalreturn are increased to 15.5% and the profitscpzation is decreas:
to 60%.

REIT Securities

During 2011 we invested $19,321,000 in REIT semsito capitalize on market mispricing on certadosities. In particular, we acquired in markehgsactions 7.6% of tl
outstanding common shares of Cedar Realty Trustfiém@n average purchase price of $3.61.

At December 31, 2011 our investments in REIT séiesrconsisted of the following (in thousands):

Cost Fair Value
REIT Preferred Share $ 2,061 $ 4,277
REIT Common Share 21,49: 24,57¢

$ 2355¢ § 28,85¢
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Revolving Line of Credit

On March3, 2011 we amended our existing revolving line afdét such that (i) the maximum borrowing was irsed to $50,000,000 with an accordion feature ofa
$150,000,000 and (ii) the maturity date was extdrtdeVlarch 2014 with an option to extend the mayuwiate to March 2015. The amended credit faciiggrs interest at LIBC
plus 3%. We capitalized $370,000 of expenses ieclim connection with this transaction and are aing the balance over the modified life.

Employees

As of December 31, 2011 we had no employees. Gairsiffare administered by our Advisor, pursuanthi terms of the Advisory Agreement, which inclugesviding asst
management services and coordinating with our $loéder transfer agent and property managers. UtiderAdvisory Agreement, we pay to our Advisor a rterly bas
management fee equal to 1.5% of (i) the issuanice f our outstanding equity securities plus @i25% of any equity contribution by an unaffiliatddrd party to a ventu
managed by us.

In addition to receiving a base management fee, PdiAsors is entitled to receive an incentive fee ddministering the Trust. FUR Advisors, or itiledte, is also entitled 1
receive property and construction management feesramercially reasonable rates, as determinedubynalependent Trustees. The incentive fee whiggisal to 20% of ar
amounts available for distribution in excess ohgeshold amount (as defined) is only payable ah dime, if at all, (i) when holders of our Commoha®es receive aggreg
dividends above a threshold amount or (ii) upomteation of the Advisory Agreement, if the net valof our assets exceeds the threshold amount leastten current mark
values and appraisals. That is, the incentive $e®t payable annually but only at such time, iéltas shareholders have received a return @fsired capital (based on ini
share issuance price) plus a 7% annual returndhédtbe threshold amount) or, if the Advisory Agremt is terminated, if the assets of the Trust eddbe threshold amount.
December 31, 2011 the threshold amount requirdoetdistributed before any incentive fee would bgapte to FUR Advisors was approximately $560,87@,08hich wa
equivalent to $16.97 per diluted Common Share.

Competition

We have competition with respect to our acquisitibroperating properties and our acquisition aridioation of loan assets with many other comparieduding other REIT:
insurance companies, commercial banks, privatesinvent funds, hedge funds, specialty finance compaand other investors. Some competitors may laal@ver cost ¢
funds and access to funding sources that are raifiable to us. In addition, some of our competitoray have higher risk tolerances or make differesit assessments, wh
could allow them to consider a wider variety oféstments. We cannot assure you that the compepitegsures we face will not have a material adveffeet on our busines
financial condition and results of operations.

We will continue to capitalize on the acquisitiondainvestment opportunities that our Advisor bringsus as a result of its acquisition experienceve as our partners
ventures. We derive significant benefit from ouegent advisor structure, where our Advisa@Xperienced management team provides us withinesoat substantially less ¢
than if such persons were directly employed byTisough its broad experience, our Advisogenior management team has established a netfvodntacts and relationshi
including relationships with operators, financimygces, investment bankers, commercial real ebtateers, potential tenants and other key indusarfigipants.

Environmental Regulations

Our operations and properties are subject to varfederal, state and local laws and regulationg@aing the protection of the environment includaig and water qualit
hazardous or toxic substances and health and satetge are discussed further under ITEM 1A — Rasktors.

Segment Data
Business segment data may be found under ITEM i@anEial Statements Note 19 and Supplementary Data.
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Additional Information

The following materials are available free of chatfrough our website at www.winthropreit.com asrsas reasonably practicable after they are eleicatly filed with ol
furnished to the SEC under the Securities Exch@mg®f 1934, as amended:

. our Annual Reports on Form -K and all amendments there
. our quarterly reports on Form-Q and all amendments there
. our current reports on Forn-K and all amendments there

. other SEC filings

. organizational document

. Audit Committee Charte

. Compensation Committee Chart

. Conflicts Committee Charte

. Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee €hs

. Code of Business Conduct and Ethics;

. Corporate Governance Guidelin

We will provide a copy of the foregoing materialgheut charge to anyone who makes a written reqtestur Investor Relations Department, c/o FUR Advs, LLC, ~
Bulfinch Place, Suite 500, P.O. Box 9507, Bostoaskachusetts 02114.

We also intend to promptly disclose on our webaitg amendments that we make towaivers for our Trustees or executive officers tlvatgrant from, the Code of Busin
Conduct and Ethics.

New York Stock Exchange Certification

As required by applicable New York Stock Exchanigérg rules, on May 17, 2011, following our 201hrual Meeting of Shareholders, our Chairman andeClkecutiv
Officer submitted to the New York Stock Exchangeaestification that he was not aware of any violatioy us of New York Stock Exchange corporate goaece listin
standards.

ITEM 1A—RISK FACTORS

We, our assets and the entities in which we inaestsubject to a number of risks customary for REpFoperty owners, loan originators and holdesequity investors as w:
as a number of risks involved in our investmenteraging, and capital strategy policy that not aflRs may have. Material factors that may adversdfgct our busine:
operations and financial conditions are summarizdw.

Risks incidental to real estate investmer

As a REIT our investments are limited to direct ewahip and operation of operating properties, laagets secured, directly or indirectly, by opetafomoperties, ar
investments in other REITs. Accordingly, an investinin us depends upon our financial performanckthe value of our operating properties held frametto time as well ¢
those securing our loan assets, and those helthebyREITs in which we invest, which operating prdiesr are subject to the risks normally associatéti the ownershiy
operation and disposal of real estate propertidseal estate related assets, including:

. adverse changes in general and local economic tomsliwhich affect the demand for real estate as

. competition from other propertie

¢ fluctuations in interest rate

. reduced availability of financing

« the cyclical nature of the real estate industry poskible oversupply of, or reduced demand forperies in the markets in which our investmentslacated;
« the attractiveness of our properties to tenantspamchasers

. how well we manage our properti¢

. changes in market rental rates and our abilitetd space on favorable tern
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« the financial condition of our tenants and borrasiecluding their becoming insolvent and bankr
« the need to periodically renovate, repair ar-lease space and the costs ther

. increases in maintenance, insurance and operaistg;

. civil unrest, armed conflict or acts of terrorisgainst the United States; a

. earthquakes, floods and other natural disasteastsrof God that may result in uninsured los

In addition, changes to applicable federal, staig lacal regulations, zoning and tax laws and pigefiability under environmental and other lawfeat real estate value
Further, throughout the period that we own reapprty, regardless of whether or not a propertyégpcing any income, we must make significant exgtenes, including thos
for property taxes, maintenance, insurance andectleharges and debt service. The risks assoacidtedeal estate investments may adversely affectoperating results a
financial position, and therefore the funds avdéddbr distribution to you as dividends.

We may change our investment and operational p@gi

We may change our investment and operating stragéitper voluntarily or as result of changing ecoiwmonditions, including our policies with respeot investment:
acquisitions, growth, operations, indebtednessitalgzation and dividends at any time which couddult in our making investments that are differfeatn, and possibly riskis
than, our current investments. A change in our shwent strategy may increase our exposure to Biteate risk, default risk and real estate markettdiations, all of whic
could adversely affect our financial condition,uks of operations, share price and our abilitpay dividends.

We may not be able to invest our cash reservesuestments which will increase equity value.

As of December 31, 2011, we had approximately ®@O0 of cash and cash equivalents availablenfeestment. Our ability to increase entity valuelépendent upon o
ability to grow our asset base by investing thesel$, as well as additional funds which we mayeraisborrow, in real estate related assets thatultimately generate mo
favorable returns.

We may not be able to obtain capital to make innesnts.

As a REIT, we are a capital intensive business ithatependent primarily on third party debt andiggtinancing to fund the growth of our businesscdease one of tt
requirements for a REIT is that it distribute a&d£90% of its annual REIT taxable income, subiedertain adjustments, to its shareholders. Acteesisird party capital sourc
depends, in part, on general market conditionsirtagkets perception of our growth potential, our curremd @xpected future earnings, our cash flow andrtagket price of ot
Common Shares. Additionally, we may not be ablelitain debt or equity financing on favorable tersscordingly, if we cannot obtain capital from ttiparties or if suc
access is on unfavorable terms, it will likely havenaterial adverse affect on our financial coonditind results of operations, our stock price amdability to pay dividends
our shareholders.

We are subject to significant competition and we ynaot compete successfully.

We have significant competition with respect to aaguisition of operating properties and our adtjais and origination of loan assets with many otbempanies, includir
other REITSs, insurance companies, commercial bgmikegate investment funds, hedge funds, speciatignice companies and other investors some of wiia have a low:
cost of funds and access to funding sources tleabair available to us. In addition, many of our petitors have greater resources than we do antthi®and other reasons,
may not be able to compete successfully for pdeidavestments.

Investing through ventures presents additional rssl

Our investments in ventures present additionalsrisliich as our having objectives that differ fromsth of our partners or in the investments we mhkepming involved i
disputes concerning operations, or possibly competiith those persons for investments unrelatezlitoventure. In addition, where we do not contha venture, we rely on t
internal controls and financial reporting controfsour partners and, as such, their failure to dgmyth applicable standards may adversely affect u
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Investing in private companies involves specifisks.

We have held and may acquire additional ownersitgrésts in private companies not subject to thertang requirements of the SEC. Investments ingte businesses invol
a higher degree of business and financial riskcitvitian result in substantial losses and accordisigbuld be considered speculative. There is gdparal publicly availabl
information about these private companies, and Wleely significantly on the due diligence of oAdvisor to obtain information in connection withrdavestment decisions.

Our due diligence may not reveal all of the lialiBs associated with a proposed investment and matyreveal other weaknesses.

There can be no assurance that due diligence bydusor in connection with a new investment wittaover all relevant facts which could adverseleetffthe value of tt
investment and the success of the investment.

We face risks associated with property acquisitions

We acquire properties and portfolios of propertiesluding large portfolios that would increase sige and potentially alter our capital structukiéhough we enter into the
acquisitions with the belief that they will enharme future financial performance, the succesaiohdransactions is subject to a number of factocdding the risk that:

* we may not be able to obtain financing for acqige# on favorable term
. acquired properties may fail to perform as expec
. the actual costs of repositioning or redevelopioguared properties may be higher than our estim

. acquired properties may be located in new markédterevwe may have limited knowledge and understandinthe local economy, an absence of bus
relationships in the area or unfamiliarity with &governmental and permitting procedures;

. we may not be able to efficiently integrate acquiipgoperties, particularly portfolios of properti@sto our organization and manage new properties way the
allows us to realize cost savings and syner

In the future we may acquire properties or porti®lof properties through tax deferred contributiamsactions in exchange for partnership interiestair Operating Partnersh
This acquisition structure has the effect, amorgeofactors, of reducing the amount of tax depteniawe can deduct over the tax life of the acaiiipeoperties, and typica
requires that we agree to protect the contributabdlity to defer recognition of taxable gain thrdugestrictions on our ability to dispose of the @iogd properties and/or t
allocation of partnership debt to the contributiarsnaintain their tax bases. These restrictionslispositions could limit our ability to sell an assluring a specified time, or
terms, that would be favorable absent such reistnist

Acquired properties may subject us to known and aokvn liabilities.

Properties that we acquire may be subject to knemth unknown liabilities for which we would have recourse, or only limited recourse, to the formemers of suc
properties. As a result, if a liability were assdrigainst us based upon ownership of an acquitggbly, we might be required to pay significamtnsuto settle it, which cou
adversely affect our financial results and castvfldnknown liabilities relating to acquired propest could include:

. liabilities for clear-up of preexisting disclosed or undisclosed environmentatamination;
. claims by tenants, vendors or other persons ar@ingccount of actions or omissions of the formeners of the properties; ai
. liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of husss.
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Failure to renew expiring leases could adverselyegt our financial condition.

We are subject to the risk that, upon expiratieases may not be renewed, the space may not beordte terms of renewal or reletting, includirge tcost of any requir
renovations, may be less favorable than the pria@uorent lease terms. This risk is substantiahwétspect to our net leased properties. Thirteesuofproperties, containing
aggregate of approximately 2,222,000 square fespafe are net leased to nine different tenantssdeases accounting for approximately 7% of §greyate annual base r
from our operating properties for 2011, represenéipproximately 3% of the net rentable square deéte properties, are scheduled to expire in 20tRer leases grant tens
early termination rights upon payment of a ternmiorapenalty. Lease expirations will require usdodte new tenants and negotiate replacement leaethem. The costs f
tenant improvements, tenant concessions and leasimgnissions with respect to new leases are teendilly greater than costs relating to renewal Iga$eve are unable
promptly relet or renew leases for all or a sultsahportion of the space subject to expiring lease if the rental rates upon such renewal ottietpare significantly lower th:
expected, our revenue and net income could be selyeaffected.

We are subject to risks associated with the finalaondition of our and our borrower’s tenants

Our tenants or tenants at properties securingaaur &ssets may experience a downturn in their bssiresulting in their inability to make rental pents when due. In additic
a tenant may seek the protection of bankruptcyhtesicy or similar laws, which could result in thegection and termination of such tenanase and cause a reduction in
cash flow. If this were to occur at a net leaseprty, the entire property would become vacant.

We cannot evict a tenant solely because of itsdfifor bankruptcy. A bankruptcy court, however, naayhorize a tenant to reject and terminate itsdeln such a case, our cl:
against the tenant for past due rent and unpaidduent would be subject to a statutory cap thghtrbe substantially less than the remaining ceméd under the lease. In ¢
event, it is unlikely that a bankrupt tenant willypthe entire amount it owes us under a lease.l@$® of rental payments from tenants could advgraffect our financie
condition and results of operations.

Similarly, if a tenant at a property securing anl@sset fails to meet its rental obligations, therdwer may have insufficient funds to satisfy thebt service resulting in a defz
on our loan asset. Additionally, the loss of a terad a property securing a loan asset could negjgtimpact the value of the property and, therefour collateral.

The loss of a major tenant could adversely affear éinancial condition .

We are and expect that we will continue to be subje a degree of tenant concentration at cert&iouo operating properties and the properties seguour loan assets. .
indicated above, we are subject to risks associaittdthe financial condition of our tenants anddets at properties securing our loan assetseletknt that a tenant occupy
a significant portion of one or more of our propeEstor whose rental income represents a signifipartion of the rental revenue at such propertgroperties were to experier
financial weakness, default on its lease, electtooenew its lease or file bankruptcy it would atégely impact our financial condition and resufsoperations. Similarly, if
tenant occupying a significant portion of one orenof the properties securing our loan assets @se/ental income represents a significant poxicthe rental revenue at st
property or properties experiences financial weakrdefaults on its lease, elects not to renevedsd or files for bankruptcy, it would negativetypiact our financial conditic
and results of operations.

We may experience increased operating costs, whigght reduce our profitability.

Our properties are subject to increases in operakpenses such as for cleaning, electricity, hgatventilation and air conditioning, administraticosts and other co
associated with security, landscaping and repaidsraaintenance of our properties. In general, undereases with tenants, we pass through all poréion of these costs
them. There can be no assurance that tenantsonitlly bear the full burden of these higher costghat such increased costs will not lead themotloer prospective tenants
seek office space elsewhere. If operating expeinsesase, the availability of other comparablea&fspace in the geographic markets of our propentight limit our ability t«
increase rents; if operating expenses increaseutith corresponding increase in revenues, ourtphility could diminish and limit our ability to padividends to shareholders.

We leverage our portfolio, which may adversely affeur financial condition and results of operatian

We seek to leverage our portfolio through borrowin@ur return on investments and cash availabfgayodividends to holders of our Series D Prefe@adres and Comm
Shares may be reduced to the extent that changearket conditions make new borrowings or refinagadf existing debt difficult or even impossible cause the cost of ¢
financings to increase relative to the income tiaeit be derived from the assets. Our debt servigmeats reduce the cash available to
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pay dividends to holders of Series D Preferred &and Common Shares. We may not be able to meeebtiservice obligations and, to the extent thatannot, we risk tt
loss of some or all of our assets to foreclosurtorred sale to satisfy our debt obligations. Ardese in the value of the assets may lead to aresgent that we repay cert
existing or future credit facilities. We may noteahe funds available, or the ability to obtaiplaeement financing, to satisfy such repayments.

Interest rate fluctuations may reduce our investntaeturn.

Certain of our loan obligations and loan asset®Hnating interest rates. In such cases, an iseréa interest rates would increase our loan otiiga while a decrease
interest rates would decrease the interest receimazlir loan assets. Where possible we seek tgatetihese risks by acquiring interest rate capeagents, rate collars and ot
similar protections. To the extent we have not gaitied these risks or our actions are ineffectiviyctuation in interest rates could negatively anpour cash flow due to
increase in loan obligations or a decrease inéstaeceived on our loan assets.

We engage in hedging transactions that may limitiggor result in losses.

We have and may continue to use hedging instrumierasir risk management strategy to limit the efeaf changes in interest rates on our operatiérfsedge may not t
effective in eliminating all of the risks inherentany particular position. Further, we have andldan the future recognize losses on a hedgeipasithich adversely effects ¢
financial condition and results of operations. didi&ion, we run the risk of default by a countetpdo a hedging arrangement.

We may be unable to refinance our existing debtpoeferred share financings or obtain favorable refincing terms.

We are subject to the normal risks associated detht and preferred share financings, includingrisle that our cash flow will be insufficient to meeequired payments
principal and interest on debt and dividends antkmgption payments to holders of preferred shardstlaa risk that indebtedness on our propertiesinsecured indebtedne
will not be able to be renewed, repaid or refinaheden due, or that the terms of any renewal danaeting will not be as favorable as the termsunhsindebtedness. The
risks are exacerbated by the current tightenedingneéquirements for real estate related assetdraadme cases the inability to refinance realtestedebtedness. If we we
unable to refinance indebtedness or preferred dhecings on acceptable terms, or at all, we mighforced to dispose of one or more of our inwesits on disadvantage«
terms, which might result in losses to us, whiclildchave a material adverse affect on us and ollityato pay dividends to our holders of Preferr8tiares and Comm
Shares. Furthermore, if a property is mortgaged loan pledged to secure payment of indebtedneksvarare unable to meet the debt payments, theterwild foreclose upt
the property or the loan, appoint a receiver omimbin assignment of rents and leases or purswe odimedies, all with a consequent loss of reveraueks asset value
us. Foreclosures could also create taxable incoit®uwt accompanying cash proceeds, thereby hinglenim ability to meet the REIT dividend requirengent

The loans we invest in are subject to delinquencyldoss.

Our loan assets are directly or indirectly securgdncome producing property. The ability of a lmower to make payments on the loan underlying tiseserities is depende
primarily upon the successful operation of the proprather than upon the existence of indepentieaime or assets of the borrower since the undeylieans are genera
non+ecourse in nature. These loans are subject te abkelinquency and foreclosure as well as risoeiated with the capital markets. If a borrowerev® default on a loan,
is possible that we would not recover the full wabf the loan.

We may be unable to foreclose on the collateral .g@ry our loan assets on a timely basis or our lo@ssets may be subject to unfavorable treatmengitborrowel
bankruptcy.

In certain states foreclosing on a property caa lEngthy and costly process. In addition, a boemogan file for bankruptcy or raise defenses toatddelay our ability to reali:
on our collateral on a timely basis. In such inst the increased costs and time required tazeeali our collateral would likely result in a reddcreturn on the investme
Further, if a borrower were to file for bankrupfgsotection, a plan could be approved over our digjipdhat would extend our loan for a period ofdimt an interest rate tha
less than our cost of funds, thereby having a megahpact on our cash flow.
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The subordinate loan assets in which we invest atdbject to risks relating to the structure and tesnof the transactions, and there may not be suffiti funds or assets
satisfy our subordinate notes, which may resultlosses to us

We invest in loan assets that are subordinate ympat and collateral to more senior loans. If arwer defaults or declares bankruptcy, after thearsenior obligations a
satisfied, there may not be sufficient funds oetssemaining to satisfy our subordinate notesaBse each transaction is privately negotiated, relitete loan assets can var
their structural characteristics and lender rightsluding our rights to control the default or kauptcy process. The subordinate loan assets thanvest in may not give us 1
right to demand foreclosure as a subordinate deloieh Furthermore, the presence of intercredigpeements, céender agreements and participation agreementsliméayour
ability to amend the loan documents, assign thendpaaccept prepayments, exercise remedies andotomécisions made in bankruptcy proceedings redatic
borrowers. Bankruptcy and borrower litigation cagngicantly increase the time needed for us tousrapossession of underlying collateral in thergwaf a default, durin
which time the collateral may decline in valueabidition, there are significant costs and delags@ated with the foreclosure process.

The widening of credit spreads could have a negatimpact on the value of our loan assets and RE@bti securities.

The fair value of our loan assets is dependent ugpenyield demanded on these assets by the madssdbon the underlying credit as well as generah@mic
conditions. Although many of our directly held loassets were purchased at significant discouritstlzer deterioration of the real estate marketa targe supply of these Ic
assets available for sale combined with reducedaderwill generally cause the market to requireghér yield on these loan assets, resulting in hdrigor “wider,”spread ove
the benchmark rate of such loan assets. Under toeslitions, the value of the loan assets in outf@iao would decline.

Our investments in REIT debt securities are aldgjesi to changes in credit spreads as their vawependent upon the yield demanded on these Sesuny the market bas
on the underlying credit. Excessive supply of theseurities combined with reduced demand will galfyercause the market to require a higher yieldtloese real este
securities, resulting in the use of a higher, oidav,” spread over the benchmark rate to value such siesutinder such conditions, the value of our REEDt securitie
portfolio would tend to decline. Such changes miarket value of our portfolio may adversely affeer financial condition and results of operations

Deterioration of the credit markets may have an adse impact on the ability of borrowers to obtaieplacement financing

The deterioration of credit markets has made itegmely difficult for borrowers to obtain mortgagedncing. The inability of borrowers to obtain r@pément financing has |
and will likely continue to lead to more loan ddfauhereby resulting in expensive and time consignfioreclosure actions and/or negotiated extendimeisting loans beyoi
their current expirations on terms which may notbdavorable to us as the existing loans.

A prolonged economic slowdown, a lengthy or sevegession or continued instability in the credit mets could harm our operations and viabilit

A prolonged economic slowdown, a lengthy or sevecession or the continued instability in the cretiirket has and will affect our operations andwiy in a number of way
including:

. Depressing prices for our investments, operating@ries and loan asse
. Decreasing interest income received or increasggenest expenses pa
. Reducing the number of potential purchasers forassets
. Increasing risk of default on loan asst
. Limiting the ability to obtain new or replacemeirtancing; anc
. Limiting the ability to sell additional debt or eitysecurities
Many of our investments are illiquid, and we may triwe able to adjust our portfolio in response toastges in economic and other conditions, which magult in losses to u:

Many of our investments are relatively illiquid arttlerefore, our ability to sell or purchase asgetesponse to a change in economic or other tiondimay be limited. Tt
requirements of the Code that we hold assets $&t @eriod of time or risk losing status as a R&KD may limit our ability to sell investments. Bleeconsiderations could m:
it difficult for us to dispose of assets, even ifliaposition were in the best interest of our shalders. As a result, our ability to adjust ourtfmio in response to changes
economic and other conditions may be relativelytéioh which may result in losses and lost oppotiesi
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Our investments in REIT securities are subject foesific risks relating to the particular REIT issueof the securities and to the general risks of gsting in REITs.

Our investments in REIT securities involve specisks. These risks include many, if not all, of leeegoing risks which apply to an investment in imluding: (i) risk:
generally incident to interests in real estate tas¢@) risks associated with the failure to maint REIT qualification; (iii) risks that may be pented by the type and use «
particular property; and (iv) risks that the issakthe security may reduce or eliminate expecieiidnd payments.

Some of our potential losses may not be coverethbyrance.

We use our discretion in determining amounts, cagerlimits and deductibility provisions of insuranavith a view to maintaining appropriate insurammoerage on ol
investments at a reasonable cost and on suitates t& his may result in insurance coverage thathénevent of a substantial loss, would not beigefit to pay the full curre
market value or current replacement cost of theitogestment and also may result in certain logsasg totally uninsured. Inflation, changes in Hing codes, zoning or ott
land use ordinances, environmental consideratiemsler imposed restrictions or other factors mighit make it feasible to use insurance proceedsytace the building aft
such building has been damaged or destroyed. Uswd#r circumstances, the insurance proceeds, ifrapgjved by us might not be adequate to restoreeconomic positio
with respect to such property. With respect to mefrleased properties, under the lease agreenwrgadh properties, the tenant is required to aakedyiinsure the property, t
should a loss occur their failure or inability tavie adequate coverage might adversely affect auragaic position with respect to such property.

We have significant dividend obligations to holdessour Series D Preferred Shares.

The provisions of our Series D Preferred Sharesireqs to pay quarterly dividends presently aggtieg approximately $925,000 or $3,700,000 annuadifore any dividenc
may be paid on our Common Shares.

Covenants in our debt instruments could adverseffeat our financial condition and our ability to mke future investments.

Debt instruments under which we are an obligor @ontustomary covenants such as those that lintitability, without the prior consent of the lendéw, further encumbe
directly or indirectly, the applicable property. Qeredit facility contains, and other loans that mvay obtain in the future may contain, customastrietions, requirements a
other limitations on our ability to incur indebteshs. These restrictions can include, among otlieggha limitation on our ability to incur debt lealsupon the level of our ratio
total debt to total assets, our ratio of securdat tietotal assets, our ratio of EBITDA to interegpense and fixed charges, and a requirementsftr maintain a certain level
unencumbered assets to unsecured debt. Our abiliigrrow under our credit facility with KeyBank tanal Association is subject to compliance witlta® other covenar
including the absence of factors both within antsimle of our control. If we fail to comply with ogovenants, it would cause a default under theiegdge debt instrument, a
we may then be required to repay such debt witkdgufrom other sources which may not be availablestoor be available only on unattractive termstiar, a default undet
debt instrument could limit our ability to obtaidditional equity or debt financing in the futuréther of which would adversely affect our financ@ndition and results
operations.

Increased market interest rates may hurt the valfeour Common and Preferred Share

We believe that investors consider the dividend mat REIT shares, expressed as a percentage pfitieeof the shares, relative to market intereftsras an important factor
deciding whether to buy or sell the shares. If retifhterest rates go up, prospective purchaseRBEST shares may expect a higher dividend rate. éfighterest rates wot
likely increase our borrowing costs and might daseefunds available to pay dividends. Thus, higharket interest rates could cause the market mficgur Common ar
Preferred Shares to decline.

Future issuances and sales of equity or debt insteemay affect the market price of our Common Shaend the amount of dividends payable to our shastelers.

We can issue Preferred and Common Shares withoutnom shareholder approval. The actual issuancddifianal Common or Preferred Shares or the satiebf securities |
us may decrease the market price of our CommoneShhr paying dividends on our Common Shares wesarat to have our dividends track recurring cashv ffrom
operations. Accordingly, as we issue additional @mn Shares, the per share dividend will likely dase until such time as we deploy the proceeds fach issuance
Common Shares in investments which increase ourniag cash flow.
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Our focus on total return investing may impact oability to maintain our dividend rate.

Our focus on a total return value approach to itigsnay result in our inability to maintain thergent dividend rate as we do not necessarily seséta that provide recurring
potentially recurring cash flow but seek to invesassets that we believe will provide us with pesior riskadjusted total return which encompasses both curegarn an
capital appreciation. Accordingly, the true valden investment may not be realized until such stveent is liquidated.

If we issue preferred equity or debt we may be esqibto additional restrictive covenants and limitats on our operating flexibility, which could advsely affect our abilit
to pay dividends.

If we decide to issue preferred equity or debthie tuture, it is likely that they will be governég an indenture or other instrument containing caves that may restrict ¢
operating flexibility which could have an adversteet on the market price of our Common Sharesuprability to pay dividends.

Increases in interest rates may adversely affee tharket price of our Common Share

One of the factors that influences the market poiceur Common Shares is the annual rate of divddehat we pay on our Common Shares, as compatbdnigrest rates. £
increase in interest rates may lead purchaser&6F Bhares to demand higher annual dividend rategsh could adversely affect the market price af Gommon Shares.

We may fail to remain qualified as a REIT, which wiid reduce the cash available for dividends to @irareholders.

Qualification as a REIT for federal income tax mses is governed by highly technical and compleovigions of the Code for which there are only lexitjudicial o
administrative interpretations. Our qualificatios @ REIT also depends on various facts and ciramuss that are not entirely within our controlalidition, legislation, ne
regulations, administrative interpretations or ¢algcisions might change the tax laws with respedhe requirements for qualification as a REITtloe federal income ti
consequences of qualification as a REIT. Althoughaurrently intend to operate in a manner desigoeallow us to continue to qualify as a REIT, futleconomic, marke
legal, tax or other considerations might causeouséct to revoke the REIT election. In that everg,and our shareholders would no longer be edtttiethe federal income t
benefits applicable to a REIT.

If, with respect to any taxable year, we were fbttamaintain our qualification as a REIT or eléotrevoke our REIT election, we would not be ableleduct dividends paid
our shareholders in computing our taxable incontevanuld have to pay federal corporate income tagl(iding any applicable alternative minimum tax)am taxable incom
If we had to pay federal income tax, the amountohey available to distribute to our shareholdeosildl be reduced for the year or years involvedaddition, we would k
disqualified from treatment as a REIT for the faaxable years following the year during which dfigdition was lost and thus our cash available tp gi@idends to oL
shareholders would be reduced in each of thoses yealess we were entitled to relief under relewsatutory or regulatory provisions.

In order to maintain our status as a REIT, we mag lforced to borrow funds or sell assets during unéeable market conditions

As a REIT, we must distribute at least 90% of cumwaal REIT taxable income, subject to certain adjents, to our shareholders. To the extent thasatisfy the REIT divider
requirement but distribute less than 100% of owaliée income, we will be subject to federal andemhapplicable, state corporate income tax on adistributed taxab
income. In addition, if we fail to distribute atl& 90% of our annual REIT taxable income, sulifecertain adjustments, we will be subject to am®hdeductible excise tax.

From time to time, we may have taxable income greitan our cash available to pay dividends tostiareholders (for example, due to substantial dexhictible cash outlay
such as capital expenditures or principal paymentsiebt). If we did not have other sources of fuadailable in these situations, we could be requiceborrow funds, se
investments at disadvantageous prices or findraltare sources of funds to pay dividends sufficienenable us to pay out enough of our taxablerreto satisfy the REI
dividend requirement and to avoid income and extEges in a particular year. Additionally, we coeléct to pay a portion of our required dividendCiommon Shares. Each
these alternatives could increase our operatints @sl diminish our rate of growth.
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Factors that may cause us to lose our New York &t&xchange listing.

We might lose our listing on the New York Stock Bange depending on a number of factors, includailgre to qualify as a REIT, or our not meeting tew York Stocl
Exchange’s requirements, including those relatinthe number of shareholders, the price of our ComBhares and the amount and composition of oetsass

Ownership limitations in our bylaws may adverselffext the market price of our Common Shares.

Our bylaws contain an ownership limitation thatiésigned to prohibit any transfer of Common Share®referred Shares that would result in our béahasely-held” within the
meaning of Section 856(h) of the Code. This owrigriimitation, which may be waived by our Board Dfustees, generally prohibits any single sharehololeany group ¢
affiliated shareholders, from beneficially or comstively owning more than 9.8% of our outstandi@dgmmon Shares. Our Board of Trustees has waived aWwnershi
limitation in the past where there is believed éabenefit derived by the Company from grantinchswaiver and the party obtaining the waiver pregidssurances that
issuance of the waiver will not result in the Compdecoming, or likely becoming, “closely heldJhless the Board of Trustees waives the restristimnapproves a byle
amendment, Common Shares owned by a person or gfqagrsons in excess of 9.8% of our outstandingp@on Shares are not entitled to any voting riguts,not consider¢
outstanding for quorum or voting purposes, andnateentitled to dividends, interest or any othetritbutions with respect to the Common Shares. dvkeership limit may ha
the effect of inhibiting or impeding a change ohtrol or a tender offer for our Common Shares.

We must manage our investments in a manner thatoals us to rely on an exemption from registration der The Investment Company Act in order to avoide
consequences of regulation under that Act.

We intend to operate our business so that we ampixfrom registration as an investment companyeutite Investment Company Act of 1940, as amentlkdrefore, th
assets that we may invest in, or acquire, areéinity the provisions of the Investment Company &t the rules and regulations promulgated thereutidee are required -
make investments in order to be exempt from regfistn, such investments may not represent an optinmse of our capital when compared to other aviglatvestments.

Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Aeind fire, safety and other regulations may requites to make unanticipated expenditures that advéysaffect oul
financial condition and results of operation:

All of our properties are required to comply witletAmericans with Disabilities Act, which we referas the ADA. The ADA has separate complianceireqents for public
accommodations” and “commercial facilitie®lt generally requires that buildings be made asibksto people with disabilities. Although we lesk¢ that our properties are
compliance with the ADA, it is possible that we mlagve to incur additional expenditures which, ibstantial, could adversely affect our financial dibion and results «
operations.

In addition, we are required to operate our progglin compliance with fire and safety regulatidmsilding codes and other land use regulationthey may be adopted by loc
state and federal governmental agencies and badidecome applicable to our properties. We masefeired to make substantial capital expendituvesomply with thos
requirements and these expenditures could have\arse affect on our financial condition and resoftoperations.

We may incur costs to comply with environmental Bw

The obligation to pay for the cost of complying hwéxisting environmental laws, ordinances and rggpns, as well as the cost of complying with fetlegislation, may increa
our operating costs. Under various federal, statelacal environmental laws, ordinances and regariat a current or previous owner or operator af property may be liab
for the costs of removal or remediation of hazasdoutoxic substances on or under the propertyirenmental laws often impose liability whether athe owner or operat
knew of, or was responsible for, the presence of suazardous or toxic substances and whether csuubt substances originated from the propertydtiten, the presence
hazardous or toxic substances, or the failure moetbate such property properly, may adversely affec ability to borrow by using such property adlateral. We maintal
insurance related to potential environmental issaresur properties which are not net leased whiely mot be adequate to cover all possible contirigenén 2011 we we
conveyed title to the land underlying our ChurcHiennsylvania property. Prior to the conveyancthefland, a Phase Il environmental study was ped. The study four
that there were certain contaminants at the prp@érof which were within permitted ranges. In &uigh, given the nature and use of the propertyentty and in the past, it
possible that additional contamination could oosbiich could require remediation. We believe thaduhon applicable law and existing agreements acly eemediation cos
would be the responsibility of a prior owner oraan

Ability of our Advisor and other third parties dily affects our financial condition

Other than for severe economic conditions or naforaes which may be unanticipated or uncontrdéiathe ultimate value of our assets and the resflbur operations w
depend on the ability of our Advisor and otherdhirarties we retain to operate and manage oursasset manner sufficient to maintain or increaseeneles andontrol ou
operating and other expenses in order to geneuffieisnt cash flows to pay amounts due on our biddness and to pay dividends to our shareholders.
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We are dependent on our Advisor and the loss of Aaivisor's key personnel could harm our operatioasd adversely affect the value of our shares.

We have no paid employees. Our officers are employé our Advisor. We have no separate facilitied are completely reliant on our Advisor who haggicant discretion ¢
to the implementation of our investment and opegatstrategies. We are subject to the risk that Advisor will terminate its Advisory Agreement andat no suitabl
replacement will be found. Furthermore, we are ddpat on the efforts, diligence, skill, networkhefsiness contacts and close supervision of allcasé our business by ¢
Advisor and, in particular, Michael Ashner, Chainmaf our Board of Trustees and our chief executiffecer, Carolyn Tiffany, our president, as well @asr other executi
officers. While we believe that we could find reggaents for these key personnel, the loss of seeirices could have a negative impact on our ojpasaand the market price
our shares.

The incentive fee payable to our Advisor may be stabtial.

Pursuant to the terms of the Advisory Agreement,Axdvisor is entitled to receive an incentive fegial to 20% of any amounts available for distribotin excess of a thresh:
amount. The incentive fee is only payable at suicte tif at all, (i) when holders of our Common Stsmreceive aggregate dividends above a threshotdirstnor (ii) upol
termination of the Advisory Agreement, if the valoieour assets exceed the threshold amount bas#tearcurrent market values and appraisals. Thétésincentive fee is n
payable annually but only at such time, if at al,shareholders have received the threshold anoouifithe Advisory Agreement is terminated, theets of the Trust exceed
threshold amount. At December 31, 2011, the thidshmount required to be distributed before anyeimive fee would be payable to FUR Advisors wasraximately
$560,871,000, which was equivalent to $16.97 feheaf our Common Shares on a fully diluted basissu#ch time as shareholdeegjuity in accordance with generally acce|
accounting principles exceeds the threshold amauatwill record a liability in our financial statemts equal to approximately 20% of the excess afedtolders’equity ir
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfiee and the threshold amount.

Termination of the Advisory Agreement may be cosilynot in our best interest.

Termination of the Advisory Agreement either byarsour Advisor may be costly. Upon termination lo¢ tAdvisory Agreement, our Advisor would be entitte a terminatio
fee equal to the incentive fee based on an appraigkiation of our assets assuming we were thendiéided. The amount payable on termination of tlleigory Agreemet
could be substantial which may have a negativeceffe the price of our Common Shares. Furtherliafis of our Advisor hold approximately 10.38% afr outstandin
Common Shares and serve as our executive offiderrdingly, if we were inclined to terminate thelMisory Agreement, the ownership position of ouvisdr in our Commo
Shares could result in other adverse effects &ndsthe price of our Common Shares.

ITEM 1B—UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
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ITEM 2—PROPERTIES
CONSOLIDATED OPERATING PROPERTIES

The following table sets forth a schedule of coiustéd operating properties at December 31, 201it.pOrtfolio of consolidated properties consist2dfcommercial properti

consisting of 4,243,000 square feet and one resaepartment complex consisting of 180 units.

Trust’s ($00C's)  Cost pet Owner-
Major  Depreciatec Debt
Owner- (**) Major Tenants Tenants’ Square  ship  ($00Cs)  Maturity
Description and Year Rentable % (Lease / Cost Foot or of Debt & Int
Location Acquired _ship Square Fee Leasec Options Exp) Sq. Feet Basis Unit Land  Balance Rate
Office Ingram Micro System 10/2013
Ambherst, NY (2) 200t 10C% 200,00( 10C% (2013/2023; 200,00 $ 16,63: $ 83 Fee $ 15,68 5.65%
PAETEC Comm
Andover, MA 200t 10C% 93,00( 10C% (2022/2037, 93,00( 7,18C 77 Fee 1) 1)
Chicago, IL The Gettys Grou| 03/2016
(One East Erie / Marc Realty) 200t 80% 126,00( 83% (2012/20186; 13,00( ZANSHIN 171 Fee 20,52 5.75%
River North Surgen
(2015/ n/a; 15,00(
Chicago, IL (River City / Marc Realty) Bally Total Fitnes: 04/2012
2007 60% 253,00( 72% (2013/2021; 55,000 14,70¢ 58 Fee 8,90( 6.25%
ITAV (2024/2029) 35,00(
MFS/Worldcom
(2019/2023; 61,00(
Deer Valley, AZ United Healthcar
201¢ 96.£% 82,00( 96% (2017/2027, 42,00( 10,83¢ 132 Fee 1) 1)
Premier Research Groi
(2016/2026; 13,80(
Southwest Desert Cardiolo
(2022/2037, 9,20C
Englewood, CO Crossroads | RGN-Denver LLC
201C 10C% 118,00¢ 57% (2015/ 2025, 17,00( 7,831 66 Fee 1) (1)
Englewood, CO Crossroads Il TIC Holdings
201¢ 10C% 118,00( 87% (2019 / 2044 75,00( 10,33( 88 Fee 1) 1)
Houston, TX Spectra Energy 04/2016
200¢ 8% 614,00( 10C% (2018/2028; 614,00( 58,48: 95 Fee 56,420 6.34%
Indianapolis, IN (Circle Tower) No Tenants 04/2015
197¢ 10C% 111,00¢ 83% Over 10% — 4,991 45 Fee 4,16¢ 5.82%
Lisle, IL United Healthcare 10/2014
200¢ 10C% 169,00( 61% (2014/ n/a; 41,00( 18,91: 112 Fee 5,75¢ Libor+2.5%
Lisle, IL ABM Janitorial 10/2014
200¢ 10C% 67,00( 17% (2012/2014; 11,00( 5,23¢ 78 Fee 1,657 Libor+2.5%
Lisle, IL (Marc Realty) Ryerson 03/2017
200¢ 60% 54,000 10C% (2018/2028; 54,000 3,59( 66 Fee 5,60( 5.55%
New York, NY (450 West 14tk Grounc
Fast Retailing 05/2016
2011 70% 105,00( var (2026/2036; 23,00( 55,23: 52€ Least 49,58! Libor +2.5%
Alice + Olivia
(2021/2031; 22,00(
Access Industrie
(2021/2031; 14,00(
Orlando, FL Siemens Real Estate, Ir Grounc 07/2017
200¢ 10C% 257,00( 10C% (2017/2042; 257,00( 14,21( 55 Least 38,13: 6.40%
Plantation, FL AT&T Service, Inc. 04/2018
2004 10C% 120,00¢ 10C% (2020/2035; 120,00( 11,34« 95 Fee 10,92 6.48%
South Burlington, VT Grounc
Fairpoint Comm.
200t 10C% 54,000 10C% (2014/2029; 54,000 2,92 54 Least @ 1)
Subtota—Office 2,541,000 263,95! 217,35(
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CONSOLIDATED OPERATING PROPERTIES (Continued)

Trust’'s Major Owner- Debt
Tenants’ Maturity
Owner- Rentable  (*¥) Major Tenants ($00C's) Cost per ship  ($00Cs)
Description and Year Square % (Lease Sq. Cost Square of Debt & Int
Location Acquired ship Feet Leasec /Options Exp) Feet. Basis  FootorUnit Land Balance Rate
Retail
Atlanta, GA The Kroger Co Grounc
200¢ 10(% 61,00( 100%  (2016/2026; 61,000 $ 381: $ 62 Lease 1) (1)
Denton, TX Diesel Fitnes:
200 10(% 46,000 64% (2012) 29,00( 2,45¢ 58 Fee (@) (1)
Greensboro, N( The Kroger Co Grounc
2004 10(% 46,00( 10(%  (2017/2037 46,00( 3,12¢ 68 Lease 1) 1)
Louisville, KY The Kroger Co
2004 10C% 47,000 10C%  (2015/2040; 47,000 2,612 56 Fee 1) (1)
Memphis, TN The Kroger Co
200¢ 10(% 44,00( 100%  (2015/2040; 44,00( 1,26 29 Fee 1) (1)
Seabrook, T> The Kroger Co
200 10(% 52,00( 10C%  (2015/2040; 52,00( 1,768 34 Fee (@] (1)
Subtotal Retai 296,00( 15,03:
Other
Warehoust
Jacksonville, FL Football Fanatic
2004 10(%  580,00( 10C%  (2015/2024;  558,00( 10,48¢ 18 Fee 1) (1)
Mixed Use
Churchill, PA 200 10(%  826,00( 19% n/a — 55158 7 Fee — —
Residentia
Meriden, CT 10/2014
Libor +
201C 10(% 180 unit: 97% n/a nle 24,25! nle Fee 13,59( 2.5%
Subtota—Other 1,406,001 40,29:
Total Consolidated Propertie 4,243,000 $319,27¢ $230,94(

(**)  Occupancy rates include all signed leases, inctudpace undergoing tenant improveme
Notes to Consolidated Proper—Selected Data
(1) These properties collateralize our revolving lifiemrdit.

(2) The Amherst, New York office property represents separate buildings. The ground underlying th@eriies is leased to us by the local developmetioaity pursuar
to a ground lease which requires no payment. Bifecctober 31, 2013, legal title to the ground wst with us
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UNCONSOLIDATED OPERATING PROPERTIES

The following table sets forth a schedule of unatidated operating properties at December 31, 201t .portfolio of unconsolidated properties is aauted for under the equ
method of accounting. These properties consisRafdmmercial properties consisting of 3,504,000asgdieet and 25 residential apartment complexesistimg of 4,167 units.

Major ($00C's)

Tenants’ Equity ($00C's)
Rentable  (**) Major Tenants Investment  Ownership Debt Debt
Year Trust's Square % (Lease /Options  Sq. Balance Maturity &
Acquired Ownership Feet Leasec Exp) Feet. Balance of Land (1) Int Rate
Marc Realty Portfolio— Equity Investments
30 North Michigan, No tenants over 08/2014
Chicago, IL 200t 5C% 221,00 88% 10% — $ 10,04¢ Fee $ 12,720 5.99%
223 West Jackson,
Chicago, IL No tenants ove 06/2012
(Brooks Building) 200t 5% 168,001 67% 10% — 7,67¢ Fee 7,35€ 6.92%
4415 West Harrison, North American
Hillside, IL Medical Mgmt 12/2015
(High Point) 200t 5C% 192,00 57%  (2015/2020; 20,40( 2,441 Fee 4,51¢ 5.62%
2000-60 Algonquin, Familia
Shaumburg, IL Development 02/2013
(Salt Creek 200t 5%  101,00( 67% (2015/2020 10,30( — Fee (2) Libor +2.75%
1701 E. Woodfield, 09/2015
Shaumburg, IL No tenants over Libor + 3%
200t 5% 175,00( 87% 10% — 2,047 Fee 5,63z 3)
2720 River Rd, No tenants ove 10/2012
Des Plains, IL 200t 5C%  108,00( 86% 10% — 1,00C Fee 2,43 6.095%
3701 Algonquin, ISACA 02/2013
Rolling Meadows IL 200t 5C% 193,00 7<%  (2018/2024. 29,60( 25C Fee 9,86¢  Libor + 2.75%
Relational
Funding
(2013/ n/al 27,40(
2205-55 Enterprise, Consumer
Westchester, IL Portfolio
200t 5C%  130,00( 9C%  (2014/2019; 18,90(
Uro Partners 02/2013
(2015/n/a) 14,50( 2,67¢ Fee (2) Libor +2.75%
900-910 Skokie, MIT Financial
Northbrook, IL Group 07/2016
(Ridgebrook; 200t 5C% _ 119,00 88% (2016/ n/a; 12,60( 1,00C Fee 5,34¢  Libor + 2.75%
Total—Marc Realty Portfolio 1,407,001 $ 27,14t $ 59,15¢
Sealy Venture Properti—Equity Investments
Atlanta, GA Original Mattres 09/2015
(Northwest Atlanta 200¢ 6C%  472,00( 7%  (2020/2025, 57,000 $ 8531 Fee $ 13,95 Libor +5.35% (4
Atlanta, GA No tenants ove 11/2016
(Newmarket) 200¢ 68%  470,00( 52% 10% — 2,811 Fee 37,00( 6.12%
Nashville, TN No tenants ove 05/2012
(Airpark) 2007 5C% 1,155,001 83% 10% — — Fee 74,00( 5.77%
Tota—Sealy Venture Propertie 2,097,000 $  11,34¢ $124,95!

(**)  Occupancy rates include all signed leases inclusipage undergoing tenant improveme
(Continued on next pac
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UNCONSOLIDATED OPERATING PROPERTIES—(Continued)

Ownership  ($00C's) Debr Subordinated
Year Trust’s % Debt Maturity Subodinated
Acquired Ownership _Units Leased of Land Balance (1) & Int Rate (6) Debt ($00('s) Debt Maturity
Vintage Housing Holdings LLC—Equity Investment
Vintage at Bend 12/15/2036
Bend, OR 2011 (5) 10€ 97% Fee $ 5,60C SIFMA +1.21%
Bouquet Canyon Seniors 7/1/2028
Santa Clarita, C/ 2011 (5) 264 98% Fee 11,37 6.38%
Vintage at Bremerton 3/15/2033
Bremerton, WA 2011 5) 142 94% Fee 6,20 SIFMA + 1.44%
Vintage at Burien
Burien, WA Grounc 1/15/2038
2011 5) 101 10(% Least 6,88t SIFMA + 1.40%
Vintage at Chehalis 6/15/2040
Chehalis, WA 2011 (5) 15C 95% Fee 8,19C SIFMA + 1.575% (7
Elk Creek Apartments 11/1/2039
Sequim, WA 2011 (5) 13¢ 9€% Fee 7,400 6.46%
Vintage at Everet 1/15/2038
Everett, WA 2011 5) 25¢ 94% Fee 16,70 SIFMA + 1.37%
Falls Creek Apartments 12/1/2040
Couer ( Alene, ID 2011 5) 17C 94% Fee 8,38¢ 6.24%
Forest Creek Apartmen 6/15/204C
Spokane, W/ 2011 (5) 252 92% Fee 13,68( SIFMA +1.41%
Hamilton Place Seniors 7/1/2033 7/1/2014
Bellingham, WA 2011 (5) 94 97% Fee 3,59C SIFMA + 1.40% 16 5.88%
Heritage Place Apartmen 7/19/2015
St. Ann, MO 2011 5) 11z 9€% Fee 1,81€ 8.37% 522 5/1/2039 1.0%
Holly Village Apartments 7/31/2032
Everett, WA 2011 5) 14¢ 98% Fee 7,19C SIFMA +1.31%
Larkin Place Apartmeni 7/1/2033 6/1/2012
Bellingham, WA 2011 (5) 101 94% Fee 4,82t SIFMA + 1.47% 42 5.92%
Vintage at Mt. Vernon 1/15/2037
Mt. Vernon, WA 7,500 SIFMA + 1.39% (8)
2011 5) 154 97% Fee 1,27C LIBOR + 1.39% (9)
Vintage at Napa 6/1/2034
Napa, CA 2011 5) 11t 10C% Fee 6,16¢€ 6.141%
Vintage at Richland 1/15/2038
Richland, WA 2011 (5) 15C 97% Fee 7,53t SIFMA + 1.75%
Rosecreek Senior Living 12/31/2037
Arlington, WA 2011 (5) 10C 9€% Fee 3,382 SIFMA + 0.331%
Vintage at Sequim 3/1/2038
Sequim, WA 2011 (5) 11€ 98% Fee 6,37¢ SIFMA +2.22%
Silver Creek Apartments 1/1/2018
Pasco, WA 2011 5) 247 9€% Fee 13,09 SIFMA + 1.59%
Vintage at Silverdale 9/15/2039
Silverdale, WA 2011 (5) 24C 94% Fee 14,88( SIFMA + 2.9% (10)
Vintage at Spokane 8/15/2040
Spokane, W/ 2011 (5) 287 95% Fee 16,29t SIFMA +1.38%
Seven Hills/ St Rose 10/15/2035
Henderson, N\ 2011 5) 244 98% Fee 14,77C SIFMA + 1.51%
Twin Ponds Apartments 1/1/2038
Arlington, WA 5,51f SIFMA + 1.385%
2011 5) 134 98% Fee 1,408 6.20%
Vintage at Vancouve 1/1/2035
Vancouver, WA 7,728 SIFMA + 2.114%
2011 (5) 154 9% Fee 745 8.12%
Vista Sonoma Seniors Apts 1/1/2032
Santa Rosa, C. 2011 5) 18¢ 95% Fee 10,30: 6.562%
Subtota—Vintage Properties 4,167 units $ 218,80t $ 721
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UNCONSOLIDATED OPERATING PROPERTIES—(Continued)

Notes to Unconsolidated Operating Properties T

Q) Debt balance shown represents 100% of the debt@rening the propertie

2) Both the 200-60 Algonquin and 22(-55 Enterprise Road Marc Realty properties are aroiateralized by a mortgage of $11,292 whichidiuded in total debt balanc
(3) Aninterest rate swap agreement with a notionalarhof $5,632 effectively converts the intereserat a fixed rate of 4.78¢

(4)  Aninterest rate cap was purchased that caps LIBORA6.

(5) The Vintage equity investment of $29,887 represen#% interest in Vintage Housing Holdings LLC, emtity which owns the general partnership interéstthe
properties listed above. In addition, Vintage HogsHoldings LLC owns receivables and advances mdther partnership

(6) SIFMA = Securities Industry and Financial MarketssAciation Municipal Swap Index. Each of the Vimtdlpating rate debt instruments is subject torderest rate c:
ranging from 5.50% and 8.25¢

(7)  Aninterest rate swap agreement with a notionalarhof $8,190 effectively converts the intereserat a fixed rate of 4.669
(8) Aninterest rate swap agreement with a notionalarhof $7,500 effectively converts the intereserat a fixed rate of 4.9559
(9) Aninterest rate swap agreement with a notionalamhof $1,153 effectively converts the intereserat a fixed rate of 5.7069
(10) Aninterest rate swap agreement with a notionalarhof $14,670 effectively converts the interes¢ it a fixed rate of 5.7349
LEASE EXPIRATIONS

The following table sets forth a schedule of leasgirations at our consolidated and unconsolidategerties respectively, with respect to leasgslase at December 31, 2(
for each of the next five years and thereafteryassg that no tenants exercise renewals or caticgllaptions and that there are no tenant bankiegtr other tenant default
Annual contractual rent under expiring leases r&gmts base rent charges for the year ended Dec&hp2011 and does not reflect any straigie-rent adjustments or expe
reimbursements. The average annualized revenuesqpeare foot as of December 31, 2011 was $17.56cdosolidated multtenant operating properties and $8.67
consolidated single tenant operating propertienivatized revenue represents contractual base oeddcember multiplied by twelve. The following lab set forth certa
information concerning lease expirations:

Annual Rent Per
Percentage of Lease

Net Rentable Annual Contractual Leased Square
Square Feet Square Footage Foot of Expiring
Number of Subject to Represented by Rent Under
Year of Lease Expirations Expiring Leases  Expiring Leases  Expiring Leases (%) Expiring Leases ($, Leases ($)
Consolidated Multi Tenant Operating Properties:
2012 29 148,00( 17% $ 2,166,000 $ 14.6¢
2013 27 190,00( 21% 2,354,001 12.3¢
2014 20 103,00( 11% 1,786,00 17.3¢
2015 13 81,00( 9% 1,401,00 17.3(
2016 and Thereaftt 43 375,00( 42% 5,078,001 13.5¢
10C%
Consolidated Single Tenant Operating Properties:
2012 — — — — —
2013 1 200,00( 9% 2,016,001 10.0¢
2014 1 54,00( 3% 800,00( 14.81
2015 4 696,00( 31% 1,348,00! 1.94
2016 and Thereaftt 8 1,272,001 57% 14,982,00 11.7¢
10C%
Unconsolidated Operating Properties:
2012 21¢ 529,00( 20% 6,972,001 13.15
2013 15€ 448,00( 17% 6,250,001 13.9¢
2014 11€ 400,00( 15% 4,968,001 12.41
2015 84 409,00( 16% 5,223,001 12.7¢
2016 and Thereaftt 14C 837,00( 32% 11,122,00 13.2¢
10C%
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TENANT DIVERSIFICATION

The following table sets forth information regarmglithe leases with respect to the five largest tesnanour consolidated properties portfolio, basedthe amount of sque
footage leased by our tenants at December 31, 2011.

Percentage of

Aggregate Percentage o
Portfolio Aggregate
Remaining Leased Squart Portfolio Annual
Lease Term Total Leased
Tenant Property in months Square Fee Feet (%) (1) Rent (%) (2)
Spectra Energy Houston, TX 76 614,00( 19.2% 21.&%
Football Fanatics, Inc Jacksonville, F 43 553,00( 17.2% 2.C%
Siemens Real Estate, Ir Orlando, FL 72 257,00( 8.1% 9.8%
The Kroger Compan Various (3) 53 250,00( 7.8% 3.2%
Ingram Micro, Inc. Ambherst, NY 22 200,00( 6.2% 5.7%

(1) Represents percentage of square footage leasadigagimonth to month lease
(2) Represents base rent plus straight line rent adprss less concessions and abatem

(3) The Kroger Company is a tenant in five net leasexperties located in Georgia, Kentucky, North Ciawal Tennessee, and Texas. Remaining lease temasesys
weighted average based on square footage and pegeesf annual rent represents an aggregate fif@albroperties

GROUND LEASES
On certain of our properties we own the improvers@mtd lease the land underlying the improvementsuamt to ground leases.

The following table sets forth the terms of thewgrd leases:

Current Term Lease Term Rents
Property Location Expiration Renewal Terms Per Annum
Atlanta, GA 09/30/16 Two 5-Year Renewal  Ground lease calls for $30,000/yr plus 1/2 of 19%ales greater than $27,805,800. (1)
Options
(Extended Term 202¢
Greensboro, NC 12/31/12 Four 5-Year Renewal Ground lease calls for $71,178/ yr increased byap$12,000 for each successive renewal
Options period plus 1% of sales over $36,213,850. (1)
(Extended Term 203:
Orlando, FL 12/31/17 Five 5-Year Renewal Ground lease calls for $2/yr of rent though theentrterm and then fair market value for each
Options successive renewal period. (1)
(Extended Term 203’
South Burlington, VT 01/02/15 Three 5-Year and Ground lease calls for $51,854/yr though the curtenm and then fair market value. (1)

One 10-Year Renewal
Options (Extended Term
2040)
450 West 14th Street, 05/31/53 None Ground Lease calls for $100,574/month plus increa$&% per annum each June as well as
New York, NY $100,000 increases per annum on November 1, 2015, 2nd 2017

(1) The lease requires the tenant to perform all cavisnander the ground lease including the paymegtaind rent
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MORTGAGE LOANS
Information pertaining to the terms of the firstmgages for each of the properties is includedéntaible at the beginning of ITEM 2—Properties.
ITEM 3—LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Trust is involved from time to time in litigati on various matters, including disputes with resand disputes arising out of agreements to psecbr sell properties. Giv
the nature of the Tru&'business activities, these lawsuits are consideratine to the conduct of its business. The Tdess not expect that the liabilities, if any, thay
ultimately result from such legal actions will hagematerial adverse effect on the consolidatednfired position, results of operations or cash flogfsthe Trust. As ¢
December 31, 2011, the Trust was not involved inraaterial litigation.

ITEM 4—MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not Applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5—MARKET FOR TRUST'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED SH AREHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information
Our Common Shares are listed for trading on the Mevk Stock Exchange, under the symbol “FUR.”

The table below sets forth the high and low sateep as reported by the New York Stock Exchang®fio Common Shares for each of the periods inditat

High Low

Year Ended December 31, 20:

First quartel $ 13.1¢  $ 10.5¢

Second quarte 14.3(C 10.1¢

Third quartel 14.5¢ 11.01

Fourth quarte 13.8¢ 11.8(
Year Ended December 31, 20:

First quartel $ 13.1¢  $ 11.42

Second quarte 12.4¢ 11.5¢

Third quartel 12.0: 8.5

Fourth quarte 10.5¢ 8.1€

Holders

As of December 31, 2011 there were 563 record heloieour Common Shares. This does not include fialeowners for whom Cede & Co. or others achaminee.

Dividends

In order to retain REIT status, and thus avoid payederal corporate tax, we are required by théeGo distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxableome. Dividends declar

on Common Shares in each quarter for the last wewsyare as follows:

Quarter Ended 2011 2010

March 31 $ 0.162¢ $ 0.162¢
June 3( 0.162¢ 0.162¢
September 3 0.162¢ 0.162¢
December 3: 0.162¢ 0.162¢

Pursuant to the terms of our Series D PreferredeShave are required to pay quarterly dividend$@b678125 per Series D Preferred Share. The fividehd following the

issuance in November 2011 of $0.212 per PreferhedeSwhich represented the pro-rata dividend amoastmade on December 30, 2011.

While we intend to continue paying regular quaytetividends to holders of our Common Shares, futlivedend declarations will be at the discretionoof Board of Truster
and will depend on our actual cash flow, our finahcondition, capital requirements, the annualdénd requirements under the REIT provisions of @eele and such ott
factors as our Board of Trustees deems relevard. aitual cash flow available to pay dividends Ww#él affected by a number of factors, including, aghothers, the risl
discussed under “Risk Factors” in Part I, ltem Tl &Management’s Discussion and Analysis of FinahCiondition and Results of Operations”Part Il, Item 7 of this Annu

Report.
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We do not believe that the financial covenants @ioed in our loan agreements will have any advingact on our ability to pay dividends in the nofroaurse of business
our common and preferred shareholders or to diggihmounts necessary to maintain our qualificatema REIT.

See Item 7—Common Share Dividends.

On November 18, 2011, the Trust repurchased ats afutstanding Series BPreferred Shares and Series C Preferred Sharas figgregate purchase price of $25,000,00(
accrued dividends.

Performance Graph

The following graph is a comparison of the fivedqyeamulative return of Common Shares, a peer gindpx and the Morgan Stanley REIT Index (“MSCI UEIR’) for the
periods shown. The peer group consists of REITh diterse investments which is in contrast to RENTSCh target a certain asset type, class or gebggdocation. The pe
group REITs also have current market values asapéidry 24, 2012 under $750,000,000. The graph asstinat $100 was invested on December 31, 200@irCommol
Shares, a peer group index and the Morgan Staril#y Rdex and that all dividends were reinvestethait the payment of any commissions. There camoba&ssurance that 1
performance of our shares will continue in linehatihe same or similar trends depicted in the grifghould also be noted that if Common Shares \parehased at times af
December 31, 2006, the results depicted would ae¢ fbbeen the same.

Comparison of Five Year Cumulative Return

120
—— Winthrop Realty Trust
—&— MSCI US REIT (RMS)
100
—i— FUR Peer Group index*
80
(4]
=
s
=
4 60
1]
40
20
12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/09 12731110 123111
Year Ended
Index 12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/09 12/31/10 12/31/11
Winthrop Realty Trust 100.0( 83.0¢ 37.0¢ 41.0¢ 50.91 43.0¢
MSCI US REIT (RMS] 100.0( 83.1¢ 51.6( 66.3¢ 85.2¢ 92.67
FUR Peer Group Index 100.0( 73.1¢ 53.7(C 52.72 63.54 50.9¢
* Peer Group consists of REITs with a diversity atieoproperty focus and have a current market vals®f January 24, 2012 of less than $75!
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ITEM 6—SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selected, historicansolidated financial data for the Trust andudthde read in conjunction with the Consolidateddficial Statements of t
Trust and Notes thereto and Management'’s DiscussidrAnalysis of Financial Condition and Result©gferations included in this Annual Report on FAGrK.

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Operating Results
(in thousands, except per share d
Revenue $ 70,09 $ 55,18" $ 47,13¢ $ 43,73¢ $ 49,39(
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 10,50 $ 18,37¢ $ (8537) $ (70,520 $ 2,98
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 42€ (1,907) 1,02¢ 2,344 (501)
Net income (loss 10,93: 16,47" (84,34°) (68,17¢) 2,481
Preferred dividend (929) (28¢) (147) — —
Net income (loss) applicable to Common Shi $ 10,00¢ $ 16,18¢ $ (84,499 $ (68,170 $ 2,481
Per Common Shal
Income (loss) from continuing operations, be $ 031 $ 0.8C $ (5.28) $ 4.7%) $ 0.2t
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, ba&j 0.01 (0.0¢) 0.0€ 0.1€ (0.09)
Net income (loss) applicable to Common Sharesgt $ 03z $ 0.7z % (5.19 $ (459 $ 0.1¢
Income (loss) from continuing operations

Common Share, dilute $ 031 $ 0.8C $ (5.28) $ 4.7%) $ 0.2:¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, dilt 0.01 (0.0¢) 0.0€ 0.1€ (0.09)
Net income (loss) applicable to Common Sharestetil(3) $ 032 $ 0.7z % (5.19 $ (459 $ 0.1¢
Dividends declared per Common Share $ 0.6t $ 068 $ 0912 $ 13 $ 2.1
Balance Sheet Data
(in thousands
Total Asset: $ 73493 $ 610,12t $ 493,19: $ 578,09 $ 74544
Total Debt (4) $ 300,09 $ 277,190 $ 238,06 $ 299.86' $ 335,19:
Non-Controlling redeemable preferred inter $ — 8 3,221 $§ 12,16¢ $ — 8 —
Total Shareholde’ Equity $ 387,800 $ 29577 $ 217,08 $ 24825( $ 291,79

Q) Income (loss) from continuing operations, includpey share data, are net of -controlling interests

(2)  The results of Ventek and the Biloxi, Mississippdperty were classified as discontinued operatfon2007 and 2008. The results of the Athens, Gagugpperty wer
classified as discontinued operations for 2007 ubhp2010. The results of the Lafayette, Louisialapxville, Tennessee; Sherman, Texas; and St. L.ddissour
properties were classified as discontinued operatfor 2007 through 2011. The results of the Crexldy Apartment property were classified as disca@d operatior
for 2007 through 200¢

) In November 2008 Winthrop Realty Trust effected-for5 reverse stock split, of its Common Shares of Heia Interest, pursuant to which each of five gof it
Common Shares issued and outstanding as of the dbshe market on November 28, 2008 were automifticombined into one Common Share, subject tc
elimination of fractional share

4) For comparability purposes, the Total Debt baldoc®007 does not include repurchase agreemer§g®f75. These debt securities were sold in JarRGog.
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ITEM 7—MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINA NCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Certain statements contaed herein constitute forwatdeking statements as such term is defined in 8e@vA of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, $ection 21E «
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendewvdtdlooking statements are not guarantees of perforeafteey involve risks, uncertainties and assumpti@ur futur
results, financial condition and business may diffaterially from those expressed in these forwlaoking statements. You can find many of theseestants by looking f
words such as “approximates,” “believes,” “expéectanticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “would,” “may”or similar expressions in this Annual Report onrrfrdl0K. Thes¢
forward{ooking statements are subject to numerous assangptrisks and uncertainties. Many of the factbed will determine these items are beyond our tghiéi control o
predict. Factors that may cause actual resultsffer anaterially from those contemplated by theward{ooking statements include, but are not limitedttmse set forth und
“Forward Looking Statements” and “ITEM 1A — Riskdtars,” as well as our other filings with the SEC. For thetatements, we claim the protection of the safédr fol
forward-looking statements contained in the Priv@éeurities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. We exgsly disclaim any responsibility to update forw#dking statement
whether as a result of new information, future ésesr otherwise. Accordingly, investors should gsetion in relying on forwartboking statements, which are basec
information, judgments and estimates at the tineg #ire made, to anticipate future results or trends

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptedhia United States of America requires managententake estimates a
assumptions that affect the reported amounts d@tasd liabilities and disclosure of contingersteds and liabilities at the date of the financtatements and the amount:
revenues and expenses during the reporting perfadgal results could differ from those estimatéhis section should be read in conjunction with fimancial statement
footnotes thereto and other items contained elsemwinehis report.

Overview

As a diversified REIT, we operate in three strategggments: (i) operating properties; (ii) loanetssand (iii) REIT securities. As such, we seelotus our investing in tt
segment we believe will generate the greater overrn to us given market conditions at the tiMée have executed an investment strategy that éscas a current yield a
long term appreciation by pursuing value opportfasitn real estate assets throughout the capiéeksiWe have demonstrated our ability to adjustbusiness plan to capital
on evolving marketing conditions both with respecbusiness segment and capital structure. Dur@id 2we pursued opportunities in acquiring debhwiéar term maturitic
with a view towards equity ownership or a supereturn in event of a payoff. Accordingly, we inves$t$67,619,000 in the issuance and acquisitiones¥ tbans an
$115,644,000 in ventures which acquired new loaetas We funded our investment activity in 2011rfroash reserves, our public Common Shares offéniiday 2011, oL
offering of 9.25% Series D Cumulative RedeemabkfdPred Shares, which we refer to as our SeriesdieRed Shares, in November 2011 and drawing dionds from ou
revolving line of credit. At December 31, 2011, weld $40,952,000 in unrestricted cash and cashvalguits and $28,856,000 in REIT securities andjestiio covenal
compliance, have $10,000,000 of available fundsifour revolving line of credit. See additional distin our “Liquidity and Capital Resources” sectibelow.

With respect to our operating results for 2011,inebme attributable to Common Shares was $10,009%0 $0.32 per Common Share as compared withnaetrie in 2010 «
$16,189,000 or $0.72 per Common Share. Funds Frperafions attributable to Common Shares was $58)286or $1.85 per Common Share for 2011 as comparédnd
From Operations of $35,032,000 or $1.53 per Com8iere in 2010. The most significant factors in thesrease in net income were the impairment charfy®8,600,000 take
on our consolidated properties and other-than-teargompairment charges of $21,058,000 on our gqoitestments. See “Results of Operations” below.

As discussed in more detail below, for 2012 we ekfigat our performance will stabilize at our exigtoperating properties as a result of certairt destructurings completed
2011 and improved occupancy. We believe that oam iavestment segment will provide the most oppustic investments and superior returns. In additigth respect to ol
REIT securities segment, we expect to capitalizenanket mispricing on certain securities when we geportunity which we expect will result in stropgrformance in realiz(
and unrealized gains.

Loan Assets

Our investment strategy in 2011 focused heavilponloan asset segment which we believed would rgém¢he greatest overall return to us throughré@stepayments as well
appreciation either through acquiring loan asse® @iscount or acquiring loan assets with the etgimn of a borrower default or recapitalizatidratt will lead to an equi
ownership interest.
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During 2011 all of our loans were performing in @aance with their terms. We had $70,289,000 im laasets repaid during the year as well as thraesltield in equi
investments totaling $31,890,000 repaid. As a tesubur investment activity; operating income frdoan assets increased by $16,702,000 to $36,22000he year endt
December 31, 2011 compared to $19,518,000 for #e gnded December 31, 2010. In addition, durinfil2@e invested approximately $183,263,000 in neanlasse
consisting of whole loans, Betes, mezzanine loans, preferred equity loan g&=uas well as loans held in joint ventures. Ratescription of our loan assets acquired di
2011 see ITEM 8. Financial Statements, Note 4.

We intend to continue our loan asset acquisitioth arigination strategy in 2012 with a focus on Isamith underlying collateral value, future inconeturn potential and
certain cases, acquisitions of nperforming loans in the fulcrum position which havéiigh possibility that our debt position in thepital stack will be converted into eqt
participation.

We expect the 160 Spear loans will be repaid ifye312 providing approximately $19,800,000 in casbceeds and discount accretion income of apprateiy $3,500,00!
Also, the loan receivable totaling approximatell $P00,000 held by a joint venture in which we ently hold a 56% interest matures in August 201thdugh the property
generating positive cash to cover debt servicebaleve that without additional equity, the borroweéll not easily obtain replacement financing. Asesult, we anticipate tt
this loan will present a significant restructuriogportunity to the joint venture. The remainingriealoan securities and loans in equity investmsoiteduled to mature in 2C
totaling approximately $35,294,000 are anticipdtede repaid or extended.

Our investment in Concord Debt Holdings LLC and CBBO LLC, which we refer to as our Concord investtnglatform, is held as an equity investment and waviousl'
written down to zero. During 2011 operations preddash distributions to us of $3,954,000 for tharyended December 31, 2011.

Operating Properties

During 2011 we acquired one new investment propedgted at 450 W 1# Street, New York, New York. Through this transactive added an aggregate 105,000 square f
retail and office space to our consolidated opegagiroperty portfolio. We also invested in a pditfdransaction, which we refer to as the Vintagetfolio, whereby we ha\
access to a large portfolio of assets that havitipoesd us well for continued growth. Consistenthwour original expectations, we have begun tozealash flow on our Vintay
portfolio of 25 multifamily and senior housing pesties comprising 4,167 units located primarilyttie Pacific Northwest and California which we acgdiin June 2011 with
investment of $25,200,000. We have already madéiadal investments using the Vintage platform ahding the third and fourth quarter of 2011 madetdbutions to th
venture totaling $7,510,000. The venture’s new stwents included a $1,500,000 contribution to améa 231 unit multfamily project in Tacoma, Washington, a $4,300
acquisition of noreontrolling partner interests in seven of the émgstVintage investments and $1,710,000 toward @&lmse agreement to acquire 75% interests in therg
partners of two multifamily properties comprisingpaoximately 490 units located in California andvisiéa.

During 2011, increases in our operating income fimm 2010 acquisitions (new store) have been offgetinfavorable operating results from same stooperties, that
properties held during both twelve month periodse 011 operating properties segment was negativglgcted by a weak overall economy and the Chlingtaperty lawsui
and lease expiration.

Consolidated Operating PropertiesFhe average occupancy of our consolidated propgertias approximately 75.1% during the year endededéer 31, 2011. As
December 31, 2011 our consolidated properties aepeoximately 74.2% leased compared to approxim&@I8% leased at December 31, 2010.

Occupancy at our Lisle, lllinois property known550-560 Corporetum remains down and is 61% occupiedf Becember 31, 2011. At our other Lisle, lllinpioperty, referre
to as 701 Arboretum, our major tenant which ocadigipproximately 53% of the building vacated th@ace at the expiration of their lease term on Mhy2®11. In additiot
another tenant who occupied approximately 15% ef lthilding vacated at the expiration of their le@seAugust 2011. As a result, this property is 18%cupied as ¢
December 31, 2011. We negotiated a discounted paf/tie debt which resulted in a debt extinguishbgain of approximately $8,514,000. In connectigth the restructuring
we re-evaluated the carrying value of these pragewhich resulted in recording an impairment ckasy$3,000,000 on 701 Arboretum.

34



Our 82,000 square foot Deer Valley Professionaldsug, located in Phoenix, Arizona is 95.6% leas¢december 31, 2011 compared to 61.0% leasedraanuisition o
August 6, 2010. In the aggregate, our Crossroadsllll buildings, which contain approximately 238)0square feet, were 72.4% leased at Decembel031, & compared
55.9% leased at the date of our acquisition dutfiegfourth quarter of 2010.

The Churchill, Pennsylvania property litigation wsettled on September 30, 2011. In connection thighsettlement, we received a payment of $6,500@6€e conveyed by o
former tenant approximately 148 acres of land dwdground lease payments for 2011 were waiveddtiitian, we entered into a lortgrm net lease with one of our exist
Churchill tenants, Westinghouse, for 57,000 sqfieeé of space. The lease has a 12 year term andesgnnual rent of $750,000, increasing by 3%uatiy. Westinghouse
responsible for all costs associated with the léag@ace and can terminate the lease at any tirethé fifth anniversary by making a terminatioryment of $4,400,000 whi
decreases each year thereafter. The lease retjuatewe make certain improvements and utility upggsawith an anticipated cost of approximately $,000. Under the terr
of the settlement agreement, we agreed to marketafe both the portion of the property leased &stivighouse and the remaining portion of the ptypar December 2011 v
engaged a national broker to begin marketing theWestinghouse parcel with an auction scheduled fardkl 2012. The Westinghouse parcel is expecteeé todrketed durir
the fourth quarter of 2012. We agreed to pay CB% &0 the sales proceeds received from the sald,mmt sold, 50% of the value as determined by lifts for the proper
received in each case, in excess of $6,500,00tbrinection with the settlement, the Trust recoraedmpairment charge in the fourth quarter of $@,800.

Tenant Concentration We seek to reduce our operating and leasing rigkaigh diversification achieved by the geographstritbution of our properties, avoiding depende
on any single property and a large tenant bas®etember 31, 2011, we had two tenants, Spectregireerd Siemens Real Estate, which represented xapmately 21.8% an
9.8%, respectively, of our annualized base reetamues from consolidated commercial operating grt@s.

Sealy Equity Investments in Operating Propertiess of December 31, 2011 we continue to hold equitgrests in three real estate ventures with S&aBo. which have a
aggregate of approximately 2,097,000 rentable sqfest consisting of 18 office flex buildings an8 light distribution and service center properti€ao of the investme
properties are located in Atlanta, Georgia, (NoghinBusiness Park and Newmarket), which had ocaigsnf 77% and 52% respectively, at December 811 s compared
occupancy of 75% and 66%, respectively at Dece®beP010. The third Sealy investment is locatetlashville, Tennessee and was 83% and 86% occupiedamber 3:
2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

On June 23, 2011, we were able to satisfy the $280D0 first mortgage loan secured by the NorthvBastiness Park property at a discounted payofthi amount ¢
$20,500,000. The payoff was funded by our maki$g@®,641,000 bridge loan. On September 29, 2011veh&ure obtained a $14,000,000 replacement fisstgage loan whic
bears interest at LIBOR + 5.35% and matures onebgper 29, 2015. Proceeds from the loan were uliiteepay down the bridge loan, and the balancéefridge loan w:
satisfied by additional equity of $4,650,000 from and of $3,100,000 from our venture partner. Wnded a $2,900,000 other-themporary impairment charge on 1
investment in 2011.

The loan secured by the Newmarket property mature8016 and is currently in special servicing. Wegether with our venture partner, are attemptimgnégotiate
restructuring of the debt with the special servicEie venture has ceased making its debt servigmeats until the loan is restructured. There cambeassurance tha
restructuring of the loan will be accomplished. Weorded a $900,000 other-than-temporary impairrakeatge on this investment in 2011.

With respect to the Nashville, Tennessee propelitying the fourth quarter of 2011 we wrote the stweent down to $0 and recorded a $1,494,000 impeitrfoss. Th
mortgage on the Nashville Airpark property matureMay 2012, and we, together with our venture parthave been unable to obtain an extension. Bgsewd the current fe
value of the property and our unwillingness to stumore cash in the property without concessiontheyender, we determined the writedown to $0 agopriate.

Marc Realty Equity Investments in Operating Projes+—As of December 31, 2011, we held equity interestsine properties with Marc Realty which consistofaggregate
approximately 1,407,000 rentable square feet a€@find retail space which was 78.5% occupied agpaced to 79.9% occupied at December 31, 2010.

We sold our equity investments in 8 South Michighh East Adams and 29 East Madison for an aggresgditag price of $18,544,000 to our partner, MBealty. The sellin
price was paid $6,000,000 in cash and with a $¥2000 secured promissory note of which $8,544,0®teen paid. At December 31, 2011, the 29 Eastddadoan had
balance of $4,000,000 and deferred income was 8066 |n addition, we have certain future partidipaitrights if the properties are sold within a dfied timeframe fo
amounts in excess of our sale price.
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During the fourth quarter of 2011, as part of onnal budget preparation we determined, based ppgacted 2012 operating results and required abjpitprovements in tt
properties, a further evaluation of the potentighairment of our investment would be appropriate. Mtently entered into an agreement with Marc tiReaincerning divestitu
of certain of the assets. As a result, we haverated that impairment charges totaling $15,7648@0to be recorded in the fourth quarter of 2011.

Of the properties in which we held an equity ins¢i@ December 31, 2011, two downtown Chicago ptigsecontain approximately 389,000 rentable sqieeeof the aggrege
Marc Realty portfolio and accounted for $17,728,000ur December 31, 2011 carrying value. Thesepvaperties had a combined occupancy of 79.1% aeléer 31, 201
compared to a combined occupancy of 77.1% at DeeeBih 2010.

The balance of the portfolio, located in the Chwagburbs represents $9,417,000 of our Decembe2@1, carrying value, contains approximately 1,008,square feet a
was 78.2% occupied at December 31, 2011 compargd. 886 occupied at December 31, 2010.

At December 31, 2011, the Marc Realty propertiesesmcumbered with $59,159,000 of mortgage debh $8(789,000 of mortgage debt maturing in 2012,282,000 maturin
in 2013 and the remainder in 2014 or later.

REIT Securities

During the first nine months of 2011, we sold anffigant portion of our REIT preferred shares. Hoee during the fourth quarter of 2011 in lightretent declines in mark
pricing of REIT securities we began investing agaifREIT common shares, particularly in Cedar Rea@lust Inc. of which we own 5,196,000 shares whighacquired fc
$18,752,000 and had a fair market value of $22(B%Wbat December 31, 2011.

During the year ended December 31, 2011 we inve&t&c321,000 in REIT securities. We sold REIT sii@s with a cost basis of $14,890,000 and recenesh proceeds
$26,408,000. As of December 31, 2011 our portfofi®EIT securities had a fair value of $28,856,80pared to an original acquisition cost basisa#,$59,000.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2011, we held $40,952,000 in uriotetl cash and cash equivalents and $28,856,0B&I[f securities. In addition, as of December 311 2we had, subject
covenant compliance, $10,000,000 available to drawur $50,000,000 revolving line of credit.

We believe that cash flow from operations will dooe to provide adequate capital to fund our opegadand administrative expenses, as well as debicgeobligations in th
short term. As a REIT, we must distribute annuatliyeast 90% of our REIT taxable income. As a ttesuthis dividend requirement, we, like other RE)&re unable to reinv
all of our operating cash flow and are dependentagging capital through equity and debt issuamre®rming ventures with investors to obtain furvdgh which to expand o
business. Accordingly, we anticipate that capitahwvhich to make future investment and financicgj\aties will be provided from borrowings, the isnce of additional equi
and debt securities and proceeds from sales direxiassets.

Our primary sources of funds include:
« the use of cash and cash equivale
. rents and reimbursements received from our operatioperties
. payments received under our loan as:
. interest and dividends received from investmen®HEtT securities
. cash distributions from joint venture
. borrowings under our credit facilit
. asset specific borrowings; a
«  the issuance of equity and debt securi
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Public Offerings

On April 6, 2011, we closed a public offering 0f750,000 Common Shares at a price of $11.25 pereshafore underwrites’ discount and received net proceed
approximately $61,386,000.

On November 28, 2011, we executed an underwrittdatigpoffering of 1,600,000 shares of 9.25% SeBe€umulative Redeemable Preferred Shares of Beakfiterest, pe
value of $1.00 per share. The shares were issuegrite of $25.00 per share before underwriteéssalint and we received net proceeds of approxisnégs,378,000.

Debt Maturities

At December 31, 2011, our balance sheet contaimtgage debt payable of $230,940,000. We have $8)900f mortgage debt maturing in 2012, $15,682@afuring in 201
and $21,000,000 maturing in 2014 with the remaimdaturing in 2015 or later. We have a $50,000,@®lving line of credit which matures in March 20dith an option t
extend to March 2015. With respect to our debt maduin 2012, we are currently in negotiation wikle lender for a three year extension to April 2006 December 31, 20!
we had $40,000,000 of borrowing outstanding onlithe We continually evaluate our debt maturitiesl @xcept as noted above on our Sealy equity imess, based on ¢
current assessment, we believe there are viab#émding and refinancing alternatives for debts &y tmature that will not materially adversely impactr liquidity or ou
expected financial results.

Net Operating Loss Carry Forwarc

At December 31, 2010, we had a net operating laay dorward of approximately $24,040,000 which iegp in 2023. We anticipate utilizing $23,108,0G0te net operatir
loss carry forward in 2011. The utilization of ajority of our net operating loss carry forward withit our ability to shelter taxable income in theure which may require us
distribute funds and reduce cash available forvestment on a going forward basis. We also havéatdpss carry forwards of $45,508,000 which egpiirom 2014 throuc
2015.

Cash Flows
Our liquidity based upon cash and cash equivaldetseased by approximately $4,305,000 from $450887at December 31, 2010 to $40,952,000 at Decefiher011.

Our cash flow activities for the year ended Decen®de 2011 are summarized as follows (in thousands)

Net cash flow provided by operating activit $ 39,68
Net cash flow used in investing activiti (105,35()
Net cash flow provided by financing activiti 61,35¢

Decrease in cash and cash equival $ (4,305

Operating Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2011, our operatitigities generated consolidated net income df, 47,000 and positive cash flow of $39,687,000r €ash provided k
operations reflects our net income adjusted byar{i)ncrease for nooash items of $2,641,000 representing primarilyenirperiod loan discount accretion and unrealgaids
on loan securities offset by adding back depremiatind amortization expenses and $7,600,000 foaimment charges; (ii) an increase of $13,290,060dfscount accretic
received in cash; (iii) an increase for $13,267,600istributions from noreonsolidated interests; and (iv) a net decreasealukanges in other operating assets and liasilii
$1,258,000. See our discussion of Results of Ojpasibelow for additional details on our operations
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Investing Activitie:

Cash flow used in investing activities for the yesrded December 31, 2011 was approximately $108)860as compared to cash flows used in investintyites of
approximately $112,650,000 for the comparable pkiriai2010. The change from 2010 of approximately38@,000 resulted primarily from repayments of bagceivable, retu
of capital distributions from our equity investmgnincreased investment in equity investments,adeed proceeds from the sale of REIT securitiegedaat fair value, procee
from payoff of loan securities and increased investt in REIT security acquisitions.

Net cash used in investing activities of $105,380,fr the year ended December 31, 2011 was coetppsmarily of the following
. $72,354,000 for investment in our W-Socal Lender joint ventur
«  $31,335,000 for investment in our Vintage Housingpgarty joint venture
. $23,000,000 for origination of two new loans receiea(Hotel Wales and Renaissance We
*  $20,641,000 for a new loan to our Sealy Northwesata joint venture (of which $15,991,000 was rdpmid the balance converted to a capital contobit
*  $19,321,000 for the acquisition of REIT securiti
. $18,093,000 for investment in our Lakeside Eagle ljwant venture
*  $17,525,000 for the acquisition of the Magazine loageivable
. $9,751,000 for investment in capital and tenant mnpments at our operating properti
*  $10,150,000 for the deposit associated with investrireour Sullivan joint venture
*  $8,810,000 for investment in our other new jointtuees;
*  $8,086,000 for investment in 450 W t St.;
«  $8,037,000 for investment in our Gotham loan joienture;
. $4,453,000 for additional loan advances under exgstacilities;
*  $2,440,000 for investment in our Marc Realty eqiityestments; an
*  $1,500,000 for preferred equity investment in Virdagousing
These uses of cash flow were offset primarily by:
. $31,890,000 in return of capital distributions iraitug full returns of our investments in Lakesideglea Gotham, and L\-SOFI;
*  $26,408,000 in proceeds from the sale of REIT sé&esrcarried at fair value
. $23,034,000 in proceeds from the repayment of ouifélid owers loan receivabli
*  $15,991,000 in proceeds from the repayment of oalyS¢orthwest Atlanta loar
. $8,748,000 in proceeds from maturing loan securi
. $8,544,000 in proceeds from the repayment on ourcNRaalty loans
*  $6,500,000 in proceeds from the repayment of ourdfpetitan Tower loan receivabl
. $6,000,000 in proceeds from the sale of three of\dac Realty investment
*  $5,250,000 in proceeds from the repayment of oureBg\Hilton loan;
. $4,160,000 in repayments from Concord on our compbdoan receivabl¢
. $3,646,000 in proceeds from the repayment of ourtWissd loan receivable
*  $2,460,000 in proceeds from the repayment of oueSSeuare loan receivable; &
. $3,629,000 in proceeds from the sale of two props!
Financing Activities

Cash flow provided by financing activities for tiiear ended December 31, 2011 was approximate\3$81000 as compared to cash flow provided by fim@nactivities o
approximately $71,802,000 for the comparable penp@010. This change of approximately $10,444,68€1lted primarily from repayments on our revolvimge of credit
principal payments on our mortgage loans payahiecgeds from new from new mortgage loans payabtes@tured financings, the issuance of PreferredeShand th
redemption of Preferred Shares and dividends paid.
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Net cash provided by financing activities of $6 BI®O0 for the year ended December 31, 2011 was gsadpprimarily of the following
e $67,324,000 drawn down on our revolving line of dte
. $61,386,000 of net proceeds from the issuance iil 2011 of 5,750,000 Common Shar
«  $38,378,000 of net proceeds from the issuance ireier 2011 of 1,600,000 Series D Preferred Sh
. $21,000,000 in proceeds from the financing of owle,illlinois and Meriden, Connecticut properti
*  $15,150,000 in proceeds from the issuance of thesparticipation in the San Marbeya lo:
«  $14,000,000 in proceeds from the issuance of thimsparticipation in the Hotel Wales loan; a
. $11,000,000 in proceeds from the financing of oanRition, Florida propert
These sources of cash flow were offset primarily by

«  $72,574,000 for mortgage loan repayments which,dditeon to scheduled debt amortization, included7$8,000 for the satisfaction of loans payable ar
Andover, Massachusetts and Burlington, Vermont ertigs which matured in March 2011, $23,875,000 tfar satisfaction of our loan payable which
scheduled to mature in February 2014, $19,002,060@ht satisfaction of our loan payable which welsesiuled to mature in June 2011 and $15,391,00€hé
satisfaction of our loan payable which was scheditdemature in June 201

. $52,774,000 for payments on our revolving line afdit;
e $24,621,000 for the repurchase of our Seri-1 Preferred Shares and our Series C Preferred Shward
. $19,496,000 for dividend payments on our Common &h

Future Cash Commitmen

Future Funding Requirements

In addition to our initial purchase price of centébans and operating properties, we have futunelifig requirements which total approximately $14,060 at December &
2011.

Common and Preferred Share Dividends

In paying dividends we seek to have our quarteilyddnds track cash flow from operations. As a heefiour emphasis on total return, while we seelathieve a stab
predictable dividend for our shareholders, we dbsetect or manage our investments for skem dividend growth, but rather towards achievivgrall superior total retur
While we intend to continue paying dividends eaahrter, the amount of our dividend will depend loa actual cash flow, financial condition, capigdjuirements, utilization
available capital losses and net operating losy darwards, dividend requirements for REITs unther Internal Revenue Code, and such other facoomiaBoard of Truste
deem relevant. Subject to the foregoing, we exfzecbntinue distributing our current cash flow fraperations after reserving normal and customarguants thereby allowir
us to maintain adequate capital reserves. In anfgitvhen deemed prudent or necessitated by ap@iciidend requirements for REITs under the Indé¢iiRevenue Code, \
may make one or more special dividends during amiqular year. However, during a favorable invegtenvironment, we expect that we will utilize aarry forward capit:
losses to shelter gains from the disposition ofamgets so we may use the proceeds for investifenexpect to continue applying these standards iegpect to our dividen
on a quarterly basis which may cause the dividémdiscrease or decrease depending on these vdaotss.

During 2011 we paid a regular quarterly dividendb6f1625 per Common Share. We paid regular quartividends of $0.40625 per SerieslBRPreferred Share and Serie
Preferred Share for the first three quarters ofl2@he fourth quarter dividend on our Series B-&féred Shares and Series C Preferred Shares waatpd as a result of t
full repurchase of these shares on November 181.20h December 30, 2011 we paid a pated dividend of $0.212 per share on our Serid®r&erred Shares which wi
issued on November 28, 2011.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our payment obligadi under contractual obligations, including atlefi and variable rate debt obligations, excepttherwise noted, as
December 31, 2011 (in thousands):

Less than After
Total 1 Year 2-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
Mortgage loans payable (principal and interest) (1) $ 27935 $ 26,72 $ 6988, $ 130,13 $  52,68(
Revolving line of credit (principal and interest) 42,85¢ 1,31¢ 41,53¢ — —
Ground lease obligatior 118,04« 1,22¢ 2,68¢€ 3,05¢ 111,07¢
Advisor¢' fee (2) 8,27: 8,27: — — —

$ 44853. $ 37,54: $ 11410t $ 133,18 $ 163,75!

(1) Does not reflect financing activity subsequent ec@mber 31, 201:

2) Advisor’s fee based upon the terms of the Advisory Agreénedfective January 1, 2012, with no effect giterany equity that may be issued after Decembe2311
No amounts have been included for subsequent rémasiads of the Advisory Agreemet

We carry comprehensive liability and all risk pragensurance covering fire, flood, extended cogera‘'acts of terrorism,as defined in the Terrorism Risk Insurance Ac
2002 and rental loss insurance with respect toopearating properties where coverage is not provisedur net lease tenants. Under the terms of etiteases, the tenan
obligated to maintain adequate insurance coverage.

Our debt instruments, consisting of mortgage losexured by our operating properties (which are igdilgenontecourse to us), contain customary covenants reguirs tc
maintain insurance. Although we believe that weehadequate insurance coverage under these agreemvenmay not be able to obtain an equivalent amofinoverage
reasonable costs in the future. Further, if lendiesst on greater coverage than we are able taimbit reasonable costs, it could adversely affectability to finance and/
refinance our properties and expand our portfolio.

Comparability of Financial Data from Period to Period

The comparability of financial data from periodgeriod is affected by several items including Ig timing of our property acquisitions and leasaatjvities; (ii) the purchas
and sales of assets and investments; (iii) whermahbther-thartemporary impairment charges on assets in ourglmrtare taken; and (iv) the reclassification o$ets. In thi
regard, the comparability of financial results fbe years presented were impacted by othersthaaporary impairment charges on our equity investsieecognized in 201
property impairments recognized in 2011, the additf four operating properties (one direct acdigisiand three loan foreclosures) in 2010, the esitipn of severaloar
assets in 2011 and 2010, the divestiture of seWIEAT securities in 2010 and 2011, the write-doviowr investment in Lex#/in Concord to zero during the second quart
2009 and the reclassification of certain Marc Reaftsets from an aggregated preferred equity imergtto 12 individual common equity investment®fduly 1, 2009.

Results of Operations

Our results of operations are discussed below gsneat:
. Operating Propertie- our wholly and partially owned operating proper@es from July 1, 2009 our Marc Realty equity inwssnts;
. Loan Asset< our loans receivable, loan securities carried iaviue, and equity investments in loan ass
. REIT Securitie— our ownership of equity and debt securities in ptieal estate investment trusts; ¢

. Corporate — non-segment specific results whichuihelinterest on cash reserves, general and adrathistexpenses and other neegment specific income &
expense item:
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The following table summarizes our assets by seg@ateyear end (in thousands):

2011 2010
Operating propertie $ 44220¢ $ 385,87:
Loan asset 217,17 134,26¢
REIT securities 28,85¢ 33,03:
Corporate
Cash and cash equivalel 40,95 45,257
Restricted cas 3,914 8,59:
Accounts receivable and prepa 504 53¢
Deferred financing cost 31¢€ 29z
Discontinued Operatior 6 2,27¢
Total Assets $ 73393 $ 610,12¢

The increase in operating property assets was doaply to the consolidation of the 450 West t1&treet property and our investment in the Vintageising portfolio. Thes
additions were partially offset by $21,058,000 tiey-thantemporary impairment charges on our Sealy and NRa@lty equity method investments, $7,600,000 ofaimpen
charges on our wholly owned properties and theassdfication of our St. Louis, Missouri propertydiscontinued operations.

The increase in loan assets was due primarilyeatiguisition of new loan assets for an aggregatesiment of $183,263,000, which was partially etftsy repayments totalil
$102,179,000.

The decrease in REIT securities assets was prirthel result of our divestiture of these assetsnduthe first three quarters of 2011. We receiveateeds of $26,408,000 fr
the sale of securities in 2011. During the fourttarger of 2011 we began investing again in REIT emm shares, primarily Cedar Realty Trust Inc., aneésted a total
$19,321,000 during 2011.

The following table summarizes our results fromtomring operations by segment for each of the yeaded December 31 (in thousands):

2011 2010 2009
Operating properties (: $ (14,78H) $ 2,47¢ 3% (8,506)
Loan assets (1 35,29 19,21¢ (99,83()
REIT securities 3,89t 8,27: 27,00:
Corporate expenst (13,08¢) (10,707) (3,029)

Consolidated income (loss) from continuing operst $ 11,31¢  $ 19,267 $ (84,359

(1)  As of July 1, 2009, in conjunction with the resturing of our preferred equity investment in MaredRy, our investments in the Marc Realty portfolibich wert
previously included in the loan assets businessisagare now classified as equity investments aadnaluded in the operating properties segm
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Comparison 2011 to 2010
Operating Properties

The following table summarizes our results fromtaaring operations for our operating propertiesmsegt for the years ended December 31, 2011 and @@1@ousands):

2011 2010
Rents and reimbursemet $ 44,63¢ $ 38,05¢
Operating expense (15,32) (8,665)
Real estate taxe (4,54¢) (2,537)
Equity in income (loss) of Marc Realty investme (982) 1,77¢
Equity in income (loss) of Sealy Northwest Atla 4,30¢ (710)
Equity in loss of Sealy Airpark Nashvil (1,039 (2,107
Equity in loss of Sealy Newmark (2,93¢) (1,199
Equity in income of Vintage Housir 112 —
Operating incomt 24,23¢ 25,62¢
Depreciation and amortization expel (13,539 (9,956
Interest expens (13,077 (13,199
Impairment loss on investments in real es (7,600 —
Impairment loss on Marc Realty equity investm (15,769 —
Gain on consolidation of proper 81¢€ —
Settlement incom 5,86¢ —
Impairment loss on Sealy equity investme (5,299 —
Gain on extinguishment of de 9,35¢ —
Gain on sale of equity investmel 207 —
Operating properties net income (lo $ (14,789 $ 2,47¢

Operating income from our operating properties,olthwe define for our consolidated operating prapsras all items of income and expense directlivddrfrom or incurred
this segment before depreciation, amortization emerest expense and other non-recurring operating items and our share of income or losmfeguity investment
decreased by $1,390,000 compared to the priorpesiod.

The following table breaks out our operating restfitbom same store properties (properties held tilvout both the current and prior year reportingiqus) and new sto
properties (in thousands):

Consolidated Operating Properties

For the Year Ended December 31

2011 2010
Rents and reimbursemer
Same store propertit $ 3651 $  37,22¢
New store propertie 8,121 831
44,63¢ 38,05¢
Operating expense¢
Same store propertit 12,07¢ 8,11¢
New store propertie 3,242 54¢€
15,32 8,66t
Real estate taxe
Same store propertit 3,292 2,024
New store propertie 1,25¢ 50¢
4,54¢ 2,532
Consolidated operating properties operating inc
Same store propertit 21,14+« 27,08t
New store propertie 3,62¢ (223)

$ 24,76¢ $ 26,86:

The decrease in operating income for our same staneerties was primarily the result of operatixgenses and real estate taxes at our Churchilhérania property and
decline in rents and reimbursements at our Lidllepls properties. The decline in same store ftisswhs partially offset by positive results fronr oew store properties.
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. Rental revenues increased by $6,577,000 due tostewe revenues of $8,121,000, while same storentegedeclined by $713,000. The decrease in same
revenue was the result of declines at our ChurchRghnsylvania property and our Lisle, lllinois pecty which were partially offset by increased mave at oL
Andover, Massachusetts property and our One Eastdicago, lllinois property

. Operating expenses increased by $6,656,000 dnerteased expenses at our same store properti@sa&000 and at our new store properties of $20886 Thi
increase in the same store operating expensegsegbaimarily to operating expenses of $4,607,086l{ding $1,423,000 of costs associated with puoigtie
settlement) at our Churchill, Pennsylvania propartych in prior years was paid by the tenant uradeet lease; ar

. Real estate tax expense increased by $2,014,00@duereased expenses at our new store propefti#g46,000 and increases at our same store preper
$1,268,000. The increase in the same store regleetstx expense was primarily due to real estatestaf $836,000 at our Churchill, Pennsylvania prgpanc
increased real estate taxes at the Lisle, lllinRiser City Chicago, lllinois, and One East Eriei€lyo, lllinois properties as a result of tax abaats recorded
2010.

Depreciation and amortization expense increase$i383,000 in 2011 primarily as a result of ourrfptoperty acquisitions in 2010. Interest expenséated to our operatil
properties remained relatively consistent but waéfected by an increase of $901,000 in interesergp on our Connecticut muléimily property acquired in the fourth qua
of 2010 and $627,000 of interest expense on ount&tian, Florida property which was financed in Bta2011. These increases were partially offsetelojctions at our Lisl
lllinois; Andover, Massachusetts; and Burlingtoreront properties as a result of our satisfyingldiaas.

During 2011 we recognized impairment charges 063,000 on our Churchill, Pennsylvania property &8¢)00,000 on one of our Lisle, lllinois propestién addition, w
recognized income of $5,868,000 in connection vifth settlement of the litigation at our Churchiennsylvania property. We also recognized $8,5D4@0gain ol
extinguishment of debt in connection with the eadyisfaction of the debt on our Lisle, lllinoisoperties and $844,000 of gain in connection with ghtisfaction of the debt
our Connecticut multi-family property. As a resafta change in control at our 450 W % &treet property effective November 1, 2011 we nowsolidate this property and
recognized a gain on consolidation of $818,000.

Non-Consolidated Operating Properties: Equity Investi:ien

Net operating loss from equity investments was $831 for the year ended December 31, 2011 comparadhet loss of $1,234,000 for the year ended Dbee 31, 201C

. Operating income from our Sealy Northwest Atlamteeistment increased by $5,018,000 due primarilhéodiscounted payoff of the first mortgage loardime
2011. The discounted payoff resulted in an all@catf cancellation of debt income to us of appraatety $5,502,00C

. Operating loss from our Sealy Newmarket investnirereased by $1,743,000 due primarily to $1,275 @ofdditional interest expense allocated to ua0hl as
result of the first mortgage loan being in defauitile it is in special servicing. Rental revenuesrevalso lower at this property during the curperiods as a res
of the loss of a significant tenant in April 20:

. Operating income from our Marc Realty investmermgsrdased by $2,758,000 primarily as a result os#ie of three investments on June 1, 2011. Wegrezed :
gain of $207,000 on these sal

. Operating income from our Vintage portfolio whidesed June 24, 2011 was $113,000 for 2011. Wewvedeaiash distributions of $1,561,000 from this Biween
in 2011.

We recognized other-thaemporary impairment charges of $15,764,000 on\airc Realty equity investments in the fourth quacte2011 as a result of continued declin
operations particularly in the suburban Chicaglipdis assets, together with increased capital sdsmdh of which have resulted in an effort by ugliteest of certain of the
investments. We recognized $5,294,000 of other-therporary impairment charges on our Sealy investsndme primarily to overleverage concerns as welt@atinued mark
declines on these properties.
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Loan Asset

The following table summarizes our results from lmamn assets segment for the years ended Decerhp20B1 and 2010 (in thousands):

2011 2010
Interest $ 11,07:  $ 5,691
Discount accretiol 13,40: 8,78:
Equity in earnings of preferred equity investmeniMarc Realty 33¢€ 33¢
Earnings of Concord Debt Holdini 3,21¢ —
Earnings of CDH CDC( 48C —
Earnings of Le-Win Concord 25¢ —
Equity in earnings of ROI-Riverside 93€ 472
Equity in loss of PSW NY( — (1,24¢)
Realized gain on loan securities carried at faine — 46¢
Unrealized gain on loan securities carried atvalte 2,73¢ 5,011
Equity in earnings of ROIC Lakeside Ea 664 —
Equity in earnings of 46th Street Goth: 621 —
Equity in earnings of Sofite 2,171 —
Equity in earnings of RE CDO Managem: 46 —
Equity in earnings of SoCal Office Loan Portfo 272 —
Operating incomi 36,22( 19,51¢
Interest expens (850) —
General and administrative expel (75) (300)
Loan assets net incon $ 3529 $  19,21¢

Operating income from loan assets, which we defigeall items of income and expense directly derifredh or incurred by this business segment befaeegal an
administrative expense, increased by $16,702,G98 $19,518,000 in 2010 to $36,220,000 in 2011.Mbeease was due primarily to:

. a $5,382,000 increase in interest income due pifiyrtarthe acquisition of new loans throughout 2Gi@ 2011

. a $4,619,000 increase in discount accretion dusapily to the recognition of $1,261,000 on our Mzge loan acquired in 2011, and increases on oQrSiia
loan and Metropolitan Tower loan of $2,489,000 &t36,000

. a $4,213,000 increase in equity in earnings reaaghin 2011 on our loan assets held in joint vesgt@acquired subsequent to June 30, 2010
¢ $3,954,000 in earnings from our Concord investmdatfgrm as a result of cash distributions receiweg011.
These increases were partially offset by a $2,ZMBdecrease in unrealized gain on loan securiti@di1 as compared to the same period in 2010.

Interest expense represents interest on the $1,9A®@enior participation held by a third partyamr San Marbeya loan receivable and on the $14)000senior participatic
held by a third party on our Hotel Wales loan. Botlthe senior participations are treated as seécdimancings for financial statement purposes.

REIT Securitie!

The following table summarizes our results from B&I T securities segment for the years ended DeeefSih 2011 and 2010 (in thousands):

2011 2010
Dividends $ 984 $ 2,65¢
Gain on sale of securities carried at fair ve 123 55¢
Unrealized gain on securities carried at fair vé 2,78¢ 5,06(

Operating incomt 3,89¢ 8,27:
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Operating income from REIT securities, which weinkefas all items of income and expense directlyvddrfrom or incurred by this business segment teefioterest expens
decreased by $4,378,000 over the prior year pefibd.decrease was due primarily to:

. a $2,272,000 decrease in unrealized gain on sesucirried at fair value
. a $1,671,000 decrease in dividend income primasiyhe result of the sale of various securitiesd;

. a $435,000 decrease in realized gain on the saleafrities carried at fair valu

Corporate

The following table summarizes our results from coporate business segment for the years endeenier 31, 2011 and 2010 (in thousands):

2011 2010
Interest and other incon $ 1,17¢  $ 13¢
General and administrati\ (11,699 (8,52¢)
Interest expens (2,099 (2,1872)
Loss on redemption of Serie-1 Preferred Share (200) —
State and local taxe (379 (134
Operating los: $ (13,080 $ (10,709

The increase in operating loss from corporate djpers for the comparable periods was due primaolya $3,166,000 increase in general and adminigtratxpense dt
primarily to an increase in the base managementdégto our advisor of $2,594,000, an increas®3d?2,000 in transaction costs and an increase @8,$20 in professional fe
which was partially offset by a $1,040,000 increimseorporate interest and other income which isprily a forfeited deposit.

Comparison 2010 to 2009
Operating Properties

The following table summarizes our results fromtoaring operations for our operating propertiesrsegt for the years ended December 31, 2010 and. ZD&%ain balanct
have been reclassified as a result of discontimpedations (in thousands):

2010 2009
Rents and reimbursemet $ 3805¢ $ 39,80¢
Operating expense (8,66%) (7,047
Real estate taxe (2,539 (2,547)
Equity in income of Marc Realty investmel 1,77¢ 281
Equity in loss of Sealy Northwest Atlar (710) (457)
Equity in loss of Sealy Airpark Nashvil (1,10%) (1,056
Equity in loss of Sealy Newmark (1,199 (697)
Operating incomt 25,62¢ 28,297
Depreciation and amortization expel (9,956) (10,529
Interest expens (23,199 (13,779
Impairment loss on investments in real es — (20,000
Impairment loss on Marc Realty equity investm — (2,500
Operating properties net income (lo $ 2,47¢  $ (8,506

Operating income from our operating properties,olthwe define for our consolidated operating prapsras all items of income and expense directlivddrfrom or incurred
this segment before depreciation, amortization iatetest expense and other non-recurring aperating items and our share of income or loss four equity investmen
decreased by $2,669,000 compared to the priorpexéwd. The decrease was due primarily to:
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. a $1,624,000 increase in operating expenses doeply to increased cost of $491,000 at our Rivéy @roperty, a $205,000 increase in costs at onddver
Massachusetts property as a result of the lea2010 being a gross lease as compared to a netile2889, a $956,000 increase in legal and prodessifee
related to tenant disputes primarily in connectigth the Churchill tenant litigation and $546,0000perating expenses at our four 2010 property isépns;

. a decrease of $846,000 in rents and reimburserfremtsour two Lisle, lllinois properties due to approximate 20% decrease in average occupancy abfaihe
properties and an approximate 10% decrease atltee property in 201(

. an $806,000 increase in losses from our Sealy ygquiestments due primarily to a $502,000 increadess related to our Newmarket office complexAttanta
Georgia which experienced a 12% loss in occupancng 2010;

. a decrease of $745,000 in rents and reimburseraemisr Andover, Massachusetts property due to xp&ation of the lease in place at December 31920Mis
space was leased effective March 18, 2(

. a decrease of $571,000 in rents and reimburseraénts One East Erie property as a result of amcequpate 4% decrease in average occupi
. a decrease of $417,000 in rents and reimburseraéents River City property due to the turnovereriants; an

. a decrease of $340,000 in rents and reimburserpemssiant to a restructuring as of April 1, 2009 ehhprovided for a reduction in rent in exchangeddenyea
extension of the lease for our Plantation, Flopdaperty.

Partially offset by:

. an increase of $1,495,000 in income from our 12dVRealty equity investments. We received cashidigions of $4,147,000 from the Marc Realty eq
investments during the year ended December 31,;:

. rents and reimbursements of $831,000 from our 20410 property acquisitions; a
. an increase of $252,000 in rents and reimbursenagmtsr Jacksonville, Florida property as a restithe property being 100% occupied for the fulye 2010

Depreciation and amortization expense decrease®bB$,000 primarily as a result of values assigmebtases in place at the time of acquisition béidly amortized durin
2009. Interest expenses related to our operatiogepties decreased by $581,000 primarily as atrenbrmal amortization of the mortgage loans fga

Loan Asset

The following table summarizes our results from lmamn assets segment for the years ended Decerhp20B0 and 2009 (in thousands):

2010 2009
Interest $ 5,691 $ 2,42(
Discount accretiol 8,78z 1,022
Equity in earnings of preferred equity investmehtarc Realty 33¢€ 78
Equity in loss of Le-Win Concord — (66,904)
Unrealized gain on loan securities carried at\alte 5,011 —
Gain on loan securities carried at fair va 46¢ —
Equity in loss of PSW NY( (1,24¢) —
Equity in earnings of ROIC Riversic 472 —
Operating los: 19,51¢ (63,389
General and administrative expel (300) (235)
Impairment loss on preferred equity investme — (2,18¢)
Impairment loss on LeWin Concord — (31,67()
Impairment loss on available for sale Ic — (203)
Provision for loss on loan receivat — (2,157
Loan assets net income (lo: $ 19,21¢  $ (99,830

Operating income from loan assets, which we deéiseall items of income and expense directly derifredh or incurred by this business segment befarregal an
administrative expense, increased by $82,902,08@ f loss of $63,384,000 in 2009 to income of $18,800 in 2010 primarily due to the $66,904,000igqn loss of Lex-
Win Concord recognized in 2009. Excluding the ggloss in LexWin Concord, operating income from loan assetseiased by $15,998,000 for the year ended Decemk,
2010 as compared to the year ended December 33, 206 increase was due primarily to:
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. a $5,011,000 unrealized gain on loan securitiesechat fair value recognized in 2010 and a $469@&lized gain on loan securities which were pdiicht par a

maturity in December 2010; a

. a $11,031,000 increase in interest income due pifirta $11,713,000 recognized on loan assets aedisince June 2009 which was partially offset bgductior
of $661,000 of interest on our tenant improvement eapital expenditure loans related to the Maralfgenvestments which are now reported in the afyec

properties segment as of July 1, 2C
Partially offset by:
. a $1,246,000 loss recognized on our 2010 investmesir PSW NYC venture
REIT Securitie:

The following table summarizes our results from B& T securities segment for the years ended DeeefSih 2010 and 2009 (in thousands):

2010 2009
Dividends $ 2,65t $ 3,89
Gain on sale of securities carried at fair ve 55¢ 5,41¢
Unrealized gain on securities carried at fair vz 5,06( 17,86:
Equity in loss of Le-Win Acquisition, LLC — (95)

Operating incomu 8,27: 27,07
Interest expens — (75)
REIT securities net inconr $ 8,27: $ 27,00:
Operating income from REIT securities decreasefi1,804,000 over the prior year period. The deereass due primarily to:
. a $12,802,000 decrease in unrealized gain on $iesucarried at fair value recogniz
. a $4,858,000 decrease in realized gain the oro$alecurities carried at fair value; a
. a $1,239,000 decrease in interest and dividendriegarimarily as the result of the sale of varioessities.
Corporate
The following table summarizes our results from conporate business segment for the years endeenfr 31, 2010 and 2009 (in thousands):
2010 2009
Interest incom $ 13¢  $ 172
General and administrati\ (8,52€) (7,06%)
Interest expens (2,187) (2,81%)
Gain on redemption of Serie«1 Preferred Share — 5,681
Gain on conversion of Serie«-1 Preferred Share — 1,16t
State and local taxe (1349 (157)
Operating los: $ (10,709 $ (3,029

The decrease in the operating loss from corponag¢eations for the comparable periods was due piliyrar

. a $5,681,000 gain on extinguishment of debt reamghin 2009 resulting from our 2009 purchase oi7,005 Series B- Preferred Shares at a discount to

liquidation value:

. a $1,165,000 gain on extinguishment of debt recmghin 2009 resulting from the conversion of 548,8@ries Bt Preferred Shares to Series C Preferred SI

and

. A $1,458,000 increase in general and administragigense due primarily to an increase in the bameagement fee paid to our advisor of $2,118,000ab

offset by a reduction in professional fees of $609,
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Partially offset by:

. a $633,000 decrease in corporate interest experese@rimarily to lower aggregate payments in 2018887,000 on our Series BPreferred Shares as a resu
fewer Series -1 Preferred Shares outstanding during 2010 offgeinbincrease in interest expense of $264,000eetkat our KeyBank line of cred

Discontinued Operations

Our properties in Athens, Georgia; Lafayette, L@uia; St. Louis, Missouri; Knoxville, Tennesseeg &herman, Texas are classified as discontinuexhtipes.

In October 2009 a tenant of our retail net leasepgrties, The Kroger Company (“Krogertotified us of its intention not to exercise itage renewal options on six buildii
containing approximately 281,000 square feet @firgpace. Concurrently, Kroger also notified et thwould be exercising its option to purchase ofithese six properties,
Athens, Georgia property, resulting in our clagsifythat property in discontinued operations effectvith the fourth quarter of 2009. Upon receiptttte notice, manageme
actively marketed the remaining locations for leassale.

The Lafayette, Louisiana and Sherman, Texas lotsitivere classified as discontinued operations aSeptember 30, 2010. During the quarter ended Siyaie30, 201(
management determined that the potential markes reare not sufficient to cover prospective grolemse payments plus the costs to convert theseegiiep to multitenan
facilities. Therefore we decided to permit the orehé of the Sherman, Texas and Lafayette, Loudsjanoperties to revert back to the land ownersf &owember 1, 2010. W
recorded a $704,000 impairment charge relatedesetinvestments which is included in discontinueerations for the year ended December 31, 2010.

The Knoxville, Tennessee location has also beessiflad as discontinued operations since SepteB8teP010. During the quarter ended September 300,2@anageme
determined that after having exercised its purclgs®n under its ground lease and acquiring the la October 2010 the best course of action wasutsue a sale of the r
estate. As a result, we recorded a $626,000 imeaitrcharge which is included in discontinued openst for the year ended December 31, 2010. In Augd%1, we sold or
Knoxville, Tennessee property for net proceeds2p1$1,000.

With respect to Kroges' purchase of the Athens, Georgia property, in @zowe with a three party agreement between ugyefrand the land owner, an appraisal proces:
conducted to determine the fair market value ofgttaperty. As a result of the finalization of thgpaaisal process, we recorded an impairment chair@d,390,000 during tt
year ended December 31, 20

In January 2011 the St. Louis, Missouri propertys weclassified into discontinued operations. Inrkaly 2011 we entered into an agreement to salgtoperty. In Decemb
2011, we sold our St. Louis, Missouri property fiet proceeds of $1,485,000.

In August 2009 the First District Court of Wyandaot€ounty, Kansas, appointed a receiver to operadenzanage our apartment complex in Kansas City s&samrommon|
referred to as Creekwood Apartments. In Octobe®2Dfotice of foreclosure was issued on behalfiefiirst mortgage holder. The property was foremiosm December 2009.

Funds From Operations

We have adopted the revised definition of Fundsnfl©perations (“FFO”)adopted by the Board of Governors of the Nations$dtiation of Real Estate Investment Tr
(“NAREIT”). Management considers FFO to be an appropriate measperformance of a REIT. We calculate FFO bjystthg net income (loss) (computed in accordanite
GAAP, including nonrecurring items), for gains (or losses) from sadésproperties, real estate related depreciation amartization, and adjustment for unconsolid
partnerships and ventures. Management believesrtitatier to facilitate a clear understanding of bistorical operating results, FFO should be adersd in conjunction wi
net income as presented in the consolidated fiahistatements included elsewhere herein. Manageowersiders FFO to be a useful measure for reviewinmgcomparativ
operating and financial performance because, byudity gains and losses related to sales of preljodepreciated operating real estate assets ariddaxg real estate as
depreciation and amortization (which can vary amowgers of identical assets in similar conditiorsdza on historical cost accounting and useful Ifgneates), FFO can he
one compare the operating performance of a compargl estate between periods or as comparedfévetif companies.
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Our calculation of FFO may not be directly compéeaio FFO reported by other REITs or similar restaée companies that have not adopted the termciordance with tt
current NAREIT definition or that interpret the cemt NAREIT definition differently. FFO is not a G¥ financial measure and should not be consideseghaalternative to r
income (loss), the most directly comparable finahoieasure of our performance calculated and predén accordance with GAAP, as an indication af performance. FF
does not represent cash generated from operattivitias determined in accordance with GAAP anaidd a measure of liquidity or an indicator of obiliédy to pay dividends
We believe that to further understand our perforceafrFO should be compared with our reported reetnre and considered in addition to cash flows goetance with GAAF
as presented in our consolidated financial statésnen

Based on the October 31, 2011 and Januay 6, 20d&teg guidance on reporting FFO, we have excludgmirment losses on depreciable real estate asaseasther-than-
temporary impairment on equity method joint vensurethe calculations of FFO and have restated pgoiod calculations to be consistent with thisgentation. The other-than-
temporary impairments have been excluded as tHater® decreases in the fair value of deprecieddéestate held by the investee.

The following presents a reconciliation of net immto funds from operations for the years endeceBéer 31, 2011 and 2010 (in thousands, exceptyaee amounts):

2011 2010
Basic
Net income attributable to Winthrop Realty Tr $ 10,93: $ 16,477
Real estate depreciatit 8,64¢ 6,39¢
Amortization of capitalized leasing co: 4,89t 3,712
Gain on sale of real este (392) —
Gain on sale of equity investmel (207) —
Gain on property consolidatic (819) —
Real estate depreciation and amortization of undafeted interest 11,46¢ 8,95¢
Impairment loss on investments in real es 7,60( 2,72(
Impairment loss on equity investme 21,05¢ —
Less: Norcontrolling interest share of depreciation and dmation (3,487) (3,172)
Funds from operatior 59,69¢ 35,09
Preferred dividend of Series C Preferred Sh (585) (28€)
Preferred dividend of Series D Preferred Sh (33¢9) —
Allocation of earnings to Series-1 Preferred Share (32%) (63)
Allocation of earnings to Series C Preferred Sh (219) (247)
FFO applicable to Common Share—Basic $ 58,23t $  34,50!
Weighted-average Common Share 31,42¢ 22,56¢
FFO Per Common Shar—Basic $ 188 $ 1.5¢
Diluted
Funds from operatior $ 59,69¢ $  35,09¢
Preferred dividend of Series C Preferred Sh (585) —
Preferred dividend of Series D Preferred Sh (339 —
Allocation of earnings to Series-1 Preferred Share (325 (63)
Allocation of earnings to Series C Preferred Sh (219) —
FFO applicable to Common Share: $ 58,23¢ $ 35030
Weighte-average Common Shar 31,42¢ 22,56¢
Stock options — 2
Convertible Series C Preferred She — 38¢
Diluted weightec-average Common Share 31,42¢ 22,95¢
FFO Per Common Shar—Diluted $ 18 $ 1.5
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Off-Balance Sheet Investments

We have four off-balance sheet investments in dpeyaproperties totaling $70,180,000 and five b#flance sheet investments in loan assets total8ig962,000 :
December 31, 2011. Our exposure to loss is lintibealir investment balance. See Item 8 — Financ@k®ents, Note 8 for additional information onsthévestments.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Impairment

Operating properties We evaluate the need for an impairment loss onestte assets when indicators of impairment asept and the projected undiscounted cash
from an asset are not sufficient to recover antas®arrying amount. The impairment loss is measbryedomparing the fair value of the asset to itgyéag amount. Th
projection of cash flows used in the impairmentleaiion involves significant judgment by management

Loan asset— Loan assets are periodically evaluated for posgibpgirment in order to determine whether it isessary to establish a loan loss allowance. In sastances if
borrower is experiencing difficulties making loaayments we may assist the borrower to addressrttgems, which could include extending the loamtemaking addition:
advances, or reducing required payments. A loaet dassonsidered to be impaired when, based orcuimformation and events, it is probable thatwiktbe unable to colle
all amounts due according to the existing contr@cterms of the loan. Impairment is then measur@set on the present value of expected future dasls or, if the loan i
collateral dependent, the fair value of the cotite/Nhen a loan is considered to be impaired, Wieastablish an allowance for loan losses and meocorresponding charge
earnings. Significant judgments are required iredeining impairment. We do not record interest meoon impaired loans. Any cash receipts on impdwads are recorded
a recovery reducing the allowance for loan losses.

Preferred equity investmer— We have certain mezzanine loans which are cladsifsepreferred equity investments. Determining e preferred equity investment is other-
thantemporarily impaired requires significant judgmenhis evaluation includes consideration of the thrmf time and extent to which the fair value ofiamestment has be
less than its cost basis, our intent and abilitidtal the investment until a forecasted recoveryalue and the collateral underlying the investment

Equity investment— Equity investments are reviewed for impairment gaigally. Equity investments for which the carryinglue exceeds the fair value, the Trust evaluid
these are other-than-temporarily impaired.

Contingent liabilities— Estimates are used when accounting for the alloe/dorc contingent liabilities and other commitmerstimating probable losses requires analys
multiple forecasts that often depend on judgmebtautipotential actions by third parties such asilegrs. All of the estimates and evaluations argcsptible to change a
actual results could differ from the estimates enaluations.

Variable Interest Entities

Consolidated Variable Interest Entities

The Trust has identified two consolidated varidbterest entities, Deer Valley, Arizona and the Awer net lease property. Consolidated variableaésteentities are those wh
the Trust is the primary beneficiary of a variabiterest entity. The primary beneficiary is thetpahat has a controlling financial interest in ke, which is defined by tt
entity having both of the following characteristidy the power to direct the activities that, whaken together, most significantly impact the \@Eerformance, and 2) 1
obligation to absorb losses and right to receieeréiiurns from the VIE that would be significanthe VIE. The third partieshterests in these consolidated entities are riefb
as non-controlling interest in the accompanyingsotidated financial statements.
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Variable Interest Entities Not Consolidated

Equity Method and Preferred Equity Investme—The Trust has reviewed its various equity method jreferred equity investments and identified 15alde interests fc
which the underlying entities do not have suffitieguity at risk to permit them to finance theitisties without additional subordinated financ&lpport. These unconsolida
joint ventures are those where we are not the pyifbaneficiary of a VIE

Vintage Housing Holdings LLC Equity InvestmenEhe Trust has concluded that its equity methodstment in its Vintage Housing joint venture is aiable interest in a VIE
This assessment is primarily based on the factthtigavoting rights of the members are not propaeldo their obligations to absorb expected lossesrights to receive resid
returns of the legal entities. While the Trust ntaiins certain protective rights under the termthefagreements governing Vintage Housing, the péavdirect the activities th
most significantly impact the economics of the isiweent is vested in the Trust’s joint venture pargind managing member.

Loans Receivable and Loan Secur— The Trust has reviewed its loans receivable and &murities and certain of these assets haveitlestified as variable interests i
VIE because the equity investment at risk at thedwang entity level is not considered sufficieor the entity to finance its activities without dtitthal subordinated financi
support.

Certain loans receivable and loan securities whioke been determined to be VIEs are performingssseeting their debt service requirements, aadtirrowers hold title -
the collateral. In these cases the borrower hadslltitle to the real estate collateral and haspbwer to direct the activities that most sigrifily impact the econon
performance of the VIE, including management amdileg activities. In the event of default undesthibans the Trust only has protective rights aaelthe risk to absorb los:
only to the extent of its loan investment. The barer has been determined to be the primary benefiéor these performing assets.

The Trust has determined that it does not curremilye the power to direct the activities of thetuess collateralizing any of its loans receivabhel d0an securities. For tt
reason, management believes that it does not dpntois it the primary beneficiary of these vaesi Accordingly, the Trust accounts for these stwents under the guidar
for loans receivable and real estate debt invessnen

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

See “ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplemeridata—Note 2.”
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ITEM 7A—QUANTITATIVE & QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOU T MARKET RISK
Interest Rate Risk

We have exposure to fluctuations in market interatts. Market interest rates are highly sensitivenany factors beyond our control. Various finaheiehicles exist whic
would allow management to mitigate the potentigate effects of interest rate fluctuations on cash flow and earnings.

Our liabilities include both fixed and variableeatebt. As discussed in ITEM 7 — Managemeiiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiond &esults of Operations, -
seek to limit our risk to interest rate fluctuasatrough match financing on our loan assets asasehrough hedging transactions.

The table below presents information about the flgwerivative financial instruments at Decembey 3111 ($ in thousands):

Estimated Fair Value

Notional of Cap in Other
Amount of Comprehensive
Type Maturity Strike Rate Hedge Cost of Hedge income
Cap Oct-14 1.0(% $ 21,000 $ 174 $ 85

The fair value of our debt, based on discounteti @lasvs at the current rate at which similar loavesuld be made to borrowers with similar creditmgs for the remaining tet
of such debt, was less than its carrying value 18,804,000 and $22,042,000 at December 31, 201 2@h@ respectively.

The following table shows what the annual effeath@ange in the LIBOR rate would have on interesteesp based upon the unhedged balances in variagledebt ¢
December 31, 2011 (in thousands):

Change in LIBOR(2)

-0.30% 1% 2% 3%
Change in consolidated interest expe $ (a80) $ 40z $ 654 $ 1,054
Prc-rata share of change in interest expense of dehbr-consolidated entities (: (33) 9C 137 27C
(Increase) decrease in net inco $ (219 $ 49z $ 791 $ 1,32¢

Q) Represents our pmata share of a change in interest expense in @uc Realty equity investment. The amount does @fi¢st our equity investment in Concord wt
has been written down to ze

(2) The one month LIBOR rate at December 31, 2011 w2&53%.

The Trusts equity investment, Vintage holds floating ratetdef approximately $139,366,000 and bears inteaeatrate indexed to the Securities Industry andri€ial Market
Association Municipal Swap Index (SIFMA). Based aur effective 75% ownership in Vintage, the anneifct of a change in the SIFMA rate of 1%, 2%, &% woulc
increase our pro rata share of interest expensgprsoximately $1,045,000, $2,090,000, and $3,136,(spectively.

We may utilize various financial instruments to igate the potential negative impact of interesé f&ictuations on our cash flows and earnings,uiticlg hedging strategit
depending on our analysis of the interest raterenment and the costs and risks of such stratelyiesddition, as of December 31, 2011 our variabte loans receivable a
loan securities with a face value aggregating $0200 partially mitigate our exposure to changmierest rates.
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Market Value Risk

Our hedge transactions using derivative instrumal#ts involve certain additional risks such as terparty credit risk, the enforceability of hedgiogntracts and the risk tt
unanticipated and significant changes in interagts will cause a significant loss of basis indbatract. The one counterparty of these arrangesrieriKeyBank at the pres:
time. We do not anticipate that this counterpariy fail to meet its obligations. There can be resarance that we will adequately protect agairestdahegoing risks.

53



ITEM 8 —FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfiimm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, &1 201(

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compsaremcome (Loss)for the Years Ended December2@11, 2010 and 20(
Consolidated Statements of Sharehol' Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 201D200¢

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEaded December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

54



Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
To the Board of Trustees and Shareholders of Waptiealty Trust:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated hzdasheets and the related consolidated statemé&woiseoations and comprehensive income, shareholéersty and cas
flows present fairly, in all material respects, fimancial position of Winthrop Realty Trust and gubsidiaries at December 31, 2011 and Decembh&@03D, and the results
their operations and their cash flows for eachhefthree years in the period ended December 31, @0donformity with accounting principles geneyadiccepted in the Unit
States of America. In addition, in our opinion, fiireancial statement schedules listed in the indpgearing under ITEM 15(a)(2) presents fairly, linnzaterial respects, tl
information set forth therein when read in conjimetwith the related consolidated financial statateeAlso in our opinion, the Company maintainedall material respec
effective internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2011, based on criteria estedliininternal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisg@DSO). The Company’management is responsible for these financitdrsnts, the financial statement schedule
maintaining effective internal control over finaakreporting and for its assessment of the effectss of internal control over financial reporting;luded in Managemerst’
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reportapgpearing under Item 9A. Our responsibility isetgpress opinions on these financial statementsherinancial stateme
schedules and on the Companyiternal control over financial reporting basedaur integrated audits. We conducted our audisctordance with the standards of the Pi
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United Stat@s)ose standards require that we plan and perfbaratdits to obtain reasonable assurance abouherhiite financiz
statements are free of material misstatement aretheh effective internal control over financial ogfing was maintained in all material respects. @udits of the financi.
statements included examining, on a test basigleaee supporting the amounts and disclosures irfitla@cial statements, assessing the accountimriptes used ar
significant estimates made by management, and ataduthe overall financial statement presentat®@uar audit of internal control over financial repog included obtaining ¢
understanding of internal control over financigbogiing, assessing the risk that a material weakegsts, and testing and evaluating the designopedating effectiveness
internal control based on the assessed risk. Quitsaalso included performing such other procedaewe considered necessary in the circumstancesélieve that our aud
provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is a@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranceliregéhe reliability of financial reporting andelpreparation «
financial statements for external purposes in ataoce with generally accepted accounting principfesompanys internal control over financial reporting incledghos:
policies and procedures that (i) pertain to themtesiance of records that, in reasonable detailrately and fairly reflect the transactions andpdgtions of the assets of
company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance thais#éetions are recorded as necessary to permit natepa of financial statements in accordance widnerally accepte
accounting principles, and that receipts and exiperes of the company are being made only in aced with authorizations of management and directbthe company; al
(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prameror timely detection of unauthorized acquisitiaise, or disposition of the compasigssets that could have a material e
on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Also, projections of any evatmbf effectiveness to futu
periods are subject to the risk that controls megome inadequate because of changes in conditiortbat the degree of compliance with the poliaesprocedures m:
deteriorate.

Isl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
March 15, 2012
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WINTHROP REALTY TRUST
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

December 31

2011 2010
ASSETS
Investments in real estate, at ¢
Land $ 36,49t $ 37,14.
Buildings and improvemen 327,33 271,35
363,83: 308,49¢
Less: accumulated depreciati (44,556 (36,23)
Investments in real estate, | 319,27¢ 272,26
Cash and cash equivalel 40,95: 45,25
Restricted cash held in escro 3,914 8,59
Loans receivable, ni 114,33¢ 110,39!
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $639$2@P, respectivel 16,14( 12,40:
Securities carried at fair valt 28,85¢ 33,03:
Loan securities carried at fair val 5,30¢ 11,98:
Preferred equity investme 5,52( 4,01
Equity investment 162,14. 81,93’
Lease intangibles, n 36,30¢ 26,82
Deferred financing costs, n 1,18( 1,15¢
Assets held for sal 6 2,27¢
TOTAL ASSETS $ 73393 $ 610,12¢
LIABILITIES
Mortgage loans payab $ 230,94 $ 230,44
Series B-1 Cumulative Convertible Redeemable PredeBhares, $25 per share liquidation preferere2080 shares authorized and outstanding

at December 31, 201 — 21,30(
Non-recourse secured financin 29,15( —
Revolving line of credi 40,00( 25,45(
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit 16,17+ 12,55°
Dividends payabli 5,36¢ 4,431
Deferred incomt 502 15C
Below market lease intangibles, 1 2,962 2,69¢
Liabilities of held for sale asse — 33

TOTAL LIABILITIES 325,09° 297,06(
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
NON-CONTROLLING REDEEMABLE PREFERRED INTEREST
Series C Cumulative Convertible Redeemable Prafe3tares, $25 per share liquidation preferencedD®shares authorized and outstandin

December 31, 201 — 3,221
Total nor-controlling redeemable preferred inter — 3,221
EQUITY
Winthrop Realty Trust Sharehold’ Equity :

Series D Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shar8gpé2share liquidation preference, 1,840,000 sham¢horized and 1,600,000 shares

outstanding at December 31, 2( 40,00( —
Common Shares, $1 par, unlimited shares author&®641,034 and 27,030,186 issued and outstandibga@mber 31, 2011 and December 31,

2010, respectivel 33,04: 27,03(
Additional paic-in capital 626,09¢ 569,58t
Accumulated distributions in excess of net incc (311,24¢) (300,787
Accumulated other comprehensive I (92) (63)

Total Winthrop Realty Trust Sharehold” Equity 387,80: 295,77

Non-controlling interest: 21,03« 14,07¢
Total Equity 408,83t 309,84

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 73393 $ 610,12¢

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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WINTHROP REALTY TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(in thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Revenue
Rents and reimbursemer $ 44,63t 38,056¢ $  39,80¢
Interest, dividends and discount accrei 25,45¢ 17,12¢ 7,33¢
70,09 55,18: 47,13¢
Expenses
Property operatin 15,32: 8,66¢ 7,041
Real estate taxe 4,54¢ 2,53% 2,542
Depreciation and amortizatic 13,53¢ 9,95¢ 10,52¢
Interest 16,02: 15,37¢ 16,66
Impairment loss on investment in real es 7,60( — 10,00(
Provision for loss on loans receival — — 2,152
General and administrati\ 11,76° 8,82¢ 7,30:
State and local taxe 37¢ 134 157
69,17: 45,48¢ 56,38¢
Other income (loss)
Earnings (loss) from preferred equity investme 33¢ 33¢ (2,109¢)
Equity in loss of equity investments (inclusiveimjpairments of $21,058, $0, $36,3¢ (12,919 (2,007 (103,09)
Gain on sale of equity investmel 207 — —
Realized gain on sale of securities carried atvaine 12z 55¢ 5,41¢
Unrealized gain on securities carried at fair vz 2,78¢ 5,06( 17,86:
Impairment loss on real estate loan available dbe — — (209)
Gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt, 9,25¢ — 6,84¢
Realized gain on loan securities carried at faine — 46¢ —
Unrealized gain on loan securities carried atvalte 2,73¢ 5,011 —
Settlement incom 5,86¢ — —
Gain on consolidation of proper 81¢ — —
Interest and other incon 1,17¢ 13¢ 172
10,39¢ 9,56¢ (75,10
Income (loss) from continuing operatic 11,31¢ 19,26 (84,35¢€)
Discontinued operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic 42€ (1,907) 1,02¢
Consolidated net income (loss) 11,747 17,36¢ (83,330
Income attributable to n-controlling interes (814) (88€) (1,019
Net income (loss) attributable to Winthrop Realty Trust 10,93: 16,47 (84,34°)
Income attributable to n-controlling redeemable preferred inter (58¢5) (28¢) (247)
Income attributable to Series D Preferred Sh (339) — —
Net income (loss) attributable to Common Share $ 10,00¢ 16,18¢ $ (84,499
Comprehensive income (loss
Consolidated net income (los $ 11,74 17,36 $ (83,330
Change in unrealized gain on available for salesées — 2 19
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on interest ratevdtive (29) 22 543
Change in unrealized gain (loss) from equity inrresits — — 26,174
Comprehensive income (loss) $  11,71¢ 17,38¢ $ (56,599
Per Common Share data—Basic
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 0.31 0.8C $ (5.25)
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic 0.01 (0.0¢) 0.0€
Net income (loss) attributable to Winthrop Realty§t $ 0.32 0.7z §$ (5.19
Per Common Share dat—Diluted
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 0.31 0.8C $ (5.25)
Income (loss) from discontinued operati 0.01 (0.0¢) 0.0€
Net income (loss) attributable to Winthrop Realtyst $ 0.32 0.7z $ (5.19)
Basic Weightec-Average Common Share: 31,42¢ 22,56¢ 16,27
Diluted Weighted-Average Common Share! 31,42¢ 22,56¢ 16,27

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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WINTHROP REALTY TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 20®
(In thousands except per share data)

Balance, December 31, 2008

Cumulative effect, change in accounting princ

Net loss attributable to Winthrop Realty Tri

Net income attributable to n-controlling interest:

Distributions to no-controlling interest:

Contributions from nc-controlling interest:

Dividends paid or accrued on Common Shares of bgakihterest ($0.9125 per sha

Dividends paid or accrued on Series C Preferrede3h($0.406 per shar

Change in unrealized loss on available forsaler#ézs) net of reclassificationadjustments for amtsu
included in net incom

Change in unrealized gain on interest rate dexiea

Change in unrealized loss from equity investm:

Issuance of Common Shares throughrights offe

Stock issued pursuant to dividend reinvestment

Balance, December 31, 20

Net income attributable to Winthrop Realty Tr

Net income attributable to n-controlling interest:

Distributions to no-controlling interest:

Contributions from nc-controlling interest:

Dividends paid or accrued on Common Shares of bgakiterest ($0.65 per shat

Dividends paid or accrued on Series C PreferredeS3h($1.625 per shar

Change in unrealized loss on available forsaler#ézs net of reclassificationadjustments for amtsu
included in net incom

Change in unrealized gain on interest rate dexiea

Conversion of Series C Preferred Sharesto Commare$

Net proceeds from Common Shares offel

Stock issued pursuant to dividend reinvestment

Balance, December 31, 20

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Accumulated  Accumulated

Preferred Shares Common Shares Additional  Distributions Other Non-
of Benefical Interest  of Beneficial Interest Paid-In in Excess of Comprehensive Controlling
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Net Income Income Interests Total

— — 15,75¢ 15,75« $ 460,95t $ (213,28) $ (15,17 $ 10,95¢ $259,20¢
— — — — — 11,647 (11,64) —

— — — — — (84,34) — — (84,34))
— — — — — — 1,017 1,017
— — — — — — — (849) (84%)
— — — — — — — 97¢ 97¢
— — — — — (15,186 — — (15,186
— — — — — (147) — — (147)
— — — — — — 1¢ — 19
— — — — — — 54z — 54z
— — — — — — 26,17: — 26,17¢
— — 4,451 4,451 35,717 — — — 40,16¢
— — 17C 17C 1,44% — — — 1,61¢
— — 20,37¢ 20,37¢ 498,11¢ (301,31) 87 12,11: 229,20(
— — — — — 16,477 — — 16,477
— — — — — — — 88¢ 88¢
— — — — — — — (359 (359
— — — — — — — 1,431 1,431
— — — — — (15,65¢) — — (15,659
— — — — — (28¢) — — (28¢)
— — — — — — 2 — 2
— — — — — — 22 — 22
— — 714 714 8,23¢ — — — 8,94¢
— — 5,75(C 5,75 61,02¢ — — — 66,77¢
— — 191 191 2,21( — — — 2,401
- $ — 27,03( 27,03( $ 569,58t $ (300,78) $ (63) $  14,07¢ $309,84°
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WINTHROP REALTY TRUST

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 20®

Balance, December 31, 2010

Net income attributable to Winthrop Realty Tr

Net income attributable to n-controlling interest:

Distributions to no-controlling interest:

Contributions from nc-controlling interest:

Dividends paid or accrued on Common Shares of bgakiterest ($0.65 per shat
Dividends paid or accrued on Series C PreferredeSh$1.43 per shar
Dividends paid or accrued on Series D Preferrede3h@0.212 per shar
Change in unrealized loss on interest rate deviea

Net proceeds from Common Shares offel

Net proceeds from Series D Preferred Shares offi

Stock issued pursuant to dividend reinvestment

Balance, December 31, 20

(In thousands except per share data, continued)

Common Shares

Accumulated  Accumulated

preferred Shares of Additional  Distributions Other Non-
of Beneficial Interest ~ Beneficial Interest Paid-In in Excess of Comprehensive Controlling
Shares Amount Shares  Amount Capital Net Income Income Interests Total
— 3 — 27,03C $27,03( $ 569,58t $ (300,78) (63) $ 14,07¢ $309,84
— — — — — 10,93¢ — — 10,93¢
— — — — — — — 814 814
— — — — — — — (35€) (35€)
— — — — — — — 6,52¢ 6,52¢
— — — — — (20,479 — — (20,473
— — — — — (585) — — (58E)
— — — — — (339 — — (339)
- - - - — - (29 (26) (55)
— 5,75( 5,75(C 55,63¢ — — — 61,38¢
1,60( 40,00¢ — — (1,627) — — — 38,37¢
— — 261 261 2,49¢ — — — 2,76(
1,60 $ 40,000 33,047 $33,04: $ 626,090 $ (311,240 $ (92 $ 21,03 $408,83¢

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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WINTHROP REALTY TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss $ 11,747 $ 17,36 $ (83,330
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to reshcprovided by operating activitie
Depreciation and amortization (including amortiaatof deferred financing cost 9,412 6,98¢ 7,504
Amortization of lease intangibl¢ 4,472 3,03: 4,771
Straigh-lining of rental income (2,076 21z (1,280
Loan discount accretic (13,407 (8,782) (1,02))
Discount accretion received in ce 13,29( — —
(Earnings) loss of preferred equity investme (33¢) (339 2,75¢
Distributions of income from preferred equity intragnts 571 34C 2,37:
Loss of equity investmen 12,91¢ 2,007 103,09:
Distributions of income from equity investmel 12,69¢ 5,27(C 2,78¢
Restricted cash held in escro 1,431 1,167 (1,829
Gain on sale of securities carried at fair ve (123%) (55¢) (5,41¢)
Unrealized gain on securities carried at fair vz (2,789 (5,060 (17,867)
Gain on sale of assets held for < (392 — —
Gain on sale of loan securitites carried at falue: — (469) —
Unrealized gain on loan securities carried atvalte (2,739%) (5,01 —
Impairment loss on real estate loan available &g — — 20<
Impairment loss on investments in real es 7,60( 2,72C 10,00(
Gain on sale of equity investmel (207) — —
(Gain) loss on extinguishment of d¢ (9,25%) — (7,139
Gain on consolidation of proper (81€) — —
Provision for loss on loan receivat — — 2,152
Tenant leasing cos (2,799 (2,99¢) (2,199
Bad debt (recovery) expen 377 (643) 34C
Net change in interest receival 37 (361) (74)
Net change in accounts receiva (61€) 2,36: —
Net change in accounts payable and accrued liabi 681 2,36t (873)
Net cash provided by operating activit 39,685 19,617 14,96¢
Cash flows from investing activities
Issuance and acquisition of loans receivi (67,619 (122,30) (31,519
Investments in real este (9,75)) (23,489 (2,527)
Investment in equity investmer (151,219 (25,637) (3,35%
Investment in preferred equity investm: (7,569 — (487)
Return of capital distribution from equity investnte 31,89( 9,62¢ 11¢
Investment in real estate loan available for — — (35,000
Return of capital distribution from securities ¢adrat fair value — 181 —
Purchase of securities carried at fair ve (19,32) (13,227 (33,119
Proceeds from sale of assets held for 3,62¢ 1,75(C —
Proceeds from preferred equity investme — — 14E
Proceeds from sale of equity investme 6,00( — —
Proceeds from sale of real estate loan availablsdie — — 34,79°
Proceeds from sale of securities carried at fdires 26,40¢ 31,24¢ 39,01t
Proceeds from sale of available for sale secul — 20t —
Proceeds of loan securities at matu 8,74¢ 2,272 —
Proceeds from sale of loans receive — 12,87¢ —
Restricted cash held in escro 3,16( (1,50¢) 2,66¢
Collection of loans receivab 70,28¢ 15,06+ 11,46°
Cash from foreclosure on propert — 27¢ —
Net cash used in investing activiti (105,35() (112,65() (17,786

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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WINTHROP REALTY TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands, continued)

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from mortgage loans pay: $ 3249: $ — 3 49
Proceeds from loan payat — — 19,81¢
Payment of loan payab — — (19,819
Proceeds from revolving line of cre: 67,324 25,45( 35,00(
Payment of revolving line of crec (52,779 — (35,000
Principal payments of mortgage loans payi (72,57¢) (10,199 (6,229)
Restricted cash held in escro 89 1,52 4,00¢
Payments of note payat — — (9,800
Deferred financing cosi (78¢) (252) (61)
Contribution from no-controlling interes 1,34¢ 1,431 97¢
Distribution to nor-controlling interes (35€) (359) (84%)
Issuance of Common Shares under Dividend ReinvestRlan 2,76( 2,401 1,61t
Issuance of Common Shares through offe 61,38¢ 66,77 40,16¢
Issuance of Preferred Sha 38,37¢ — —
Dividend paid on Common Shar (29,49¢) (14,577 (17,809
Dividend paid on Series C Preferred Sh (624) (39€) —
Dividend paid on Series D Preferred She (339) — —
Redemption of Series-1 Preferred Share (21,400 — (2,000
Redemption of Series C Preferred Shi (3,227 — —
Proceeds from secured financi 29,15( — —
Net cash provided by financing activiti 61,35¢ 71,80: 10,07
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis. (4,30%) (21,23¢) 7,25¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 45,257 66,49: 59,23¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of $ 4095 $ 45257 $  66,49!
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Informatior
Interest paic $ 16,24¢  $ 1424 ¢ 16,32
Taxes paic $ 396 ¢ 132§ 22(
Supplemental Disclosure on Non-Cash Investing andifancing Activities
Dividends accrued on Common Sheg $ 539% $ 439 $ 3,311
Dividends accrued on Series C Preferred St $ —  $ 39 $ 147
Capital expenditures accru $ 2,807 $ 1,046 $ 201
Distribution from equity investmel $ — $ — $ 161
Redemption of Series-1 Preferred Share $ — 3 — $ (17,08)
Deposit on redemption of Serie-1 Preferred Share $ = $ = $ 17,08:
Transfer from preferred equity investme $ 5821 $ — $ 41,82
Transfer from (to) loans receivat $ (6,539) $ — $ 15,80¢
Transfer to equity method investme $ (7,509 $ —  $ (57,629
Transfer to investments in lease intangit $ (11,909 $ (3,209 $ =
Transfer to investments in real est $ (52,77H $  (4142H —
Transfer to below market lease intangik $ 1,008 $ 128§ =
Assumption of mortgage loan on investment in regte $ 49,09 $ 23,87 % —
Transfer from loan securitie $ 66z $ — $ —

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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WINTHROP REALTY TRUST
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amounts related to number of buildings, squaredgetand tenant data are unaudited.
Business

Winthrop Realty Trust (“WRT”"), a real estate invasnt trust (“REIT”) under Sections 856-860 of theelnal Revenue Code (the “Codel3, an unincorporate
association in the form of a business trust orgahin Ohio under a Declaration of Trust dated Audud.961, as amended and restated on May 21, 2006h has as i
stated principal business activity the ownershigh sm@nagement of, and lending to, real estate datbceinvestments.

Since January 1, 2005, WRT has conducted its bssitteough WRT Realty L.P., a Delaware limited parship (the “Operating PartnershipWWRT is the sole genel
partner of, and owns directly and indirectly, 10@%the limited partnership interest in the OpemtiPartnership. All references to the “Truséfer to WRT and it
consolidated subsidiaries, including the OperaBagnership.

The Trust is engaged in the business of owning peaperty and real estate related assets whichtégorizes into three specific areas: (i) ownersifipnvestmer
properties (“operating properties”); (ii) originati and acquisition of loans and debt securitiesatahlized directly or indirectly by commercialateproperty (foar
assets”), including collateral mortgabaeked securities and collateral debt obligatiocusges; and (iii) equity and debt interests itert real estate investment tr
(“REIT securities”).

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements representahnsolidated results of WRT, its wholly-owned takeaREIT subsidiary, WRT-TRS Management Corp. (“TR&nc
the Operating Partnership. TRS’ sole asset is % @®&nership interest in the Operating Partnershiipmajority-owned subsidiaries and affiliates over which thest ha
financial and operating control and variable insérentities (“VIE'S) in which the Trust has determined it is the priynbeneficiary are included in the consolid:
financial statements. All significant intercompalglances and transactions have been eliminatednsotidation. The Trust accounts for all other ursmdidated joir
ventures using the equity method of accounting.ofaingly, the Truss share of the earnings of these joint venturescampanies is included in consolidated net incc

Reclassifications

Certain prior year balances have been reclasdifiedder to conform to the current year presentatidiscontinued operations for the periods preskemtelude the Trust
properties in Athens, Georgia; Kansas City, Kankafyette, Louisiana; St. Louis, Missouri; Knoxgjl Tennessee; and Sherman, Texas.

Out of Period Adjustments

During the quarter ended June 30, 2010, the Tdgsttified an error in its year ended December BD92allocation of fair value attributable to thalbing component ¢
its Athens, Georgia property which was assessednrfpairment in connection with its reclassificatias held for sale and its presentation in discoetihoperations. As
result, net loss was understated by approximatég0$00 for the year ended December 31, 2009. Thst Tetermined that this amount was not mateoidhe year
ended December 31, 2010 or 2009, or to the thrdessicmonths ended June 30, 2010. As such, a cledirgeproximately $700,000 has been recorded irctimsolidate
statement of operations within discontinued operetias an out of period adjustment in the secoadeuof 2010. There was no impact on cash flonfaperations.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2010, thetTdentified an error related to the capitalizataf certain legal costs in its year ended DecerBttie2009 financi:
statements. As a result, net loss was understategroximately $228,000 for the year ended Decer8be2009. The Trust determined that this amouwas not materii
to the year or any quarter for the years ended Dbee 31, 2010 or 2009. As such, a charge of $228h28 been recorded in the consolidated statenfiemqenations &
an out of period adjustment for the year ended Bee 31, 2010. There was no impact on cash flom foperations.
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During the quarter ended December 31, 2011, thestTidentified an error related to lease terminatie@ income for its St Louis, Missouri propertyclided ir
discontinued operations, which should have beetsibDecember 31, 2010 financial statements. Assaltenet income was understated by $450,000 ferythar ende
December 31, 2010. This income was recorded by thst in the quarter ended December 31, 2011. ThsetTetermined that this amount was not matesigthé year ¢
any quarter for the years ended December 31, 202019. There was no impact on cash flow from oje&mna.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymith accounting principles generally acceptedhia United States of America (“GAAPYgquires management
make estimates and assumptions in determining dhees of assets and liabilities, disclosure of icgent assets and liabilities at the date of thesobidated financi
statements and the amounts of revenue and expeuasag the reporting period. The estimates thatpamticularly susceptible to managemerjtidgment include but ¢
not limited to the impairment of real estate, loansl investments in ventures and real estate $iesuait fair value. In addition, estimates are usedccounting for tr
allowance for doubtful accounts. All of the estismtand evaluations are susceptible to change anal aesults could differ from the estimates andleations.

Investments in Real Estate

Real estate assets are stated at historical cegengitures for repairs and maintenance are expesséncurred. Significant renovations that extdreuseful life of th
properties are capitalized. Depreciation for finahceporting purposes is computed using the dttdige method. Buildings are depreciated over thetimeated usefi
lives of 40 years, based on the propextgge, overall physical condition, type of condinrc materials and intended use. Improvements ¢obthildings are deprecial
over the shorter of the estimated useful life &f improvement or the remaining useful life of thelding at the time the improvement is completedndnt improvemen
are depreciated over the shorter of the estimatetullife of the improvement or the term of thade of the tenant.

Upon the acquisition of real estate, the Trustssesethe fair value of acquired assets (including,| buildings and improvements, and identifiedngibles such as abc
and below market leases and acquireglace leases and tenant relationships) and acqligdeitities and the Trust allocates purchase phased on these assessm:
The Trust assesses fair value based on estimasédlosv projections and utilizes appropriate distoand capitalization rates and available markietrimation. Estimate
of future cash flows are based on a number of fadgtwluding the historical operating results, kmotnends, and market/economic conditions that nfecethe property.

Real estate investments and purchased intangiblgecs to amortization are reviewed for impairmeritenever events or changes in circumstances iedibatt th
carrying amount of an asset group may not be reeble Recoverability of real estate investmentbaoheld and used is measured by a comparisoneofatrying
amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted faashk flows expected to be generated from the ndeegentual disposition of the asset. If the cagyamount of a
asset exceeds its estimated undiscounted fututefloags, an impairment charge is recognized equahé amount by which the carrying amount of theetigxceeds tl
fair value of the asset.

Assets to be disposed of are separately presentétkibalance sheet and reported at the lowereotéiirying amount or fair value less costs to Sdlke assets al
liabilities are classified separately as held flesn the consolidated balance sheet and arengetalepreciated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all highly ligmdestments purchased with maturities of three tthror less. The Trust maintains cash and cashvaeuts i
financial institutions in excess of insured limitsit believes this risk is mitigated by only invegtin or through major financial institutions.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash in escrow accounts include casérves for tenant improvements, leasing commissiogal, estate taxes and other expenses pursuathie téoar
agreements.
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Loans Receivable

The Trusts policy is to record loans receivable at cost,afaetnamortized discounts unless such loan rec&viabdeemed to be impaired. Discounts on loansivable
are amortized over the life of the loan receivaldimg the effective interest method based uporvatuation of prospective future cash flows. The eination is reflecte
as an adjustment to interest income. Other costsiied in connection with acquiring loans, suclmasketing and administrative costs, are chargezkp@nse as incurre
Loan fees and direct costs associated with loagiated by the Trust are deferred and amortizest the life of the loan as interest income.

The Trust evaluates the collectability of the iet#rand principal of each of its loans to deternpntential impairment. A loan receivable is considieto be impaire
when, based on current information and events, firobable that the Trust will be unable to coleteamounts due according to the existing contradierms of the loe
receivable. Impairment is then measured based@prisent value of expected future cash flows @ffdir value of the collateral. When a loan reckigas considered
be impaired, the Trust will record a loan lossalmce and a corresponding charge to earnings égjtiad amount by which the Trusthet investment in the loan exce
its fair value. Significant judgments are requimredietermining impairment. The Trust does not rddaterest income on impaired loans receivable. Aagh receipts «
impaired loans receivable are recorded as a regaoeducing the allowance for loan losses. The Tehsrges uncollectible loans against its allowéocdoan loss after
has exhausted all economically warranted legatsighd remedies to collect the receivables or gpmeessful foreclosure and taking of loan colldtera

Certain real estate operating properties are aeduirough foreclosure or through deed-in-lieuasé€losure in full or partial satisfaction of npefforming loans that tl
Trust intends to hold, operate or develop for agueof at least twelve months. These assets aiealipirecorded at their estimated fair value.Héte is any excess of 1
loan carrying value over the fair value of the mdp acquired, a charge is recorded to loan loa$es title to the property is obtained. Additiogalipon acquisition of
property, tangible and intangible assets and li#sl acquired are recorded at their estimatedviaines and depreciation is computed in the sammera as described
“Investments in Real Estate” above.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at the contractoredunt and do not bear interest. The allowancaéobtful accounts is the Trustbest estimate of the amoun
probable credit losses in existing accounts retdévarhe Trust reviews the allowance for doubtfot@ints monthly. Past due balances are reviewedidodlly for
collectability. Account balances are charged ofiiagt the allowance for doubtful accounts afteradlans of collection have been exhausted and tiesel for recover
is considered remote.

Securities and Loan Securities at Fair Value

For financial instruments, the Trust has the optmmlect fair value for these financial assetsiailities. The Trust elected the fair value optifor certain real este
securities to mitigate a divergence between aca@ogirand economic exposure for these assets. Treseities are recorded on the consolidated balaheets &
securities carried at fair value and loan secwritiarried at fair value. The changes in the fain@®f these instruments are recorded in unrealigéd (loss) on securiti
and loan securities carried at fair value in the€ididated Statements of Operations.

Preferred Equity Investment

The Trust invests in certain mezzanine loans irctvithe Trust also holds an ownership interest énlibrrower that allows the Trust to participateipercentage of tl
proceeds from a sale or refinancing of the undeglyiroperty. At the inception of each such investtnmanagement must determine whether such investsheuld b
accounted for as a loan, preferred equity, as &uvernr as real estate. The Trust classifies theszzanine loans as preferred equity investmentshaydare accounted |
using the equity method because the Trust has hiflityato significantly influence, but not controthe entitys operating and financial policies. Earnings foch
investment are recognized in accordance with easpective investment agreement and where applicebked upon an allocation of the investmemit assets
adjusted book value as if the investment was hygtmtéilly liquidated at the end of each reportingqu
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At each reporting period the Trust assesses whétkee are any indicators of declines in the falue of preferred equity investments. An investrieralue is impaire
only if the Trust's estimate of the fair value b&tinvestment is less than the carrying value efitlvestment and such difference is deemed toher-thantemporary. T
the extent impairment has occurred, the loss $leatheasured as the excess of the carrying amotiné¢ afivestment over the estimated fair value efittvestment.

Equity Investments

The Trust accounts for its investments in entitresvhich it has the ability to significantly inflaee but does not have a controlling interest, bgguthe equity method
accounting. Factors that are considered in deténgiwhether or not the Trust exercises controludel (i) the right to remove the general parthemanaging member
situations where the Trust is the general partnenanaging member, and (ii) substantive particigatights of equity holders in significant busine&sisions includin
dispositions and acquisitions of assets, financopgrations and capital budgets, and other conthdghts. Under the equity method, the investmeriginally recorde
at cost, is adjusted to recognize the Trmustiare of net earnings or losses as they occufoaratiditional contributions made or distributiorgeived. To recognize t
character of distributions from equity investmerite, Trust looks as the nature of the cash dididhuo determine the proper character of cash flisstributions as eith
returns on investment, which would be includedperating activities, or returns of investment, whieould be included in investing activities.

At each reporting period the Trust assesses whikes are any indicators or declines in the falug of the equity investments. An investmemalue is impaired only
the Trust's estimate of the fair value of the irtweant is less than the carrying value of the inmestt and such difference is deemed to be other#raporary. To th
extent impairment has occurred, the loss shall basured as the excess of the carrying amount afitlestment over the estimated fair value of thestment.

Lease Intangibles

The fair value of the tangible assets of an acqum®perty is determined by valuing the propertyf @#swere vacant, and the “as-if-vacanélue is then allocated to la
building and improvements and fixtures and equipmEsed on managementietermination of the fair values of these asdestors considered by managemel
performing these analyses include an estimate wfiog costs during the expected leageperiods, current market conditions and costextecute similar leases.
estimating carrying costs, management includesestalte taxes, insurance and other operating eepeamsl estimates of lost rental revenue duringxipected leasep
periods based on current market demand. Manageatsmestimates costs to execute similar leasesdimg leasing commissions.

In estimating the fair value of the identified intgble assets and liabilities of an acquired progpetbove-market and belomarket lease values are recorded based ¢
difference between the current in-place lease agick a management estimate of current market r8eiew-market lease intangibles are recorded as a liakaliic
amortized into rental revenue over the non-candelpbriods of the respective leases. Abaowerket leases are recorded as part of intangildetesnd amortized a
direct charge against rental revenue over the roealable portion of the respective leases. Ineplaase values are based upon the Tsustaluation of the speci
characteristics of each tenant lease. Factors deresl include estimates of carrying costs durityothetical lease up period considering currentketaconditions ar
costs to execute similar leases. The in-place seaerecorded as intangible assets and amortizadtharge to amortization expense.

Deferred Financing Costs

Direct financing costs are deferred and amortizec straightfined basis over the terms of the related agreesresta component of interest expense which appedgi
the effective interest method.

Financial Instruments

Financial instruments held by the Trust includehcasd cash equivalents, restricted cash, realeestaturities available for sale, loans receivainlierest rate swe
agreements, accounts receivable, revolving linerediit, accounts payable and long term debt. Caditash equivalents, restricted cash, real estataities available f(
sale and interest rate swap agreements are recatdaid value. The fair value of accounts receigand accounts payable approximate their cur@mying amounts.
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Derivative Financial Instruments

The Trusts interest rate swap and interest rate cap agrasragncarried on the balance sheet at fair valhe.interest rate swap is carried as an asset i€dinterpart
would be required to pay the Trust, or as a ligbifi the Trust would be required to pay the coupéety to settle the swap. Since the Traistiterest rate contracts
designated as “cash flow hedgeth@ change in the fair value of such derivativeeisorded in other comprehensive income or losfiéolges that qualify as effective i
the change in the fair value is transferred frolmeeottcomprehensive income or loss to earnings ahdbged item affects earnings. The ineffective amof the intere:
rate swap agreement, if any, is recognized in agmi

Upon entering into hedging transactions, the Tdastuments the relationship between the interestfiancial instrument agreements and the hedgeal iThe Trust als
documents its risk management policies, includibggatives and strategies, as they relate to itgingdactivities. Both at inception of a hedge andao ongoing basis
the Trust assesses whether or not the hedge ibljhédfective”in achieving offsetting changes in cash flow atitédble to the hedged item. The Trust discontinwest
accounting on a prospective basis with change$enestimated fair value reflected in earnings whe@rit is determined that the derivative is no den effective il
offsetting cash flows of a hedged item (includingettasted transactions); (ii) it is no longer plibahat the forecasted transaction will occur(iidrit is determined the
designating the derivative as a hedge is no lomgpropriate. To date, the Trust has not discontinuedge accounting for its interest rate swap terast rate ce
agreements. The Trust utilizes its interest ratapsand interest rate cap agreements to manageshtate risk and does not intend to enter intovadgve transactions fi
speculative or trading purposes.

Revenue Recognition

The Trust accounts for its leases with tenantgpasating leases with rental revenue recognized stregght-line basis over the minimum noancellable term of the lea
The straightine rent adjustment increased revenue by $2,006i0®011, decreased revenue by $212,000 in 20id jrecreased revenue by $1,280,000 in 2009.
accrued straight-line rent receivable amounts aeber 31, 2011 and 2010 were $10,805,000 and $80@, net of allowances, respectively.

Leases typically provide for reimbursement to theisT of common area maintenance costs, real etaats and other operating expenses. Operating s
reimbursements are recognized as earned.

Pursuant to the terms of the lease agreementsredtihect to net lease properties, the tenant at pagerty is required to pay all costs associatétl the propert
including property taxes, ground rent, maintenasasts and insurance. These costs are not reflected consolidated financial statements.

Tenant leases that are not net leases generalyderéor (i) billings of fixed minimum rental andi)(billings of certain operating costs. The Trascrues the recovery
operating costs based on actual costs incurred.

The Trust recognizes lease termination paymengsasnponent of rental revenue in the period reckipeovided that the Trust has no further obligagionder the leas
otherwise, the lease termination payment is anedtan a straight-line basis over the remaininggaiion period.

Income Taxes

The Trust operates in a manner intended to enatecontinue to qualify as a REIT. In order to bfyeas a REIT, the Trust is generally requiredtegear to distribute -
its shareholders at least 90% of its taxable inc¢eweluding any net capital gains). There is alseparate requirement to distribute net capitatgar pay a corpore
level tax. The Trust intends to comply with theefgoing minimum dividend requirements.

In order for the Trust to continue to qualify aRERIT, the value of the TRS stock cannot exceed 20%e value of the Trust’total assets. The net income of TR
taxable at regular corporate tax rates. Currentrite taxes are recognized during the period in whighsactions enter into the determination of foiahstatemer
income, with deferred income taxes being providedémporary differences between the carrying \@bhfeassets and liabilities for financial reportimgrposes and su
values as determined by income tax laws. Changesferred income taxes attributable to these teapatifferences are included in the determinatibinoome. Thi
Trust and TRS do not file consolidated tax returns.
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The Trust reviews its tax positions under accognginidance which require that a tax position maly & recognized in the financial statements i§ imore likely tha
not that the tax position will prevail if challerydy tax authorities. The Trust believes it is mbkely than not that its tax positions will be saised in any ta
examination. The Trust has no income tax expersfermed tax assets or deferred tax liabilities eissed with any such uncertain tax positions far éiperations of at
entity included in the Consolidated Statement oé@fions and Comprehensive Income.

Preferred Shares

On November 28, 2011 the Trust closed on a pulfferiag of 1,600,000 9.25% Series D Cumulative Redable Preferred Shares of Beneficial Interest ‘(8eries [
Preferred Shares™at a price of $25.00 per share, par value of $1gbare. The Trust received net proceeds (after amiimg discounts but before expenses
$38,740,000. The Series D Preferred Shares ranargenthe Common Shares with respect to divideghts and liquidation or dissolution rights. Theri8s D Preferre
Shares have no stated maturity date and are n@ctub mandatory redemption or any sinking funaldérs of the Series D Preferred Shares will gdiyehave nc
voting rights except for limited voting rights ifenrfail to pay dividends for six or more quarterlripds. The Series D Preferred Shares are clatsiiea component
permanent equity at December 31, 2011.

Concurrent with the Series D Preferred Shares ioffeithe Trust entered into an agreement with tbleldrs of the Series B-Cumulative Convertible Redeeme
Preferred Shares (“Series B-1 Preferred Sharesf)Series C Cumulative Convertible Redeemable RexfeBhares (“Series C Preferred Sharés™epurchase all tl
outstanding shares prior to the consummation oStrées D Preferred Shares closing and issuaneeTiiust repurchased 100% of the Seriek Breferred Shares and
Series C Preferred Shares on November 18, 201prteof $25,000,000 plus accrued dividends. Thesflrecognized a loss of $100,000 on the repuechithe Serie
B-1 Preferred Shares.

Earnings Per Share

The Trust determines basic earnings per share @mwéighted average number of Common Shares ouistaddring the period and reflects the impact aftipgating
securities. The holders of the Trust's Serie$ Breferred Shares and the Series C Preferred Sivare entitled to receive cumulative prefererdigidends on a quartel
basis equal to the greater of (i) $0.40625 pereslaaarterly (6.5% of the liquidation preferenceamannualized basis) or (ii) cash dividends payabléhe number
Common Shares into which the Seried Breferred Shares and Series C Preferred Sha®sniang for this purpose that the conversion poicthe Series C Preferr
Shares equals the conversion price of the SeriésPBeferred Shares) were convertible. The Trustpedes diluted earnings per share based on the tegigiverag
number of Common Shares outstanding combined Wéhrtcremental weighted average effect from alstaunding potentially dilutive instruments.
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The Trust has calculated earnings per share inrdanoe with relevant accounting guidance for pgiing securities and the two class method. Tlvereiliation o
earnings attributable to Common Shares outstarfdindpe basic and diluted earnings per share caticu is as follows (in thousands, except per sHata):

2011 2010 2009
Basic
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 11,31¢  $ 19,267 $ (84,35¢)
Income attributable to n-controlling interes (814) (889) (1,019
Preferred dividend of Series C Preferred Sh (585) (289) (247
Preferred dividend of Series D Preferred Sh (339 — —
Income (loss) from continuing operations applicabl€ommon Share 9,581 18,09: (85,52()
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic 42€ (2,9072) 1,02¢
Net income (loss) applicable to Common Sharesdaniags per share purpos $ 10,00¢ $ 16,18¢ $ (84,499
Basic weighte-average Common Shar 31,42¢ 22,56¢ 16,27"
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 031 $ 0.8C $ (5.25)
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic 0.01 (0.0¢) 0.0€
Net income (loss) per Common Sh $ 03z $ 0.7z % (5.19
Diluted
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 11,31¢  $ 19,267 $ (84,35¢)
Income attributable to n-controlling interes (819 (889) (1,019)
Preferred dividend of Series C Preferred Sh (585) (289) (247
Preferred dividend of Series D Preferred Sh (339 — —
Income (loss) from continuing operations applicabl€ommon Share 9,581 18,09: (85,52()
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic 42€ (1,9072) 1,02¢
Net income (loss) applicable to Common Sharesdaniags per share purpos $ 10,00¢ $ 16,18¢ $ (84,499
Basic weighte-average Common Shar 31,42¢ 22,56¢ 16,277
Series [-1 Preferred Shares ( — — —
Series C Preferred Shares — — —
Stock options (3 — 2 —
Diluted weighte-average Common Shar 31,42¢ 22,56¢ 16,27"
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 031 $ 0.8C $ (5.25)
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic 0.01 (0.0¢) 0.0€
Net income (loss) per Common Sh $ 03z $ 0.7z % (5.19

@

@

©)

The Series B-1 Preferred Shares are anti-déduir the years ended December 31, 2011, 201®@68 and are not included in the weightadrage shares outstanc
for the calculation of diluted earnings per ComnSivare.

The Series C Preferred Shares were issued Nmefein 2009, are andilutive for the years ended December 31, 2011,0284d 2009 and are not included in
weighte-average shares outstanding for the calculationlatied earnings per Common Shs

The Trust’s stock options were dilutive for thear ended December 31, 2010. The stock optiome amidilutive for the years ended December 31, 201120G8 an
are not included in the weight-average shares outstanding for the calculationlatedl earnings per Common Shes

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

On December 23, 2011, FASB issued Accounting Staisd&/pdate (“ASU”) No. 2011-12Comprehensive Income (Topic 22@eferral of the Effective Date 1
Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassificatbftems Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensigenre in Accounting Standards Update No. 201105defer th
effective date for the part of ASU No. 2011-05 treett disclosed in the Trustfinancial statements for the period ended Jun@@01, would require adjustments of ite
out of accumulated other income to be presentethercomponents of both net income and other conemigte income in financial statements. The chamyesSU
No. 201105 would have been effective for annual and intepeniods beginning on or after December 15, 201t ,those changes are now deferred until FASE
adequately evaluate the costs and benefits ofptieisentation requirement. As a result, the treatrobreclassification of items out of other compeahive income wi
remain as it was prior to the changes made in ASU2011-05.
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On December 16, 2011, FASB issued ASU No. 2011Balance Sheet (Topic 210)—Disclosures about Offigeftssets and Liabilitiehich requires entities to disclc
both gross information and net information abouthbiastruments and transactions eligible for offsethe financial statements particularly for tracisons related
derivatives, sale and repurchase agreements artseesale and repurchase agreements, and sechoitresving and securities lending arrangements. fféwe disclosur
requirements will be effective for annual reportiperiods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. figne disclosures will be required for all prior qoanative perioc
presented. The Trust has evaluated this new guédand does not anticipate its adoption will haveagerial impact on its consolidated financial staats.

On December 14, 2011, FASB issued ASU No. 2011Pt6perty, Plant, and Equipment (Topic 360)—Derectgm of in Substance Real Estate—a Scope Clatifica
clarifying that a parent company should not decbdate an in substance real estate subsidiary ictwtihe parent loses a controlling interest assaltef default on tr
subsidiary’s norrecourse debt until title to the in substance esgdte is transferred to legally satisfy the d€bis ASU resolves a diversity in practice of applyiexisting
consolidation guidance. The amendments in ASU @120 should be applied prospectively to deconsoliiagvents occurring after the effective date, ttoagrly
adoption is permitted. Prior periods should noabgisted. For public entities, the amendments fieeté&ve for periods beginning on or after June 2612. The Trust hi
evaluated this new guidance and does not anticifsageloption will have a material impact on itssolidated financial statements.

Fair Value Measurements

The accounting standards establish a frameworknfeaisuring fair value as well as disclosures abmutvBlue measurements. They emphasize that fhieva a marke
based measurement, not an ensipgcific measurement. Therefore a fair value meamsent should be determined based on the assumhiansarket participants wot
use in pricing the asset or liability. As a basis donsidering market participant assumptions invialue measurements, the standards establisin eafae hierarchy thi
distinguishes between market participant assumpti@sed on market data obtained from sources indepé of the reporting entity (observable inputs thre classifie
within Levels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy) and theortipg entity’s own assumptions about market participant assomgp{junobservable inputs classified within Levelf
the hierarchy).

Level 1 inputs utilize unadjusted quoted priceadtive markets for identical assets or liabilitieat the Trust has the ability to access. Leveifuis are inputs other th
quoted prices included in Level 1 that are obsdevédr the asset or liability, either directly ordirectly. Level 2 inputs may include quoted pri¢essimilar assets ai
liabilities in active markets, as well as inputattiare observable for the asset or liability offfran quoted prices, such as interest rates, fomighange rates, and yi
curves that are observable at commonly quotedviaker Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs fer dsset or liability which are typically based anemtity’s owr
assumptions, as there is little, if any, relatedk®@bactivity. In instances where the determinatibthe fair value measurement is based on inpots Hifferent levels ¢
the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fairwalhierarchy within which the entire fair value me@ment falls is based on the lowest level inpat ts significant to tt
fair value measurement in its entirety. The Tstssessment of the significance of a particulautito the fair value measurement in its entiretyuires judgment, a
considers factors specific to the asset or liabilit

Level 1 financial investments include highly ligudvernment bonds, mortgage products and exchtiaded equities. If quoted market prices are naflable, then fa
values are estimated by using pricing models, gupt&es of securities with similar characteristiosdiscounted cash flows. Examples of such imsémnits, which woul
generally be classified within Level 2 of the valoa hierarchy, include certain derivative finaridisstruments. In certain cases where there istdichactivity or les
transparency around inputs to the valuation, seesrare classified within Level 3 of the valuatibierarchy. Securities classified within Level Zlide, for exampl
residual interests in securitizations and othes liegiid securities, investments in joint ventuaesl real estate investments.

The following is a description of the valuation imedologies used for instruments measured at féireyas well as the general classification of smsktruments pursua
to the valuation hierarchy.
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Recurring Measurements

Securities Carried at Fair Value
Securities carried at fair value are classifiechimit_evel 1 of the fair value hierarchy.
Loan Securities Carried at Fair Value

The Trust uses a third party pricing model to dighltvalues for the loan securities in its portfoll he Trust also performs further analysis ofgh€formance of the loa
and collateral underlying the securities, the ested value of the collateral supporting such loams a consideration of local, industry and broa®momic trends al
factors. Significant judgment is utilized in thetimlate determination of fair value. The significaagsumptions used in thaalysis include market interest rates
interest rate spreads. This valuation methodolagp/deen characterized as Level 3 in the fair Viaiekarchy.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Trust uses interest rate swaps and interestcegts to manage its interest rate risk. The Jaluaif these instruments is determined using bathngjtative an
qualitative valuation techniques including discathttash flow analysis on the expected cash flowsagh derivative as well as potential credit rigk#h the swa
counterparty. This analysis reflects the contrdderans of the derivatives, including the periodraturity, and uses observable markased inputs, including interest 1
curves, and implied volatilities. The fair valuesrderest rate swaps and interest rate caps deendimed using the market standard methodologyettfmg the discounte
future fixed cash receipts (or payments) and tisealinted expected variable cash payments (or teyeifhe variable cash payments (or receipts) ased on &
expectation of future interest rates (forward csjwderived from observable market interest rateesr

The Trust incorporates credit valuation adjustmémtappropriately reflect both its own nonperforro@amisk and the respective counterpartyonperformance risk in t
fair value measurements. In adjusting the fair gaitiits derivative contracts for the effect of performance risk, the Trust has considered the atnpianetting as well
any applicable credit enhancements, such as callgiestings, thresholds, mutual puts and guarantee

Although the Trust has determined that the majaftihe inputs used to value its derivatives fathim Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, the citechluation adjustmen
associated with its derivatives utilize Level 3 utg such as estimates of current credit spreadsyaluate the likelihood of default by itself aitsl counterpartie
However, the Trust has assessed the significantdeedmpact of the credit valuation adjustmentsh@overall valuation of its derivative positionsdehas determined tt
the credit valuation adjustments are not signifidanthe overall valuation of its derivatives. Asesult, the Trust has determined that the derieatialuations in the
entirety should be classified in Level 2 of the falue hierarchy.

The table below presents the Trgséissets and liabilities measured at fair value @acurring basis as of December 31, 2011, acogrirthe level in the fair val
hierarchy within which those measurements falklfiousands):

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets Significant Other

for Identical Assets Significant
Observable Unobservable
and Liabilities Inputs Inputs
Recurring Basis (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets
Securities carried at fair valt $ 28,85¢ $ — 3 — 3 28,85¢
Loan securities carried at fair val — — 5,30¢ 5,30¢
Interest Rate Ca — 85 — 85
$ 28,85¢ $ 85 $ 530¢ $ 34,25(
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The table below presents the Trags#issets and liabilities measured at fair value eacurring basis as of December 31, 2010, acogrirthe level in the fair vall

hierarchy within which those measurements falklfiousands):

Recurring Basis

Assets

Securities carried at fair valt
Loan securities carried at fair val

Liabilities
Interest rate swa

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets Significant Other

for Identical Significant

Assets Observable Unobservable
and Liabilities Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
$ 33,03 % — $ — $ 33,03:
— — 11,98 11,98

$ 33,03: $ — $ 11,98 $ 45,01
$ — $ 63 $ — $ 63

During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2@t8 tvere no transfers between Level 1 and Letar Zalue assets and liabilities.

The table below includes a roll forward (in thoudshof the balance sheet amounts from January@9 &9 December 31, 2011, including the change inviaue, fol
financial instruments classified by the Trust withievel 3 of the valuation hierarchy. When a detaation is made to classify a financial instrumeiithin Level 3 of thi
valuation hierarchy, the determination is basecdhupe significance of the unobservable factorheodverall fair value measurement.

Fair value, January 1, 2009
Purchase

Transfers in/fand or out of Level
Fair value, January 1, 20:
Purchase

Sale repaymer

Realized gait

Unrealized gain, ne

Transfers in/fand or out of Level
Fair value, January 1, 20:
Purchase

Sale repaymer

Payoff at pa

Realized gair

Unrealized gain, ne

Transfers in/and or out of Level
Fair value, December 31, 20
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Securities Carried

at Fair Value

Loan Securities

Carried at Fair

Value

$ —

$ —
1,661

(692)

1,661
7,11¢
(2,272)

46¢
5,011

11,98:

(662)
(8,749

2,73¢

$ 5,30¢




Non-Recurring Measurements

Equity and Preferred Equity Investments

Equity and preferred equity investments are asddssether-than-temporary impairment when theyiag value of the Trust investment exceeds its fair value. The
value of equity investments is determined usingn@ome capitalization approach considering premgilinarket capitalization rates. The Trust revieasheinvestmel
based on the highest and best use of the investamehtmarket participation assumptions. The sigaificassumptions used in this analysis include resteenues
operating expenses, inflation rates, market absorpates, tenanting costs, the discount rate apdtalization rates used in the income capital@atialuation. The Tru
has determined that the significant inputs usedatae its Marc Realty, Sealy, and L&¥n Concord, LLC equity investments fall within Leiv3. The Trust recogniz
other-than-temporary impairment losses of $21,088,80 and $34,170,000 on these investments dthimgears ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2€€]$atively.

The Trust has determined that the significant ispuged to value certain of its preferred equityestments fall within Level 3. The Trust recordegamment losses
$2,186,000 on these preferred equity investmentinglithe year ended December 31, 2009. Due to ésgucturing of the Trust’investment in the Marc Ree
properties, these preferred equity investments weslassified as equity investments as of JulyoD92

Investments in Real Estate and Assets Held For Sale

During 2011, 2010, and 2009 the Trust recognizegehinment charges of $7,600,000, $2,720,000 andd$0MO00, respectively, relative to investmentseial estate ar
assets held for sale. The Trust assesses the assi&tsportfolio for recoverability based upon atefmination of the existence of impairment indicatincluding
significant decreases in market pricing and mar&ets, a change in the extent or manner in whiahestate assets are being used or a declineimptiysical conditior
current period losses combined with a history aflsé&s or a projection of continuing losses, andreentiexpectation that real estate assets willdié sr otherwis
disposed of before the end of their previouslyneated useful lives. When such impairment indicagxist, management estimates the undiscountedfiass from the
expected use and disposition of the asset. Siamifimputs for this recoverability analysis inclutie anticipated holding period for the asset al$ aseassumptions ov
rental revenues, operating expenses, inflatiorsrabarket absorption rates, tenanting costs anddbets estimated residual value. For those assets eotekk to be full
recoverable, the Trust records an impairment chaggel to the difference between the carrying valne estimated fair value of the asset. Managemhetermines tr
fair value of those assets using an income capéttidin approach based on assumptions it believearéiet participant would utilize. Significant asqations includ:
discount and capitalization rates used in the ireeaiuation approach.

In July 2011 the Trust satisfied its $23,773,006tfmortgage loan on its wholly owned Lisle, lllis@roperties for a discounted payoff of $14,500,0Bubsequent to t
discounted payoff and as a result of continuedideslin occupancy at these properties, the Trusvaduated its business plan and holding periodshfese propertie
The Trust determined that as a result of the guateid shorter holding period and higher lease wscthe carrying value of the 701 Arboretum prgperas no longe
fully recoverable. In addition, in September 20fé Trust entered into a settlement agreement Wétdrmer tenant at its Churchill, Pennsylvaniaperty. The Trust re-
evaluated its business plan and holding periodhisrproperty and determined that the carrying @afithe Churchill property was no longer fully ogerable.

The Trust has determined that the undiscounted #tasis for one other of its properties marginallceed the carrying value of the property. A furtdeterioration i
such undiscounted cash flows could cause impairofethie property which could be material to the sklifuture results of operations.

The table below presents as of December 31, 2@ Trists assets and liabilities measured at fair valuevasts dictate, according to the level in the ¥alue hierarch
within which those measurements fall (in thousands)

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for

Significant Other Significant
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable
and Inputs
Non-Recurring Basis Liabilities (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Equity investment $ — 3 — $ 28,13t $ 28,13t
Investments in real este — — 10,794 10,794
$ —  $ —  § 38,92¢ $ 38,92¢
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The table below presents as of December 31, 2@ Urists assets and liabilities measured at fair valuevasts dictate, according to the level in the ¥alue hierarch

within which those measurements fall (in thousands)

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for

Significant Other
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Significant
and Unobservable

Non-Recurring Basis Liabilities (Level 1) (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3) Total
Equity investment $ — 3 —  $ — 3 =
Assets held for sal — — 2,20¢ 2,20¢
Investments in real este — — — —

$ — $ — $ 2,20¢ $ 2,20¢

Fair Value Option

The current accounting guidance for fair value meament provides a fair value option election tildws companies to irrevocably elect fair valuetas measureme
attribute for certain financial assets and lial@fit Changes in fair value for assets and liaedifior which the election is made are recognizegaimings on a quarte
basis based on the then market price regardlessether such assets or liabilities have been despo$ at such time. The fair value option guidapeanmits the fair valt
option election to be made on an instrument byrimsent basis when it is initially recorded or upomevent that gives rise to a new basis of accogritr that asset

liability. The Trust has elected the fair valueioptfor all loan securities and REIT securities.

The Trust recognized a net unrealized gain of $&HD, $10,071,000, and $17,862,000 for the yaaded December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 respectia®lg result (
the change in fair value of the securities and Isacurities carried at fair value, which is recar@s an unrealized gain in the TrgsBtatements of Operations. Incc

related to securities carried at fair value is rded as interest and dividend income.

The following table presents as of December 31124id December 31, 2010 the Trust’s financial agfsetwhich the fair value option was elected finusands):

Financial Instruments at Fair Value December 31, 201  December 31, 201
Assets
Securities carried at fair valu
REIT Preferred share $ 4271 $ 28,54
REIT Common share 24,57¢ 4,48¢
Loan securities carried at fair val 5,30¢ 11,98:
$ 34,16 $ 45,011

The table below presents as of December 31, 204 Hifference between fair values and the aggregat&actual amounts due for which the fair valuéaphas bee

elected (in thousands):

Fair Value at Amount Due
December 31, 201 Upon Maturity Difference
Assets
Loan securities carried at fair val $ 530¢ $ 7,49¢ % 2,18¢
$ 530¢ $ 7,49 % 2,18t
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Acquisition, Disposition, Leasing and Financing Advities

Operating Properties
Operating Properties-Acquisition Activities

450 West 14th Street / 446 High Line LLC Investrre@®n May 13, 2011 the Trust committed to invest u$16,000,000 for a preferred equity interest inehéty tha
holds the leasehold interest in a newly construZ@d% preleased 105,000 square foot retail and office pitydecated on the High Line at 450 West 14th Striew
York, New York. At December 31, 2011, the Trust laeested $9,539,000. The investment is subjeetficst mortgage loan with an outstanding balarfc®4®,585,00
at December 31, 2011 subject to future advances 6p4,000,000. The Trustpreferred equity entitles it to a 10% currenhcaturn on its invested balance. In Octc
2011, the joint venture that owns the property ioletd its temporary certificate of occupancy frora tlew York City Buildings Department. The Trust eiged its righ
to become the managing member of the entity effedtiovember 1, 2011. As a result of the Trust beéogrthe managing member and the ensuing changeniimat, the
Trust now consolidates the operations of the ptgperd has accounted for such change in contrallassiness combination. The Trust recognized a@aiconsolidatio

of $818,000.
The fair value opening equity and fair value of roamtrolling interest was calculated utilizing thgpbthetical liquidation methodology. The fair valakEthe assets a

liabilities was calculated by an independent tipisdity valuation firm and reviewed by management Tiethodology used by the Trust for purposes otating the fa
value of the newly consolidated property to tangibhd intangible assets and liabilities is discdigdeeNote 2. The assets and liabilities were alledaas follows (i

thousands):

Carrying

Value
Buildings and improvemen $ 52,77¢
Intangible assel 10,427
Accounts receivable and prepa 1,35¢
Lease commissior 1,477
Mortgage loans payab (49,09)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit (2,109
Below market lease intangibl (1,00%)
Non-controlling interes (5,179
Fair value opening equi 8,661
Contributed capite 7,84
$ 81¢

Gain on consolidation of proper
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Intangible assets acquired and intangible liabgitassumed consisted of the following (in thousands

Weighted
Average
Carrying Amortization
Value Period (years)
Intangible assett
Above market tenant leases acqui $ 44¢ 11.¢
Tax abatemer 3,93¢ 12.C
In-place lease valu 3,96¢ 11.¢
Tenant relationship valt 2,02 21.¢
Legal and Marketing Fe¢ 50 11.¢
Total $ 10,427 13.¢
Intangible liabilities:
Below market ground lease assun $ 1,00¢ 42.C

The operating results of 450 W 4  Street are ireduith the Trusg results of operations from the initial consolidatdate of November 1, 2011 as presented belo

thousands):
Rents and reimbursemet $ 921
Total expenses (including depreciation, amortizatiad interest (1,057
Net loss (133)
Loss attributable to n«-controlling interes 303
Winthrop Realty Trust net incon $ 17z

Operating Properties-Litigation Settlement

On September 30, 2011 the Trust entered into Eesetht agreement which provided for the dismis§#the lawsuit against CBS Corporation. The settlenpeovided fo
a payment to the Trust of $6,500,000, the conveyaadhe Trust of approximately 148 acres of land the waiver of all ground lease payments by thesfTfor 2011
During the fourth quarter, the Trust recognizedme of $5,868,000 in connection with the settlentemhs.

In connection with the settlement, the Trust alsteeed into a new net lease with Westinghouse EteCompany LLC (“WestinghouseTfpr approximately 57,000 squi
feet of space at the Churchill property. The lehas a term of 12 years and requires annual re®760,000 per year, increasing annually by 3%. \Wighbuse i
responsible for all costs associated with the l@apace and can terminate the lease at any tirethé fifth anniversary by making a terminatiorypant of $4,400,0C
which decreases each year thereafter. The leasgresgthat the Trust make certain improvements atildy upgrades with an anticipated cost of appmuately
$1,000,000. The lease will commence upon complaifdhese improvements.

Under the terms of the settlement agreement, thetgreed to market for sale both the portiorheffroperty leased to Westinghouse and the rengapontion of thi
property. In December 2011 the Trust engaged amltibroker to begin marketing the n@/estinghouse parcel with an auction scheduled farddl 2012. Th
Westinghouse parcel is expected to be marketedgtine fourth quarter of 2012. The Trust has agtequhy CBS 50% of the sales proceeds received fnensale, or
not sold, 50% of the value as determined by the fiidthe property received in each case, in exce$8,500,000.
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The Trust conducted an impairment analysis of ther€hill property at December 31, 2011. As parthe§ analysis, the Trust determined that this prigpshoulc
continue to be classified in continuing operatiah®ecember 31, 2011 as not all the requirementdissontinued operations had been satisfied.

The Trust assessed the property for recoveraliiitsed upon its estimate of undiscounted cash floyected to result from its use and ultimate digjpos The Trus
deemed the carrying value of its investment ndite¢@ecoverable and estimated the fair value optbperty based upon assumptions it believes a rmpsdtécipant woul
utilize. Accordingly, the Trust recorded an impaémt charge in the fourth quarter of $4,600,000.

Operating Properties-Disposition Activities

Properties in Discontinued Operatiorsin August 2011, the Trust sold its Knoxville, Tessee property for net proceeds of $2,151,000 afxegember 2011 the Trt
sold its St. Louis, Missouri property for net preds of $1,290,000. The Trust recognized a net ghi$392,000 on these sales which is included inrésailts o
discontinued operations.

Loans
Loan Asset Acquisition Activities

Magazine Mezzanine LoarOn June 1, 2011 the Trust acquired from Concorbt Bildings LLC (“Concord”for a purchase price of $17,525,000 a $20,000,eaot
mezzanine loan collateralized by a pledge of theitggnterest in six crossellateralized apartment communities, totaling B,1fhits located in Orlando, Saras
Bradenton and Palm Beach Gardens, Florida. Thei®anbordinate to $120,000,000 of senior debtuisently paying interest at the one month LIBORspl23 bas
points and is scheduled to mature on July 9, 20h2.Trust accounts for this investment as a loasivable.

Loan Asset Originations

Hotel Wales—On October 6, 2011 the Trust originated a $20,00®Bortgage loan collateralized by the Hotel Wabested in Manhattan, New York which loan bt
interest at LIBOR plus 4%, with a 3% LIBOR floorg(i a minimum 7% rate on the loan), and maturé3dtober 2013, with a ongear extension right. Subsequently,
Trust issued a $14,000,000 senior participatioBaacord Real Estate CDO-1 Ltd. (“CDO-18) par, which bears interest at LIBOR plus 1.25%hai 3% LIBOR floot
with the Trust retaining a $6,000,000 junior pap@tion which provides for interest payments edoalthe interest payable on the loan less the ampayable on tt
senior participation for an initial rate of 13.4%he Trust accounts for this investment as a $200@@0loan receivable with a $14,000,000 meceurse secured financ
with a pledge of collateral, establishing a liaigifior the portion participated to CDO-1.

Renaissance Walk-On December 12, 2011 the Trust originated a $300@0,mezzanine loan collateralized by the Renaissailalk property comprised of 1
residential rental units, over 30,000 square féatetail space plus structured parking and amenitie 1.6 acres, located in downtown Atlanta, Georghe loan i
subordinate to $4,000,000 of senior debt, beaesast at LIBOR plus 12% with a 2% LIBOR floor, asdscheduled to mature on January 1, 2014. Thet @neounts fc
this investment as a loan receivable.

127 West 25th Street©n October 25, 2011 the Trust committed to mak8,8(,000 subordinate mortgage loan collateralgethe commercial property located at
West 25th Street, Manhattan, New York. The loasuigject to the satisfaction by the borrower ofaertonditions on or prior to the loan funding datéunded, the loa
will mature on October 1, 2014, bear interest @ita equal to the greater of 14% per annum or LIBRR 10%, and require minimum monthly paymentsaétpinteres
as well as possible principal payments. In conoeatiith the entering into of the loan agreemerg, Thust received an origination fee of $90,000. Thest's commitmer
may be extended by the borrower on a monthly bas@igh March 24, 2012 by paying a monthly committnfee of $105,000. The loan, when and if madel bé
subordinate to a first mortgage loan with an owfdirag principal balance expected to be not more #$%b,200,000. The property is net leased to theeBp Residents’
Committee, Inc., a New York not-for-profit corpdmat, which obtains funding from the City of New Yor

29 East Madisor—See details for 29 East Madison loan asset undeestments in Joint VenturesMarc Realty’ below.
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Loan Asset Modifications

San Marbeya Loan Receivable Participation Inter@st-January 14, 2011 the Trust restructured the NMarbeya first mortgage loan to create a $15,150 §1tlo
participation which bears interest at 4.85% andlL®, 844,000 junior participation which bears intér@s6.4% and concurrently issued the senior lcantigpation tc
CDO-1 at par. The Trust accounts for the loan pgidtion as a nonecourse secured financing with a pledge of caltdteestablishing a liability for the porti
participated to CDO-1.

Loan Assets Repaid

Metropolitan Tower—On March 31, 2011 the Trust received repaymenh@efMetropolitan Tower BNote and Rake Bond at par in the amount of $230080,The Trus
acquired the investments on December 16, 20091fby7$0,000.

Siete Square Loan-©n June 9, 2011 the borrower on the Trust's Balticipation B Interest exercised its discountagigif option and repaid the loan for $2,500,(
The loan asset was originally acquired in June Z60$2,460,000.

CDH-CDO LLCOn August 8, 2011 the Trust received final paynmnthe $3,498,000 compliance loan the Trust hadiquely made to CDH CDO LLC (“CDH CDQ;
an entity in which the Trust holds a 33.3% inter&sie outstanding loan plus accrued interest tajadipproximately $3,669,000 was fully repaid.

Beverly Hills Hilton—On September 15, 2011 the Trust's\NBte receivable was paid off at par. The Trust iraxk repayment of $10,000,000 on the loan which
originally acquired on December 9, 2009 for $5,2860,

Moffet Towers—On October 25, 2011 the Trust received payment28{®4,000 plus accrued interest in full satistac®df the Trust’s senior participation in aNBxte
secured by a first mortgage lien on the Moffet Too#ice complex in the amount of $21,558,000 additional advances of $1,476,000 made under timestexf the nott
The B-Note was originally acquired on October 2912

Westwood Business Parkon December 19, 2011 the Trust received full repeaynof $3,646,000 net interest on a first mortglgs secured by four class B off
buildings in Phoenix, Arizona. The first mortgagan was originally purchased on October 29, 2010.

Loan Securities

CDH-CDO LLC—On February 15, 2011, the Trust sold to ConcortitBeinding Trust (“CDFT"a wholly owned subsidiary of CDH CDO and the sajeiy owner o
CDO-1, tranche E bonds with a face amount of $9@Missued by CDQ- In exchange for the bonds, the Trust receivedta in the amount of its original purch
price plus accrued interest. The note plus accintedest totaling approximately $763,000 was repaifilll on April 15, 2011.

Investments in Joint Ventures

Gotham Hotel—Joint Venture Loan AcquisitierOn February 23, 2011 the Trust acquired for $15@2Ba performing $16,303,000 first mortgage setbrea lien on
recently constructed, 2&ory, 66 room limited service boutique hotel l@chin New York, New York through a 50/50 joint verg. The loan earned interest at a ra
9.33%, and matured on May 4, 2011. On May 24, 2B&1ITrust received repayment of $8,638,000 on8t837,000 pro-rata share of the equity investment.

Vintage Housing Holdings LLC InvestmerOn March 8, 2011 the first stage of the Vintagaislng Holdings LLC, (“Vintage”)transaction closed pursuant to which
Trust acquired developer fees and advances redeif@ba purchase price of $7,000,000. On Jun€@4] the Trust closed on the second phase of thay transactic
to acquire for $18,200,000, plus a contributionitefpreviously purchased receivables, an effecti%@ interest in the Vintage venture entitling theust to a 12¢
preferred return from current cash flow. Vintagenswgeneral partnership interests and certain dpeelees and advances receivable from partnergivipsng 2%
multifamily and senior housing properties compigsiepproximately 4,200 units located primarily ire tRacific Northwest and California. The Trust acdsufor its
investment in Vintage using the equity method afoamting.
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During the quarter ended September 30, 2011, thetTnvested an additional $7,000,000 in its Vietagnture. Of this contribution, $4,300,000 wasested for th
venture’s acquisition of nooentrolling general partner interests in sevenhef ¢xisting investments. The remaining $2,700,0@tributed was used by the venture
investment in receivables and three new properties.

WRT-ROIC Lakeside Eagle—Joint Venture Loan Acdprisit On March 22, 2011 the Trust purchased through &06@int venture, two noperforming first mortgac
loans at par for an aggregate price of $35,558,00@. loans were collateralized by two retail cemtecated in Riverside County, California. Both emimatured ¢
April 1, 2010 and were in maturity default. The embore interest at their default rate of 8.92%23% stated note rate plus 4% default rate). Upauiation, the join
venture began foreclosure proceedings. In May 20&T'rust received repayments on the two perferming first mortgage loans totaling $18,650,@® its $18,093,0(
pro-rata share of the equity investment.

Marc Realty—On June 1, 2011 the Trust sold to its partner, Mealty, for $18,544,000 its equity interest inethiproperties in its Marc Realty Portfolio (8 Sc
Michigan, 11 East Adams and 29 East Madison). Tirelase price was paid $6,000,000 in cash and 84260 in aggregate secured promissory notes vedch bee
interest at 8% per annum, require payments ofesteonly and mature on May 31, 2016. The Trustrbasived payments in full satisfaction of its $4%D0 8 Sout
Michigan loan and $2,265,000 11 East Adams loan raedgnized $207,000 in gain related to the fullaggment of the two loans. In addition, Marc Reatipde
$1,369,000 in payments on its 29 East Madison IdarDecember 31, 2011, the 29 East Madison loastantiing balance was $4,000,000 and the Trust bétrec
income in the amount of $166,000 related to this.sa

Sofitel / LW Sofi LLC InvestmeatOn June 2, 2011 the Trust entered into a 50/56t jeénture named LW SOFI LLC (“LW SOFIWith Lexington Realty Tru:
(“Lexington”). The Trust and Lexington each contributed approxétya$5,760,000 to LW SOFI. On June 3, 2011 LW S@éduired from Concord for approximat
$11,520,000, 100% of the economic rights and obbga in a $71,530,000 mezzanine loan collaterdlizg an interest in the Sofitel hotel in New YorkyC The loar
required payments of interest only at a rate of @MBplus 185 basis points and was scheduled to matuiFebruary 1, 2012. The loan was encumbered$s6#90,00
repurchase obligation that bore interest at a kgimterest rate of 1-month LIBOR plus 100 basisfs and was scheduled to mature on December(@2, 2

On October 31, 2011 LW SOFI received $71,530,0Q3 alccrued interest in full satisfaction of the LIS®FI mezzanine loan, the proceeds of which weleedi tc
satisfy the repurchase obligation encumbering diae receivable resulting in net proceeds of $15@X% The Trust received a $7,937,000 distributiom LW-SOFI or
November 2, 2011.

Sealy Northwest Atlanta Loar-On June 23, 2011 the Trust made a $20,641,00@dtmhn to its Sealy Northwest Atlanta joint vestuFhe Truss bridge loan enabl
the joint venture to satisfy its $28,750,000 fibrtgage loan at a discounted payoff amount of X)N00. On September 29, 2011, the joint ventlr@ioec
replacement financing in the amount of $14,000,668ring interest at LIBOR + 5.35% and maturing ept8mber 29, 2015. In connection with the financithg join
venture purchased an interest rate cap which c3p®OR at 1% through October 1, 2013. Net proceedsnfthe new loan plus additional capital contribnsioo
$4,650,000 from the Trust and of $3,100,000 froralpwere utilized to pay off the bridge loan due Wrust.

Southern California Office Portfolio Note-The Trust contributed approximately $71,000,00@ teenture, WRTSocal Lender, which owned an approximate 73% ist
in SoCal Office Portfolio Loan LLC (“Socal Loan'pn November 4, 2011, Socal Loan acquired for almse price of $96,900,000 a $117,900,000ldEe in the
$796,700,000 first mortgage loan encumbering aGi(BID square foot, 31 property portfolio of offipeoperties situated throughout southern Califorfitee CNote
which is the controlling holder of the mortgageripaears interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 310 bpsists, requires payments of interest only andunest on August '
2012. The Trust accounted for its investment ingbboan as an equity investment. See “Note 22-Syles# Events”.

Sullivan Center—On December 23, 2011 the Trust formed a 50/50t jeémture with a subsidiary of Elad Canada Inc.IgtE). The joint venture entered into
agreement to acquire an approximately $145,000,086faulted first mortgage loan which includes defedilinterest, for a purchase price of approximi
$128,500,000. See “Note 22-Subsequent Events”.
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Financing

Newbury Apartments Loan ModificatierOn February 24, 2011 the Trust reached an agreewitinthe first mortgage lender on its Newbury Apaents property 1
repay all past due interest and fees of approximna#853,000, to fund escrows of approximately $88,0to prepay Marck’ debt service inclusive of escrows
approximately $150,000 and to pay a modificatica d& approximately $119,000 (0.5% of the loan be¢dnin exchange the lender waived all defaultéerést, modifie
the payments to interest only and extended thenihatiate to February 1, 2014. Recognition of trewed interest was deferred and was treated asl@ adjustment ov:
the new life of the loan. This loan was subseqyemtinanced in October 2011. (Se&dan Restructure’below.) Upon satisfaction of the loan, the remagriialance ¢
the waived interest was recognized and the trestrded a gain of approximately $844,000.

Plantation, Florida Financing—On March 4, 2011 the Trust financed its Plantatfinrida property with an $11,000,000 first mortgdgan bearing interest at 6.48
and maturing on April 1, 2018. The net proceedapgroximately $10,676,000 were used to partialtisBaa mortgage loan payable on other properties.

Loan Satisfaction—On July 13, 2011 the Trust satisfied the $23,773,f#&t mortgage loan on its wholly owned Lisldjnibis properties for a discounted payofi
$14,500,000 plus reserves held by the lender afcapately $736,000. The Trust recognized a gaithenextinguishment of debt in the amount of $8,6Q@. As part ¢
the restructuring the Trust esaluated its business plan and holding periodstiese properties which resulted in the recognitiérimpairment charges totali
$3,000,000.

Financing—On October 18, 2011 the Trust obtained a $21,000r00rtgage loan secured by Newbury Apartments,@#DCorporetum and 701 Arboretum proper
The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 2.5%, mat@ret®ber 2014, subject to two, ogear extension terms, and requires payments akistenly through the initial ter
and payments of principal and interest based dhear amortization schedule during the extendeddeln connection with the financing, the Trustghased an intere
rate cap which caps LIBOR at 1.0% through Octol8r2D14. The proceeds from the loan, together ajithroximately $3,160,000 of reserves, were useshtisfy the
existing approximately $23,875,000 loan encumbeNewbury Apartments discussed above.
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5. Loans Receivable

The Trust's loans receivable at December 31, 2012810 are as follows (in thousands):

Carrying Amount Contractual
Stated December 31 December 31 Maturity

Description Loan Position Interest Rate 2011 2010 Date
Beverly Hilton B-Note LIBOR +1.74% $ — 3 7,89¢ —
Westwooc Whole Loan 11.00% — 3,50( —
Metropolitan Towel B-Note LIBOR + 1.51% — 10,31: —
Moffett Towers B-Note LIBOR + 6.48% — 21,75 —
Siete Squar B-Note 10.37% — 2,48¢ —
CDH CDO LLC Unsecurec 12.00% — 3,49¢ —
160 Spea B-Note 9.75%(2) 11,55¢ 6,67¢ 06/09/1:
160 Spea Mezzanine 15.00% 4,84¢ 3,02¢ 06/09/1:
Magazine Mezzanine LIBOR + 1.23% 18,80¢ — 07/09/1:
Hotel Wales Whole Loan LIBOR + 4.0%(3 20,10: — 10/05/1%
Renaissance Wa Mezzanine LIBOR + 12.0% 3,00 — 01/01/1«
Legacy Orchard (1 Corporate Loa 15.00% 9,75( 9,75( 10/31/1¢
San Marbey: Whole Loan 5.88% 26,50: 26,96¢ 01/01/1¢
Rockwell Mezzanine 12.00% 27¢ 25E 05/01/1¢
Marc 29 East Madison (: Mezzanine 8.0% 4,02¢ — 05/31/1¢
50C-512 7th Ave B-Note 7.19% 9,97¢ 9,95¢ 07/11/1¢
180 N. Michigan (1. Mezzanine 8.50%(4) 2,93( 1,862 12/31/1¢
Wellington Tower Mezzanine 6.79% 2,56: 2,45¢ 07/11/1°

$ 114330 § 110,39

(1) The Trust determined that certain loans receivabdevariable interests in VIEs primarily based loa fact that the underlying entities do not haviéigant equity at risl
to permit the entity to finance its activities wott additional subordinated financial support. Tiiast does not have the power to direct the a@#wiof the entity thi
most significantly impact the ent’s economic performance and is not required to date the underlying entity

2) Interest on the Bdote equals the difference between (i) interesthenentire outstanding loan principal balance ($98,at December 31, 2011) at a rate of 6.48215¢
annum less (i) interest payable on the outstangimgipal balance of the A note ($35,000 at Decen#i, 2011) at a rate of 9.75% per annum. As @trabe effectiv:
yield on the Tru¢s $3,410 cash investment is 40.¢

) LIBOR rate floor of 3.0%
(4) Represents tenant improvement and capital experditans collateralized by a subordinate mortgageeownership interests in the owner of the ajblie property

The carrying amount of loans receivable includeswed interest of $500,000 and $558,000 at Dece®ihe2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively,cantllative
accretion of $9,914,000 and $9,803,000 at Decer®be?011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. @htevhlue of the Trus$ loans receivable, exclusive of inte
receivable was approximately $123,630,000 and #774000 at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 284@ectively.

At December 31, 2011, the Trust's loan receivahbege accretable discount yet to be recognizedcasrie totaling $8,399,000.
The weighted average coupon on our loans receivadde5.99% and the weighted average yield to nigtwas 12.64%.
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With the exception of the San Marbeya and Hotel@¥#bans receivable, none of the loans receivabléigectly financed. On January 14, 2011, the flirestructured tt
San Marbeya first mortgage loan to create a $150DB0senior participation which bears interest.86% and a $15,744,000 junior participation whigads interest
6.4%. The Trust issued the senior loan participattoCDO4 at par and retained the junior participation. @gtober 7, 2011 the Trust restructured the Hotele@/éirs:
mortgage loan to create a $14,000,000 senior fzation which bears interest at LIBOR + 1.25% watB% LIBOR floor, and a $6,000,000 junior partitipa. The Trus
issued the senior participation to CDO-1 at par etdined the junior participation. The Trust agusufor the senior loan participations as meoeurse secur
financings.

Loan Receivable Activity

Activity related to loans receivable is as follogrs thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Balance at beginning of year $ 110,39¢ $ 26,10:
Purchase and advanc 67,61¢ 122,30:
Proceeds from sa — (12,87¢)
Interest (received) accrued, 1 37 361
Repayment: (70,289 (15,069
Loan accretior 13,40: 8,78:
Discount accretion received in ce (13,29() —
Transfer from loan securitie 662 —
Transfer foreclosed loans to investment in realte — (19,21()
Transfer Marc Realty seller financing from equityéstment: 12,54+ —
Transfer Sealy loan to equity investme (4,650 —
Transfer 450 W 14th St bridge loan to preferredtggovestments (2,027) —
Balance at end of ye $ 11433 $ 110,39!

The following table summarizes the Trust's inte@sd dividend income for the years ended Decembe2@L1, 2010 and 2009 (in thousands):

2011 2010 2009
Interest and dividends dete
Interest on loan asse $ 11,070 $ 5691 $ 2,421
Accretion of loan discour 13,40: 8,782 1,021
Interest and dividends on REIT securit 984 2,65¢ 3,89¢
Total interest and dividenc $ 25,45¢ $ 17,12¢ $ 7,33¢€

Two loans, each of which represents more than 1D%terest income, contributed approximately 48%ndérest income of the Trust for the year endeddb#er 31
2011. Two loans, each of which represents more #@# of interest income, contributed approximatéipo of interest income of the Trust for the yeadex
December 31, 2010.

Credit Quality of Loans Receivable and Loan Losses

The Trust evaluates impairment on its loan pofain an individual basis and has developed a loading system for all of its outstanding loans thia collateralize
directly or indirectly by real estate. Grading ggtges include debt yield, debt service coveragi@,réength of loan, property type, loan type, atber more subjecti
variables that include property or collateral lomat market conditions, industry conditions, andrsgors financial stability. Management reviews each gaitg anc
assigns an overall numeric grade for each loareterthine the loas’risk of loss and to provide a determination aghether an individual loan is impaired or wheth
specific loan loss allowance is necessary. A lognésle of credit quality is determined quarterly.
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All loans with a positive score do not require aridoss allowance. Any loan graded with a neuttate or “zero”is subject to further review of the collectability the
interest and principal based on current condit@and qualitative factors to determine if impairmentvarranted. Any loan with a negative score isnade@ impaired ar
management then would measure the specific impairofeeach loan separately using the fair valuthefcollateral less costs to sell.

Management estimates the loan loss allowance loyleging the estimated fair value less costs tbaehe underlying collateral securing the loarséi on the fair valt
of the underlying collateral, and comparing the failue to the loas net carrying value. If the fair value is lessnthihe net carrying value of the loan, an allowais
created with a corresponding charge to the prowifdo loan losses. The allowance for each loanamtained at a level the Trust believes is adequesbsorb losses.

The table below summarizes the Trust's loans red#é/by internal credit rating at December 31, 20dthousands, except for number of loans).

Carrying
Value of
# of Loans # of Whole # of # of Mezzanine

Internal Credit Quality Loans Receivable Loans Loans Loans B-Notes Loans Loans
Greater than zer 12 $ 114,33 3% 56,35: 2% 21,53¢ 7% 36,44
Equal to zerc — — — — — — — —
Less than zer — — — — — — — —
Subtotal 12 $ 114,33 38 56,352 2% 21,53¢ 7% 36,44

Non Performing Loans

The Trust considers a loan to be non-performinggdades loans on nasecrual status at such time as management detesiiseprobable that it will be unable to coll
all amounts due according to the contractual tesfrthe loan. While on non-accrual status, basethenTrusts judgment as to collectability of principal, loaar® eithe
accounted for on a cash basis, where interest iadsmecognized only upon actual receipt of cashgroa cost-recovery basis, where all cash recegutace a loa’
carrying value. If and when a loan is brought bgt& compliance with its contractual terms, the sknwill resume accrual of interest.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010 there were nopeoforming loans and no past due payments. Thesenwgprovision for loan loss recorded during thargeende
December 31, 2011 and 2010. During the year endmxkmber 31, 2009, the Trust recorded a provisionofn loss of $2,152,000 related to loans in therdvRealt
portfolio.

6. Securities Carried at Fair Value

Securities carried at fair value are summarizetthéntable below (in thousands):

2011 2010
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
REIT Preferred shares $ 2,061 $ 4271 % 15,757 $ 28,547
REIT Common share 21,49: 24,57¢ 3,59( 4,48¢
23,55¢ 28,85¢ 19,341 33,03:
Loan securitie! 1,661 5,30¢ 7,57¢ 11,98

$ 25,22( $ 34,16F $ 26,92: $ 45,01

During the years ended December 31, 2011, 201(2&64, available for sale securities, securitiesi@edrat fair value and loan securities carriedaat falue were sold
paid off for total proceeds of approximately $3%1H0, $33,726,000 and $39,015,000, respectivelie Fross realized gains on these sales and pataiéftec
approximately $123,000, $1,027,000 and $5,416,6@011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. For purposgetérmining gross realized gains, the cost of risesi is base
on specific identification.
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For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 ar@ 208 Trust recognized net unrealized gains orilabla for sale securities, securities carriedaat ¥alue and loe
securities carried at fair value of $5,526,000,,810,000, and $17,862,000 respectively, as thdtrethe change in fair value of the financial etssfor which the fa
value option was elected.

Preferred Equity Investments

During 2011 the Trust made a $1,500,000 loan tWiitsage Housing venture to be used to acquiregthreeral partnership interest in a new housing ptaerrently unde
construction. The Trust receives a priority on ¢lash flow from the new project. The loan bearsregeat 12% with no payments due until there i@ty cash floy
from the property. Income will be recognized oraaltbasis and no income was recognized in 2011.

The Trust recognized earnings from its Marc Repiferred equity investments of $338,000 for ealcthe years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, atsgyg. Fol
the year ended December 31, 2009, the Trust rezedra loss from preferred equity investments o1@&2,000 which included an impairment loss of $4,880. Thes
results reflect the effects of the restructuringtioé preferred equity investment with Marc RealtyJuly 2009. Effective with the third quarter ofG2) 12 of th
investments with Marc Realty were deemed to betgdgvestments for which the Trust began recogigits profata share of income or loss subsequent to Jun208@,
Prior to June 30, 2009, the Trust accounted fasehi? investments as preferred equity investments.
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8. Equity Investments
The Trust’s equity investments consist of the feilog at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 201Ddimsands):

Nominal % Ownership

December 31

December 31

Venture Partner Equity Investment at December 31, 2011 2011 2010
Marc Realty 8 South Michigan LLC N/A  $ — 3 7,081
Marc Realty 11 East Adams Street LL N/A — 3,22:
Marc Realty 29 East Madison Street LL N/A — 7,72(
Marc Realty (1) Michigan 30 LLC 50.(% 10,04¢ 12,08(
Marc Realty (1) Brooks Building LLC 50.(% 7,67¢ 7,452
Marc Realty (1 High Point Plaza LLC 50.(% 2,441 6,27¢
Marc Realty (1 Salt Creek LLC 50.(% — 2,344
Marc Realty (1 1701 Woodfield LLC 50.(% 2,047 4,221
Marc Realty (1 River Road LLC 50.(% 1,00C 4,12:
Marc Realty (1 3701 Algonquin Road LL( 50.(% 25C 2,931
Marc Realty (1 Enterprise Center LL( 50.(% 2,67¢ 3,01¢
Marc Realty (1) 900 Ridgebrook LLC 50.(% 1,00 1,67¢
Sealy (1) Northwest Atlanta Partners L 60.(% 8,531 2,47¢
Sealy (1) Newmarket GP LLC 68.(% 2,811 6,647
Sealy (1) Airpark Nashville GF 50.(% — 2,77¢
Inland/Lexingtor Concord Debt Holdings LL( 33.2% — —
Inland/Lexingtor CDH CDO LLC 33.2% — —
ROIC (1) WRT-ROIC Riverside LLC 50.(% 7,88: 7,88:
ROIC WRT-ROIC Lakeside Eagle LL 50.(% 7 —
Atrium Holding RE CDO Management LL! 50.(% 1,29¢ —
Lexington LW-SOFI LLC 50.(% — —
VHH LLC (1) Vintage Housing LLC 75.(% 29,88’ —
Broadway Partnel Fll Co-Invest LLC 27.% 1,80( —
New Valley (1) Socal Office Portfolio Loan LL( 73.(% 72,62¢

Elad Canada Lt Sullivan Cente 50.(% 10,15( —

$ 162,14: $ 81,93

(1) The Trust has determined that these equity invesnare investments in VIEs. The Trust has detezthihat it is not the primary beneficiary of thad&s since th
Trust does not have the power to direct the a@iwithat most significantly impact the VIEs econompérformance
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The following table reflects the activity of theuBt's equity investments for the year ended Decer@bge2011 (in thousands):

Balance at Equity Balance at
December 31, Income December
Investment 2010 Contributions (loss) Distributions Sales 31,2011
Marc Realty $ 62,15( $ 2,44C $ (16,740 $ (2,540 $ (18,159 $ 27,14¢
Sealy 11,90¢ 4,65( (4,95¢€) (250) — 11,34¢
Concord Debt Holding — — 3,47¢ (3,479 — —
CDH CDO — — 48C (480C) — —
WRT-ROIC Riverside 7,88: — 93€ (93€) — 7,88:
WRT-ROIC Lakeside Eagl — 18,09: 664 (18,750 — 7
WRT-46th Street Gothat — 8,031 621 (8,65¢) — —
SoCal Office Portfolio Loal — 72,35¢ 272 — — 72,62¢
RE CDO Managemet — 1,25(C 46 — — 1,29¢
LW-SOFI — 5,76( 2,171 (7,93%) — —
Vintage Housing — 31,33t 113 (1,567) — 29,88’
FlIl Co-invest — 1,80( — — — 1,80(
Sullivan Cente — 10,15( — — — 10,15(
Total $ 81,937 $ 15586¢ $ (12,919 $ (44,58¢) $ (18,159 $ 162,14.
The following table reflects the activity of theuBt's equity investments for the year ended Decer@bg2010 (in thousands):
Balance at Equity Balance at
December 31, Income Return of December
Investment 2009 Contributions (loss) Distributions Capital 31, 201C
Marc Realty $ 57,56( $ 6,961 $ 1,77¢ $ (4,147 $ — 8 62,15(
Sealy 15,647 — (3,010 (733) — 11,90¢
Concord Debt Holding — — — — — —
CDH CDO — — — — — —
WRT-ROIC Riverside — 7,80(C 473 (390) — 7,88:
PSW NYC — 10,87: (1,24¢6) — (9,625 —
Total $ 73,200 $ 2563 $ (2,007 $ (5,270 $ (9,625 $ 81,93
Marc Realty

On June 1, 2011 the Trust sold its equity inteiresfiree properties to Marc Realty (8 South Michighl East Adams and 29 East Madison) for $18,204,0he purchat
price was paid $6,000,000 in cash and $12,544 0G@gregate secured promissory notes. The Trustelcassed payments in full satisfaction of its #9900 8 Sout
Michigan loan and $2,265,000 11 East Adams loaadidition, Marc Realty made $1,369,000 in paymentis 29 East Madison loan. At December 31, 2614 29 Ea:

Madison loan had an outstanding balance of $4,000,0

During the fourth quarter of 2011, the Trust deteled, based upon projected 2012 operating resualisraquired capital improvements in the properteesurthe
evaluation of the potential impairment of its intreent would be appropriate. The Trust recently exteénto an agreement with Marc Realty concerningstiture o
certain of the assets. As a result, the Trust keéerichined that an impairment charge totaling $14J®0 were to be recorded in the fourth quarte2Qdfl.
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Of the properties in which the Trust held an equntgrest at December 31, 2011, two downtown Clugagperties contain approximately 389,000 rentahleare feet «
the aggregate Marc Realty portfolio and accounted$fl7,728,000 of the TrustDecember 31, 2011 carrying value. These two ptiegehad occupancy of 79.1%
December 31, 2011, compared to 77.1% occupancgedmber 31, 2010.

The balance of the portfolio, located in the Chwagburbs, represents $9,417,000 of the Tsudgcember 31, 2011 carrying value, contains apmately 1,018,00
square feet and was 78.2% occupied at Decemb&031, compared to 80.9% occupied at December 31.201

At December 31, 2011 the Marc Realty propertiesem@imbered with $59,159,000 of mortgage debt, $8/789,000 of mortgage debt maturing in 2012, $26,00(
maturing in 2013 and the remainder in 2014 or later

The Trust recorded net loss of $16,746,000, inckusif impairment charges, for the year ended Deeerdb, 2011 and income of $1,776,000 for the yewmtee
December 31, 2010. Additionally, the Trust receieadh distributions of $2,540,000 and $4,147,00fhfthe investments during the years ended Dece8iher011 an
2010, respectively.

Northwest Atlanta Partners LP

The Trust owns, through a venture with Sealy, a &@¥bcontrolling ownership interest in 12 flex propestie Atlanta, Georgia containing an aggregate @,@d0 squai
feet of space. The Trust invested approximateldB5000 and the general partner, an affiliate @flysenvested approximately $3,647,000 for theifeterest in th
venture. The venture obtained a first mortgage ia$28,750,000 bearing interest at 5.7%. In Noven#D10, the venture elected to stop making debicgepayment
and the loan was placed into special servicing.

In June 2011 the Trust made a $20,641,000 bridae to the venture. The bridge loan enabled theuvertb satisfy its first mortgage loan at a disdedrpayoff amoui
of $20,500,000. As a result of the discounted paybé venture recognized gain on extinguishmerdeift of approximately $9,170,000, inclusive ofraed interest ar
penalities totaling $2,410,000, of which the Trasthare was $5,502,000.

In September 2011 the venture obtained replacefirentcing in the amount of $14,000,000, bearingriest at LIBOR + 5.35% and maturing on SeptembeR@95. Ir
connection with the financing, the venture purcklese interest rate cap which caps LIBOR at 1% thinoQctober 1, 2013. Net proceeds from the new pdas additione
capital contributions of $4,650,000 from the Trastl $3,100,000 from Sealy were used to pay offftlust’s bridge loan.

Newmarket GP LLC

The Trust acquired, through a venture with Seal§8% non-controlling ownership interest in a siilding office-flex campus containing approximately 470,000 so
feet in Atlanta, Georgia. The purchase price fer phoperty was $47,000,000 including assumed détet.venture assumed an existing $37,000,000, 6firg8¢nortgag:
loan encumbering the property, maturing in Noven2g6.

In November 2010, the venture elected to stop nalliebt service payments and the loan has beendpiattespecial servicing. The venture is attemptmgegotiate
restructuring of the debt with the special serviterddition, the venture continues to aggresgivedrket available space at the property for le@ikere are no assuran
that a restructuring or discounted repayment ofitttat will be accomplished.

Airpark Nashville GP

The Trust acquired through a venture with Seal§0% noneontrolling ownership interest in 13 light distrtmn and service center properties in Nashvilleniesse«
The purchase price of $87,200,000 was financedugircapproximately $65,383,000 of proceeds, netsofavs and closing costs from a $74,000,000 5.7ir&t
mortgage loan maturing in May 2012. Both Sealy #vedTrust contributed $9,308,000 for their 50% omshé in the venture. The Trust is seeking an esttenof the firs
mortgage loan as well as other concessions frorfetider.
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Sealy Impairments

During 2011 the Trust determined that, as a restiturrent market conditions, including current mgancy levels, current rental rates and an incréagermina
capitalization rates, the fair value of its equityestments in Sealy were below the carrying valdesordingly, the Trust assessed whether thisidedh value was other-
thantemporary. In making this determination, the Trestisidered the length of time which the decline de=urred, the length of time before an expectedvery ani
the lack of any comparables in the market. The flaegermined the fair value of its investmentsizitig an unleveraged cash flow methodology andstimated termin:
capitalization rate. The cash flows were then disted using an estimated market rate. Based oifiotlegoing, all of which requires significant judgmiethe Trus
concluded that the declines in value were othen-teanporary, and during 2011 the Trust recordeérethantemporary impairment charges of $2,900,000, $9@drd
$1,494,000 on its investments in Sealy Northwe&iria, Sealy Newmarket, and Sealy Nashville, respsy.

The Trust has determined that the fair value ofaterof its equity investments each marginally edtéheir carrying values. While the ventures cargito aggressive
market available space for lease and work withtexjgenants for lease renewal, declines in occapaould cause impairment of these ventures thaliddoe material t
the Trusts’s future results of operations.

Lex-Win Concord LLC {Lex-Win") and Concord Reorganization

On August 26, 2010 the Trust finalized a settlemamteement which triggered simultaneous transasttbat changed the organizational structure, ecarsnant
governance of the Trust’s equity investment in Mg and Lex-Wins wholly owned subsidiary Concord. The settlemgneement was implemented to resolve a
action against Concord filed in May 2009 by a wir@ivned subsidiary of Inland American Real EstatasT, Inc. (“Inland”), a member in Concord.

As a result of the reorganization, L¥in was dissolved and transferred 100% of its ggerin Concord to its members, the Trust and LerimgRealty Trus
(“Lexington”). The underlying business assets @& tbrmer LexWin were separated into two distinct legal invesitmentities with identical ownership structures e#
are the reorganized Concord and a newly formedyet@DH CDO. The Trust now holds 33.3% common menilierests in each joint venture together with ibgkon
and Inland.

Terms of the reorganization included a subsididroncord selling 100% of the stock of CDFT to tiewly formed CDH CDO for $9,500,000. The consideratvas
funded by Inlands initial capital contribution to CDH CDO and wased by the subsidiary to partially repay its lesddihere was no financial statement impact tc
Trust as a result of the reorganization sincenhestment had been written down to zero as of 30n2009.

During the year ended December 31, 2011 the Teeglived cash distributions from Concord Debt HadiLC of $3,474,000. The Trust recognized equityoime fo
the full amount of the distributions. The Concordldd Holdings LLC balance sheet consisted of tatakts of $27,394,000 and $126,463,000 at Decenihe@031 an
2010, respectively, and total liabilities of $15m)0and $99,321,000 at December 31, 2011 and 2634pectively.

The Trust has suspended losses of $52,656,000stet @igainst future equity income from Concord at@nber 31, 2011.
Concord CD@L1 Litigation

In January 2010, CDFT submitted for cancellatiortaie bonds issued by CDO-1 and held by CDFT. Thst¢e for CDO-1 refused to cancel such bonds dp@-C
brought an action in the Delaware Court of Chansesking declaratory relief that such bonds shbeldancelled and no longer remain outstanding. iRgritle courts
decision, the trustee escrowed all payments onuatanf the bonds and distributions payable to C#fém CDO-1's assets. In addition, the trustee also escrowg
principal payments that could otherwise have besador reinvestment by CDOfor additional or replacement assets. In May 2@#0Delaware Court of Chanci
issued a ruling that the bonds submitted for cdatieh should be deemed no longer outstanding #fedanuary 2010. The trustee appealed the raivtyon March «
2011, the Delaware Supreme Court affirmed the DatevCourt of Chancerg’ruling that the bonds submitted for cancellagbould be deemed no longer outstan
effective January 2010. As a result, the trustésased the funds held in escrow thereby enablin®@Do make all current and past due payments aeilit®ining bonc
as well as to pay distributions. The Trust receigistributions of $480,000 from CDH CDO for the yemded December 31, 2011.
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Vintage Housing Holdings

In relation to its investment in Vintage Housingl#ings, the Trust has elected a one-month lag defibe lag period is allowed under the provisioh&8C 81010 anc
is necessary in order for the Trust to consistentBet its regulatory filing deadlines. The Vintageusing joint venture consolidated balance sheasists of asse
totaling $339,153,000, liabilities including mortganotes payable of $287,996,000, and non-comntgpifiterest of $13,780,000 as of November 30, 2011.

In March 2011 the Trust acquired developer fees a@hnces receivable owed by real estate partpsrsbr a purchase price of $7,000,000 in the fitage of th
Vintage Housing Holdings transaction. In June 201l Trust closed on the second phase of the Virtagwsaction to acquire for $18,200,000, plus ardmution of its
previously purchased receivables, an effective T@®¥rest in the Vintage venture entitling us to2%lpreferred return from current cash flow. Vintagens gener:
partnership interests and certain developer fedsaaiwvances receivable from partnerships owning R8ifamily and senior housing properties compris#id67 unit
located primarily in the Pacific Northwest and @ainia.

The Trust has made additional investments in theagie platform during the third and fourth quade2011, making contributions to the venture togl$7,510,000. Tt
venture’'s new investments included a $1,500,00Cribnrion to a planned 231 unit multi-family profeim Tacoma, Washington, a $4,300,000 acquisitibman-
controlling partner interests in seven of the emgVintage investments and $1,710,000 toward @&lmse agreement to acquire 75% interests in therglepartners «
two multifamily properties comprising approximat@90 units located in California and Nevada.

New Joint Venture Investments

The Trust has made significant new investmentsndutiie quarter ended December 31, 2011 in SoCateOFfortfolio Loan and Sullivan Center that are discuss¢
detail in Note 4.

Separate Financial Statements for Unconsolidatédi8iaries

The Trust has determined that for the periods pitesein the Truss financial statements, certain of its unconsoéidatubsidiaries have met the conditions of a St
subsidiary under Rule 1-02(w) of Regulation S-X fahnich the Trust is required, pursuant to Rule 3e®@®Regulation SX, to attach separate financial statemen
exhibits to its Annual Report on Form 10-K as fal

Year(s) determinec

Entity significant Exhibit
Lex-Win Concord LLC 200¢ 99.1
Concord Debt Holdings LL( 2011 99.2
Sealy Northwest Atlanta Partners 2011 99.2
Sealy Newmarket General Partners 2011 99.4
9. Debt

Mortgage Loans Payable

The Trust had outstanding mortgage loans payab280,940,000 and $230,443,000 at December 31, 26#12010, respectively. The mortgage loan paymei
principal and interest are generally due monthligreerly or semi-annually and are collateralizedapplicable real estate of the Trust.
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The Trust's mortgage loans payable at Decembe2@11 and 2010 are summarized as follows (in thalsan

Interest Rate at

Spread Over December December 31 December 31
Location of Collateral Maturity LIBOR/Prime 31, 2011 2011 2010
Andover, MA — — N/A $ — 3 6,13t
S. Burlington, VT — — N/A — 2,62¢
Various — — N/A — 19,00:
Lisle, IL — — N/A — 23,90¢
Meriden, CT — — N/A — 23,87t
Chicago, IL (1) Apr 201: — 6.25% 8,90( 9,10(
Amherst, NY Oct 201< — 5.65% 15,68: 16,11¢
Meriden, CT & Lisle, IL Oct 201+  Libor + 2.5% (2) 2. 7% 21,00(¢ —
Indianapolis, IN Apr 201t — 5.82% 4,16¢ 4,24~
Chicago, IL Mar 201¢ — 5.75% 20,52: 20,82¢
Houston, TX Apr 201¢ — 6.2€% 56,42 60,35:
New York, NY May 201¢  Libor + 2.5% (3) 3.5(% 49,58¢ —
Lisle, IL Mar 2017 — 5.55% 5,60( 5,60(
Orlando, FL Jul 201° — 6.4(% 38,13: 38,657
Plantation, FL Apr 201¢ — 6.4% 10,927 —

$ 230,94( $ 230,44

(1) The Trust is currently negotiating with the lenétara three year extension to April 28, 20
(2)  Theloan has an interest rate cap which caps aDRBt 1%.
(3) Theloan has a LIBOR floor of 19

The following table summarizes future principalagments as of December 31, 2011 (in thousands):

Year Amount
2012 $ 14,85«
2013 21,30%
2014 27,68(
2015 11,14«
2016 105,54!
Thereaftel 50,41(
$ 230,94

The fair value of the Trust’mortgage loans payable and revolving line of iti@® less than their current carrying value b2,604,000 and $22,042,000 at Decembe
2011 and 2010 respectively.

Non-Recourse Secured Financings

In January 2011 the Trust restructured the San &jartirst mortgage loan receivable into a seniat janior participation and transferred the seniartipipation at pa
For financial reporting purposes, the transferhef financial asset is accounted for as a financatiger than a sale. As of December 31, 2011, timer@oourse secur
financing has a carrying value of $15,150,000, bé&sterest at a rate of 4.85% and matures on Jaiy&015.

In October 2011, the Trust restructured the Hotel&¥ first mortgage loan receivable into a seniat janior participation and transferred the semparticipation at pa
For financial reporting purposes, the transferhef financial asset is accounted for as a financatiger than a sale. As of December 31, 2011, timer@oourse secur
financing has a carrying value of $14,000,000, $é&sterest at a rate of LIBOR plus 1.25% with a OB floor of 3.0% and matures on October 6, 2013.
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10.

11.

Type
Cap

Revolving Line of Credit

The Trust has a revolving line of credit in thengipal amount of $50,000,000 which bears interesIBOR plus 3% and has a maturity date of MarcR@®l4 with a on
year option to extend the maturity date to MarcB@&15. The Trust must comply with financial covetsaon an ongoing basis. The covenants are testefithe end ¢
each quarter based upon results for the most fdgcentled quarter. The Trust was in compliance sffihancial covenants under its revolving line oédit as o
December 31, 2011.

The revolving credit line is recourse and as sgofffiectively collateralized by all of the Trus@ssets. The Trust has directly pledged certaémeumbered consolidat
operating properties and loans receivable as thWwng base for the revolving line of credit. Thevolving credit line requires monthly paymentsraérest only. To tF
extent that the amounts outstanding under theitiacite in excess of the borrowing base (as caled)athe Trust is required to make a principalrpagt to reduce su
excess. The Trust may prepay from time to time eithpremium or penalty and re-borrow amounts piepai

The outstanding balance under the facility was 3®@,000 and $25,450,000 at December 31, 2011 ab@, 28spectively. The Trust is required to pay meament fe:
on the unused portion of the line, which amountedpproximately $119,000 and $56,000 for years @fseEcember 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Trust has exposure to fluctuations in markegtrest rates. The Trust seeks to limit its risknterest rate fluctuations through match finanaimgits assets as well
through hedging transactions. Specifically, thesTenters into derivative financial instruments.

The Trusts objective in using interest rate derivativesoisatld stability to interest expense and to manegexiposure to interest rate movements. To accempis
objective, the Trust uses interest rate swaps riedest rate caps and floors as part of its inteegs risk management strategy. Interest rate swlapignated as cash fl
hedges involve the receipt of variable rate amofnus a counterparty in exchange for the Trust mgkixed+ate payments over the life of the agreements wt
exchange of the underlying notional amount. Interat® cap and floor agreements limit future vtitgtin interest expense.

For all interest rate hedges, the effective portbchanges in fair value of the hedge designatetithat qualifies as a cash flow hedge is recordextcumulated oth
comprehensive income and is subsequently recledsifito earnings in the period that the hedgedcsted transaction affects earnings. The Trust adsesses a
documents, both at the hedging instruments inceial on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatisgument is highly effective in achieving offsetichanges in tt
cash flows attributable to the hedged item. ThesThas recorded changes in fair value relatede@ffective portion of its interest rate hedgesgtested and qualifyir
as cash flow hedges totaling ($29,000) and $22¢0@her comprehensive (income) loss for the yeaded December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively casponent
comprehensive income.

The table below presents information about the flIsw@erivative financial instruments at Decembey 3111 (dollars in thousands):

Estimated Fair \?:Iﬁgggnig
Value of Cap Included in Other
in Other Comprehensive Incom
Notional Cost Comprehensive
Strike Amount of For the Year Ended
Maturity Rate of Hedge Hedge Income December 31, 2011
October 201 1.0(% $ 21,00 $ 174 $ 85 $ (89)
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The table below presents information about the figusterest rate swap as of and for the year efdszember 31, 2010 (dollars in thousands):

Estimated Fair Change in Hedge
Value of Hedge Valuations
Included in Other
in Other Comprehensive Incom
Notional Cost Comprehensive
Swap Amount of For the Year Ended
Type Maturity Rate of Hedge Hedge Income December 31, 2010
Swap June 201 0.92%%  20,000(1) $ — 3 63) $ (63
Swap June 201 1.05% 23,00( — — 85

(1) Represents swap agreements related to the KeyBaank
12.  Common Shares

The following table sets forth information relatitgysales of Common Shares during the years endedrber 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011:

Number of Price
Shares per

Date of Issuance Issued Share Type of Offering
January 15, 2009 61,29: $ 10.8¢  DRIP (1)
April 15, 2009 7,462 % 8.27 DRIP
July 15, 200¢ 37,98: % 8.7z DRIP
October 15, 200 63,47: $ 8.9¢ DRIP
November 27, 200 4,450,78  $ 9.0t  Rights Offering (2
January 15, 201 47,388 $ 12.7: DRIP
April 15, 2010 44,18: % 13.7¢ DRIP
July 15, 201( 50,43¢ $ 12.1¢ DRIP
September 27, 201 5,750,000 $ 12.25(3) Public Offering
October 15, 201 48,39¢ $ 12.5: DRIP
January 15, 201 58,16. $ 11.7C DRIP
April 6, 2011 5,750,000 $ 11.25(3) Public Offering
April 15, 2011 59,207 $ 11.6¢ DRIP
July 15, 2011 61,22: $ 11.3¢ DRIP
October 17, 201 82,25¢ $ 8.4¢ DRIP

(1) The Trus's Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase |

2) Rights offering pursuant to which each holdéiCommon Shares and Series B-1 Preferred Sharesvegcone basic subscription right for every thaeel onehalf
Common Shares owned, or in the case of Series Efeffed Shares, one basic subscription right feryethree and onkalf Common Shares issuable upon conversi
such Series -1 Preferred Share

(3) Before underwriting discout
13.  Common Share Options

In May 2007 the Trust's shareholders approved thetiviop Realty Trust 2007 Long Term Incentive P(dre “2007 Plan”pursuant to which the Trust can issue opi
to acquire Common Shares and restricted share aw@iits Trustees, directors and consultants. Taerel00,000 Common Shares reserved for issuartsy time 200
Plan and as of December 31, 2011, no stock optionsstricted stock awards have been issued.
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In December 2003 the Board of Trustees grantedd®0otions under a Long Term Incentive PerformdPles to a Trustee who was Interim Chief Executivéc@r anc
Interim Chief Financial Officer. The options have exercise price of $11.15 and expire on DecemBef013, no options have been exercised. There nerethe
options granted, cancelled or expired and in M&@05 the plan terminated.

14. Discontinued Operations

The Trusts properties in Athens, Georgia; Lafayette, LouigjaKansas City, Kansas; St. Louis, Missouri; Kribgy Tennessee; and Sherman, Texas are classif
discontinued operations.

In October 2009 a tenant of the Trust's retail leesed properties, The Kroger Company (“KrogenQtified the Trust of its intention not to exercise lease renew
options on six buildings containing approximate81200 square feet of retail space. Concurrenttpgkr also notified the Trust that it would be ek&ng its option t
purchase one of these six properties, the Atheesrdia property, resulting in the Trust classifyithgt property in discontinued operations effectivigh the fourtt
quarter of 2009. Upon receipt of the notice, manag@ actively marketed the remaining locationdéase or sale.

The Lafayette, Louisiana and Sherman, Texas lotsiticere classified as discontinued operations &epfember 30, 2010. During the quarter ended Bdgate30, 201(
management determined that the potential markés reare not sufficient to cover prospective groleake payments plus the costs to convert thesesgirep to multi-
tenant facilities. Therefore the Trust decided éonuit the ownership of the Sherman, Texas and ledfayLouisiana properties to revert back to threllawners as
November 1, 2010. The Trust recorded a $704,00(imment charge related to these investments wrdcimdluded in discontinued operations for the yeadet
December 31, 2010.

The Knoxville, Tennessee location was classifieddssontinued operations as of September 30, 2D10ing the quarter ended September 30, 2010, mamnag
determined that after having exercised its purclogsi®n under its ground lease and acquiring thd la October 2010 the best course of action wasiteue a sale of t
real estate. As a result, the Trust recorded a $6R6impairment charge which is included in disemred operations for the year ended December 310.20 Augus
2011 the Trust sold its Knoxville, Tennessee priypir net proceeds of $2,151,000.

With respect to Kroges' purchase of the Athens, Georgia property, in@zwe with a three party agreement between thst,TKuoger and the land owner, an appri
process was conducted to determine the fair maedae of the property. As a result of the finaliaatof the appraisal process, the Trust recordeidnpairment charge
$1,390,000 during the year ended December 31, 2010.

In January 2011 the Trust classified the St. LoMissouri property into discontinued operationsFebruary 2011 the Trust entered into an agreetoesll this propert
In December 2011 the Trust sold its St. Louis, Missproperty for net proceeds of $1,485,000.

In August 2009 the First District Court of Wyando@ounty, Kansas, appointed a receiver to operatev@nage the Trustapartment complex in Kansas City, Kal
commonly referred to as Creekwood Apartments. Itoer 2009 a notice of foreclosure was issued ¢ralbef the first mortgage holder. The property i@®closed i
December 2009.

Results for discontinued operations for the yeaded December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 are as f®lliovthousands):

2011 2010 2009
Revenues $ 26 % 1,082 $ 2,73t
Gain on sale of investments in real es 39z — —
Operating expense (227) (209) (70€)
Depreciation and amortizatic 2 (155) (53¢€)
Impairment los: — (2,720 —
Interest expens — — (467)
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic $ 42t $ (1,909 $ 1,02¢
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15.

2011
2010

2011

Federal and State Income Taxe

The Trust has made no provision for regular curcerdeferred federal income taxes and no defettiatd sncome taxes have been provided for on this blzat the Tru:
operates in a manner intended to enable it to woatio qualify as a real estate investment trudeuections 85860 of the Code. In order to qualify as a REIT, Ties!
is generally required each year to distribute $ostiareholders at least 90% of its taxable incemelding any net capital gain). The Trust intetmlgomply with thi
foregoing minimum dividend requirements. As of Dmber 31, 2011, the Trust has net operating logyfecawards of approximately $932,000 which will ésein 2023
The Trust does expect to utilize approximately $28,000 of net operating loss carryforwards toeif2011 taxable income. The Trust treats certaimstof income ar
expense differently in determining net income régaffor financial and tax purposes.

The Trusts capital loss carryforwards of $45,508,000 areawaiilable in certain states and localities whéee Trust has an obligation to pay income taxesddition
certain states and localities disallow state incéaxes as a deduction and exclude interest incoome f/nited States obligations when calculating td&ancome. Feder
and state tax calculations can differ due to difig@recognition of net operating losses. Accordinghe Trust has recorded, $379,000, $134,000 46d,900 in state al
local taxes for the years ended December 31, 220100 and 2009, respectively.

The 2011, 2010 and 2009 cash dividends per Seriefferred Share for an individual shareholdexteme tax purposes were as follows:

Total
Capital Gains Nontaxable Dividends
Ordinary Dividends 15% Rate Distribution Paid
$ 1.3C $ — $ — 8 1.3C
2.0¢ — — 1.2Z
1.22Z — — 1.65
The 2011 and 2010 cash dividends per Series CriRedf8hare for an individual shareholder’s incomepurposes were as follows:
Total
Capital Gains Nontaxable Dividends
Ordinary Dividends 15% Rate Distribution Paid
$ 1.3C $ — % — 8 1.3C
2.0z — — 2.0z
The 2011 cash dividends per Series D PreferredeSbaan individual shareholder’s income tax pugsosere as follows:
Total
Capital Gains Nontaxable Dividends
Ordinary Dividends 15% Rate Distribution Paid
$ 021 $ — 3 — 3 0.21
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The 2011, 2010 and 2009 cash dividends per ComrhareSor an individual shareholder’s income taxposes were as follows:

Total
Ordinary Capital Gains Nontaxable Dividends
Dividends 15% Rate Distribution Paid
2011 0.6t $ — — 3 0.6&
2010 0.6% — — 0.6%
2009 0.6& — 0.1C 0.7t
The following table reconciles GAAP net incomeiatitable to the Trust to taxable income (in thowsan
For the Years Ended December 3]
2011 2010 2009
Net income(loss) attributable to Winthrop Realtyst $ 10,93¢ $ 16,477 $ (84,34)
Book/Tax differences from depreciation and amotitraexpenst 4,58¢ 18¢ 1,517
Book/Tax differences of accretion of discol (13,407 (8,782) (1,02))
Book/Tax differences of unrealized ga (2,789 (20,080) (18,53()
Book/Tax differences on gains/losses from capitaigaction: (5,847) 1,65t 1,532
Book/Tax differences on Preferred She 1,42¢ 1,56: (4,386
Book/Tax differences for impairment loss 7,60( 2,72C 19,10¢
Book/Tax differences on investments in unconsodidgoint venture: 31,63« 15,66: 95,83:
Other book/tax differences, n (76€) (139 607
Book/Tax differences on dividend incor (377) 93 1,642
Book/Tax differences of market discot 13,25( — —
Taxable income $ 46,26F $ 1936: $  11,94f
16. Commitments and Contingencies
The Trust is involved from time to time in litigati on various matters, including disputes with téa@nd disputes arising out of agreements to agechr sell propertie
Given the nature of the Trustbusiness activities, these lawsuits are consideyetine to the conduct of its business. The teslany particular lawsuit cannot
predicted because of the very nature of litigatitwe, litigation process and its adversarial natargl the jury system. The Trust does not expettthiealiabilities, if any
that may ultimately result from such legal action have a material adverse effect on its finahc@ndition or results of operations.
In addition to the initial purchase price of cemtéddans and operating properties, the Trust hasgdutunding commitments which total approximatel4$61,000 ¢
December 31, 2011. The Trust also has ground le@senitments of $1,228,000, $1,282,000, $1,405,80(463,000 and $112,667,000 for the years endeerDieer 31
2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and thereafter, respectively
In 2011 the Trust was conveyed title to the landeaulying the Churchill, Pennsylvania property. Ptio the conveyance of the land, a Phase Il enmiental study we
performed. The study found that there were certaimaminants at the property all of which were withermitted ranges. In addition, given the natamel use of tF
property currently and in the past, it is possibi additional contamination could occur which ldoequire remediation. The Trust believes thatbasn applicable la
and existing agreements any such remediation easi&l be the responsibility of a prior owner ordah
17. Relatec-Party Transactions

FUR Advisors

The activities of the Trust are administered by FA&isors LLC (“FUR Advisors”)pursuant to the terms of the Advisory Agreemeniveen the Trust and FL
Advisors. FUR Advisors is controlled by and pafyiabwned by the executive officers of the Trustrduant to the terms of the Advisory Agreement, FARisors it
responsible for providing asset management sentweke Trust and coordinating with the Trgsthareholder transfer agent and property manageiR. Advisors i
entitled to receive a base management fee andcantine fee in accordance with the terms of theigaly Agreement. In addition, FUR Advisors or ifilate is alsc
entitled to receive property and construction managnt fees subject to the approval of the indep@nbeistees of the Trust.
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The following table sets forth the fees and reingleaments paid by the Trust for the years ended DieeeB1, 2011, 2010 and 2009 to FUR Advisors andthivtig
Management (in thousands):

For the Years Ended
December 31, 201  December 31, 201 December 31, 20C

Base Asset Management F $ 7,690 $ 522t $ 3,23¢
WRP Sul-Management LLC Cred — (129 (255)
Property Management F 537 24¢ 262
Construction Management F 1 24 38

$ 8,22¢ $ 5,36¢ $ 3,27¢

Base Asset Management Fee

Effective January 1, 2010, the Advisory Agreemeas\amended so that the determination of the issuamee of Common Shares reverted back to thepe8 definitior
such that the quarterly fee is to be calculatedhenactual issuance price of Common Shares insteadixed price for Common Shares issued prioddouary 1, 200
Additionally, FUR Advisors receives a fee equalt@a5% of any equity contribution by an unaffiliatéard party to a venture managed by the Trust. flamagement f
paid by the Trust for third party equity contritnris amounted to $49,000 for the year ended Dece8ihet011. There was no fee for third party equidmptributions il
2010 and 2009.

Incentive Fee

The incentive fee entitles FUR Advisors to recdi@pan amount equal to 20% of all dividends paiti¢oeficiaries of Common Shares after Decembe2@03 in exces
of the Threshold Amount, hereinafter defined, gbdl,upon the termination of the Advisory Agreemeart,amount equal to 20% of the “liquidation val@é’the Trust il
excess of the Threshold Amount at the terminatiate dAs defined in the Advisory Agreement, the Bhad Amount is equal to (x) $71,300,000, increasgdhe ne
issuance price of all Common Shares, with an adjest for Preferred Shares converted, issued aféeember 31, 2003, and decreased by the redempiin gf al
Common Shares redeemed after December 31, 2008,(pl& return on the amount, as adjusted, sel fort(x) equal to 7% per annum compounded annudlhe
incentive fee is reduced by any direct damagebedtust if the Advisory Agreement is terminatedthg Trust for cause.

If the Advisory Agreement were terminated, the attocentive fee payable would be based on an &gmavaluation or the liquidation proceeds receif@dhe Trusts
assets, which may be substantially in excess omheunt calculated based on the market price o€thramon Shares.

Winthrop Management

Winthrop Management, an affiliate of FUR Advisoralahe Trust executive officers, assumed property managenespbnsibilities for various properties owned by
Trust pursuant to the terms of individual propertgnagement agreement.
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Credits

WRP Sub-Management LLC (“WRP Sub-Management”), féiliade of FUR Advisors provided accounting, caaal management and loan brokerage services to-CDO
and its subsidiaries. WRP Stanagement received reimbursement of direct antleicdexpenses totaling $716,000 and $1,108,00@h@ryears ended December
2010 and 2009, respectively, in accordance withtiéhms of the agreement. Of these amounts, $259z0@D$511,000 were paid to reimburse it for cassociated wit
providing accounting and other “back-office” semdcfor the benefit of Concord and CDO-1 (the “Adfie Amount”).Because the Trust pays an advisory fee to
Advisors whereas the Trustpartners in Concord do not, the advisory fee lpleygo FUR Advisors by the Trust was reduced by 5ff%he Affiliate Amount to ensu
equal treatment of the Trust and its partners vaipect to the reimbursements paid by Concordtheyears ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, thst feceived ar
utilized a credit of $129,000 and $255,000, respely, against the base management fee.

Other Transactions
See Note 4 for additional activity between the Tared Concord or CDH CDO.
18.  Future Minimum Lease Payments

Future minimum lease payments scheduled to bevedeinder non-cancellable operating leases arallas/§ (amounts in thousands):

Year Amount
2012 37,61¢
2013 36,61
2014 33,14¢
2015 30,53¢
2016 28,89
Thereaftel 88,96¢
$ 255,76¢

One tenant represented more than 10% of the basal revenues of the Trust for the year ended Déeer@l, 2011 contributing approximately 21.8%. Tteisan
represented approximately 14.5% of the total rdatafuare footage of the consolidated operatintfqiir.

Three tenants, each of which represented more 188 of revenues and contributed approximately 44 41% of the base rental revenues of the Trusthieryear
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectivelyseTtamants represented approximately 43% and 2##te ¢otal rentable square footage of the conateid operatin
property portfolio for the years ended December2B1,0 and 2009, respectively.

These revenues are reported in the operating pgiepdusiness segment.
19. Reportable Segment:

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASBUidance on segment reporting establishes stan@@rdise way that public business enterprises rejpdormatior
about reportable segments in financial statememisraquires that those enterprises report seldatadcial information about reportable segmentsimancial report
issued to shareholders.

Based on the Trust’method of internal reporting, management detezthithat is has three reportable segments: (i) theeship of operating properties; (ii)
origination and acquisition of loans and debt sigesrsecured directly or indirectly by commeraad multi-family real property €ollectively, loan assets; and (iii) 1
ownership of equity and debt securities in othefTRE- REIT securities. The accounting policieshef segments are identical to those described ie Rlot

The operating properties segment includes all effttust’s wholly and partially owned operating pedfes. The loan assets segment includes all oTthst’s activitie:
related to real estate loans including loans rexd®e; loan securities and equity investments in ledated entities. The REIT securities segmeruites all of the Truss$’
activities related to the ownership of securitiesother publicly traded real estate companies.dditeon to its three business segments, the Tregdnts norsegmer
specific income and expense under corporate indexyEense).

96



The following table summarizes the Trust's assetsbhsiness segment and capital expenditures inguioe the Trusts operating properties for the years er
December 31, 2011 and 2010 (in thousands):

December 31, 201 December 31, 201

Assets
Operating propertie $ 442.20¢ % 385,87
Loan asset 217,17: 134,26¢
REIT securities 28,85¢ 33,03:
Corporate
Cash and cash equivalel 40,95 45,257
Restricted cas 3,914 8,59
Accounts receivable and prepa 504 53¢
Deferred financing cosi 31¢ 29z
Discontinued operatior 6 2,27¢
Total Assets $ 733,93 $ 610,12¢

Capital Expenditures
Operating Propertie $ 11,96: $ 6,121

The Trust defines net operating income for eaclmssg presented as all items of income and expeinsetlg derived from or incurred by each businesgrsent befor
depreciation, amortization and interest expengerédst on cash reserves, general and administratipenses and other nsagment specific income and expense i
are reported under corporate income (expense).
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The following table presents a summary of reverfte® operating properties, loan assets and REITr#téxs and expenses incurred by each segmenhéoyédars end¢

December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 (in thousands):

Operating Properties
Rents and reimbursemer
Operating expense
Real estate taxe
Equity in income (loss) of Marc Realty investme
Equity in income (loss) of Sealy Northwest Atla
Equity in loss of Sealy Airpark Nashvil
Equity in loss of Sealy Newmark
Equity in income of Vintag
Operating incomi
Depreciation and amortization expel
Interest expens
Impairment loss on investments in real es
Impairment loss on Marc Realty equity investme
Impairment loss on Sealy equity investme
Gain on extinguishment of de
Gain on sale of equity investmel
Settlement incom
Gain on consolidation of proper
Operating properties net income (lo
Loan Assets
Interest
Discount accretiol
Equity in earnings of preferred equity investmeniMarc Realty
Equity in earnings (loss) of L-Win Concord
Equity in earnings of Concord Debt Holdir
Equity in earnings of CDH CDt
Equity in earnings of ROIC Riversic
Equity in earnings of ROIC Lakeside Ea
Equity in earnings of 46th Street Goth:
Equity in earnings of Sofite
Equity in earnings of RE CDO Managem:
Equity in earnings of Socal Office Loan Portfa
Equity in loss of PSW NY(
Gain on loan securities carried at fair va
Unrealized gain on loan securities carried atvalue
Operating income (los!
General and administrative expel
Interest expens
Impairment loss on preferred equity investme
Impairment loss on investment in l-Win Concord
Impairment loss on available for sale Ic
Provision for loss on loans receival
Loan assets net income (lo:
REIT Securities
Dividends
Gain on sale of securities carried at fair ve
Unrealized gain on securities carried at fair vi
Equity in loss of Le-Win Acquisition, LLC
Operating incom:
Interest expens
REIT securities net incorr
Net Income (Loss)
Reconciliations to GAAP Net Income (Los
Corporate Income (Expense
Interest and other incon
General and administrati\
Interest expens
Gain (loss) on redemption of Serie-1 Preferred Share
Gain on conversion of Serie«1 Preferred Share
State and local taxe
Income (loss) from continuing operations before-controlling interes
Non-controlling interes
Income (loss) from continuing operations attriblgao Winthrop Realty Trus

Income (loss) from discontinued operations attdbig to Winthrop Realty Tru:

Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Winthrop Realty Trust

2011

2010

$ 4463t $ 3805 $ 39,80
(15,327 (8,66¢) (7,042
(4,546) (2,53 (2,542)
(982) 1,77¢ 281
4,30¢ (710 (457)
(1,039 (1,107 (1,056)
(2,936) (1,199 (691)
112 = =
24,23¢ 25,62¢ 28,29
(13,539 (9,956) (10,529
(13,077 (13,199 (13,779
(7,600 = (10,000
(15,769) — (2,500)
(5,299 = =
9,35¢ — —
207 = =
5,86¢ — —
81¢ = =
(14,789 2,47¢ (8,506)
11,07 5,691 2,42(
13,40 8,782 1,02z
33¢ 33¢ 78
25¢ = (66,909
3,21€ — —
48¢ = =
93¢ 47z —
664 = =
621 — —
2,177 = =
46 — —
272 = =
— (1,246 —
= 46¢ =
2,736 5,011 —
36,22( 19,51¢ (63,389
(75) (300) (235)
(850) = =
— — (2,186)
= = (31,67()
— — (209)
= = (2,152
35,29t 19,21 (99,83()
984 2,658 3,89¢
122 55¢ 5,41¢
2,78¢ 5,06( 17,86:
— — (99
3,89¢ 8,27¢ 27,07
— — (79
3,89¢ 8,27¢ 27,00;
24,40¢ 29,97( (81,339
1,17¢ 13¢ 172
(11,699 (8,526) (7,068
(2,099) (2,18%) (2,815)
(100) = 5,681
— — 1,16¢
(379 (134 (157)
11,31¢ 19,26 (84,35()
(819 (889 (1,019
10,50¢ 18,37¢ (85,379
42¢ (1,907) 1,02¢
$ 1093 $ 1647. $  (84,34)
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20.

Variable Interest Entities

Consolidated Variable Interest Entities

The Trust has identified two consolidated variabkerest entities, Deer Valley, Arizona and the Awer net lease property. Consolidated variablerésteentities al
those where the Trust is the primary beneficiarp ofriable interest entity. The primary benefigi@rthe party that has a controlling financiakirst in the VIE, which
defined by the entity having both of the followiebaracteristics: 1) the power to direct the ad#sitthat, when taken together, most significantiypact the VIES
performance, and 2) the obligation to absorb lossesright to receive the returns from the VIE thatuld be significant to the VIE. The third partiésterests in thes
consolidated entities are reflected as non-comiglhterest in the accompanying consolidated

Variable Interest Entities Not Consolidated

Equity Method and Preferred Equity InvestmertShe Trust has reviewed its various equity methad preferred equity investments and identified 16alde interest
for which the underlying entities do not have siéfint equity at risk to permit them to finance thattivities without additional subordinated fin&lcsupport. Thes
unconsolidated joint ventures are those where waar the primary beneficiary of a VIE.

Vintage Housing Holdings LLC Equity Investmenfke Trust has concluded that its equity methodstment in its Vintage Housing joint venture is ai@ble interest i
a VIE. This assessment is primarily based on thetfat the voting rights of the members are nopprtional to their obligations to absorb expedtesses and rights
receive residual returns of the legal entities. M/the Trust maintains certain protective rightsiemthe terms of the agreements governing Vintageskhg, the power
direct the activities that most significantly impaioe economics of the investment is vested inTifust’s joint venture partner and managing member.

Loans Receivable and Loan Securitie§he Trust has reviewed its loans receivable and $&urities and certain of these assets haveibeetified as variable intere:
in a VIE because the equity investment at riskhattiorrowing entity level is not considered suéiti for the entity to finance its activities wititadditional subordinatt
financial support.

Certain loans receivable and loan securities whiore been determined to be VIEs are performingigsseeting their debt service requirements, aadtirrowers hol
title to the collateral. In these cases the borroma@ds legal title to the real estate collatenadl das the power to direct the activities that nsighificantly impact th
economic performance of the VIE, including manageinand leasing activities. In the event of defauitler these loans the Trust only has protectivietsignd has tt
risk to absorb losses only to the extent of itslmevestment. The borrower has been determineé thd primary beneficiary for these performing &sse

The Trust has determined that it does not currdmdlye the power to direct the activities of thetuess collateralizing any of its loans receivahiel doan securities. F
this reason, management believes that it doesamttat, nor is it the primary beneficiary of thesantures. Accordingly, the Trust accounts for thesestments under t
guidance for loans receivable and real estateidebstments.
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21. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

The following is an unaudited condensed summaryhefresults of operations by quarter for the yearded December 31, 2011 and 2010. The Trust bslial

adjustments (consisting of normal recurring ac@uakcessary to present fairly such interim combimsults in conformity with accounting principlgsnerally accepte

in the United States of America have been included.

Quarters Ended

(In thousands, except pe-share data) March 31 June 30 September 3C December 31
2011
Revenue: $ 2065¢ $ 16,32¢ $ 16,34« $  16,76¢
Net income (loss $ 7,19t $ 3,72¢ % 9,84¢ $ (9,839
Net income (loss) applicable to Common Shi $ 7,13¢ % 3,67C $ 9,787 $ (10,58)
Per shart
Net income (loss) applicable to Common Sharesgt $ 0.2¢ $ 011 $ 03C $ (0.32)
Net income (loss) applicable to Common Sharestetil $ 0.2¢ $ 0.11 $ 0.3C $ (0.3
2010
Revenue! $ 12,52¢ $ 13,02F $ 14,19: $ 15,44
Net income $ 4,208 $ 4,57¢ $ 3,806 $ 3,88¢
Net income applicable to Common She $ 4,09: $ 4,51¢ $ 3,74¢ $ 3,83(
Per shart
Net income applicable to Common Shares, b $ 02 $ 021 $ 0.1f $ 0.14
Net income applicable to Common Shares, dil $ 0.2 $ 021 $ 0.1£ $ 0.14
22.  Subsequent Events

All relevant events or transactions that occurriéerdhe balance sheet date not otherwise disclasddncorporated in the Notes to the Consolid&iedncial Statemer
are described below.

Southern California Office Portfolio Note©n January 6, 2012, Socal Loan obtained a $40,000g€purchase facility. All of the net proceedsiirthe repurchase facili
were distributed entirely to the Trust in partiedlemption of the Trust'’s interest in the Socal Loesulting in a decrease in the Trgstwnership interest in the Socal L
to approximately 56%. Pursuant to the repurchasiitfa (i) monthly payments on the funds advanegd rate of LIBOR (with a 1% LIBOR floor) plus 98te require
to be made by the joint venture; (ii) interestha tate of 2% is added to the repurchase pridggth{@ Socal Loan is required to repurchase théofe on January 6, 20:
however the Socal Loan has the right, subject ttaite conditions including the payment of a 0.5%eesion fee, to extend the repurchase date forswanontt
extensions; (iv) the Socal Loan is permitted tountdrily repurchase the Rete at any time, provided, however, if such repase is made prior to April 30, 2013,
Socal Loan is required to pay a makhkele amount equal to the interest payable on theuat advanced through April 30, 2013 less anyré@stepreviously paid; al
(v) upon repurchase, the Socal Loan is requirgobioan exit fee of 1.5% if such repurchase is dutfre initial term or 1.0% if during an extendedneThe repurcha:
date is subject to acceleration in the event ofarnary payment and covenant defaults by the Sooahlbut not a default on the Kiste so long as the Socal Lc
continues to make the required payments undereingrchase facility.

The obligations under the repurchase facility aity frecourse to the Socal Loan. In addition, thiest provided the purchaser under the repurchasiétya guaranty fc
customary “bad-boyacts, including bankruptcy, fraud or intentionakrepresentation, bad faith contesting of a claintheypurchaser under the repurchase facility,
on the C-Note, and misappropriation of funds. Idiidn, the Trust agreed to guaranty all interestrpents under the repurchase facility during itsiterhe Trusts joint
venture partner, New Valley LLC, has agreed to leirse and indemnify us for its proportionate shafrany payments required to be made by us on ataufuthe
guarantees provided by us.
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Sullivan Center—On February 3, 2012 the Trust acquired throughiétgure with Elad the first mortgage loan securg&bllivan Center, Chicago, lllinois for a purch
price of approximately $128,000,000. In connectidth the consummation of the transaction, the Tfashed two substantially identical 50/50 joint wares with Elac
one to hold a mezzanine loan (“ML joint venturedhd the other to hold a future profits participatinterest in the mezzanine loan borrower, (“PRtjgenture”).Upor
acquisition, the original loan was restructurein() a $100,000,000 norecourse mortgage loan provided by a third pamylée; (ii) a $47,500,000 mezzanine |
(inclusive of additional advances for reservespprty expenses and transaction costs) held by thgpMt venture; and (iii) a profits participatian the property held t
the PP joint venture.

The $100,000,000 norecourse mortgage loan has a three year termejmpable without premium after 20 months, beaerést at 11% per annum, of which up to
accrues, and requires payments of interest onlg. [€hder has also agreed to provide up to an additi$8,650,000 in additional advances for tenemgrovement:
leasing commissions and capital expenditures. [Dhis is a bridge facility to be used for the contiple of the property’s lease-up.

The $47,500,000 mezzanine loan has a six year tezars interest at 15% per annum, 5% of which &scom a compounded basis, and requires paymeintterest only
If the mezzanine loan is not satisfied at matusityan event of default occurs, the borrower is iguto pay an additional $18,000,000 together aittb% compound:
return on such amount, which represents the digamuthe purchase price paid by the ML joint veatand the PP joint venture together with accruddufeinterest an
expenses. In addition, the ML joint venture hasadrto provide approximately $4,400,000 to funddbsts associated with the completion of the boiltlof its two reta
anchors, Target and DSW, as well as for 80% oftamtil tenant improvements, leasing commissionscaapital expenditures not funded under the mortdage. Bott
the interest rate and compounded return are sutgjectjustment as described below.

The PP joint venture acquired a 65% future prgfasticipation. The profits participation is in esseof all amounts due under the mezzanine loaa. $8,000,00
principal payment is made on the mezzanine loammprior to December 31, 2012, the interest raté emmpounded return are increased to 15.5% angribfis
participation is decreased to 60%.

Stamford Portfolio Loan—©n February 17, 2012, the Trust invested $8,036{000 venture with MaclGali Realty Corporation that acquired for $40,000,& senic
mezzanine loan with a fair value of $50,000,000e Tiezzanine loan is collateralized by the equitgrists in a premier seven building portfolio cairiang 1,670,00
square feet of Class A office space and 106 resaeental units totaling 70,500 square feet)@dhted in the Stamford, Connecticut Central Bussrigistrict.
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ITEM 9—CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANT S ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A—CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

An evaluation was performed under the supervisiot with the participation of our management, ingigdour Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financ@fficer, of the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and pracesi (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exghaict) as of December 31, 2011. Based on sucluatiah, the Trusg
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offidesive concluded that, as of the end of such petfi@d] rust’s disclosure controls and proceduresHestive.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The Trust's management is responsible for estahlisand maintaining adequate internal control direncial reporting. The Trust’internal control over financial reporting i
process which was designed under the supervisidgheoTrusts principal executives and principal financial offis to provide reasonable assurance regardingeliadility of
financial reporting and the preparation of the Teunancial statements for external reportinggmses in accordance with U.S. generally acceptealuaiting principles.

Our internal control over financial reporting indes policies and procedures that pertain to thente@@nce ofecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately faity reflect
transactions and dispositions of assets; providsamable assurances that transactions are recasdeecessary to permit preparation of financiakstants in accordance w
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, thiadl receipts and expenditures are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of managementthadrrustees of ti
Trust; and provide reasonable assurance regardagption or timely detection of unauthorized asgign, use or disposition of the Trustassets that could have a mat
affect on our financial statements.

As of December 31, 2011 the Trust's managementuzird an assessment of the effectiveness of th&t’Srinternal control over financial reporting. Theust's manageme
used the criteria set forth by the Committee of i&ooing Organizations of the Treadway Commissio®$%0) in “Internal Control—Integrated FrameworlBased on thi
assessment and those criteria, we concluded thatteunal control over financial reporting is effere as of December 31, 2011.

The effectiveness of the Trustinternal control over financial reporting as ofd@mber 31, 2011 has been audited by PricewatesBoopers LLP, an independent regist
public accounting firm, as stated in their repg@pearing in this Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporthg

There has been no change in our internal contret &imancial reporting during our last fiscal qarthat has materially affected, or is reasonalkbly to materially affect, ot
internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B—OTHER INFORMATION
None
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PART 11l
ITEM 10—DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information about Trustees of the Trust may be ébunder the caption “Election of Trustegsesented in our Proxy Statement for the AnnualtMgeof Shareholder
expected to be held in May 2012, which we refeagdhe Proxy Statement. That information is incoapexl herein by reference.

The information in the Proxy Statement under thgtioas “Executive Officers” “Section 16(a) BenefitiOwnership Reporting Compliance’Atidit Committee Financi
Expert” and “Code of Ethics” presented in the Pr&gtement is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11—EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information in the Proxy Statement under thgtioas “Compensation of Trustees” and “Executivarfpensation’presented in the Proxy Statement is incorpo
herein by reference.

ITEM 12—SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OW NERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information in the Proxy Statement under thtioa “Security Ownership of Trustees, Officers @ithers’presented in the Proxy Statement is incorporategiméy
reference.

ITEM 13—CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTI ONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information in the Proxy Statement under thgtioa “Certain Transactions and Relationships” &mdlependence of Trusteegtesented in the Proxy Statemer
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14—PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information in the Proxy Statement under thgtioas “Compensation of Trustees” and “Principakéantant Fees and Servicggesented in the Proxy Statemet
incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15—EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Sedules.
(1) Financial Statements:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfiimm on page 56 of ITEM 8.
Management's Report on Internal Controls over FémgrReporting on page 103 of ITEM 9A.
Consolidated Balance Sheets—December 31, 2011@t@i¢h page 57 of ITEM 8.
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compsareemcome—~For the Years Ended December 31, 22010 and 2009 on page 58 of ITEM 8.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity—#®rYears Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 20@@ge 59 of ITEM 8.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows—For the Yieaded December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 on pagasdé2 of ITEM 8.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements on pé&geisrough 102 of ITEM ¢
(2) Financial Statement Schedules:
Schedule Ill—Real Estate and Accumulated Depremiati
Schedule IV—Mortgage Loans on Real Estate
All Schedules, other than Il and 1V, are omittad,the information is not required or is otherwismished.
(b) Exhibits.
The exhibits listed on the Exhibit Index on pag® &te filed as a part of this Report or incorpatdig reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 16{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amentedTrust has duly caused this report to be sigmeits behalf by tt
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

WINTHROP REALTY TRUST

Dated: March 15, 2012 By: /s/ Michael L. Ashner
Michael L. Ashnel
Chief Executive Office

Dated: March 15, 2012 By: /s/ Thomas Staples
Thomas Staple
Chief Financial Officel

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpwhe following persons on behalf of the Registrand in the capaciti
and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date
/s/ Michael L. Ashner Trustee March 15, 201
/sl Carolyn Tiffany Trustee March 15, 201:

Arthur Blasberg, Ji

Howard Goldber(

Thomas McWilliams

Lee Seidlel

Steven Zalkinc Trustee March 15, 201

By: /s/ Carolyn Tiffany
Carolyn Tiffany,
as attorne-in fact
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WINTHROP REALTY TRUST
SCHEDULE I
REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At December 31, 2011
(amounts in thousands)

Cost
capitalized/(impaired)
subsequent to

Initial Cost to Registrant acquisition As of December 31, 201
Mortgage Building and Land/Building and Building and Accumulated Date
Description Location Location  Encumbrances Land Improvements Improvements Land Improvements Total Depreciation Acquired Life
Continuing Operations:
Office Orlando FL $ 38,13: $ — 3 17,248 $ 42 $ — 3 17,290 $ 17,29( $ 3,08( 11/200¢ 40 yre
Office Plantatior FL 10,927 — 8,91¢ 4,02( 4,00( 8,93¢ 12,93t 1,591 11/200« 40 yrs
Office Indianapolis IN 4,16¢ 27C 1,60¢ 6,661 1,768 6,782 8,54¢ 3,55¢ 10/197« 40 yre
Office Chicago IL 20,52: — 23,63t 2,17¢ — 25,81« 25,81« 4,302 10/200¢ 40 yrs
Office Ambherst NY 15,68: 1,591 18,027 — 1,591 18,027 19,61¢ 2,98¢ 5/200¢ 40 yre
Office Andover MA — — 7,611 71¢ 1,20¢ 7,12¢ 8,32¢ 1,14¢ 12/200¢ 40 yrs
Office South Burlingto VT — — 3,09¢ 30¢€ — 3,407 3,407 48E 12/200: 40 yre
Office Chicago L 8,90( 1,14¢ 9,98¢ 5,12¢ 1,14¢ 15,11¢ 16,26¢ 1,55¢ 10/200° 40 yrs
Office Houston X 56,42: 7,07t 62,46¢ — 7,07t 62,46¢ 69,54: 11,06: 1/200¢ 40 yre
Office Lisle L (5, 7155 3,77¢ 16,371 1,30¢ 3,77¢ 17,68( 21,45¢ 2,54¢ 2/200¢ 40 yrs
Office Lisle IL 1,651 2,361 6,29¢ (2,49¢) 2,361 3,80C 6,161 922 2/200¢ 40 yre
Office Lisle IL 5,600 78C 2,802 462 78C 3,26t 4,04¢ 45€ 2/200¢ 40 yrs
Office Phoenix AZ — 801 7,381 3,32i 801 10,71« 11,51¢ 67€ 8/201( 40 yre
Office Englewooc Cco — 2,58( 5,402 2,69t 2,58( 8,09¢ 10,67¢ 347 11/201( 40 yrs
Office Englewooc (ef0] — 1,82¢ 5,612 741 1,82¢ 6,35¢ 8,182 351 12/201( 40 yre
Office New York NY 49,58t — 52,77¢ 2,67¢ — 55,451 55,457 22€ 0/2011 40 yrs
217,35( 22,21( 249,25! 27,77¢ 28,90! 270,33t 299,23t 35,28¢
Retail Atlanta GA — — 4,63¢ 5 — 4,63¢ 4,63¢ 82€ 11/200¢ 40 yrs
Retail Louisville KY — — 2,722 37€ 372 2,728 3,09¢ 48t 11/200¢ 40 yre
Retail Greensbort NC — — 3,791 4 — 3,801 3,801 677 11/200¢ 40 yrs
Retail Memphis TN — — 76C 637 63t 762 1,397 13¢ 11/200¢ 40 yre
Retail Denton X — — 1,57« 1,17¢ 91t 1,82¢ 2,74¢ 28t 11/200¢ 40 yre
Retail Seabroo} X — — 1,398 61¢ 61€ 1,39¢ 2,01z 24¢ 11/200¢ 40 yre
— — 14,87¢ 2,811 2,563¢ 15,151 17,69( 2,651
Other Jacksonville FL — 2,16¢ 8,68¢ 1,491 2,16¢ 10,17¢ 12,34: 1,85¢ 11/200¢ 40 yre
Other Churchill PA — — 23,83¢ (14,52%) — 9,30¢ 9,30¢ 3,75¢ 11/200¢ 40 yrs
Other Meriden CT 13,59( 2,880 22,365 — 2,880 22,365 25,25¢ 1,001 10/201( 40 yre
13,59( 5,052 54,88t (13,039 5,052 41,85 46,904 6,612
Total from Continuing Operations $ 230,94( $ 27,260 $ 319,01 $ 17,55. § 36,49 $ 327,33 § 363,83 $ 44,55¢

The aggregate cost in the properties for federarime tax purposes was approximately $289,808
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SCHEDULE III
REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
(amounts in thousands)

The following is a reconciliation of real estatseis and accumulated depreciation:

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Real Estate
Balance at beginning of peric $ 308,49¢ $ 249,07t $ 267,70¢
Additions during the perioc
Land — 9,40¢ —
Buildings and improvemen 11,96: 6,121 2,54¢
Consolidation of 450 West 14th Stre 52,77¢ — —

Consolidation of Deer Valle — 8,18¢ —
Consolidation of Newbury Apartmer

— 25,25¢ —
Consolidation of Crossroads — 7,987 _
Purchase of Crossroad 7,441

Transfer (to) from discontinued operations, (1,639 (3,970 (10,817
Impairments during the peric (7,600 — (20,000
Disposal of fully amortized asse (16€) (1,004 (365)

Balance at end of peric $ 363,83: $ 308,49¢ $ 249,07¢

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of peric

$ 3623 $ 31,26¢ $ 25,90
Additions charged to operating expen

8,64¢ 6,39¢ 6,652
Transfer (to) from discontinued operations, net (152) (432) (919)
Disposal of fully amortized asse (16€) (1,009 (365)

Balance at end of peric $ 4455¢ $  36,23: $  31,26¢

(1) In 2011, the St. Louis, Missouri property was pthago discontinued operations. In 2010, the Lafeyd ouisiana; Knoxville, Tennessee; and Shermianas propertie

were placed into discontinued operations. In 2a68, Athens, Georgia property was placed into disnord operations and the Kansas City, Kansas piopeas
foreclosed
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Type of Loan

Whole Loan

Whole Loan
B-Note

B-Note

Mezzanine
Mezzanine
Mezzanine
Mezzanine Other (Z
Corporate Loai

Schedule IV

Mortgage Loans on Real Estate
, 2011

December 31

(Amounts in thousands)

(1) Carrying amount of loans receivable includes aatinterest of $500 at December 31, 2C

(2) Line item includes four mezzanine loans each ottWhepresent less than 3% of the total Loan As

Reconciliation of Mortgage Loans on Real Estate:

The following table reconciles Mortgage Loans fog {/ears ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009.

Balance at January 1
Purchase and advanc
Proceeds from sa
Interest (received) accrued, 1
Repayment:
Provision for loan loss allowan:
Loan accretior
Discount accretion received in ce
Reclass to investment in real est
Reclass from loan securiti
Reclass from equity investmer
Reclass from other ass¢
Reclass to equity investmer
Reclass to preferred investme
Balance at December :

Periodic

Contratual Payment Senior Outstanding Carrying

Location Interest Rate Maturity Date Terms Liens Face Value Principal Amount (1)
New York, NY LIBOR +4.0%  10/05/1: Interest Onl — § 20,00 $ 20,00C $ 20,10
Tempe, AZ 5.88% 01/01/1% Amortizing — 30,46¢ 26,35! 26,50:
San Francisco, C 9.75% 06/09/1: Interest Onl 35,00( 15,00( 11,46¢ 11,55¢
New York, NY 7.19% 07/11/1¢ Amortizing 244,88° 11,63¢ 9,931 9,97¢
San Francisco, C 15.00% 06/09/1: Interest Onl 73,79¢ 4,80( 4,80( 4,84¢
Various / Floride LIBOR + 1.23%  07/09/1: Interest Onl 120,00( 20,00( 18,78¢ 18,80¢
Chicago, IL 8.0% 05/31/1¢ Interest Onl 10,49« 4,00( 4,000 4,02¢
Various Various Various Interest Onl 60,86 9,88: 8,741 8,76¢
n/a 15.00% 10/31/1¢ Interest Onl = 9,75( 9,75( 9,75(
$ 125531 § 113,83¢ $§ 114,33:

2011 2010 2009

$ 110,39¢ $ 26,10 $ 22,87¢
67,61¢ 122,30: 31,51«

= (12,87¢) =
37 361 74
(70,289 (15,069 (11,46°)
— — (2,157
13,40: 8,782 1,021

(13,290 — —

— (19,210 —

662 — —

12,54+ = =
— — 40
(4,650 = (15,809

(2,027) — —
$ 11433 $ 11039 $ 26,10
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Exhibit Description Number
3.1 Second Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust sy 21, 2009—Incorporated by reference to Eit8HL to the Trusg Quarterly Report ¢

Form 1(-Q for the period ended June 30, 20 —
3.2 By-laws of Winthrop Realty Trust as amended anthted on November 3, 2009—Incorporated by referémé&exhibit 3.1 to the Trust’s Current

Report on Form-K filed November 6, 200¢ —
3.3 Amendment to B-laws—Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to thesl's Current Report on Forn-K filed March 6, 2010 —
4.1 Form of certificate for Common Shares of Benefitiérest. Incorporated by reference to Exhibitté.1the Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the year ended December 31, 2C —
4.2 Warrant to purchase 500,000 shares of Benefictatést of Trust—Incorporated by reference to Exhifl) to the Trust’s Annual Report on Form

1C-K for the year ended December 31, 1€ —
4.3 Agreement of Limited Partnership of WRT Realty . ated as of January 1, 2005—Incorporated byeatar to Exhibit 4.1 to the Trust's Form 8-

K filed January 4, 200t —
4.4 Amendment No. 1 to Agreement of Limited PartnersifipVRT Realty, L.P., dated as of December 1, 2I *
45 Amendment No. 2 to Agreement of Limited PartnersifipVRT Realty, L.P., dated as of November 28, 281lhcorporated by reference to the

Trus’'s Form K filed November 28, 201 —

4.6 Certificate of Designations of 9.25% Series D Cuatiue Convertible Preferred Shares of Beneficié¢daest—Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.1 to the Tru¢'s Form A filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarNovember 23, 201 —

4.7 Form of Specimen Certificate for the 9.25% SerieSWnulative Convertible Preferred Shares of Beiedflaterest—Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 to Trus's Form A filed with the Securities and Exchange CommisgiarNovember 23, 201 —

10.1 Stock Purchase Agreement between the Trust andIRHRtors, LLC, dated as of November 26, 2003 uidiclg Annex A thereto, being the list of
Conditions to the Off—Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thast's Form K filed December 1, 200: —

10.2 Second Amended and Restated Advisory Agreemend déddech 5, 2009, between the Trust, WRT Realty briti FUR Advisors LLC.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to thas’'s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C —

10.3 Amendment No. 1 to Second Amended and RestatedsédviAgreement—Incorporated by reference to ExHiBiBO to the Trust's Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q for the period ended March 31, 20 —

10.4 Amendment No. 2 to Second Amended and RestatedsédvAgreement—Incorporated by reference to ExHiBitl to the Trust's Form 8-K filed
January 29, 201( —

10.5 Amendment No. 3 to Second Amended and RestatedsvAgreement—Incorporated by reference to ExHibitl to the Trust's Form 8-K filed
March 2, 2012 —
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Exhibit Description Number
10.6 Exclusivity Services Agreement between the Trust ldichael L. Ashner - Incorporated by referenc&xhibit 10.4 to the Trust's Form 8-K filed

December 1, 200: —
10.7 Amendment No. 1 to Exclusivity Agreement, dated &lober 7, 2005 - Incorporated by reference to ExAidi7 to the Trust’s Form 8-K filed

November 10, 200¢ —
10.8 fog/g(r)\gnt Agreement between the Trust and FUR lox&dtLC - Incorporated by reference to ExhibitSLtb the Trust's Form & filed Decembe
10.9 Amended and Restated Omnibus Agreement, dated M#&cP005, among Gerald Nudo, Laurence Weiner aRT \Realty L.P. - Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Tr's Form &K filed March 18, 2005 —
10.10 Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2009, among GeraltbNLaurence Weiner and WRT Realty L.P. Incorpetdty reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the

Trus’'s Form 1+-Q for the period ended June 30, 2009 filed Aug@s22D09. —
10.16 Winthrop Realty Trust 2007 Long Term Stock Inceat®ian - Incorporated by reference to the TeuBefinitive Proxy Statement on Schedule :

filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioMarch 30, 2007 —
10.19 Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, dated as mh\8a 2011, between WRT Realty L.P. and KeyBardtjdthal Association. Incorporated

reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Tr's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C —
10.20 Guaranty from Winthrop Realty Trust and certaint®fSubsidiaries in favor of KeyBank, National Asgdion. Incorporated by reference to Exh

10.20 to the Tru’'s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C —
21 List of Subsidiarie: *
23.1 Consent of Independent Accounting Fi- PricewaterhouseCoopers LI *
23.2 Consent of Independent Accounting Fi- PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (I-Win Concord financials *
23.3 Consent of Independent Accounting Fi- KPMG LLP (Concord Debt Holdings LLC financial *
23.4 Consent of Independent Accounting Fi- Frazier & Deeter, LLC (Sealy Northwest Atlanta Pars LP financials *
235 Consent of Independent Accounting Fi- Frazier & Deeter, LLC (Sealy Newmarket General fenghip financials *
24 Power of Attorney *
31 Certifications Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sagk-Oxley Act of 2002 *
32 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Saek-Oxley Act of 2002 *
99.1 Consolidated Financial Statements of -Win Concord LLC *
99.2 Consolidated Financial Statements of Concord DetbdiiAgs LLC *
99.3 Consolidated Financial Statements of Sealy Northw#anta Partners LI *
99.4 Consolidated Financial Statements of Sealy NewnaBlemeral Partnership LL *
101.INS XBRL Report Instance Docume T
101.SCFH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum t
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Docume t
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Docume T
101.PRE XBRL Presentation Linkbase Docume t
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh T
* filed herewith
T Indicates furnished herewi
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Exhibit 4.4

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT OF LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
OF
FIRST UNION REIT, L.P.

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT OF LIMITED PARTNESHIP OF First Union REIT, L.P., dated as of Decen 2005, is entered into by ¢
among Winthrop Realty Trust (f/k/a First Union Ré&attate Equity and Mortgage Investments), an Ob#girtess trust (“WRT")and FIRST UNION MANAGEMENT INC. (¢
successor by merger to FT-TRS Loan Corp.), a Dalwarporation (“FUMI"), together with any otherrBens who become Partners in the Partnership agleherein.

WHEREAS, WRT and FUMI are party to that certain égment of Limited Partnership of First Union RELTP., dated as of January 1, 2005 (tRartnershi
Agreement”);

WHEREAS, WRT and FUMI desire to amend the Partriprélgreement to change the name of the PartnetsHi$/RT Realty L.P.”
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereby agreed as faliow
1. Capitalized TermsCapitalized terms used herein and not otherwésimeld shall have the meanings ascribed therettoeifPartnership Agreement.

2. Amendment to Agreementhe Partnership Agreement is hereby amendedlas/f

a. The heading of the Partnership Agreement is deteto read in its entirety “AGREEMENT OF LIMITEDARTNERSHIP OF WRT REALTY L.P.”
b. The first sentence of Section 2.2 of the PastmiprAgreement is hereby deleted in its entirety @i following is inserted in lieu thereof:
“The name of the Partnership is WRT Realty L.P.”
c. Exhibit D to the Partnership Agreement is heraimended by replacing all references therein tostRinion REIT, L.P.” with “WRT Realty L.P.”
3. Miscellaneous (a) Except as modified hereby, the Partnershipe@Aignent remains in full force and effect and thevisions thereof are hereby ratified and confirmed.

(b) All references in the Partnership Agreementtiis Agreement”, “hereunder”, “heretadr similar references, and all references in dleotdocuments to t
Agreement shall hereinafter be deemed referencihetdgreement as amended here



(c) This Amendment may be executed in one or mowsierparts, all of which together shall for allrposes constitute one amendment, binding on atleg
hereto, notwithstanding that the parties have igotesl the same counterparts.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been exetaseof the date and year first above written.
WRT REALTY TRUST

By: /s/ Peter Braverma
Peter Braverma
Presiden

FIRST UNION MANAGEMENT, INC.

By: /s/ Peter Braverma
Peter Braverma
Presiden




Name of Entity

1051 Perimeter Drive Property LLC
180 North Wacker Property LL
29 East Madison Property LL
5400 Westheimer Court LL

5400 Westheimer Holding L.I
5400 Westheimer Limited Partnersl
CDH CDO LLC

FT-5400 New Unit Lender LL(
FT-5400 Westheimer LL(
FT-Amherst Property LL(C
FT-Amherst Property Manager LL
FT-Churchill Property L.P
FT-Circle Tower LLC

FT-Circle Tower Manager LL(
FT-FIN Acquisition LLC

FT-FIN GP LLC

FT-Florida Property LLC
FT-Florida Property Manager LL
FT-KRG (Atlanta) LLC

FT-KRG (Denton) LLC

FT-KRG (Greensboro) LL(
FT-KRG (Louisville) LLC
FT-KRG (Memphis) LLC

FT-KRG (Seabrook) LLC

FT-KRG (St. Louis) LLC

FT-KRG Property L.P

FT-Marc Class B LLC

FT-Marc Loan LLC

FT-Ontario Holdings LLC
FT-Ontario Parking LLC
FT-Ontario Parking Manager LL
FT-Ontario Property LLC
FT-Ontario Property Manager LL
FT-Orlando Property LLC
FT-Orlando Property Manager LL
FT-WD Property LLC

Newbury Apartments LL(
Newbury Properties DE LL!

RE CDO Management LL!

Sealy Airpark Nashville General Partners

Sealy Newmarket General Partners
Sealy Northwest Atlanta Partners L
SoCal Office Loan Portfolio LL(
SoCal OLP Holdings LL(

Exhibit 21

State of Formatior

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware



Name of Entity
WRT-1050 Corporetum Holdings LLC

WRT-1050 Corporetum Property LL
WRT-1050 Corporetum Property Manager L
WRT-550/650 Corporetum Property LL

WRT-550/650 Corporetum Property Manager L

WRT-701 Arboretum Property LL¢
WRT-701 Arboretum Property Manager LL
WRT-Andover Property LLC
WRT-Andover Property Manager LL
WRT-Atlanta LLC

WRT-CDH Il LLC

WRT-CDO LLC

WRT-Concord LLC
WRT-Crossroads LL(
WRT-Crossroads One LL
WRT-Cypress LLC

WRT-DV LLC

WRT-Elad One South State Lender L
WRT-Elad One South State Equity L
WRT-High Line LLC

WRT-Lender LLC

WRT-Marc RC Holding LLC
WRT-Marc RC LLC

WRT-Moffett LLC

WRT-MT LLC

WRT-Nashville Airpark LLC
WRT-Property Holdings LLC

WRT Realty L.P

WRT-Rockwell LLC

WRT-ROIC Lakeside Eagle LL¢
WRT-ROIC Riverside LLC
WRT-SoCal Lender LLC

WRT-South Burlington Property LL¢
WRT-South Burlington Property Manager LL
WRT-Springing Member LLC
WRT-Stamford LLC

WRT-State Street Lender LL
WRT-TALF LLC

WRT TRS Management Cor
WRT-VHH LLC

WRT-Westwood Noteholder LL(

State of Formatior

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Illinois

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referénd¢be Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N88-B33157 and 333-125987), Form S-3/A (No. 333-83%and Form S-

3D (No. 333161664) of Winthrop Realty Trust and subsidiarieswr report dated March 15, 2012, relating to¢hasolidated financial statements, financial statenschedul
and the effectiveness of internal control overfiicial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

Isl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
March 15, 2012



Exhibit 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referém¢ke Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N83: 83157 and 333-125987), Form S-3/A (No. 333-83%and Form S-
3D (No. 333-161664) of Winthrop Realty Trust antdsidiaries of our report dated February 19, 20&ting to the financial statements of Lex-Win CamtLLC, which

includes an explanatory paragraph relating to Ler-@bncord LLC’s ability to continue as a going cem as described in Note 2 to the consolidatezhfifal statements which
appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
March 15, 2012



Exhibit 23.%
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference inréggstration statement on Form S-3 (Nos. 333-183drd 333-125987), on Form S-3/A (No. 333-155761) an Form S3D
(No. 333161664) of Winthrop Realty Trust and subsidiarieswr report dated March 7, 2012, with respecthi® ¢onsolidated balance sheet of the Concord Deldifys LLC

and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011, ancetated consolidated statements of operations, @saimgmembersapital, and cash flows for the year then endedchwtepor
appears in the December 31, 2011 annual reporbon EO-K of Winthrop Realty Trust and subsidiaries.

/sl KPMG LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
March 15, 2012



Exhibit 23.«
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referénd¢be Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N88-B53157 and 333-125987), Form S-3/A (No. 333-83%and Form S-
3D (No. 333161664) of Winthrop Realty Trust and subsidiarié®ur report dated March 9, 2012, relating to timauficial statements of Sealy Northwest Atlanta ritas, LF
which appears in this Form 10-K.

Isl Frazier & Deeter, LLC
Atlanta, Georgia
March 15, 2012




Exhibit 23.£
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referénd¢be Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N88-B53157 and 333-125987), Form S-3/A (No. 333-83%and Form S-
3D (No. 333161664) of Winthrop Realty Trust and subsidiarié®ur report dated March 9, 2012, relating to timauicial statements of Sealy Newmarket GenerahBeshif
which appears in this Form 10-K.

Isl Frazier & Deeter, LLC
Atlanta, Georgia
March 15, 2012




Exhibit 24

WINTHROP REALTY TRUST (FORMERLY KNOWN AS FIRST UNIO N
REAL ESTATE EQUITY AND MORTGAGE INVESTMENTS)

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Power of Attorney — Trustees

Each of the undersigned, a Trustee of Winthrop tReldust (formerly known as First Union Real Est&guity and Mortgage Investments), an Ohio busitiesst (the
“Trust”), which anticipates filing with the Securities andcBange Commission, Washington, D.C., under theigpians of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, amua
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Dewen81, 2011 (the “Form 10-K"does hereby constitute and appoint Carolyn Tiffamigh full power of substitution ar
resubstitution, as attorney to sign for him andhisnname the Form 1R-and any and all amendments and exhibits theegtd,any and all other documents to be filed wit
Securities and Exchange Commission pertainingad=thrm 10K, with full power and authority to do and perfoemy and all acts and things whatsoever requireteoessary |
be done in the premises, as fully to all intents parposes as he could do if personally presentblyeratifying and approving the acts of said attgrand any such substitute.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned hasurgo set his hand this 28 day February, 2012.

[s/ Arthur Blasberg, J
Arthur Blasberg, Ji

/sl Howard Goldber
Howard Goldber¢

/sl Thomas McWilliam:
Thomas McWilliams

/sl Lee Seidle
Lee Seidlel

/sl Steven Zalkin
Steven Zalkinc




Exhibit 31.1

WINTHROP REALTY TRUST
FORM 10-K FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Michael L. Ashner, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10fKVinthrop Realty Trust;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or amgttate a material fact necessary to make thersémts made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statemeere made, not misleading with respect to tégd covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in theport, fairly present in all material respectsfihancial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the regstas of, and for, the periods presented in gpstt;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as definé&kahange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control dwemcial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actédul3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant bade:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedortes designed under our supervision, to ensatentlaterial
information relating to the registrant, includirnig consolidated subsidiaries, is made known toyustiers within those entities, particularly durithg period in which this report
is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigla®ting, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under our supervigiomprovide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynaincial reporting and the preparation of finanstatements for external purposes in accordandegeiterally accepted
accounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentgdsineport our conclusions about the effectiverefshe
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the éttieqperiod covered by this report based on swveltuation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the ttegig’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s most recesuafi quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case m&anual report) that has materially affected saeasonably likely to materially affect, the réxgiat’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial reporting, the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registeabtiard of directors (or persons performing thewvegent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which are reasonably lik® adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invadweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s internal control ofieancial
reporting.

Date: March 15, 2012 /sl Michael L. Ashne
Michael L. Ashnel
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.Z

WINTHROP REALTY TRUST
FORM 10-K FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Thomas C. Staples, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fRVinthrop Realty Trust;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or angitate a material fact necessary to make thensents made, in
light of the circumstances under which such stateseere made, not misleading with respect to grégd covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememig,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respectsfihancial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the regyigtas of, and for, the periods presented in gpsnt;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as definétkahange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control dwvemcial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actédul3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant bade:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedones designed under our supervision, to ensuatentiaterial
information relating to the registrant, includinig consolidated subsidiaries, is made known toyustibers within those entities, particularly durithg period in which this report
is being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglating, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed under our supervidioprovide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynaiicial reporting and the preparation of finanstatements for external purposes in accordandegeiterally accepted
accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentaisineport our conclusions about the effectiverefghe
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the étiteqoeriod covered by this report based on sweltuation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the rtegig’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s most recestafi quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case manual report) that has materially affectedsaerasonably likely to materially affect, the reégist’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anidlave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial reporting, the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registeabtiard of directors (or persons performing thewedent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are reasonably lijkk® adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, processmnmarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s internal control ofieancial
reporting.

Date: March 15, 2012 /sl Thomas C. Staple
Thomas C. Staple
Chief Financial Officel




Exhibit 32
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of WinthropaRg Trust (formerly known as First Union Real Est&quity and Mortgage Investments (the “Comparyi)Forn
10-K for the annual period ended December 31, 284 Tiled with the Securities and Exchange Commissin the date hereof (the “Reportihe undersigned, in the capaci
and on the date indicated below, hereby certifigsyant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedupntgo Section 906 of the Sarbar@dey Act of 2002, that: (1) the Rep
fully complies with the requirements of Sectiond)3¢r 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act384t and (2) the information contained in the Refairly presents, in €
material respects, the financial condition and ltesaf operations of the Company.

Date: March 15, 2012 /s/ Michael L. Ashne

Michael L. Ashnel
Chief Executive Office

Date: March 15, 2012 /sl Thomas C. Staple

Thomas C. Staple
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 99.1

Lex-Win Concord LLC
Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Period from January 1, 2010 to August 26,10 (Dissolution),
and the Year Ended December 31, 2009



LEX-WIN CONCORD LLC

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfimm

Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31,

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Bdram January 1, 2010 to August 26, 2010 (Dissoh)t(Unaudited) and the Year Ended December 309
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Losh&Period from January 1, 2010 to August 26, 203@ution) (Unaudited) and the Year Ended Decerstie200¢

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Members't@ldpi the Period from January 1, 2010 to AugtZ010 (Dissolution) (Unaudited) and the Year Ehde
December 31, 200

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Bdram January 1, 2010 to August 26, 2010 (Dissof)t(Unaudited) and the Year Ended December 309

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
To the Members of Lex-Win Concord LLC:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheet and the related consolidated statemeintsesétions of, comprehensive income, of changeseémbers'capital ani
of cash flows present fairly, in all material resse the financial position of Lewin Concord LLC and its subsidiaries at December28D9, and the results of their operat
and their cash flows for the year then ended infaromity with accounting principles generally acasgptin the United States of America. These finanstatements are t
responsibility of the Company’'management. Our responsibility is to expresspnian on these financial statements based on odita We conducted our audits of th
statements in accordance with the standards oPtiic Company Accounting Oversight Board (Unite€dt&s). Those standards require that we plan arfdrpethe audit t
obtain reasonable assurance about whether thecfalastatements are free of material misstatem&ntaudit includes examining, on a test basis, ewiéesupporting tt
amounts and disclosures in the financial statemastessing the accounting principles used andfisagmt estimates made by management, and evatu#iim overall financii
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 4 to the consolidated findrat@ements, the Company changed the manner iohwihiaccounts for non-controlling interests andestthantemporar
impairment of available for sale securities in 2009

The accompanying financial statements have beqaped assuming that the Company will continue geiag concern. As discussed in the financial states) the Compai
has suffered losses from operations and is in ti@leof certain debt covenants that raise substhdtubt about its ability to continue as a goingeern. Managemerstplans i
regard to these matters are also discussed inithacial statements. The financial statements doimdude any adjustments that might result frore thutcome of th
uncertainty.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
February 19, 2010



LEX-WIN CONCORD LLC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(In thousands)

December 31
2009
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 747
Restricted cas 25,36¢
Real estate debt investments, net of allowancofs 447,27(
Real estate debt investments held for sale, avédire 66,31:
Available for sale securities, n 83,97°
Interest and other receivabl 1,75¢
Deferred financing costs, net of accumulated amatitin 5,30¢
Real estate properties held for s 3,63¢
Other asset 13¢
Total asset $ 634,50t
Liabilities and Members’ Capital:
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreemel $ 135,06
Revolving credit facility 58,85(
Collateralized debt obligatior 347,52!
Collateral support obligatio 9,751
Sut-participation obligatior 4,50(
Liabilities of discontinued operatiol 142
Other liabilities 14,05¢
Note payable to related parti —
Total liabilities 569,89:
Non-controlling redeemable preferred intere
Non-controlling redeemable preferred inter 5,72(
Total nor-controlling redeemable preferred inter 5,72(
Member’ Capital:
Lex-Win Concord LLC membe’ capital 113,92¢
Accumulated other comprehensive | (55,149
Total Lex-Win Concord LLC membe’ capital 58,78(
Non-controlling equity interes 114
Total member’ capital 58,89«
Total liabilities and membe’ capital $ 634,50t

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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LEX-WIN CONCORD LLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Period from January 1, 2010 to August 26,210 (Dissolution) and the
Year Ended December 31, 2009

(In thousands)

(Unaudited)
2010 2009

Income:
Interest income on real estate debt investmentsaaitable for sale securitit $ 17,93C $ 38,94¢
Realized gain on sale of real estate debt inveds 7,76( —
Total income 25,69( 38,94¢
Expenses:
Interest 9,581 17,33t
Provision for loss on real estate debt investm 106,15( 80,62(
Realized loss on sale of real estate debt invess 2,407 9,60¢€
Impairment loss on real estate debt investmentsfoelsale — 101,02
Realized loss on sale of real estate debt invesseid for sal¢ — 17,56¢
Othel-thar-temporary impairment losses on availi-for-sale securitie

Gross impairment losst 3,87¢ 29,77(

Less: Impairments recognized in other compreherieb&es — (13,469

Net impairment losses recognized in earni 3,874 16,30:
Realized loss on sale of available for sale saes — 5,07¢
Fees and expenses paid to related f 47C 1,10¢
Collateral support expen: 31¢ 9,751
General and administrati\ 1,754 4,604
Total expense 124,55! 262,99¢
Other income:
Interest income on bank depos 6 7
Total other incom: 6 7
Loss from continuing operatiol (98,859 (224,04/)
Discontinued operations:
Loss from discontinued operatio (97)) (959)
Total discontinued operatiol (97)) (959)
Consolidated net los (99,83() (225,007
(Income) loss attributable to the r-controlling redeemable preferred inter 4,58t 68,70¢
Income attributable to the n-controlling interes (8) (12)
Net loss attributable to L-Win Concord LLC $ (95,259 $ (156,300

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.

3



LEX-WIN CONCORD LLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
For the Period from January 1, 2010 to August 26,210 (Dissolution) and the
Year Ended December 31, 2009

(In thousands)

(Unaudited)
2010 2009

Consolidated net los $ (99,830 $ (225,009
Other comprehensive income (los

Unrealized gain (loss) on cash flow hed (4,48¢€) 10,66¢

Unrealized gain (loss) on available for sale s¢i@as 5,774 (29,77()

Reclassification of unrealized loss to impairmersis — 16,30:

Other comprehensive lo 1,28¢ (2,800

Comprehensive los (98,547) (227,807

Comprehensive income attributable to -controlling interes (©)] (12

Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to-controlling redeemable preferred inter 4,588 68,70¢

Comprehensive loss attributable to -Win Concord LLC $ (93,96 $ (159,100

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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LEX-WIN CONCORD LLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS' CAPI TAL
For the Period from January 1, 2010 to August 26,210 (Dissolution) and the
Year Ended December 31, 2009

(In thousands)

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive Non-
Controlling
Winthrop Lexington Income (Loss) Interest Total

Balance at December 31, 20 $ 12413. $ 124,13. $ (29,059 $ 114 $ 219,32
Adjustment to opening balance for cumulative effefcadopting new accounting meth 11,64° 11,64° (23,299 — —
Net income allocated to n-controlling interest: — — — 12 12
Contributions from Membet 11¢ 11¢ — — 23€
Distributions to Member (779) (779) — — (1,55¢)
Distributions to no- controlling interest: — — — (12 (12
Unrealized gain on cash flow hedc¢ — — 10,66¢ — 10,66¢
Unrealized loss on available for sale secur — — (13,469 — (13,469
Net loss allocatiol (78,159 (78,159 — — (156,309)
Balance, December 31, 20 56,96« 56,96« (55,149 114 58,89
(Unaudited)

Net income allocated to n-controlling interest: — — — 8 8
Distributions to no- controlling interest: — — — (12 12
Unrealized loss on cash flow hed¢ — — (4,48¢€) — (4,48¢€)
Unrealized gain on available for sale securi — — 5,77¢ — 5,77¢
Net loss allocatiol (47,62°) (47,62¢) — — (95,259
Dissolution adjustmer (9,337) (9,339) 53,86( (110) 35,07¢
Balance, August 26, 20! $ — 8 — 8 — 3 — 3 —

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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LEX-WIN CONCORD LLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Period from January 1, 2010 to August 26,210 (Dissolution) and the
Year Ended December 31, 2009

(In thousands)

(Unaudited)
2010 2009

Cash flows from operating activitie
Consolidated net income (los $ (99,830 $ (225,00
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to garsivided by operating activitie
Amortization and accretion of intere (1,270 (4,86¢)
Amortization of deferred financing cos 1,63¢ 1,94
Impairment loss on available for sale securi 3,87¢ 16,30:
Provision for loss on real estate debt investm 106,15( 80,62(
Impairment loss on real estate debt investmentsfoelsale — 101,02°
Realized loss on sale of real estate debt invess 1,187 9,60¢
Realized loss on sale of real estate debt invesseid for sal¢ 1,22 17,56¢
Realized loss on sale of available for sale sdes — 5,07¢
Realized loss on sale of real estate propertiatsfoelsale 70¢ —
Realized gain on sale of investments held for (2,130 —
Realized gain on available for sale securi (1,329 —
Realized gain on sale of real estate debt inveds (4,307%) —
Changes in operating assets and liabilit

Interest and other receivabl 25C 1,84z

Other asset 104 (36)

Other liabilities (527) (904)

Liabilities of discontinued operatiol (90) 14z

Collateral support obligatio 31¢ 9,757
Net cash provided by operating activit 5,96¢ 13,07
Cash flows from investing activitie
Proceeds from sale of real estate debt investn 9,88¢ 18,81°
Proceeds from sale of real estate debt investninahdsfor sale 70,03¢ 86,48:
Proceeds from sale of available for sale secui 2,86¢ 3,67(
Proceeds from sale of real estate properties loeldal—discontinued operatior — 6,721
Funding of commitments on real estate debt invests — (1,719
Real estate debt investments ref — 30,16¢
Available for sale securities purchas (13,567) (6,85¢€)
Real estate debt investments purche (3,000
Available for sale securities repe 29€ 3,93t
Change in restricted ca 13,117 (22,55()
Net cash provided by investing activiti 79,64( 118,67.

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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LEX-WIN CONCORD LLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Period from January 1, 2010 to August 26,210 (Dissolution) and the

Cash flows from financing activitie

Proceeds from related party notes pay:

Repayment of related party notes pay:

Repayments on repurchase agreem

Repayment of revolving credit facili

Payment to terminate derivative contr

Proceeds from si-participation arrangeme

Payment of deferred financing co

Distributions to no-controlling redeemable preferred inter
Distributions to no-controlling interest:

Distribution to member

Distribution to members upon liquidatic

Contributions from nc-controlling redeemable preferred inter
Contributions from membel

Net cash used in financing activiti

Net decrease in cash and cash equiva
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

Supplemental cash flow informatic
Interest paic

Collateral support arrangeme
Non-cash investing activity

Year Ended December 31, 2009

(In thousands, Continued)

Investment in real estate debt investment by isseiai first mortgage seller financing on real estabperty solc

Non-cash financing activities
Distribution of available for sale security to mesng

Distribution of available for sale security to I-controlling redeemable preferred inter

Accrued dividend payable to n-controlling interes

Accrued dividend payable to n-controlling redeemable preferred inter

Adjustment of Assets and Liabilites upon Dissolnt
Restricted cas

Real estate debt investments, net of allow:
Available for sale securitie

Interest and other receivabl

Deferred and other ass¢

Repurchase agreemel

Revolving credit facility

Collateralized debt obligatior

Collateral support obligatio
Sut-participation obligatior

Deferred items and other liabiliti¢
Non-controlling redeemable preferred inter
Non-controlling equity interes

Member!’ capital

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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(Unaudited)
2010 2009
$ — $ 8,36(
— (18,36()
(71,62 (105,54()
(20,807 (21,15()
— (8,221)
— 4,50(
— (87)
= (3,159
(12) (12)
— (1,240)
(3,416 —
9,50( 1,35¢
— 23€
(86,35¢) (143,31
(747) (11,56%)
747 12,31
$ — 8 747
$ 7,881 $ 16,50¢
$ — 3 —
$ — 3 958
$ — $ 31¢
$ — $ 214
$ 8 $ 12
$ —  $ 5,72(
$ (12,25) $ —
$ (338,009 $ —
$ (9821) $ —
$ (1,506) $ —
$ (4,78t $ —
$ 63,437 $ —
$ 38,04¢ —
$ 347,52¢ $ =
$ 10,07¢ $ —
$ 17,76: $ —
$ 578: § —
$ 11c $ —
$ 10,63t $ —
$ (35189 $ —




LEX-WIN CONCORD LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Information from January 1, 2010 to August 26, @QRissolution) is Unaudited)

Note 1—Description of Business and Dissolution

Lex-Win Concord LLC (the “Company” and “Lex-Win") a8 created on August 2, 2008. Prior to the Compafiy'mation, its subsidiary Concord Debt HoldingsQ
(“Concord”), a Delaware limited liability compamyas formed on March 31, 2006 to acquire real estatde loans and subordinate real estate debt timezgs such as Betes
mezzanine loans and preferred equity, and comnienre@ estate securities including commercial magy backed securities, collateralized debt obbgatiand real este
mortgage investment conduits. Concord upon its &ion was owned 50% each by Winthrop Realty Tri\tifthrop”) and Lexington Realty Trust (“Lexingtojy’collectively
the Members. In connection with the formation ofn€ord, Lexington contributed existing real estagbtdinvestments and other assets totaling $54,00%Md repurcha
agreements and other liabilities of $32,251,000ictvinad been acquired in anticipation of the foiorabf the venture. Concurrently with the formatiohConcord, Winthro
contributed $10,864,000 in exchange for 50% ofriéeequity of Concord.

Concord Debt Funding Trust is a majority owned g&libsy of the Company through its investment in €amdl and was formed November 3, 2006. Concord Bahting Trus
issued 100,000 common shares and 102 shares ofclhi@%lative redeemable preferred shares and Cormend 100% of the common shares while the prefeshedes al
owned by individuals associated with Winthrop amibgton.

In connection with the formation of the Companyttb®@/inthrop and Lexington contributed their 50%eirsts in Concord and WRP Management LLC (“WRP dannt),
the entity that provided management services tocGuh Real Estate CDO 2006-1, Ltd (“CDO-1"and “ttesuer”), and a whollpwned subsidiary of Concord. W|
Management contracted with WRP Sub-Management L'MZIRP Sub Managementfp act as Administrative Manager to the Companye Becond Amended and Resti
Limited Liability Company Joint Venture Agreemettihd “Joint Venture Agreementdf Concord was amended and restated reflect tlaagdhin legal structure and to ac
Inland America Concord Sub LLC (“Inland”) with adeemable preferred membership interest in Condolahd committed to invest up to $100,000,000 im&wd over a 12-
18 month investment period subject to certain ciooas. The Company will hold 100% of the common rbenship interests in Concord and will serve amighaging member.

On May 22, 2009, a whollpwned subsidiary of Inland filed a legal action iagathe Company and Concord generally seekingadatdry relief that Inland should not
required to satisfy the May 11, 2009 capital cadid®m by Concord in the amount of $24,000,000 andlitiand is entitled to a priority return of itspital. The Company file
counterclaims against Inland which state, in gdnénat Inland is in material breach of their agnemts with the Company and seeking to recoveraléds incurred by it a:
result of such breach.

On August 26, 2010 the Company finalized a settlegragreement to resolve the action which would jgi@¥or, among other things, no obligation on ahyhe parties to mal
additional capital contributions to Concord, théoedtion of distributions equally among Inland, iregton, and Winthrop and the formation of a newitgrtb be owned b
subsidiaries of Inland, Lexington and Winthrop nan@H CDO LLC which purchased 100% of the stockc&fO-1 from Concord.

The settlement agreement triggered simultaneousdrdions that effectively changed the organizasimacture, economics and governance of ConcorH that LexWin was
dissolved and transferred 100% of its interest am€rd to its members, Winthrop and Lexington. Asesult of the concurrent transfer of the Comparsqjuity interests
Concord to Winthrop and Lexington and its diss@nton August 26, 2010, no balance sheet is predastef August 26, 2010, the date of the Compadigsolution.
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LEX-WIN CONCORD LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Information from January 1, 2010 to August 26, @QRissolution) is Unaudited)

Note 2—Going Concern Considerations

The conditions that existed as of December 31, 288%escribed below are indicative of the erdifyotential inability to continue as a going comcérhe financial informatic
included in this report does not include any adiesits that might result from the outcome of thisertainty.

The real estate markets have been significanthaotgual by the continued deterioration of the glatratdit markets and other macro economic factorsa Assult of these a
other factors including increased margin calls amédrd’s repurchase agreements, the Company has expetigmtiger declines in values during the year endedember 3:
2009 to its real estate debt investments and dlaifdr sale securities. This has generated sigifiimpairment charges and difficulty in executsales of select investme
pursuant to certain repurchase agreements. Thal isftategy to issue CDOs and the availabilitynefv financing has effectively been eliminated, mgkihe execution of tl
Company'’s initial strategy unachievable.

Accordingly, the Company is unable to satisfy derts its financial covenants under its loan docuaisdor which it has not yet received waivers ashitechnical default unc
these loans. In addition the Company has me=mn- repayment obligations under its repurchaseemgents. The Company is working with the lendeus,tbere can be 1
assurance that the lenders will grant long-terrhdarance and could exercise their remedies atizey t

In addition, a continued decline in the operatiegigrmance of the underlying collateral of certafrihe Companys available for sale securities and real estateslosay result i
borrowers’inability to meet its debt service coverage, whichild result in additional impairments of loan ass8uch defaults could significantly reduce thehctiow availabl
to the Company for its obligations and also netatesadditional asset sales at disadvantageous.term

In response to the declining real estate and dapigakets the Company may be unable to consumneateis activities that would improve the Companfihancial flexibility
such as the sale of encumbered assets for faie valu

Note 3—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidatior

The consolidated financial statements include teoants of the Company, and its subsidiaries, whigheither majority owned or controlled by the Qamy. The Compat
identifies entities for which control is achievdddugh means other than through voting rights @iable interest entity” or “VIE"and determines when and which busil
enterprise, if any, should consolidate the VIEatidition, the Company discloses information pentajrio such entities wherein the Company is thenary beneficiary or oth
entities wherein the Company has a significantalde interest. All significant intercompany transaes and balances have been eliminated.

Out of Period Adjustment

During 2009, the Company determined that there avaerror in the recognition of fees paid to thetyavhich originated certain loans purchased by @wenpany which i
recorded as a reduction of interest income. The fi2om determined that interest income was overstayegpproximately $594,000 for the year ended D81, 2008. Tt
Company has recorded an adjustment to correcethis in 2009 and determined that adjustment doesnaterially affect the financial statements foy ®f the years presented.
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LEX-WIN CONCORD LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Information from January 1, 2010 to August 26, @QRissolution) is Unaudited)

Note 3—Summary of Significant Accounting PoliciesGontinued)
Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial states@mntonformity with accounting principles geneyadccepted in the United States of America (“GAARQuires manageme
to make estimates and assumptions in determiniagethorted amounts of assets and liabilities asdl@iure of contingent assets and liabilities atdhte of the consolidat
financial statements and the reported amounts wdmge and expenses during the reporting periochif8ignt estimates in the consolidated financialtetents include tl
valuation of the Compang’real estate debt investments and available fler securities and estimates pertaining to creddtudl results could differ materially from th¢
estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with original matuiés of three months or less are considered to bk equivalents. The Company places its cash ardemsvalents in maj
financial institutions.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains cash deposits and restrazsld deposits with major financial institutions,iefhfrom time to time may exceed federally insuliedits. The Compan
believes it mitigates its risk of loss by maintaigiits cash deposits with major financial instibus. To date, the Company has not experiencedossgs$ of its cash deposits. F
estate debt investments and available for saleritiesican potentially subject the Company to conicgions of credit risk. Management of the Comppasforms ongoing crec
evaluations of borrowers and valuations of the peaperty and interests that collateralize the Camyfs investments.

Within its real estate debt investment portfolise tCompany holds 11 impaired loans with related loss allowances at December 31, 2009, six of whie norperforming
loans that subject the Company to a concentrafienedlit risk. See Note 7.

Restricted Casl

The Company had restricted cash of $25,369,000eaemDber 31, 2009 which included $20,726,000 in geds from the repayment of principal of real estiget investmen
that the Company is required to reinvest underntéhms of its CDO indenture. The remaining balanc#49643,000 at December 31, 2009 represents fgnofirfuture lendin
commitments for certain real estate debt investmastwell as amounts held in escrow accounts etemll.

Real Estate Debt Investmen

The majority of real estate debt investments aresictered to be held for investment. Such investmang recorded at cost. Discounts and premiumsuechased assets .
amortized over the life of the investment using ¢ffective interest method. The amortization ideeted as an adjustment to interest income. Otbstsdncurred in connecti
with acquiring loans, such as marketing and adriratise costs, are charged to expense as incurred.

Real Estate Debt Investment Impairme

The Company considers a real estate debt investffieah”) impaired when, based upon current information arehts, it is probable that it will be unable toleot all amount
due for both principal and interest according t® ¢bntractual terms of the loan agreement. The @ompelieves its loans are collateral dependent @arwbrdingly, it general
utilizes the fair value of the loan collateral whessessing its loans for impairment. If the faiueeof the collateral is equal to or greater thaanecorded investment in the Ic
no impairment is recognized. Specific valuatiomaknces are established for impaired loans basddeofair value of collateral on an individual loan
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LEX-WIN CONCORD LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Information from January 1, 2010 to August 26, @QRissolution) is Unaudited)

Note 3—Summary of Significant Accounting PoliciesGontinued)

basis. The fair value of the collateral is detemuimy selecting the most appropriate valuation odltogy. These methodologies include the evaluatiooperating cash flo
from the collateral during the projected holdingipé, and the estimated saleslue of the collateral computed by applying anested capitalization rate to the stabilized
operating income of the specific property, discednat market discount rates. If upon completiothefvaluation, the fair value of the underlyinglrestate collateralizing tl
impaired loan is less than the net carrying valughe loan, a specific loan allowance is createthwsi corresponding charge to the provision for lsses. The allowance
each loan is maintained at a level deemed adetyateanagement to absorb potential losses.

In addition, a formula specific loss allowance niegyestablished to cover performing loans whenv@jlable information indicates that it is probabléoss has occurred in
portfolio and (ii) the amount of the loss can bas@nably estimated in accordance with FASB guidantdoss contingencies. Required loss allowancarals for th
performing loan portfolio are derived from prob#i®@k of default and loss severity estimates assigio each loan as part of the Companguarterly internal risk ratit
assessment. Probabilities of principal loss ancersgvfactors are based on industry and/or inteegerience and may be adjusted for significantofacthat, based «
management’s judgment, impact the collectabilityhef loans.

Income Recognition for Impaired Real Estate Debtviestment:

The Company recognizes interest income on impaired;performing real estate debt investments usiagash-basis method.
Real Estate Debt Investments Held for Si

The Company reports real estate debt investmeitdsdresale at the lower of cost or fair value.

Available for Sale Securitie

The Company evaluates its portfolio of available gale securities for other-tha@mporary impairment by conducting and documengiagodic reviews of all securities w
unrealized losses to evaluate whether the impairisesther than temporary. Any credit-related inmpegnt on debt securities the Company does nottplaell and is not more-
likely-than-not to be required to sell is recognize the Consolidated Statement of Operations, thighnon-creditelated impairment recognized in other comprehenkiss. Fc
other impaired debt securities, the entire impairhi® recognized in the Consolidated Statementper&tions.

The Company recognizes interest income on its @lstbf available for sale securities by estimatthg excess of all cash flows attributable to tbeusity estimated at tl
measurement date over the Company’s initial investnin the security using the effective yield methBiscounts attributable to previously recogningder-thantemporan
impairment charges are recognized in interest ircomthe effective interest method based uponxbess of all estimated prospective cash flows tiveinvestment balance
the loan security at the measurement date. The @oynpill accrete certain impairment discounts aherremaining life of the securities using the efifee interest method.

During the period from January 1, 2010 to August2®10 and the year ended December 31, 2009, thep&uy recognized in interest income accretion s€alints totalin
$637,000 and $1,071,000, respectively.

Deferred Financing Cost:

Fees and costs incurred to obtain Idegn financing have been deferred and are beingt&®d over the terms of the related financing,aobasis which approximates
effective interest method.
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LEX-WIN CONCORD LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Information from January 1, 2010 to August 26, @QRissolution) is Unaudited)

Note 3—Summary of Significant Accounting PoliciesGontinued)
Real Estate Properties Held For Sa— Discontinued Operations

Real estate properties held for sale are compa§eglal property collateralizing certain loans thets acquired by foreclosure. Real estate thatdsieed by foreclosure and h
for sale is recorded at the lower of its carryimgoant or fair value less cost to sell and is ngtrdeiated.

Impairment charges, when applicable, are recordeal \aaluation allowance with a loss from forecloasdets held for sale recognized in the incomersit. Any expenditu
that significantly improves the estimated fair \&abf the assets may be capitalized.

Non-Controlling Interests

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted RABB provisions on non-controlling interests (pomsly known as “minority interests”)The adoption of this ne
accounting standard resulted in (i) the reclas#ifinn of minority interests in consolidated subaiiis to noreontrolling interests in consolidated subsidiar@s;omponent
permanent equity on the Company’s Consolidatedrigal&sheet, (ii) the reclassification of minorityerest expense to net income attributable to cmntrolling interests on tl
Company'’s consolidated statements of operationscantprehensive income, and (iii) additional disales, including consolidated statements of chaimgesembers’capital
The implementation of this standard had no effecth® Companyg results of operations. However on the Consoldi&alance Sheet as a result of the adoption, thepaay
reclassified certain non-controlling interests &manent equity from the mezzanine section whitileéd approximately $114,000 as of December 31920Re remaining non-
controlling interests related to redeemable prefémterests which continue to be classified inrttezzanine section was $5,720,000 as of Decemh&089.

Allocations of members’ capital and the ncontrolling redeemable preferred interest are deted in accordance with the governing documentaicord. At each reportil
period, Concord performs a hypothetical liquidatiohthe members’ capital and n@ontrolling redeemable preferred interests as & fasthese allocations. As a result of
analysis, the Company was allocated net losses dmenations for the period from January 1, 2018ugust 26, 2010 and the year ended December 338, @0$95,253,000 ar
$156,306,000 and net losses of $68,709,000 weczadéld to the nonentrolling redeemable preferred interest. The uh@ecrued preferred return was $5,720,0C
December 31, 2009.

As of December 31, 2009, Concord did not distrilBer20,000 of the total $8,427,000 accrued psianiterest payable to satisfy the 10% preferredrrebn Inlands investe
capital and was not in compliance with the TotabDieimit as defined in Concord’operating agreement. As a result, Concord isimedjto accrue and distribute to Inlanc
priority return at a rate of 13% per annum untitstime as Concord is able to comply with theseeoawnts.

Member¢ Capital
Capital contributions, distributions and profitddnsses are allocated in accordance with the tefrtitee Joint Venture Agreement.
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is comprised of natrives as presented in the consolidated statemerdpeshtions, adjusted for changes in unrealizedsgar losses on de
securities available for sale and changes in therédue of derivative financial instruments accthfor as cash flow hedges.
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LEX-WIN CONCORD LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Information from January 1, 2010 to August 26, @QRissolution) is Unaudited)

Note 3—Summary of Significant Accounting PoliciesGontinued)
Income Taxes

Concord Debt Funding Trust is organized and corditstoperations to qualify as a real estate imeest trust and to comply with the provisions of theernal Revenue Co
with respect thereto. A real estate investment feugenerally not subject to federal income taxt@portion of its REIT taxable income (“Taxabhedme”),which is distribute
to its stockholders, provided that at least 90% afable Income is distributed and certain otheuiregnents are met.

Income taxes are not considered in the accompanyamgolidated financial statements since the Compamot a taxable entity. Taxes on income, asiepple, are th
responsibility of the individual Members; accordingio provision for federal or state income takas been recorded.

The Company reviews its tax positions under acdngrguidance which requires that a tax position maly be recognized in the financial statementsig more likely than nc
that the tax position will prevail if challenged byx authorities. The Company believes it is mdtely than not that our tax positions will be suséal in any tax examinatic
We have no income tax expense, deferred tax assetsferred tax liabilities associated with anyrsumcertain tax positions for the operations of angity included in th
consolidated results of operations.

Derivatives and Hedging Activitie

The Company measures its designated and qualitienigative instruments at fair value and recorasnihin the Consolidated Balance Sheets as an asihibty, depending o
the Companys rights or obligations under the applicable denxacontract. Fair value adjustments will be relgat in accumulated other comprehensive income roiregs ir
the current period based on whether the derivéinancial instrument is designated and qualifiesadsedging instrument. The effective portions oérdes in fair value
designated and qualifying instruments are repdrtedher comprehensive income and are subsequetigssified into earnings when the hedged itemcésfearnings.

The changes in fair value of derivative instrumemkéch are not designated as hedging instrumerdgtanineffective portions of hedges are recordeearnings for the curre
period.

The Company utilizes derivative financial instrurtgeto reduce exposure to fluctuations in interagts. The Company has not entered, and does mot@knter, into financi
instruments for trading or speculative purposedifdahally, the Company has a policy of only enterinto derivative contracts with major financiakfitutions. The princip
financial instruments used by the Company are éstenate swaps.

Note 4—Changes in Accounting Principles
Other-than-temporary impairments

On April 1, 2009, the Company adopted newly issaecbunting guidance that amended the existing attmumodel for evaluating whether declines in thie value of det
securities are other-than-temporary in nature. iBusly, declines in the fair value of a debt seyuwere generally considered to be other-ttkemporary in nature unless
investor could positively assert that it had theei and ability to hold the security long enoughrécover its amortized cost basis. The guidangeires that an invest
recognize other-thatemporary impairment for (a) those securities thatinvestor has the present intent to sell otl{b$e securities that it will more likely than rie require
to sell before the anticipated recovery. For theseurities that the Company does not have the pr@gent to sell or for which it is not more likethan not it will be required
sell, the Company must recognize only credit logsesmrnings. Non-credit losses are recognizeddmege to other comprehensive income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Information from January 1, 2010 to August 26, @QRissolution) is Unaudited)

Note 4—Changes in Accounting Principles (Continued)

For other-thartemporary impairment charges recognized in prioiogs, the newly issued accounting guidance reduine Company to assess whether (a) it had thatiid
sell, (b) more likely than not would have been izl to sell the related securities and (c) forsthmot meeting these criteria (a) and (b), detegrtfive decline in fair val
attributable to non-credit factors and recognize¢bmulative of initially applying the newly issugdidance as an adjustment to the opening balaneembers’'capital with ¢
corresponding adjustment to accumulated other cehgmrsive income.

The cumulative effect of the Company’s adoptiontte# newly issued accounting guidance resulted innarease to membersapital of $23,294,000 and a correspon
decrease to other comprehensive income totalingt$23000.

Nor-controlling interests

The consolidated financial statements reflect aentetrospective revisions of prior period amoumesulting from the adoption and retrospective i@pgibn of newly adopte
accounting guidance on related to non-controllittgriests. The revisions had no impact on previotegiprted net income.

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adoptedwattagy guidance which establishes and expands atioguand reporting standards for entities thathawtstanding minori
interests which are re-characterized as oomtrolling interests in a subsidiary. It requiremsolidated net income to be reported at amotatsinclude the amounts attribute
to both the parent and the noantrolling interest. It also requires disclosuretbe face of the consolidated statements of ojpeiind comprehensive income, of the amour
consolidated net income attributable to the paaentto the non-controlling interest. Previouslyt, ineome attributable to the naontrolling interest generally was reported a
expense in arriving at consolidated net incomes Euoption resulted in (i) the reclassificationn@ifority interests in consolidated subsidiariesxtm-controlling interests i
consolidated subsidiaries, a component of permaeguity on the Company’Consolidated Balance Sheet, (ii) the reclassifinaof minority interest expense to net incc
attributable to non-controlling interests on then@any’s consolidated statements of operations amdpeehensive income, and (iii) additional disclesuelating to non-
controlling interests.

Note 5—Fair Value Measurement

On January 1, 2008, the Company adopted guidanckifovalue measurements and the fair value opfiwrfinancial assets and liabilities. This guidardefines fair valu
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, @xpands disclosures about fair value measuremehné guidance applies to reported balances thaeguired or permitte
to be measured at fair value under existing acdéogmronouncements. Accordingly, the standard deesequire any new fair value measurements ofrtegdalances. Ca
equivalents, available for sale securities, denreafinancial instruments, impaired real estatetdebestments and real estate debt investmentsfhelshle are reported at f
value.

The accounting standards emphasize that fair valaanarket-based measurement, not an espigcific measurement. Therefore, a fair value nreasent should be determir
based on the assumptions that market participantsdawuse in pricing the asset or liability. As aisafor considering market participant assumptionfair value measuremer
the standards establish a fair value hierarchy disinguishes between market participant assumgtimsed on market data obtained from sources emdept of the reportit
entity (observable inputs that are classified withévels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy) and the repgréntity’s own assumptions about market participant assomgp{unobservab
inputs classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy).

Level 1 inputs utilize unadjusted quoted pricesdtive markets for identical assets or liabilitieat the Company has the ability to access. Leviapgts are inputs other th
quoted prices included in Level 1 that are obsdev&dy the asset or liability, either directly ardirectly. Level 2 inputs may include quoted prié@ssimilar assets and liabiliti
in active markets, as well as inputs that are ofadde for the asset or liability other than quofeites, such as interest rates, foreign excharigs,rand yield curves that .
observable at commonly quoted intervals.
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(Information from January 1, 2010 to August 26, @QRissolution) is Unaudited)

Note 5—Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the tagsdiability which are typically based on an éyts own assumptions, as there is little, if any, teglamarket activity. |
instances where the determination of the fair vaheasurement is based on inputs from differentisegtthe fair value hierarchy, the level in thér faalue hierarchy withi
which the entire fair value measurement falls isdobhon the lowest level input that is significamthe fair value measurement in its entirety. Tlwen@anys assessment of 1
significance of a particular input to the fair valmeasurement in its entirety requires judgmernt,camsiders factors specific to the asset or ligbil

Level 1 securities include highly liquid governmeéiinds, mortgage products and exchamgded equities. If quoted market prices are natilable, then fair values ¢
estimated by using pricing models, quoted pricesemfurities with similar characteristics, or disatmd cash flows, which would generally be clasdifigthin Level 2 of th
valuation hierarchy. Examples of such instrumenttude certain derivative financial instrumentscases where there is limited activity or lessgpamency around inputs to
valuation, securities are classified within Levedf3he valuation hierarchy. Securities classifigthin Level 3 include, for example, residual irgsts in securitizations and ot
less liquid securities.

In October 2008 the Company adopted amendmentetguidance for fair value measurements which peelarification that determination of fair valuean inactive mark
depends on facts and circumstances and may retjeingse of significant judgment to determine whetiegtain individual transactions are forced ligatidns or distressed sal
In cases where the volume and level of tradingvéigtfor an asset has declined substantially, thelable prices vary significantly over time or amgomarket participants, or t
prices are not current, observable inputs mightoeotelevant and could require material adjustmeraddition, the amended guidance also clarifies broker or pricing servi
quotes may be appropriate inputs when measurimgvédiie, but are not necessarily determinativenifaative market does not exist for the financiaeasRegardless of t
valuation techniques used, the accounting rulesiredhat an entity include appropriate risk adjustts that market participants would make for nofogpsance and liquidit
risks. The Company has always considered nonpediocsnand liquidity risks in its analysis of loamsl&ollateral underlying its securities and thepabm of this new guidan
did not have a material impact on its consoliddilegincial statements.

The following is a description of the valuation imedologies used for instruments measured at faireyas well as the general classification of smstruments pursuant to 1
valuation hierarchy.

Recurring Measurements

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

The Companys cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash aegally classified within Level 1 or Level 2 of tfedr value hierarchy because they are valued ugiraied marke
prices, broker or dealer quotations, or alternagisieing sources with reasonable levels of prieasparency. The types of instruments valued baseguoted market prices
active markets include most U.S. government saear&nd most money market securities. Such instntsrege generally classified within Level 1 of fa& value hierarchy.

Available for Sale Securiti¢

Broker quotations within Level 1 or Level 2 of theerarchy are obtained if available and practicablanagement typically obtains counterparty quotetifor certain of if
securities that are pledged under certain repuechgeeements. Such counterparty quotations ar@imiedntly based on the use of unobservable inpatisatre considered Le
3 inputs. In addition, the Company uses a tipiadty pricing model to establish values for theusiges in its portfolio. Management also perforfusther analysis of tk
performance of the loans and collateral underlytmgy securities, the estimated value of the cobditeupporting such loans and a consideration diljandustry, and broad
economic trends and factors. Significant judgmenttilized in the ultimate determination of fairlwe. This valuation methodology has been charamdras Level 3 in the f
value hierarchy as defined by FASB guidance farfalue measurements.

15



LEX-WIN CONCORD LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Information from January 1, 2010 to August 26, @QRissolution) is Unaudited)

Note 5—Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

Derivative Financial Instrument

The Company has determined that the inputs usedlte its derivatives fall primarily within Level @ the fair value hierarchy. Currently, the Compaises interest rate swi
to manage its interest rate risk. The valuatiorthefse instruments is determined using widely aeckptluation techniques including discounted casW fanalysis on tF
expected cash flows of each derivative. This amalyeflects the contractual terms of the derivajviacluding the period to maturity, and uses olrgle markebased input
including interest rate curves, and implied voitis. The fair values of interest rate swaps @&temined using the market standard methodologyetifng the discounted futt
fixed cash receipts (or payments) and the discauexpected variable cash payments (or receipt®.vBhnable cash payments (or receipts) are basech @xpectation of futu
interest rates (forward curves) derived from obably market interest rate curves.

The Company incorporates credit valuation adjustmenappropriately reflect both its own nonperfarme risk and the respective counterparhonperformance risk in the {
value measurements. In adjusting the fair valuéoflerivative contracts for the effect of nonpemfiance risk, the Company has considered the implaoetting and ar
applicable credit enhancements, such as collgtestings, thresholds, mutual puts, and guarantees.

Impaired Real Estate Debt Investme

All of the Companys loans identified as being impaired are collatdeglendent loans and are evaluated for impairmenbimparing the fair value of the underlying cadtat tc
the carrying value of each loan. Due to the uninatre of the individual property collateralizifgetCompanys loans, the Company uses the income or markebapipy a
deemed appropriate, through internally developddatenn models to estimate the fair value of thBateral. This approach requires the Company toarggnificant judgmen
in respect to discount rates and the timing anduantsoof estimated future cash flows that are cawsidl Level 3 inputs.

Real Estate Debt Investments Held For ¢

At December 31, 2009, the Company had identifiatd foans meeting the criteria for held-feate treatment. These loans are carried at theivdéue of $66,311,000, whi
represents a decline of $64,143,000 from the Corigasost basis of $130,454,000. This decline invalue has been charged to impairment loss on staleedebt investmel
in the Company'’s consolidated statements of operati

The Company has estimated the fair value of thesestments using current market spreads whichedlective of exit prices using market participassamptions. These ass
fall within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
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Note 5—Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

The table below presents the Compangssets and liabilities measured at fair valuexaecurring basis as of December 31, 2009 aggreédatethe level in the fair vall

hierarchy within which those measurements fall.

in thousands)
Assets

Cash and cash equivalel

Restricted cas

Impaired real estate debt investme
Real estate debt investments held for
Available for sale securitie

Liabilities

Derivative financial instrumen

Changes in Level Three Fair Value Measurements

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for  Significant Other
Significant

Identical Assets Observable Unobservable Balance at

and Liabilities Inputs Inputs December 31,
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2009

$ 747 $ — $ — 3 747
25,36¢ — — 25,36¢
— — 15,47: 15,47:
— — 66,31: 66,31:
— — 83,977 83,977
$ — 3 12,27 $ — 3 12,27:

The tables below includes a roll forward of theanale sheet amounts for the period from Januar10 20 August 26, 2010 and January 1, 2009 to Dbeei®l, 2009
including the change in fair value, for financiakiruments classified by the Company within levedf3he valuation hierarchy. When a determinatismmiade to classify
financial instrument within level 3 of the valuatihierarchy, the determination is based upon theifstance of the unobservable factors to the di/&al value measurement.

Period Ended August 26, 201!
(in thousands)

Fair value, January 1, 20:
Transfers in/and or out of level
Included in statement of operatiol
Net impairment losses recognized in earni
Provision for loan loss contingenci
Amortization of discoun
Unrealized impairment loss
Purchases, issuances and settlement:
Sale of investment
Dissolution adjustmer
Fair value, August 26, 201

Available For
Sale Securities

Real Estate Deb
Impaired Real
Estate Debt Investments
Investments Held for Sale

$ 83977 $ 1547: $ 66,31
(3,879 — —
— (4,079 —
637 11¢ —
(5,779 — —
13,24 (17) —
(1,54¢) — —
(86,669 (11,49) (66,31)
$ — % — % —
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

LEX-WIN CONCORD LLC

(Information from January 1, 2010 to August 26, @QRissolution) is Unaudited)

Note 5—Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

Year Ended December 31, 200
(in thousands)

Fair value, January 1, 20!

Transfers infand or out of level

Included in statement of operatiol
Accretion income on realized loss
Impairment losses on real estate debt investmeatdsfar sale
Net impairment losses recognized in earni
Provision for loan loss contingenci
Amortization of discoun

Unrealized impairment loss

Purchases, issuances and settlement:

Sale of investment

Fair value, December 31, 20

Note 6—Real Estate Debt Investments

Real Estate Deb

Impaired Real

Available For Estate Debt Investments
Sale Securities Investments Held for Sale
$ 118,49. $ 65,63¢ $ —

— 11,73 276,24:
1,071 — —

= = (101,02)
(16,302 — —
— (52,147 —
53¢ 17¢ —
(13,468 = =

11 75 (4,857

(6,369 (10,000 (104,049

$ 83,97° $ 1547 $ 66,31:

Real estate debt investments, consisting of wtazled, Brote participation interests, and mezzanine loaresjntended to be held for investment and, acngtyj are carried .
the Companys investment cost basis, net of unamortized loanhase discounts and allowances for loan losses wheh investments are deemed to be impaired. Woate
are loans to borrowers who are typically seekingjitahfor use in property acquisition and are predwntly collateralized by first mortgage liens i@al property. BNotes ar
junior positions of whole loans. Mezzanine loans lmans that are subordinate to a conventional fiiertgage loan, including B Notes and senior ® ltbrrowe’s equity in i
transaction. These loans may be in the form ofréojuparticipating interest in the senior debt. M@zine financing may take the form of loans coti@ieed by pledges

ownership interests in entities that directly afifectly control the real property or subordinakeans collateralized by second mortgage liens emptoperty.

The following table is a summary of the Companyalrestate debt investments at December 31, 28QBdqusands):

Whole loans
B-notes
Mezzanine loan
Loan loss allowanc
Discounts on loan
Total loans

18

Real Estate Deb
Investments,
Net of Allowance

December 31, 20C Loan Count
50,83¢ 4
184,55( 13
303,97¢ 23
(86,03Y) —
(6,060) =
$ 447 27( 40




LEX-WIN CONCORD LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Information from January 1, 2010 to August 26, @QRissolution) is Unaudited)

Note 6—Real Estate Debt Investments (Continued)

The Company had $70,937,000 of impaired princieal estate debt investments with loan loss allowarmaf $55,464,000 at December 31, 2009. The Compacorded
provision for loss allowance in real estate delesiments of $106,150,000 and $80,620,000 for én@¢ from January 1, 2010 to August 26, 2010 (@ligson) and the ye.
ended December 31, 2009, respectively.

The fair value of the Company’s real estate delstments was $244,313,000 at December 31, 2009.

The following table sets forth the activity in tloan allowance for credit losses account balancé® period from January 1, 2010 to August 26,@(issolution) and the ye
ended December 31, 2009 (in thousands):

2010 2009
Balance at beginning of year $ (55,469 $ (26,02)
Charge-offs (1) 3,11¢ 17,90(
Recoveries 42,42 —

Valuation allowanct (111,870 (51,349
Transfers (2 — 4,00(
Dissolution adjustmer 121,79! —

Balance at end of ye: $ — $ (55,469

(1)  The chargeffs of $17,900,000 for the year ended Decembe8@9 represent allowances for which the Compamgcfosed on and the collateral of which was so
obtained through foreclosure sé

(2)  Transfers represent loan allowances on real edédteinvestments that were transferred to reateefdan assets held for sa
Credit Risk Concentrations

As of December 31, 2009 no loan exceeded 10% o€tmapany’s assets and for the year ended Decenh@089 no single loan generated more than 10%efCompanys
revenue.

Note 7—Real Estate Debt Investments Held For Sale

Due to the disruption in the capital and credit kess, the continued decline in the fair value & @ompanys assets, and the covenant failures on its delititz; the Compan
was required to identify certain assets to be sotarder to reduce its outstanding balances odeatst.

During 2009 the Company sold six loans that wegiated as real estate debt investments heldfewghich resulted in losses of $17,566,000.

The Company was not able to completely satisfyrdéfsayment obligation on the Column facility of $800,000 by December 31, 2009 and identified foal estate de
investments which were sold in 2010 and the Compenggnized additional losses of $545,000 fromehesnsactions and used the proceeds to repay @chmeh satisfy tt
remaining accelerated repayment schedule requirédebmodification.
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Note 8—Available for Sale Securities

The Company had a portfolio of loan securitiesdalsferred to as available for sale securities)cihincludes investments in CDO securities, poolelhteralized mortgac
backed securities (“CMBS”gnd rake bonds. These bonds are accounted foradlalde for sale securities and, accordingly, aegkad to fair value on a quarterly basis bi
upon management’s assessment of fair value. Thep@oy's portfolio of available for sale securities wasngoised of purchased beneficial interests in 36 @WBnsisting ¢
both Pool and Rake bonds and three CDOs at Dece3ib@009.

In April 2009 the Company adopted new accountingiguce on investments in debt and equity secunigkged to determining whether an impairment fMestments in de
securities is other-than-temporary. As a resulthef adoption, the Company recognized a cumulafiect adjustment to retained earnings of $23,282 & of April 1, 200!
with a corresponding adjustment to accumulatedratbmprehensive loss.

The amortized cost and fair value of securitieslalike-for-sale at December 31, 2009 was as folliwshousands):

Gross Unrealizec  Gross Unrealizec

Amortized

December 31, 200! Cost (1) Gains Losses Fair Value
CMBS

Rake Bond: $ 60,66¢ $ — $ (13,804 $ 46,86¢

Pool Bonds 59,52 2,17¢ (25,04¢) 36,65:

Total CMBS 120,18¢ 2,17¢ (38,849 83,51%
CDO 46C — — 46C
Total available for sale securiti $ 120,64¢ $ 2,17¢  $ (38,84 $  83,97.

(1)  Amortized cost basis includes adjustments ntadke cost of an investment for accretion, amatiin, collection of cash, and previous other-ttemporary impairmen
recognized in earning

The table below shows the fair value of investmémivailable for sale securities that have beesniminrealized loss position for less than 12 mepthfor 12 months or long
(in thousands).

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
December 31, 200! Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
CMBS
Rake Bond: $ 52 $ (986) $ 4523 $ (12,819 $ 4528: $ (13,80Y
Pool Bonds 4,51: (3,126 20,18 (21,919 24,69¢ (25,049
Total CMBS 4,56° (4,112 65,41+ (34,73) 69,97¢ (38,849
CDO — — — — — —
Total available for sale securiti $ 4,565 $ (4,112 $ 6541+ $ (34,73) $ 69,97¢ $ (38,849
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Note 8—Available for Sale Securities (Continued)
The following table presents the amortized costfairdvalue of debt securities available for sajecbntractual maturity dates as of December 319Z080thousands).

December 31, 200!

Amortized
Cost Fair Value

CMBS—Rake Bond:

Due within 1 yea $ 36,50t $ 28,10%

After 1 but within 5 year 13,08¢ 9,75(

After 5 but within 10 year 11,07: 9,007

After 10 years — —
Total CMBS—Rake Bond: 60,66 46,86+
CMBS—Pool Bonds

Due within 1 yea 33,73¢t 17,277

After 1 but within 5 year 18,60¢ 10,02

After 5 but within 10 year 7,177 9,35:

After 10 years — —
Total CMBS—Pool Bonds 59,52: 36,65¢
CDO

Due within 1 yea — —

After 1 but within 5 year — —

After 5 but within 10 year 46C 46C

After 10 years — —
Total 46C 46C
Total available for sale securiti $ 120,64¢ $ 83,97

Interest income on the available for sale securifig the period from January 1, 2010 to AugustZ8,0 (Dissolution) and year ended December 319 205 $3,523,000 a
$4,320,000, respectively.

Evaluating Investments for Ott-than-Temporary Impairments

The Company conducts periodic reviews to identifg avaluate each investment that has an unredti®zsdAn unrealized loss exists when the currentdue of an individuz
security is less than its amortized cost basisebliwed losses that are determined to be tempanamgture are recorded in accumulated other conemigte loss for available-
for-sale securities.

The Company has assessed each position for cnepltiiment. Securities for which the amortized dugis exceeds fair value are assessed to detewhiether the Compa
has the present intent to sell the security in titiase the entire difference between the amortipstibasis and fair value is recognized in earnagyan other than tempor
impairment (“OTTI").If the Company determines that it will more likehan not be required to sell securities for whioh &mortized cost basis exceed fair value themlies
difference between fair value and amortized cosisbia recognized in earnings as an other thandeanpimpairment.
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Note 8—Available for Sale Securities (Continued)

For securities that the Company does not intergklip and does not believe it is more likely than that it will be required to sell, managementfpens additional analysis
determine whether or not it will recover its ampetil cost basis in the investment. Declines inalue attributable to credit events are recogniagdther than tempore
impairment recognized in earnings while declingstattable to other factors are recognized in ottenprehensive loss.

Factors considered in determining whether a logsnigporary or other than temporary include:

The length of time and the extent to which fairmeahas been below amortized cost b
Adverse conditions specifically related to the siéguan industry, or a geographic an
The historical and implied volatility of the faialue of the security

The payment structure of the debt secu

Failure of the issuer of the security to make sakedtlinterest or principal paymen
Any changes to the rating of the security by thengaagency; ani

Recoveries or additional declines in fair valuessduent to the balance sheet d

The Company’s review for impairment generally estai

Identification and evaluation of investments thatd indications of possible impairme

Analysis of individual investments that have faalues less than amortized cost, including consiereof the length of time the investment has beemr
unrealized loss position and expected recovenpgde

Discussion of evidential matter, including an ewion of factors or triggers that could cause imdiial investments to qualify as having other-themporar
impairment and those that would not support (-thar-temporary impairment; ar

Documentation of the results of these analysese@sred under business policir

A critical component of the evaluation for otheatttemporary impairments is the identification of dtechpaired securities where management does nutaxo receive ca
flows sufficient to recover the entire amortizedicbasis of the security. The extent of the Comfsaagalysis regarding credit quality and the st@sassumptions used in 1
analysis has been refined for securities whereaméed by the current fair value or other charasties of the security.

The following table presents the total other-themporary impairments recognized for the periodnfréanuary 1, 2010 to August 26, 2010 (Dissolutiamdl the year end
December 31, 2009 (in thousands).

2010 2009

Impairment losses related to securities which them@any does not intend to sell or is not more yikbkn not that it will be required to se
Total OTTI losses recognized during the pel $ 3874 $  24,82¢
Less: portion of OTTI loss recognized in other coel@nsive los — (13,46%)

Net impairment losses recognized in earnings foustes that the Company does not intend to &l onore likely than not that will not t
required to sel 3,87¢ 11,35¢
Plus OTTI Losses recognized in earnings for seesrthat the Company intends to sell or is r-likely-thar-not will be required to se — 4,94¢
Total impairment losses recognized in earni $ 3872 $ 16,30:
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Note 8—Available for Sale Securities (Continued)
The roll forward of the credit-related position ogoized in earnings for all securities still hetdad December 31, 2009 is as follows: (in thousands

Cumulative Other-Than-Temporary Impairment Credit Losses Recognized in Eeings for
Available-for-Sale Debt Securities

Credit
Credit impairments Reductions due
Beg Balance impairments recognized in
Adjustment to recognized in earnings on to sales or
Other earnings on securities that maturities of
Comprehensive securities not have been credit impaired
December 31 previously previously December 31
2008 Balance Loss impaired impaired securities 2009 Balance
CMBS
Rake Bond: $ 1093¢ $ (9,09 $ 68¢ $ 94¢  $ — % 3,481
Pool Bonds 45,89¢ (15,49) = 9,70t (3,009 37,10:
Total CMBS 56,83 (24,58¢) 68¢ 10,65¢ (3,009) 40,58:
CDO 27,87t — — 4,95¢ — 32,83
Total $ 84,70¢ $ (24,580 $ 68 $ 15,61 $ (3,009 $ 73,41¢

The Company does not intend to sell nor does iebelit will be required to sell bond with lossesrently deferred in accumulated other comprehenkiss.

Note 9—Variable Interest Entities

The Company evaluated its investments to determinether they constitute a variable interest in eabde interest entity (“VIE"). The FASB' accounting guidance
consolidation requires a VIE to be consolidatedtbyprimary beneficiary. The primary beneficiarytie party that absorbs a majority of the \dEnticipated losses and/c
majority of the expected returns.

In connection with and subsequent to the formatibthe Company, Concord was determined not to W&Eaentity but rather consolidated Concord pursuardlternative FAS
guidance related to partnerships since the Compatlye functional equivalent of a general partr@@n. August 19, 2009, Concord received an infusioradditional capite
totaling approximately $10,150,000 million in tharrh of a capital contribution of $1,700,000 milliomade by the Company and shtatm demand notes totaling $8,360,
million, which were subsequently repaid upon thie gd certain of Concorg’ assets. These proceeds, which were used to pay debt and settle five interest rates sw
resulted in the reconsideration of Concer¥IE status. In connection with this reconsidematévent, the Company determined that ConcordvtEasince it is not sufficientl
capitalized to finance its activities primarily dtethe significant decline in the fair value of dssets.

The Company determined that it was the primary fieiney of this VIE since it absorbs the majoritf/expected residual returns and therefore continaewdnsolidate Concord.

Under the accounting guidance on consolidationgetisea requirement to measure the assets, liabilind norecontrolling interests of the newly consolidated \dEtheir fai
values at the date that the reporting entity becothe primary beneficiary. However, because theany beneficiary of the VIE, the Company, and tH& \Concord, are und
common control and, as discussed above, Concoraineesdy consolidated in prior periods, albeit urdifferent guidance, no fair value adjustment wesessary.
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Note 9—Variable Interest Entities (Continued)

At December 31, 2009 the Company identified cerntaal estate debt investments with aggregate caynyalues of $21,465,000. These investments wesmedd VIEs primaril
based on the fact that the equity investment &tisisiot sufficient to permit the entity to finanite activities without additional financial suppofhe Company has determit
that it is not the primary beneficiary of the VIBs it does not have voting or other rights thaivalthe Company to exercise control over the borrosveity nor do they ha
participation features which the Company would éguired to absorb expected losses or be entitleddeive expected residual returns of the borrosveities. For the ye
ended December 31, 2009 no events occurred thdtlwause the Company to reconsider the VIE stdittisese debt investments.

Note 10—Repurchase Agreements
The following table outlines borrowings under then@bany’s repurchase agreements as of Decembef3; 2

December 31, 200!
Collateral Carrying

Debt Carrying
in thousands) Vaue Value (3)
Royal Bank of Scotland, PLC, successor in intei@&reenwich Capital Financial Products, Inc., megwon February 1, 2012, interest is
variable based or-month LIBOR rate plus 1% or 1.23% and 2.04% respelgt $ 5955( $ 71,53(
Royal Bank of Scotland, PLC, successor in intei@&reenwich Capital Financial Products, Inc., medwon January 15, 2011, interest is
variable based on-month LIBOR rate plus 1% or 1.23% and 1.51% respelgt 3,54: 6,452

Column Financial Inc., variable interest based -month LIBOR plus 1%, the rate was 1.47% at Decer8tef008. (1 — —

Column Financial Inc., expiration December 31, 20f@terest is variable based on 1-month LIBOR (li85% to 1.35%, the weighted average
was 1.27%, and 1.49%, respectively. 71,97 74,27¢

Total repurchase agreeme $ 135,06: $ 152,25¢

(1) In February 2009, the repurchase agreement wasnied and the asset which was subject to thisrcbpse agreement was added to the multiple loaet eesgsurchas
agreement. The multiple loan asset repurchase rgrgevas modified to provide that the interest,rataturity date and advance rate, with respediemsset added to -
multiple loan asset repurchase facility, would rémes it was under the specific repurchase agreel

(2)  On April 14, 2009, the multiple loan asset repusghagreement was modified as discussed al

(3) Collateral carrying value equals face valus lesnd discounts, unrealized gains and losses thed-thantemporary impairment losses plus bond premiumsuamealize:
gains.
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Note 10—Repurchase Agreements (Continued)
Upon the dissolution of the Company the repurclz@seement liabilities were assumed by the Compauycsessor.
The fair value of the Company’s repurchase agreésneas $79,358,000 at December 31, 2009.

In certain circumstances, the Company financedpilmehase of its real estate debt investments aadaale for sale securities from a counterpartyotigh a repurcha
agreement with the same counterparty. The Compasords these investments in the same manner asimtiestments financed with debt whereby the inwestt recorded is
an asset and the related borrowing as a liabilityhee Company Consolidated Balance Sheet. Interest income éaynehe investments and interest expense incumetthe
repurchase obligations are reported separatelii@ndnsolidated statements of operations.

Under the terms of the repurchase facility withu@@oh, the Company was required to maintain minimigmidity, comprised of cash and cash equivalerftat ¢east $10,000,0(
at all times. The Company had failed these requér@mduring measurements periods in 2010 and 20@@\rer, the Column facility has been satisfiedui f

In July 2009 Royal Bank of Scotland PLC (“RBSiyreed to restructure its agreement with the Compd&he restructuring of the agreement required ducton of thi
outstanding balance by $11,500,000, which wasfeatisn July 31, 2009 as a result of the sale &fzh estate debt investment. Under the RBS repsecfailities the Compal
has a $10,000,000 minimum liquidity requirement.cAttain times during the period from January 11(®2€@ August 26, 2010 (Dissolution) and the yeateehDecember 3
2009 Concords cash balance declined to an amount below thed8QMO0 minimum liquidity requirements. In additidghe RBS repurchase facility required the Comp
maintain a minimum net worth and a maximum indebésd to tangible net worth. The Company failedetees/enants during 2010 and 2009.

Upon the dissolution of the Company the repurclz@seement liabilities were assumed by the Compauycsessor.
Note 11—Revolving Credit Facility

On September 23, 2009, the Company amended arateests agreement with KeyBank. Under the termshisf amendment the credit line was reduced froendhigina
$100,000,000 to the actual outstanding balanc&8§6656,000 as of the date of the agreement. Kek Beceived as additional collateral all remainimpledged assets includi
cash and any previously unencumbered loans andshivedCompany had repurchased. Under the conditibitse agreement, no distributions are alloweddomade to tt
Companys members until KeyBank is fully repaid. The bals lallowed for a maximum of $650,000 per monthparating expenses, however a mandatory monthlyipal
payment of $300,000 plus an additional annual jpaicrepayment of $10,000,000 is required or thenfany will be in default of the loan. The agreemenpires o
December 31, 2010 with rights for three — one ywadensions through December 31, 2013 at the Compapyion subject to the satisfaction of certaimditions.

Borrowings under the facility bear interest ratasdd upon prevailing LIBOR plus an applicable spraraan Alternative Base Rate (“ABR’gs defined. At December 31, 20
the Company'’s borrowings bear interest at LIBORs[800 bps.

The Company had an outstanding balance on thewviegotredit facility of approximately $58,850,0002ecember 31, 2009, which was collateralized Hiysa priority lien or
certain of the Company’s equity interests as welfiest priority perfected liens in certain of t@®mpanys loan assets and bonds with a carrying value 28%69,000. Th
weighted-average interest rate on amounts outstgnas approximately 3.24% during the year endezebBder 31, 2009.
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Note 11—Revolving Credit Facility (Continued)

The terms of the restructured agreement with KekBaaquire the Company to maintain a number of guaty financial and other covenants on an ongoirgisbacluding: i
maximum leverage ratio not to exceed 75%, ii) mimmfixed charge ratio not less than 1:50 to 1:0fiangible net worth cannot be less than twice &lggregate princip
balance of all loans (minimum net worth), iv) cahpayout any restricted payments in excess of 100%et income (maximum payout ratio), v) prohibition additionz
indebtedness.

The Company has failed certain of its covenantsnduthe year ended December 31, 2009, and therefasein default of its agreement with KeyBank. Undee defau
provisions, KeyBank has the right to accelerateyepents and all amounts of principal and accrugetést immediately become due and payable. KeyBasknot exercist
such rights.

The fair value of the revolving credit facility w&48,657,000 at December 31, 2009.
Upon the dissolution of the Company the revolvinedit facility was assumed by the Company’s suamess
Note 12—Collateralized Debt Obligations

CDO-1 holds assets, consisting primarily of whole lganezzanine loans and available for sale secutibiding approximately $444,849,000, which sersecallateral for th
CDO. The CDO-1 issued investment grade rated nmitssa principal amount of approximately $347,5Z8Gand a whollyswned subsidiary of the Company purchased t
and H tranches and preferred equity interests 0D€DThe seven investment grade tranches were isgiikdloating rate coupons with a combined weightsetrage rate
0.71% at December 31, 2009, and has a maturityegEBber 2016. The Company has the ability to duutiei additional assets to the COQhrough December 31, 2011 in or
to replenish the assets of the CDO-1 to the extattan asset of the CDDis repaid prior to such date. Thereafter, thestanting debt balance will be reduced as loan
repaid. The Company incurred approximately $7,70@ &f issuance costs which are being amortized thveaverage estimated life of the COQestimated to be approximat
10 years or when debt is satisfied on a pro ratssb&or accounting purposes, the CDO-1 is conawid in the Compang’financial statements. The seven investment
tranches are treated as a secured financing amtbarecourse to the Company. Interest proceeds recéivadinvestments collateralizing the CDO are dlstred to holders «
the CDO notes on a monthly basis.

The fair value of the collateralized debt obligasavas $201,719,000 at December 31, 2009.

CDO-1 contains covenants that are both financidl mon-financial in nature. Significant covenantslirde cash coverage and collateral quality tesBO@ was in complianc
with its financial covenants at December 31, 2009.

Note 13—Collateralized Support Obligation

The borrower of a $44,000,000 first mezzanine moteed by Concord (the “Notefailed to satisfy its obligation when the Note nretliin February 2008. On March 28, 2
Concord sold the Note at par together with accintsgtest and late charges to an unaffiliated tpady. Concord concluded that this transactionifjedlas a sale pursuant to
accounting guidance for transfers of financial tsss€oncurrently with the sale of the Note, the @any entered into a credit support arrangement @ehtsche Bank (tt
“Bank”) for which Concord, subject to certain terms andditions, was required to return a portion of theghase price of the Note equal to 2.75% of anyt&breceived b
the buyer of the Note on the sale of the underlyea property in satisfaction of the loan.

As consideration for the collateral support arranget, Concord has received cumulative fees of 18R through July 2009. Upon entering into thelatetal suppo
arrangement, Concord determined that it meets titeria of a guarantee pursuant to the accountimgamce for guarantees and estimated the fair velube guarantee
inception to be approximately $50,000.
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Note 13—Collateralized Support Obligation (Continuel)

During July 2009 the Concord received notice thaspant to the credit support arrangement, a evtleficiency was realized on the aggregate reteeds from the sale
the underlying collateral of the Note for which @ond was allocated 2.75% of the total deficiencgcérdingly, a collateral support obligation has beecorded for tF
aggregate liability amount of $9,757,000 at Decen3ie 2009.

On December 10, 2009, a final arbitration rulingsvissued and a settlement amount for Consostiare of the shortfall of $9,598,000 plus pemdisterest and expenses
$159,000 was awarded to the Bank.

Upon the sale of the CDO-1 by the Company the teolidized debt obligation was assumed by the CDHDQDC.
Note 14—Sub-participation obligation

On October 14, 2009, the Company received a pracgpayment of $6,000,000 in partial satisfactém loan collateralized by a hotel located in Néork, NY. In exchange
the Company granted to the borrower waivers ofagetban conditions and agreed to exercise itstsighder the loan in accordance with instructiamsithed by the borrowe
Concurrently with the execution of the agreemdrg, lorrower also purchased spdirticipation interests in certain bonds ownedh® €ompany for approximately $4,500,(
The subparticipation obligation requires the Company tmiteto the borrower principal and interest paymenstseived from the bonds. The collateral for thedsothat ar
subject to the sub-participation obligation aretoafed by the borrower.

In addition, the Company has written certain calii@ns giving the borrower the right to purchase tionds that are subject to the gaticipation obligation. The call optic
are exercisable at the discretion of the borrowangtime through the maturity date of the bondsafepecified strike price. The Company has alstiemra call option for one
the bonds to an unaffiliated third party that isyoexercisable upon either the expiration of thertwer’s call option or the event of default by the boreows specified in tt
option agreement. The Company has determined tieatall options are not derivative instruments, shauld be marked to fair value with changes in ¥aiue recognized
earnings. The fair value of the call options writt® both the borrower and the unaffiliated thitp were not considered material and thereforeehaot been recorded
December 31, 2009.

Note 15—Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company is exposed to certain risks arisinftmth its business operations and economic camditiThe Company principally manages its expostareswide variety ¢
business and operational risks through managenfiétstapre business activities. The Company managesomic risks, including interest rate, liquidiand credit risk primaril
by managing the amount, sources, and durationsofiébt funding and the use of derivative finan@iatruments. Specifically, the Company enters iéoivative financie
instruments to manage exposures that arise frormédsss activities that result in the receipt or paptmof future known and expected cash amountsyahee of which ar
determined by interest rates. The Company’s deviedtnancial instruments are used to manage diffees in the amount, timing, and duration of thenGanys known o
expected cash receipts and its known or expectgdpayments principally related to the Company&gtments and borrowings.

Cash Flow Hedges of Interest Rate Risk

The Companys objectives in using interest rate derivativestaradd stability to interest expense and to marsgexposure to interest rate movements. To actismhis
objective, the Company primarily uses interest s@ps as part of its interest rate risk managersteategy. Interest rate swaps designated as tashhedges involve tt
receipt of variable-rate amounts from a counteyparexchange for the Company making fixede payments over the life of the agreements witleachange of the underlyi
notional amount.
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LEX-WIN CONCORD LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Information from January 1, 2010 to August 26, @QRissolution) is Unaudited)

Note 15—Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued

The effective portion of changes in the fair vabiederivatives designated and that qualify as dkst hedges is recorded in Accumulated Other Cotmgnsive Income (Los
and is subsequently reclassified into earningbénpieriod that the hedged forecasted transactfentafearnings. During the year ended Decembe2@19, such derivatives we
used to hedge the variable cash flows associatédexisting variableate debt. The Company also assesses and docuietfiigt the hedging instruments inception andn
ongoing basis, whether the derivative instrumemés haghly effective in achieving offsetting changesthe cash flows attributable to the hedged itefitee Company hi
recorded changes in fair value related to the @ffegortion of its interest swap contracts destgdaand qualifying as cash flow hedges totalingnenease of $16,539,000
the period from January 1, 2010 to August 26, 2(i8solution) and a decrease of $16,539,000 forytrar ended December 31, 2009. This change wasmpaeent of othe
liabilities and accumulated other comprehensive eghin the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Designated Hedge

On August 19, 2009, the Company terminated fiverggt rate swap agreements consisting of four dat#d cash flow hedging instruments with a notimadiie of $54,375,0(
and one hedging derivative not designated as aftmsthedge with a notional value of $11,000,008eTcost to terminate the five hedges was $ 8,221 A0oss of $74,0C
which includes a termination fee was recognizedHerperiod ended December 31, 2009.

The Company has recorded changes in fair valuéecelm the deferred loss on the cancellation cérigdt rate swaps totaling an decrease of $5,870d@0e period fror
January 1, 2010 to August 26, 2010 (Dissolutiom),irecrease of $5,870,000 for the year ended Decef1he2009. This change was a component of otlzduiliies ant
accumulated other comprehensive loss within the @omy's Consolidated Balance Sheet at December(8B.2

There was no ineffective portion of the changeain Yalue of the designated hedges recognizedttirgcearnings during the year ended Decembe2809. The Compat
completed the restructuring as discussed in Na@rdlthe deferred loss was reclassified as lossvasdrecognized in earnings for the period from aana, 2010 to August 2
2010.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company had the fafigwoutstanding interest rate derivatives that wagsignated as cash flow hedges of interest rakewhich mature i
August 2016:

Interest Rate Derivative Number of Instruments Notional

Interest Rate Sway 2 $137,887,00
Nor-designated Hedges

Derivatives not designated as hedges are not sia@ibnd are used to manage the Commaayposure to interest rate movements and othatifiéel risks but do not meet t
strict hedge accounting requirements of derivativ&sanges in the fair value of derivatives not gieated in hedging relationships are recorded dyréictearnings and we
equal to $683,686 of income for the year ended Bxeee 31, 2009.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Information from January 1, 2010 to August 26, @QRissolution) is Unaudited)

Note 15—Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued

The table below presents the fair value of the Camyjs derivative financial instruments as well as thet@ssification on the Consolidated Balance SheetfdDecember 3
2009 (in thousands):

Liability Derivatives Balance Shee

(in thousands) Location Fair Value
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments UBB&S 132

Interest Rate Swa Other Liabilities  $ 8,71«
Interest Rate Swa Other Liabilities 3,56(
Total derivatives designated as hedging instrumenter SFAS 13 $ 12,27+

Note 16—Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Accumulated other comprehensive loss reflectedemivers’ capital as of August 26, 2010 (Dissolutiandl December 31, 2009 is comprised of the follgwin

in thousands) 2010 2009
Unrealized losses on cash flow hed $ (17,769 $ (12,279
Deferred loss on cancellation of interest rate s (5,209) (6,207)
Unrealized gains/(losses) on availe-for-sale securitie (7,60%) (23,37Y)
Adjustment for cumulative effect of adopting neve@aanting pronoucemel (23,299 (23,299
Dissolution adjustmer 53,86( —
$ — $ (55,149

Note 17—Discontinued Operations

The Company was granted a decree of foreclosune fn@ United States District Court of Ohio on A, 2009 on a mortgage loan asset with a faceswvafli$20,900,000 ai
carrying value of $12,000,000 at the date of fareate. As a result of the decree, the Court gratitedCompany a permanent order of possession overaperties, whic
represented the collateral on the loan, and a limsare sale occurred on October 7, 2009 at whitle the Company was the successful bidder and exteitle to six multi-
family Ohio residential properties with an estintafeir value of $11,202,000.

For the period from January 1, 2010 to August Z8,2(Dissolution), two of the properties were sfild an aggregate net selling price of $2,818,000 faur properties we
sold during the period ended December 31, 200%ifioaggregate net selling price of $7,676,000 whicluded a $955,000 short term seller financing thas repaid by tt
borrower on April 7, 2010.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Information from January 1, 2010 to August 26, @QRissolution) is Unaudited)

Note 17—Discontinued Operations (Continued)

The combined results related to discontinued omeratfor the period from January 1, 2010 to Aud&t2010 (Dissolution) and the year ended Decer@bef009 were ¢
follows (in thousands):

2010 2009
Total revenues $ 15¢  $ 33z
Total expense (422) (1,297
Loss on discontined operatio (708) —
Loss from discontinued operatio $ 971 $ (959

Note 18—Dividends

In order for the Compang’consolidated subsidiary, Concord Debt FundingsfTto maintain its election to qualify as a RETmust distribute, at a minimum, an amount e
to 90% of its taxable income to its shareholders. the year ended December 31, 2009, dividends e@rgrised of 100% ordinary dividends. Becauseliexancome differ
from cash flow from operations due to non-cashmees and expenses, the Company may generate agezash flow in amounts below or in excess of igdeénds.

At December 31, 2009, the Company’s members’ capia $289,798,000 for federal tax reporting pugsoas compared to $58,780,000 for financial repgriurposes.
Note 19—Related Party Transactions

WRP SubManagement LLC

Since January 1, 2007, WRP Management has retdititid Sub-Management to perform accounting collateeiagement and loan brokerage services.

On August 2, 2008, the Company, WRP ManagementVdR®P Sub-Management entered into an Administratioth Advisory Agreement whereby WRP Shtanagemer
became the Administrative Manager to provide dagdy management, collateral management and adnaitivgrservices for the Company. For providing thesmageme!
services, WRP Subtanagement is entitled to receive a base manageieequal to five basis points multiplied by tb&at assets of the Company. The Administrative N
is also entitled to receive loan acquisition feasdu on pre-determined budgeted amount and reiethers for actual out-gfocket expenses. Related party fees and exg
paid for the period from January 1, 2010 to Audit2010 (Dissolution) and the year ended Decer@beP009 are as follows (in thousands):

2010 2009
Base management fi $ 361 $ B8¢
Employee wages and bene! 22¢ 647
Total related party fees and expenses $ 58¢ $ 1,18(

Related party fees and expenses recorded on anahdxsis were $469,695 for the period from Jan@aB010 to August 26, 2010 (Dissolution) and $8,000 for the ye:
ended December 31, 2009.

At December 31, 2009, the Company owed WRP Sub-Ntmant $163,000.
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(Information from January 1, 2010 to August 26, @QRissolution) is Unaudited)

Note 19—Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Note Payable to Related Parti

On December 31, 2008, Winthrop and Lexington eabfamaced proceeds of $5,000,000 to the Company amrso shorterm demand notes bearing interest at 1.36%. ~
notes were subsequently repaid to each of WintarmpLexington in January 2009 along with accruéerest.

On August 19, 2009, Winthrop and Lexington eachaaded proceeds of $ 4,160,000 to the Company puirsniahortterm demand notes bearing interest of 5.44%. These
were subsequently repaid to each of Winthrop andrigéon in September 2009 along with accrued irstere

Sale of Assets to Winthrop

During 2009, the Company sold four real estate deketstments and four bonds with an aggregate iceymalue of $84,302,000 to Winthrop for net prateef $53,339,000.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Members
Concord Debt Holdings LLC:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsheet of Concord Debt Holdings LLC and subsieaas of December 31, 2011, and the related coased statemer
of operations, changes in members’ capital, antl flaw/s for the year ended December 31, 2011. Thessolidated financial statements are the respiitgiof the Companys
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementsdas our audits.

We conducted our audit in accordance with audisittgndards generally accepted in the United Stdté@snerica. Those standards require that we planpertbrm the audit 1
obtain reasonable assurance about whether thecfalatatements are free of material misstatemfemtaudit includes consideration of internal contwgér financial reporting
a basis for designing audit procedures that areogpiate in the circumstances, but not for the paepof expressing an opinion on the effectivenésheoCompanys interna
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we&pgess no such opinion. An audit includes examinomga test basis, evidence supporting the amandsisclosures in tl
financial statements. An audit also includes assgdbe accounting principles used and significestimates made by management, as well as evaluhtngverall financie
statement presentation. We believe that our auditiges a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetageferred to above present fairly, in all materspects, the financial position of Concord Dibtdings LLC and subsidiari
as of December 31, 2011, and the results of thmgrations and their cash flows for the year thetedrin conformity with U.S. generally accepted agdmg principles.

Finalized by Allan Juwonoputro on 3/8/12
March 7, 2017



CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2011 and 2010 (unaudited)

(In thousands)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalel

Restricted cas

Real estate debt investments carried at fair v
Securities carried at fair valt

Interest and other receivabl

Other asset

Total asset
Liabilities and Capital

Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements carried at fair v
Revolving Credit facility carried at fair valt
Suk-participation obligation at fair valt
Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Member!’ capital
Total liabilities and capite

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanagstents.

2010

2011 (Unaudited)

2,97¢ 3,281
— 2,214
23,62° 114,62:
581 5,83¢
101 38¢
107 122
27,39¢ 126,46:
— 60,37
— 34,75«
— 3,85t
15C 33E
15C 99,32
27,24 27,14
27,39« 126,46!




CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year ended December 31, 2011 and
period from August 26, 2010 (Inception) through Braber 31, 2010 (unaudited)

(In thousands)

Income:
Interest incom«
Fees received from related pa
Total income

Expenses
Interest
General and administrati\
Total expense
Net investment incom
Realized and unrealized gain (loss) from investisi
Realized gain on sale of securities carried atvaiue
Realized loss on sale of securities carried atvaie
Realized gain on sale of real estate debt invedsreried at fair valu
Realized loss on sale of real estate debt invessroamried at fair valu
Realized loss on repurchase agreement carriedt atfae
Realized loss on revolving credit facility carriatifair value
Total realized gain from investments, |
Unrealized gain on real estate debt investmentezhat fair value
Unrealized loss on securities carried at fair vi
Unrealized loss on repurchase agreement carrifair atalue
Unrealized loss on revolving credit facility cadiat fair value
Total unrealized gain from investments,
Total realized and unrealized gain from investm:
Net income from continuing operations,
Discontinued operation
Income from discontinued operatio
Total income from discontinued operatic
Net income

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@gstents.

Period from
August 26,
2010
(inception)
through
December 31,
2010
2011 (Unaudited)
3,472 2,10¢
57 20
3,52¢ 2,12¢
72€ 66¢
44¢ 35€
1,17¢ 1,02/
2,35t 1,104
37C 237
(1,127) —
8,63¢ —
(1,53%) —
(1,85() —
(845) —
3,65( 237
3,66¢ 5,75
(279 (925)
— (58¢)
— (132)
3,39: 4,10¢
7,045 4,34%
9,39¢ 5,44¢
36 104
36 104
9,43¢ 5,55¢




CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Members't&lapi

Year ended December 31, 2011 and
period from August 26, 2010 (Inception) through Braber 31, 2010 (unaudited)

(In thousands)

Inland
WRT Lexington American
Concord CDH | Concord Sub

LLC LLC LLC Total
Balance at August 26, 2010 (unaudited) $ 7,19¢ 7,19¢ 7,197 21,58¢
Net income 1,89¢ 1,89¢ 1,76t 5,558
Balance at December 31, 2010 (unaudi 9,09( 9,09( 8,96: 27,14.
Net income 3,14¢ 3,14¢ 3,144 9,43¢
Distribution (3,21¢) (3,216) (2,900 (9,337)
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 9,01¢ 9,01¢ 9,20¢ 27,24¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@gstents.



CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2011 and
period from August 26, 2010 (Inception) through Braber 31, 2010 (unaudited)

(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Consolidated net incorr
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigesl by operating activitie:
Unrealized gain on real estate debt investmentezhat fair value
Realized gain on sale of securities carried atMaine
Realized loss on sale of securities carried ataiue
Realized loss on sale of real estate debt invessoanmried at fair valu
Realized gain on sale of real estate debt invedtoeemed at fair valu
Realized loss on repurchase agreement carried atfae
Realized loss on credit facility carried at faituea
Unrealized loss on securities carried at fair vi
Unrealized loss on repurchase agreement carritir atalue
Unrealized loss on credit facility carried at faaue
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Interest receivabl
Other asset
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash flows from investing activitie
Proceeds from sale of securities carried at fdires
Repayment of securities carried at fair ve
Proceeds from sale of real estate debt investn
Repayment of real estate debt investments cartitadravalue
Purchase of real estate debt investn
Change in restricted ca
Net cash provided by investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activitie
Cash proceeds from reorganizat
Repayments on repurchase agreem
Repayment of revolving credit facili
Distribution to member
Repayment under s-participation arrangeme
Net cash used in financing activiti
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis.
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

Period from
August 26,
2010
(inception)
through
December 31,
2010
2011 (Unaudited)
9,43¢ 5,55¢
(3,666 (5,752
(370 (2379
1,125 —
1,532 —
(8,639 —
1,85( —
84t —
278 92t
— 58¢
— 132
28¢ 16C
15 (43)
(185) 85
2,50¢ 1,41(C
37C 1,682
— 64E
56,67 771
— 10
(11,000 —
2,214 (80)
48,25¢ 3,02¢
— 2,76t
(6,137 (1,069
(35,599 (2,450
(9,337)
— (409)
(51,06¢) (1,157)
(303) 3,281
3,281 —
2,97¢ 3,281




CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2011 and
period from August 26, 2010 (Inception) through Braber 31, 2010 (unaudited)

(In thousands)

Supplemental cash flow informatio
Interest paic

Supplement disclosure of noncash investing anahéimg activities Debt assumed on sale of real estaestment at fair market val

Noncash investing activity
The following represents the increase in certagesand liabilities in connection with the Comg’s reorganizatior

Restricted cas
Real estate debt investme
Securities
Interest receivabl
Other asset
Repurchase agreemel
Revolving credit facility
Suk-participation obligatior
Other liabilities
Member capita

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanagstents.

2011

Period from
August 26,
2010
(inception)
through
December 31
2010
(Unaudited)

691

56,09(

68¢€

2,13¢
109,64
9,08¢
54¢

78
60,85¢
37,07:
4,50(

21,58¢
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2011 and 2010 (unaudited)

Description of Business and Basis of Presentatic

@

(b)

Formation and Ownership

Concord Debt Holdings LLC (the Company) is a Delewlamited liability company (LLC) that was origitiaformed on March 31, 2006 (Formation Date). &
Formation Date the Company was owned 50% each loyhdip Realty Trust (Winthrop) and Lexington Madténited Partnership (Lexington).

On August 2, 2008 (Recapitalization Date) the Camypaas recapitalized and amended and restated_{Bsdgreement to admit Inland American Concord
LLC (Inland). Inland received a redeemable prefémembership interest in exchange for new capitasted in the Company. Concurrently with the admiso
Inland as a preferred member, Lexington and Wingtloantributed all of their interest in the Compaay ex-Win Concord, LLC (LexX¥in) which was owned 50
by Winthrop and 50% by Lexington and Lex-Win wasideated as the Company’s managing member.

Winthrop and Lexington funded 100% of their cap@ammitments of $162,500,000 prior to the Comparadmission of Inland as a preferred member araht
invested $76,000,000 in the Company as a restiiteo€ompany’s recapitalization.

On August 26, 2010 (Reorganization Date or Inceptilhe Company was reorganized and its LLC agreemas amended and restated to admit two
Lexington and Winthrop affiliates as members, Lgxam CDH | LLC and WRT-Concord LLC. Concurrentiynldnd’s existing preferred member interest
eliminated and LeXVin was dissolved after it distributed its 100% epan member interest in the Company to the newlyigddhmembers and Inland equa
resulting in each member having an equal 33.3% commember interest with Inland designated as theg2my’s managing member.

As of the Reorganization Date, Winthrop and Lexamgeffectively reduced their 50%/50% common membrests and Inland exchanged its preferred me
interest for a common member interest. As a rediutie Reorganization, each hold an equal thirel common member interest in the Company. Inc@&rvidec
equally among members and distributions of opegatish flow, capital proceeds, and quarterly guasmare made in accordance with the LLC agreeriiée
Company’s members are not required to make anydwapital contributions to the Company.

Business Purpose and Opening Balance Sheet at Inicep

Through its subsidiaries, the Company was origyn@imed in 2006 to acquire real estate whole laard subordinate real estate debt investmentsasi@mnote:
and mezzanine loans and commercial real estateitsesuncluding collateralized debt obligationsO'’s) and collateralized mortgage backed securiti®é4gS)
which are further characterized as either pool Bardake bonds. A rake bond is a junior intenest securitized mortgage loan which has been siredttin one ¢
more classes of CMBS and issued in a transactmtrstilely relates to one particular mortgage loan.

On the Reorganization Date the Company diveste@M® subsidiary. Therefore the opening balancetstfetie Company at Inception consists of the rering
non-CDO assets accounted for on a fair value ldsiscounting.

7 (Continued
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2011 and 2010 (unaudited)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

@

(b)

(d)

(e)

Principles of Consolidatior

The consolidated financial statements include ttemants of the Company, and its subsidiaries, whieheither wholly owned or controlled by the CompaT he
Company identifies entities for which control ishaved through means other than through votingtsigh variable interest entity or VIE) through #ealysis a
set forth in ASC 810 and determines when and whigkiness enterprise, if any, should consolidatetie In addition, the Company discloses informa
pertaining to such entities wherein the Compartésprimary beneficiary or other entities wherdir Company has a significant variable interest.sighifican
intercompany transactions and balances have beeimated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statemémiconformity with accounting principles geneyallccepted in the United States of America (GAAEuire:
management to make estimates and assumptionsardeing the reported amounts of assets and lfasiland disclosure of contingent assets and iliegsilat thi
date of the consolidated financial statements hadéported amounts of revenue and expenses dhengporting period. Significant estimates in ¢besolidate
financial statements include the valuation of trempanys real estate debt investments and available ferssgurities and estimates pertaining to creditua
results could differ materially from those estinzate

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains cash deposits and restriesld deposits, which balances from time to time; ex@eed federally insured limits. The Companyéws i
mitigates its risk of loss by maintaining its caposits with major financial institutions. To dafee Company has not experienced any losses casts deposit
Real estate debt investments and available for starities can potentially subject the Compangdncentrations of credit risk. Management of then@any
performs ongoing credit evaluations of borrowerd ealuations of the real property and interests ¢tb#lateralize the Company’s investments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with maturities ofriee months or less at time of acquisition and ab@balance sheet date are considered to be qashakents. Th
Company places its cash and cash equivalents iorrfia@ancial institutions.

Restricted Casl

The Company had no restricted cash of at Decemhe2@®L1 as the credit line was paid in full andlgéraler released all of the restricted funds. Then@any ha
restricted cash of $2,214,000 at December 31, 2@1i6h represented $489,000 of deposits controliedlr lender used for payments of principal anénes
under the Key Bank loan. The remaining restrictettf were held in attorney escrow accounts.

8 (Continued



®

()

(h)

@

@

CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2011 and 2010 (unaudited)

Fair Value Measurements

The Company has elected the fair value option t@suee the Company’financial instruments including real estate delestments, securities, and ¢
outstanding. The fair value of these financialimstents is the amount that would be received tioaseésset or paid to transfer a liability in adeny transactio
between market participants at the measurement(datethe exit price) and changes in the faiueafre recorded in earnings as unrealized gaioss ih th:
Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Real Estate Debt Investmen

Loans are stated at the estimated fair value.datencome is recorded on the accrual basis inrdaoge with the terms of the respective loan. Laansvhich thi
accrual of interest has been discontinued are datd as nonaccrual loans.

The Company recognizes interest income on certaiperforming real estate debt investments usingcfshbasis method. The accrual of interest on loa
discontinued when principal or interest paymenésgast due 90 days or when, in the opinion of mamemt, it is probable it will be unable to collecintractue
principal and interest in the normal course of bass. When loans are placed on nonaccrual stdtustesest previously accrued but not collectedaserse
against current period interest income. Income onaocrual loans is subsequently recognized onlghéoextent that cash is received and the ®amincipa
balance is deemed collectible.

Member¢ Capital
Capital contributions, distributions and profitsddosses are allocated in accordance with the tefrttee Company’s LLC Agreement.
Gain on Sale of Loans

All loans sold to date have been sold without reseuWhen loans are sold, a gain or loss is rezedrio the extent that the sales proceeds plus entiaed fee
and costs exceed or are less than the carrying wdlthe loans. Gains and losses are determined ts¢ specific identification method.

Income Taxes

The Company is an LLC and is treated as a partigefeh U.S. Federal income tax purposes. Accordingb provision or benefit for income taxes is madéhe
consolidated financial statements since taxablenmeor loss passes through to, and is reportables lgembers on their respective income tax retudosvever
the Company is required to pay certain state acal lentity level taxes which are expensed as iecurr

9 (Continued
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2011 and 2010 (unaudited)

Recently Issued Accounting Standar

On April 5, 2011 the Financial Accounting StandaBisard (FASB) issued an Accounting Standards Up@agJ) No. 2011-02Receivables (Topic 310) A
Creditor’'s Determination of Whether a Restructurisga Troubled Debt Restructuririat provides clarification on which loan modifiats meet the criteria to
treated as Troubled Debt Restructurings (T§)Rinder Topic 310. The guidance is intended torawg financial reporting by creating greater corsisy in th
way accounting principles generally accepted inUWinged States (GAAP) is applied for various TDRsrbaffirming the requirements and clarifying thiteria
that creditors should use in evaluating whethersructuring constitutes a TDR. The guidance wigée for interim and/or annual periods beginnargor afte
June 15, 2011, and early application was permifiéd Company has adopted this standard which dichage a material impact on its consolidated fial
statements.

On April 29, 2011 the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-08ansfers and Servicing (Topic 860)Reconsideration of Effective Control for Repurchaggeemen
which is intended to improve transparency and im@rthe manner in which repurchase and other agmsntbat both entitle and obligate a transferc
repurchase or redeem financial assets before mhafurity are reported in the financial statemeASU No. 201103 is effective for the first interim or ann
period beginning on or after December 15, 2011, simalild be applied prospectively to transactionsodifications of existing transactions that ocoaror afte
the effective date, with early adoption disallow&tle Company has evaluated this amendment andnddesiticipate its adoption will have a materiapant on it
consolidated financial statements.

On May 12, 2011 the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04r Falue Measurement (Topic 820) Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measureare
Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IR®&ch results in changes to common fair value mesmsant and disclosure requirements. Consequetig
amendments change the wording used to describe wiathe requirements in GAAP for measuring fairuealand for disclosing information about fair ve
measurements. Certain amendments in this updatéycthe FASB's intent about the application of existing fair u&lmeasurement requirements. C
amendments change requirements for measuring dhievor for disclosing information about fair valmeasurements. This amendment will be effectivettie
Company beginning with the first reporting peridd2612. The Company has evaluated this amendmehtiaes not anticipate its adoption will have a mal
impact on its consolidated financial statements.

On December 14, 2011, FASB issued ASU No. 2011P¥0perty, Plant, and Equipment (Topic 360) — Deigttion of in Substance Real Estatea-Scop
Clarification , clarifying that a parent company should not dectidate an in substance real estate subsidiawhioh the parent loses a controlling interest
result of default on the subsidiasyhonrecourse debt until title to the in substaeed estate is transferred to legally satisfy tebtdThis ASU resolves diversity
practice of applying existing consolidation guidandhe amendments in ASU No. 201Q-should be applied prospectively to deconsolisagvents occurrir
after the effective date, though early adoptiopasmitted. Prior periods should not be adjusteds @mendment will be effective for the Companyfiscal year
ending after December 15, 2013. The Company hdsaeal this new guidance and does not anticipatadoption will have a material impact on its cdidstec
financial statements.
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and 2010 (unaudited)

On December 16, 2011, FASB issued ASU No. 2011Bhlance Sheet (Topic 210) — Disclosures about @ifigeAssets and Liabilitieghich requires entities
disclose both gross information and net informatibout both instruments and transactions eligibteoffset in the financial statements particulddy transaction
related to derivatives, sale and repurchase agmtsna@d reverse sale and repurchase agreementseeamdties borrowing and securities lending aresngnts
The new disclosure requirements will be effectige dnnual reporting periods beginning on or aftetuary 1, 2013. The new disclosures will be regufce all
prior comparative periods presented. The Comparsy dvaluated this new guidance and does not anticiipg adoption will have a material impact or
consolidated financial statements.

Fair Value Measurement

Accounting guidance establishes a fair value memsant framework, provides a single definition of falue based on the assumptions that marketoiaatits would us
in pricing an asset or liability and requires exgedh disclosure summarizing fair value measurements.

The accounting guidance establishes a hierarchinfuts used in measuring fair value that maximibesuse of observable inputs and minimizes theofis@observab
inputs by requiring that the most observable inmitsed when available. Observable inputs aresrtpat the market participants would use in pri¢mgasset or liabilit
based on market data obtained from sources indepémnd the Company. Unobservable inputs are infhasreflect the Company’assumptions about the assumpt
market participants would use in pricing the assdiability based on the best information availbi the circumstances. The hierarchy is measur¢drée levels bas
on the reliability of inputs:

Level 1 — Inputs to the valuation methodology awetgd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsabilities in active markets.

Level 2 —Inputs to the valuation methodology include quopeides for similar assets and liabilities in activarkets, and inputs that are observable for tisetas
liability, either directly or indirectly, for subetially the full term of the financial instrument.

Level 3 —Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservanld significant to the fair value measuremeniustions derived from other valuation methodolog
including pricing models, discounted cash flow medend similar techniques, and not based on magkehange, dealer, or brokeaded transactions. Level 3 valuati
incorporate certain assumptions and projectionsdt@not observable in the market and signifiganfessional judgment in determining the fair vafssigned to su
assets or liabilities.

In instances where the determination of the falu@aneasurement is based on inputs from differ@rels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in fai value hierarch
within which the entire fair value measurementsadl based on the lowest level input that is sigaift to the fair value measurement in its entirety
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December 31, 2011 and 2010 (unaudited)

Fair Value Option

The fair value option election allows companiegtevocably elect fair value measurement attribdtedcertain financial assets and liabilities. Tag value optiol
election is permitted on an instrument by instrutrgasis at initial recognition for real estate diehtestments, securities, and debt outstandingeatCiompanys
inception and ongoing. The Company elects thevalue option to mitigate a divergence between acting and economic exposure. Changes in fair vt
assets and liabilities for which the election isdeavill be recognized in earnings as they occur.

The following is a description of the valuation hetues used for investments measured at fair yasevell as the general classification of suclrimsent:
pursuant to the valuation hierarchy:

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

The Companys cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash aerally classified within Level 1 of the fair vallierarchy because they are valued using qt
market prices, broker or dealer quotations, orrdtive pricing sources with reasonable levels riéeptransparency. The types of instruments vahesed o
quoted market prices in active markets include rubSt government securities with original matustiess than 90 days and most money market sesuritie

Real Estate Debt Investmen

Real estate debt investments are nonpublic invegtria loan assets collateralized by real estagenining the fair value of nonpublic investmeimgolves ¢
significant degree of management judgment as néeguprices exist and such investments are generatly illiquid. Due to the unique nature of the iridual
properties collateralizing the Compasylbans, the Company uses the income or markebaplpy as deemed appropriate. Fair value deterrmmd#tirough th
income approach is estimated through the use deounted cash flow model. In addition to the chtmastics of the underlying loans (including pijped,
contractual interest rate and contractual fees),ilkpguts to the model include interest rates, pyepent rates and credit spreads. Fair value estgrfeden interne
valuation techniques are then verified, where fdssio prices obtained from independent valuatipacialists that use primarily a discounted castv finode
using similar inputs for valuation. Real estatetdalestments are classified as Level 3 of the ¥aiue hierarchy since valuation models are basesignifican
inputs that are unobservable in the market.

Securities

The securities portfolio is comprised of commereomdrtgagebacked securities. The Company considers the &iityaof quoted market prices. If quoted mai
prices are not available for the specific securitie Company may estimate the value of such ingnisnusing a combination of observed transactiiceg
independent pricing services and relevant broketegs Consideration is given to the nature of thetes (e.g., indicative or firm) and the relaticpsodf recenth
evidenced market activity. Management also perfdurther analysis of the performance of the loams eollateral underlying the securities, the estedavalue ¢
the collateral supporting such loans and a conafuber of local, industry, and broader economic dseand factors. Because significant judgment ambservabl
market inputs are used in the estimation of thest&ios and the ultimate determination of fair valthés valuation methodology has been character@zetevel
in the fair value hierarchy.
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2011 and 2010 (unaudited)

The Company uses a thighrty pricing model to establish values for itsuegase agreements and credit facility. Manageralsat performs further analy
giving consideration to one or more of the followicriteria as appropriate: (i) interest rates fabilities of comparable quality and maturity, afiijithe value an
performance of the underlying collateral (ii) ldciedustry, and broader economic trends and factdignificant judgment is used in the ultimateedatination o
fair value. This valuation methodology has beerrattarized as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

Sut-Participation Obligation

The Company estimated fair value related to theparticipation agreement in part by consideringftievalue of the collateral. Management also coeed th
fair value of the call options written to both therrower and the unaffiliated third party, alonghwihe valuation of our available for sale secesitat December :

2010 and no material impact in the value of theseuments was noted.

Iltems Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Bas

The following table presents for each of the fafue hierarchy levels the Compasyassets and liabilities that are measured awé&ire on a recurring basis

December 31, 2011 (in thousands):

Cash and cash equivalel
Real estate debt investme
Securities

Quoted prices

in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical assets observable unobservable Balance at
and liabilities inputs inputs December
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2011
$ 2,97¢ — — 2,97¢
— — 23,62; 23,62;
— — 581 581
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and 2010 (unaudited)

The following table presents for each of the fafue hierarchy levels the Compasyassets and liabilities that are measured awé&ire on a recurring basis
December 31, 2010 (in thousands):

Quoted prices

in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical assets unobservable unobservable Balance at
and liabilities inputs inputs December
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2010
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 3,281 — — 3,281
Restricted cas 2,214 — — 2,214
Real estate debt investme — — 114,62: 114,62:
Securities — — 5,83¢€ 5,83¢
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreemel — — 60,37 60,37
Credit facility — — 34,754 34,75«
Suk-participation obligatior — — 3,85¢ 3,85¢

(h)  Changes in Level Three Fair Value Measurements

The following is a reconciliation of the beginniagd ending balances for assets measured at faie val a recurring basis using significant unobdgevaput:
(Level 3) during the year ended December 31, 20tilpeeriod from August 26, 2010 (Inception) to Debem31, 2010 (in thousands):

Real estate Sub-

debt Repurchase Credit participation

investments Securities agreements facility obligation
Fair value, August 26, 2010 (unaudited) (Inception) $ 109,64¢ 9,08¢ 60,85: 37,07 4,50(
Total realized and unrealized gains and lossesidietl in statement of operatic 5,75: (925) 58¢ 13z (237)
Repayments of securities, investments and | (10 (645) (1,069 (2,450 (40€)

Sale of investments and securit (77)) (1,682) — — —
Fair value, December 31, 2010 (unaudit 114,62: 5,83¢ 60,37 34,75¢ 3,85¢
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December 31, 2011 and 2010 (unaudited)

Real estate Sub-
debt Repurchase Credit participation
investments Securities agreements facility obligation
Total realized and unrealized gains and lossesdied in statement of operations $ 10,76¢ (2,030 1,85( 84kt —
Repayments of securities, investments and I — (370 (6,137) (35,599 (3,85%)
Purchase of investmer 11,00( — — — —
Debt assumed on sale of investm (56,090 — (56,090 — —
Sale of investments and securit (56,677) (3,85%) — — —
Fair value, December 31, 20 $ 23,62% 581 — — —
Change in unrealized gain/(loss) included in eaymirelated to the investments still held at Decemb
31, 2011 $ 3,66¢€ 273 — — —
Change in unrealized gain/(loss) included in eaymirelated to the investments still held at Decambe
31, 2010 (unauditec 5,752 (925) (589 (132) 237

0] Transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Levelf3he Fair Value Hierarchy

There were no transfers of assets or liabilitiesvben Levels 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hieraralyring the year ended December 31, 2011 and pénaoa

August 26, 2010 to December 31, 2010.

4) Real Estate Debt Investment:

Real estate debt investments, consisting of whaded, B-Note participation interests, and mezzaluags, are held for investment and are carriddiatvalue. BNotes
are junior positions of whole loans. Mezzanine bare loans that are subordinate to a conventfiisaimortgage loan, including B Notes and senthe borrowers
equity in a transaction. These loans may be irfdira of a junior participating interest in the sendebt. Mezzanine financing may take the formoafnis collateralized |
pledges of ownership interests in entities thatadly or indirectly control the real property ohsudinated loans collateralized by second mortdi@gs on the property.
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December 31, 2011 and 2010 (unaudited)

The Companys methodology to fair value these investments clisiamongst others, the collateral value of thietying assets. The following table is a summdrthe
Company'’s real estate debt investments at DeceB8ihet011 and 2010 (in thousands):

2011
Real estate
debt
investments
at fair value Loan count

B-notes $ 10,99( 3
Mezzanine loan 12,631 2

Total loans $ 23,620 5

2010 (unaudited)
Real estate
debt
investments
at fair value Loan count

B-notes $ 24,53( 5
Mezzanine loan 90,09: 7

Total loans $ 114,62 12

The following table sets forth the maturity datesthe Company’s real estate debt investments e¢mber 31, 2011 and 2010 (in thousands):

As of December 31, 201

Number
of loan
assets Principal Percentage
Year of maturity (1) maturing balance Fair value of total
2012 3 3 11,01¢ 10,99( 47%
2013 — — — —
2014 — — — —
2015 — — — —
2016 and thereafte 2 12,90( 12,63 53%
Total real estate debt investme 5 $ 23,91¢ 23,625 10C%

(1) Weighted average maturity is 2.83 years. The catmn of weighted average maturity is based uperréimaining initial term and does not take intooact any maturit

extension period or the ability to prepay the inment after a negotiated loaut period, which may be available to the borroidre weighted average maturity with
exercise of any extension options is 3.34 ye
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December 31, 2011 and 2010 (unaudited)

As of December 31, 2010 (unauditec

Number
of loan
assets Principal Percentage
Year of maturity (1) maturing balance Fair value (2) of total
2011 7 $ 115,61 99,85¢ 87%
2012 2 52,80+ 2,64¢ 2
2013 1 4,51% — —
2014 — — — —
2015 and thereafte 2 11,15(C 12,11¢ 11
Total real estate debt investme 12 $ 184,08 114,62: 10C%

(1) Weighted average maturity is 0.90 years. The cafmn of weighted average maturity is based uperréimaining initial term and does not take intocaitt any maturit
extension period or the ability to prepay the inment after a negotiated loaut period, which may be available to the borrowiédre weighted average maturity with

exercise of any extension options is 1.42 ye

(2) Of the 12 real estate debt investments there islaare that is not performing and its carrying vahas been written down to zero. Therefore, the eimz 11 loan
included in the carrying value at December 31, 286ve are performin

The Company considers a loan to be nonperformimgpaces loans on nonaccrual status at such tirmaasgement determines it is probable that it beéllunable t
collect all amounts due according to the contrdderans of the loan. While on nonaccrual statuseldeon the Comparyjudgment as to collectability of principal, lo.
are either accounted for on a cash basis, whegeesttincome is recognized only upon actual reasipaish, or on a cosécovery basis, where all cash receipts red
loan’s carrying value. As of December 31, 2011reheere no nonaccrual loans.

17

(Continued



CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and 2010 (unaudited)
Credit Risk Concentrations

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a numlbdroorowers, tenants or issuers related to the Gmyp investments are engaged in similar businessitesiwor locate
in the same geographic location and are simildifigcted by changes in economic conditions. The Camggmonitors its portfolio to identify potential meentrations ¢
credit risk. The Compang’real estate debt investments contain concentsatiothe following asset types, categorized bygtd/ as a percentage of the unpaid prin
balance and fair value of real estate debt investsnes of December 31, 2011 and 2010:

2011
Unpaid
principal
Asset type balance Fair value
Office 10C% 10C%
Total 10C% 10C%

As of December 31, 2011, two loans exceeded 10#eo€ompanys assets and for the year ended December 31, Bedd were no loans that generated more thar
of the Company'’s income.

2010 (unaudited)

Unpaid
principal
Asset type balance Fair value
Office 17% 24%
Hospitality 11 60
Multifamily 72 16
Total 10C% 10C%

As of December 31, 2010, two loans exceeded 10%hefCompanys assets and for the period beginning August 260 2fhd ending December 31, 2010 five I
generated more than 10% of the Company’s income.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coynpald 8 loans for a total proceed of $56.7 millishe Company recognized a net realized gain df $illion from
the sale in the current year. The Company had rézed an accumulated unrealized gain of $4.7 milibthe beginning of the period.
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(5)  Securities Carried at Fair Value

The Company has a portfolio of loan securities theludes three and seven investments in pool bandsrake bonds at December 31, 2011 and 2010eThmws ai
marked to fair value on a continuous basis.

The cost and fair value of securities at fair vakgge as follows (in thousands):

2011
Unrealized Unrealized
Par Cost basis gains (losses) Fair value
CMBS:
Rake Bond: $ — — — — —
Pool Bonds 15,40( 1,122 — (541) 581
Total securities at fair valt $ 15,40( 1,122 — (541) 581
2010 (unaudited)
Unrealized Unrealized
Par Cost basis gains (losses) Fair value
CMBS:
Rake Bond: $ 5,162 3,85¢% — — 3,85¢
Pool Bonds 24,79% 2,90¢ — (925) 1,981
Total securities at fair valt $ 29,95¢ 6,761 — (925) 5,83¢€

The table below shows the fair value of investmémvailable for sale securities that have beemniminrealized loss position for less than 12 meothfor 12 months

longer at December 31, 2011 and 2010 (in thousands)

2011
Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Gross Gross Gross
unrealized unrealized unrealized
Fair value losses Fair value losses Fair value losses
CMBS:
Pool Bonds — — 581 (541) 581 (541)
Total securitie: — — 581 (541) 581 (547)
2010(unaudited)
Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Gross Gross Gross
unrealized unrealized unrealized
Fair value losses Fair value losses Fair value losses
CMBS:
Rake Bond: $ 3,85¢ — — — 3,85t —
Pool Bonds 1,981 (925) = = 1,981 (925)
Total securitie: $ 5,83¢ (925) — — 5,83¢ (925)
19
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The following table presents the amortized cost faiidvalue of debt securities available for sajedontractual maturity dates as of December 311284d 2010 (i

thousands).
2011
Cost Fair value
CMBS-Pool Bonds
Due within 1 yea $ — —
After 1 but within 5 year 1,127 581
Total CMBS- Pool Bonds $ 1,122 581
2010 (unaudited)
Cost Fair value
CMBS - Rake Bonds
Due within 1 yea $ 2,47 2,477
After 1 but within 5 year 1,37¢ 1,37¢
Total CMBS- Rake Bond: 3,85¢ 3,85¢
CMBS - Pool Bonds
Due within 1 yea 1,93¢ 1,215
After 1 but within 5 year 971 764
Total CMBS- Pool Bonds 2,90¢ 1,981
Total securitie: $ 6,761 5,83¢

Changes in fair value of securities are reflectedhe statement of operations as unrealized galosses on securities. During the year ended DeeeBih 2011, tt
Company sold 4 securities for a total proceed af0$thousand. The Company recognized a net realas=dof $757 thousand from the sale in the curyeatr. Thi
Company had recognized an accumulated unrealizsdib$659 thousand at the beginning of the period.

(6) Variable Interest Entities

A reporting entity is required to perform an anay® determine if its variable interests give it@ntrolling financial interest in a variable irgst entity (VIE). Th
analysis required under ASC 810 identifies the primbeneficiary of a VIE as the entity having boftthe following: (1) the power to direct the adtiies of a variabl
interest entity that most significantly impact tetity’s economic performance and (2) the obligation &odlosses of the entity that could potentiallysimificant tc
the VIE or the right to receive benefits from theity that could potentially be significant to tR¢E. Financial Accounting Standards BoadFASB) accounting guidan
on consolidation requires a VIE to be consoliddtedts primary beneficiary.

20 (Continued



)

CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and 2010 (unaudited)

In addition, a reporting entity must assess wheithleas an implicit financial responsibility to eme that a VIE operates as designed when detergifihhas the powe
to direct the activities of the VIE that most sigzantly affect the entitys economic performance. FASB requires ongoing esassents of whether a reporting entity i<
primary beneficiary of a VIE. Specifically, thetlisf reconsideration events includes a changedtsfand circumstances where the holders of anyetuiestment at ris
as a group lose the power to direct the activibiethe entity that most significantly affect thetigyis economic performance. In addition, a troubbebtrestructuring i
now defined as a reconsideration event.

At December 31, 2011 the company had no real ed&ieinvestments that were deemed a VIE but fery#ar ended December 31, 2010 the Company idshtfiree
estate debt investment with an aggregate carryahgevof $5,820,000 that was deemed a VIE primédged on the fact that the equity investment ktisisiot sufficien
to permit the entity to finance its activities wotlt additional financial support. The Company hefernined that it is not the primary beneficiantioé VIE as it does n
have voting or other rights that allow the Comp#mgxercise control over the borrower entity nottliey have participation features which would regtine Company
absorb expected losses or be entitled to receipectad residual returns of the borrower entity.

Repurchase Agreements at Fair Valur
The following table outlines borrowings under then@pany’s repurchase agreements as of Decembe03Q,( thousands):

2010 (unaudited)

Collateral fair Outstanding
Debt fair value value debt balance
Royal Bank of Scotland, PLC, successor in intei@&reenwich Capital Financial Products, Inc., medwon February 1, 2012,
interest is variable based o-month LIBOR rate plus 1% or 1.2 $ 56,93¢ 63,37( 58,78:
Royal Bank of Scotland, PLC, successor in intei@&reenwich Capital Financial Products, Inc., medwon January 15, 2011,
interest is variable based o-month LIBOR rate plus 1% or 1.261 3,441 6,09( 3,44¢
Total repurchase agreeme $ 60,37 69,46( 62,220

In circumstances where the Company financed thehaise of its real estate debt investments andadlkaifor sale securities from a counterparty thipagepurchas
agreement with the same counterparty, the Compeacgrds the related investments as an asset aneldied repurchase agreement as a liability onCbepanys
consolidated balance sheets. Interest income easnethe investments and interest expense incurredhe repurchase obligations are reported sepwpratelthe
consolidated statements of operations. The Compargpurchase agreements with Royal Bank of Scot(@®IS) contain covenants that are both financial
nonfinancial in nature. Significant financial cowgrs require the Company to maintain certain l@aasset value ratios, a minimum net worth and mimmniiquidity. In
addition, all of the repurchase facilities requinat the Company pay down borrowings under thesiitias as principal payments on the loan assetslaan securitie
pledged to these facilities are received. The Comead not met its compliance requirements at Déegr@l, 2010 and had not received a waiver nondang® of thes
covenants. RBS has put a cash custodian arrangameataice in which 100% of the payments due from @ompanys borrowings collateralizing the repurch
agreements are applied first to the interest dle any excess applied to the outstanding balanteeodebt.
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The repurchase agreement with a balance of $3,8d@&0December 31, 2010 matured on January 15, RS has granted the Company 30 days to selldteteral o
refinance the debt. The collateral was sold on frfyr14, 2011 and the repurchase agreement wgséplhid.

The other repurchase agreement with a balance &785,000 at December 31, 2010 was assumed byutyer when the collateral was sold to a relateddtpiarty ir
June 2011. On October 29, 2011, the buyer recgiagchent in full and paid the assumed debt.

Credit Facility

The Company assumed a credit facility with KeyBaatkits inception. The facility had a maturity date December 31, 2011 with a provision for a twoegeal
extensions at the option of the Company, subjedettain conditions. The facility is a recourseigdéiion of the Company. Under the terms of thelitgcian annue
administration agent fee of $50,000 is payable aliyin advance.

Under the conditions of the agreement, no distidinst were allowed to be made to the Compangembers until KeyBank is fully repaid. The bards lallowed for
maximum of $275,000 per month in operating expensewever a mandatory monthly principal paymen$d90,000 plus an additional annual principal repayto
$10,000,000 is required or the Company will beefedlt of the loan.

The Company had an outstanding balance on thetdeeiity of approximately $0 and $35,599,000 &®ecember 31, 2011 and 2010, which was collateedlby a firs
priority lien on certain of the Company’s equitytérests as well as first priority perfected lienscertain of the Compang’loan assets and bonds with a fair me
carrying value of $0 and $47,773,000, respectivBlyrrowings under the facility bear interest rabesed upon prevailing LIBOR plus 300 bps. The weidraverag
interest rate on amounts outstanding was approgimna&.23% and 3.26% for the year ended DecembePB1]1 and period beginning August 26, 2010 and d
December 31, 2010, respectively.

Based on the borrowing rates currently availablthéoCompany for credit facilities with similar tes and average maturities, the fair value of lterga debt was $0 a
$34,754,000 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respbcti

The terms of the agreement with KeyBank requiresl @mpany to maintain a number of customary firelnend other covenants on an ongoing basis inafud)
maximum leverage ratio not to exceed 75%, ii) mimimfixed charge ratio not less than 1:50 to 1:@ptangible net worth cannot be less than twice #ygrega
principal balance of all loans (minimum net worthj)) payout any restricted payments in excess @ ®f net income (maximum payout ratio), v) protids or
additional indebtedness.

The Company failed its covenants during the pefioth August 26, 2010 to December 31, 2010 and fbezrevas in default of its agreement with KeyBa@k June -
2011, the Company received proceeds from the $aertain investments which was used to repay tegBank credit facility in full.
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December 31, 2011 and 2010 (unaudited)
Sub-Participation Obligation

The Company assumed a $4,500,000 liability at lioepvhich represents a syarticipation obligation which requires the Compaayremit to the borrower, princig
and interest payments received from certain bohlde.collateral for the bonds that are subject ¢éosthb-participation obligation are controlled bg torrower.

The Company granted to the borrower waivers ofagefban conditions and agreed to exercise itstsigimder the loan in accordance with instructiamsished by th
borrower. Concurrently with the execution of theremgnent, the borrower also purchased gatiicipation interests in certain bonds owned by Company fc
approximately $4,500,000. One of the bonds paidggpal of $645,000 which reduced the sub-partidgmadbligation.

In addition, the Company has written certain callians giving the borrower the right to purchase bonds that are subject to the qabticipation obligation. The ci
options are exercisable at the discretion of thedveer at anytime through the maturity date of bleads for a specified strike price. The Companydiss written a ce
option for one of the bonds to an unaffiliated dhirarty that is only exercisable upon either thpimtion of the borrowes call option or and the event of default by
borrower as specified in the option agreement. Chmpany has determined that the call options ateledvative instruments, but should be markedaio ¥alue witt
changes in fair value recognized in earnings.

The balance of the sub-participation obligatioDatember 31, 2011 and 2010 after reflecting repaysneas $0 and $3,855,000, respectively.
Discontinued Operations

The Company received expense reimbursements faranse and real estate taxes of approximately $86ahd $104,000 for the year ended December 311, a6i
period ended December 31, 2010, respectively,agltt an operating property held for sale and sylesaly sold by the Company’s predecessor pridghéoCompanys
inception. The property was collateral on a loaat the Company’s predecessor obtained through lisee and was included in discontinued operat@nSompanys
predecessor. Therefore the Company included thitorgsement as income of discontinued operations.

Related Party Transactions

For the year ended December 31, 2011 and periadriiag August 26, 2010 and ending December 31, 20 0Company sold real estate debt investmentsaouatitie
to an affiliate of Winthrop for net proceeds of $&%0,000 and $2,453,000, respectively, which wss #le carrying value at the time of sale.

For the year ended December 31, 2011 and periothriag August 26, 2010 and ending December 31, 2B&0Company received advancing agent fees front@o
CDO in the amount of $57,000 and $20,000, respelgtiv
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CDH-CDO LLC, a related party to the Company, assumed efjuity interest in the property secured by a #fillion real estate debt investments held by
Company. The investments are scheduled to matuialyn2012. The borrower is expected to exercsaliility to extend the loan for an additional yeaaccordance
the loan agreement.

Subsequent Event:

In connection with the preparation of the consdédafinancial statements, the Company evaluatedesjuent events after the consolidated balance sslieg¢¢ ¢
December 31, 2011 through March 7, 2012, whichthaglate the consolidated financial statements weaéable to be issued

In December 2011, Concord Real Estate CDO 2006, (the “CDQO”), Cedarwoods CRE CDO II, Ltd., Resmi Real Estate Funding CDO 2008-td., and TC(
Holdings | LLC (collectively, the “Plaintiffs”)prought an action in New York Supreme Court (thel wourt in New York) against Galante Holdingsg.InTrimont Ree
Estate Advisors, Hotspur Resorts Nevada, Ltd. AdendRealty Holdings, Ltd., Keycorp Real Estate @hpvarkets, Inc., and Douglas S. Rohrer (collegdity the
“Defendants”). The action sought to enjoin the sdléhe mortgage loan relating to the JW Marriotttél in Las Vegas, Nevada (the “JW LoarBpth Concord and CD
hold CMBS bonds for which the JW Loan is underlyasget.

As a condition to obtaining the injunction, in Janu2012 the New York Appellate Court required ttegt Plaintiffs post a $2,000,000 surety bondhis tegard, one
the Plaintiffs (the “Guaranteeing Plaintifffgreed to guaranty the obligations under the surend. The CDO and each of the other Plaintifferst into an agreemt
with the Guaranteeing Plaintiff pursuant to whibke €DO agreed to pay its pro rata share (25%) pfpayments required to be made by the Guarantd@limgtiff to the
surety bond issuer as well as 50% of any amouatstite two other c®aintiffs were obligated to the extent they bresattheir obligations. Concord, which also hol
bond in the CMBS that contains the JW Loan, agieedrovide cash collateral for the CDobligations to the guaranteeing Plaintiff. Acdngly, such amount
characterized as restricted funds. ManagementJaslithat the likelihood of a claim on such amouismitemote.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Partners of
Sealy Northwest Atlanta Partners, L.P.
Shreveport, Louisiana

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsheet of Sealy Northwest Atlanta Partners, (the. “Partnership”ps of December 31, 2011, and the related conset
statements of operations, partners’ capital, asth aws for the year then ended. These consolidfie@ncial statements are the responsibility ef Brartnershig managemer
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hesnsolidated financial statements based on alit.au

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight lo@nited States). Those standards require thgplewe and perfori
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abouhehtite consolidated financial statements aredfeweaterial misstatement. The Partnership is ngtired to have, nor were
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal cdndneer financial reporting. Our audit included caesation of internal control over financial regog as a basis for designi
audit procedures that are appropriate in the cistantes, but not for the purpose of expressingpaman on the effectiveness of the Partnershipternal control over financ
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinidn. audit also includes examining, on a test basislence supporting the amounts and disclosurgbeinconsolidate
financial statements, assessing the accountingiples used and significant estimates made by managt, as well as evaluating the overall consdididinancial stateme
presentation. We believe that our audit provideasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all materespects, the financial position of the Parthigrais of December 31, 20
and the results of its operations and its cashdlfaw the year then ended in conformity with acdmgnprinciples generally accepted in the Unitedt& of America.

/sl Frazier & Deeter, LLC

March 9, 2012
Atlanta, Georgia



SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA PARTNERS, L.P.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010 (UNAUDITED)

ASSETS
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Buildings and improvemen
Land
Land improvement
Tenant improvemen

Total property and equipment, at ¢
Less accumulated depreciati

Total property and equipment, r

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RESTRICTED CASH

OTHER ASSETS
Deferred rent receivab
Deferred financing costs, net of accumulated amatitn of $93,422 and $39,310 for 2011 and 2
Prepaid expenses and other as
Other receivable
Tenant rent receivable, r
Due from related partie
Deferred leasing costs, net of accumulated amaidizaf $452,763 and $338,062 for 2011 and 2

Total other asse’
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS ' CAPITAL

LIABILITIES
Note payable, less holdback of $700,000 and $@®a1 and 201
Accrued interest payab
Due to related partie
Accounts payable and accrued expel
Unearned revenue
Tenant security deposi
Total liabilities

PARTNERS' CAPITAL
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS ' CAPITAL

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements.

2

2011

2010
(UNAUDITED)

$22,600,49 $22,593,84

8,048,57! 8,048,57"
3,967,04. 3,967,04.
2,450,69: 2,235,58.
37,066,81 36,845,05
6,162,38I 5,143,24
30,904,42 31,701,80
610,56¢ 445,92:
144,95: 399,30:
534,28t 450,04:
558,95¢ 10,60¢
82,354 99,954

37,82¢ —
— 67,40¢
3,95(C 11,40(
427,31: 389,65:
1,644,68! 1,029,06!
$33,304,62 $33,576,08
$13,969,88 $28,750,00
67,82¢ 935,66¢

38€ —
133,42: 25,27
123,98! 175,65:
161,26t 156,89¢
14,456,76' 30,043,49
$18,847,85 $ 3,532,59!
$33,304,62 $33,576,08




SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA PARTNERS, L.P.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

2010 2009
2011 (UNAUDITED)  (UNAUDITED)
REVENUES
Minimum rent $ 2,516,60: $ 2,559,90! $ 3,143,74.
Tenant Reimbursemer 444,61( 486,02! 573,16:
Total revenue $ 2,961,21. $ 3,045,93 $ 3,716,90!
OPERATING EXPENSES
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,133,83i 1,085,76! 1,096,49
Repairs and maintenan 432,17( 407,33: 627,86¢
Property taxe 330,23 376,81t 403,36:
General and administrati\ 146,13: 216,16¢ 152,50!
Utilities 144,03: 171,54¢ 150,26
Management fee 106,15 102,85: 130,07
Insurance 66,67 65,77 66,95:
Bad deb 23,53¢ 30,72% 38,84(
Total operating expens: 2,382,76: 2,456,98I 2,666,35!
OPERATING INCOME 578,44« 588,94 1,050,541
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Gain on extinguishment of debt and accrued inte 9,158,57. — —
Other income 16,29: 9,58t 6,471
Interest expens (2,188,04) (2,051,81) (1,671,49)
Total other income (expens 6,986,81! (2,042,22) (1,665,02)
NET INCOME (LOSS) $ 7,565,26. $(1,453,28) $ (614,479

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitiements.
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DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2008 (UNAUDITED)
Net Loss

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2009 (UNAUDITED)
Net Loss

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2010 (UNAUDITED)
Contribution
Net income

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2011

SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA PARTNERS, L.P.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PARTNERS’ CAPITAL
FOR THE YEARS ENDED

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteigements.

4

Sealy Northwes

Atlanta WRT -Atlanta,

Partners, L.P. L.L.C. Total

$ 2,240,14 $ 3,360,21. $ 5,600,35:
(245,79) (368,68) (614,479
1,994,35! 2,991,52! 4,985,87!
(581,311 (871,969  (1,453,28)
1,413,038 2,119,55 3,532,59!
3,100,00! 4,650,001 7,750,00!
3,026,10! 4,539,15! 7,565,26.

$ 7,539,14. $11,308,71 $18,847,85




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss

SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA, L.P.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED

Adjustments to reconcile net income(loss) to nshagarovided by (used in) operating activiti

Depreciation expens
Bad Debt Expens
Amortization of acquired intangibl¢
Amortization of deferred financing cos
Amortization of deferred leasing co:
Gain on extinguishment of debt and accrued inte
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Restricted cas
Deferred rent receivab
Prepaid expenses and other as
Tenant rent receivab
Other receivable
Due from related partie
Deferred leasing costs pe
Accrued interes
Accounts payable and accrued expel
Due to related partie
Unearned revenue
Tenant security deposi

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipm

Net cash used in investing activiti
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Contributions from partnel
Deferred financing costs pa
Payments on note payat
Distributions to partner
Net cash used in financing activiti
Change in cash and cash equivalt

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

Cash paid during the year for inter

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbstaigements.

5

2010

2009

2011 (UNAUDITED)  (UNAUDITED)
$ 756526 $(1,453,28) $ (614,479
1,019,13; 986,41( 981,35
23,53¢ 30,72; 38,84(

— — (8,849
54,11: 9,98¢ 9,98¢
114,70( 99,36( 110,14
(9,158,57) = =
254,35 126,07 (173,589
(84,24 (124,20)) (129,539)
17,60( (34,259 (32,25
43,86¢ (70,529 11,67
(37,820 = =
7,45( (11,400 _
(152,359 (151,519 (109,289
1,290,73 935,66¢ —
108,14t (13,239 (209,469
38¢€ — —
(51,668 15,54¢ 31,76:
4,37( (3,539 (40,53))
1,018,98; 341,82t (134,22)
(221,76) (237,74) (50,969
(221,76)) (237,74) (50,967)
3,100,001 — —
(602,469 — _
(3,130,11) — —
= — (224,199
(632,58() — (224,199
164,64 104,08 (409,38
445,92 341,83t 751,21t

$ 61056 $ 44592 $ 341,83t
$ 84319: $ 1,106,15 $ 166151




SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA, L.P.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Investing and francing Transactions:

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Rahipeentered into a discounted payoff option vathender, whereby, the Lender reduced the amoumiotd payabl
outstanding by $7,000,000 and reduced the amouwmtatied interest outstanding by $2,158,571.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, a refseg converted $4,650,000 of a note payable ttnBes’ capital.
See accompany notes to the consolidated finarteigdraents.
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SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA PARTNERS, L.P.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

ORGANIZATION

Sealy Northwest Atlanta Partners, L.P. (the “Paghip”), a Delaware limited partnership, was organized ircddeber 2006 (expires December 31, 2056) by !
Northwest Atlanta Ventures, L.P. (“Sealy”) and WRlanta, L.L.C. (the “WRT") (collectively, the “Pawers”) to acquire, own, operate, maintain, and lease io
commercial properties located in Marietta, Geo(the “Property”). The Partnership acquired the Bropon December 12, 2006 and began operations.

(@)  Profits (Losses) Allocatio

Net profits and losses shall be allocated to thénBes in accordance with the terms of the ParhigrAgreement. Profits are allocated as follows:

@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

First, to the Partners, in proportion to and to é¢lxéent of the amounts necessary to cause theitaCa@rcounts to equal the balance of their Additl
Capital Contributions Preferred Return Accounts]

Second, to the Partners, in proportion to and écetktent of the amounts necessary to cause thpitaCAccounts to equal the sum of the amount ref
to in tier (i) above, plus the balance of theimpextive Additional Capital Contribution Accountsict

Third, to the Partners, in proportion to and to élxeent of the amounts necessary to cause theitaC&gcounts to equal the sum of the amount refiic
in tier (ii) above, plus the balance of their retpe Initial Capital Preferred Return Account Badas; anc

Fourth, to the Partners, in proportion to and ®eéktent of the amounts necessary to cause thpitaCAccounts to equal the sum of the amount refs
to in tier (iii) above, plus the balance of thaspective Initial Capital Contribution Account Bat@s; anc

Fifth, to the Partners, in proportion to and to éxéent of the amounts necessary to cause theitaC&gcounts to equal the sum of the amount reféix
in tier (iv) to be in the same proportions as tmespective Residual Percentages;

Sixth, any remainder allocated to the Partnergap@rtion to their respective Residual Percentagerésts

7



1.

(b)

SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA PARTNERS, L.P.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

ORGANIZATION (CONTINUED)

Losses are allocated to the Partners as follows:

@

(ii)

(iii)

(v)

V)

(vi)

First, to the Partners in proportion to andhe extent of the amounts necessary to cause tbaramby which such PartneGapital Accounts exceed i
sum referred to in tier (iv) of the profit allocati shown above to be in the same proportions asrtepective Residual Percentages;

Second, to the Partners in proportion to amdhe extent of the amounts necessary to redude RatnersCapital Accounts to the sum referred to in
(iv) of the profit allocation shown above; a

Third, to the Partners in proportion to aralthe extent of the amounts necessary to redude RaxtnersCapital Accounts to the sum referred to in
(iii) of the profit allocation shown above; a

Fourth, to the Partners in proportion to andhe extent of the amounts necessary to redude RatnersCapital Accounts to the sum referred to in
(ii) of the profit allocation shown above; a

Fifth, to the Partners in proportion to andthie extent of the amounts necessary to reduce Racthers’Capital Accounts to the sum referred to in
(i) of the profit allocation shown above; a

Sixth, to the Partners in proportion to, and togktent of the amounts necessary to cause thgiectige Capital Accounts to equal ze

Distribution of cash flow

The Partnership’s distributable cash from operatias defined, shall be distributed as follows:

(i)
(if)
(iii)

First, to the Partners in proportion to their retppe Additional Capital Preferred Return Accouatdnces until such balances are reduced to
Second, to the Partners in proportion to theireetpe Initial Capital Preferred Return Accountdrades until such balances are reduced to zerc
Third, any balance to the Partners in proportioth&r respective Residual Percentag
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SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA PARTNERS, L.P.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of presentatior—The Partnership has adopted Financial Accountirapdtrds Board (FASB) Codification. The Codificatimnthe single official source
authoritative accounting principles generally atedpn the United States of America (GAAP) recogudiby the FASB to be applied by ngovernmental entities and
of the Codification’s content carries the same lefauthority.

Principles of consolidationr-The Partnershig’ consolidated financial statements include it®ants and the accounts of, Sealy Northwest Atldnfa,, which holds tr
Property and Sealy Northwest Atlanta General Pgring.C. All intercompany profits, balances andrtsactions are eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and cash equivalertsAll highly-liquid debt instruments with original aturities of three months or less are considerdzbtocash equivalents.

Use of estimates—The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith GAAP requires management to make estimates assumptions that affect the repc
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosfimntingent assets and liabilities as of the détine consolidated financial statements and therted amounts of reven
and expenses during the reporting periods. Acesllts could differ from those estimates.

Property and equipmenrt-Property and equipment, including property improeets, are recorded at cost. Major renewals anchpses of property and equipment
capitalized. Repairs and maintenance are chargepexations as incurred.

Property and equipment are depreciated over tratimated useful lives using the straidgine method. Estimated useful lives are 5 to 39rydar buildings an
improvements, and 15 years for land improvemenggprEciation of tenant improvements is computedgutiiie straightine method over the life of the respective le
Depreciation expense for the years ended Decemhe@03.1, 2010 and 2009 was $1,019,138, $986,41®881,354, respectively.

Restricted cash-Restricted cash represents amounts escroweddpegy taxes, insurance, tenant improvements amdrgssions, and repairs and improvements.

Deferred charges-Deferred charges consist of financing costs aaditgy costs. Deferred financing costs are relaie¢te Partnershig’note payable. Financing costs
amortized, as a component of interest expense,tbedgerm of the loan using a method that approtémthe effective-interest method.
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SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA PARTNERS, L.P.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES(CONTINUED)

Tenant rent receivable-The Partnershig’ estimate for the allowance for uncollectible agcts represents the probable incurred losses wiithirenant receivables as
December 31, 2011 and 2010. The Partnership essm@bbable incurred losses based upon an evaluafiaelinquent accounts along with the Partnetshgwr
experience with collections and chargfés. The allowance for doubtful accounts as of @aber 31, 2011 and 2010 was $12,687 and $17,13pectvely. Bad de
expense for the years ended December 31, 2011,8@i2009 was $23,536, $30,727 and $38,840, régplgct

Revenue recognitior-Minimum rent revenue is recognized on a straigig-basis over the term of the lease agreemegtsdess of when payments are due. Differe
between rents billed in accordance with the leas@g and the minimum rent revenue recognized dmaigbtdine basis are reported as deferred rent receiviabiiee
accompanying consolidated financial statementsafiereimbursements are recognized as revenue sathe period the related expenses are incurreldeblydrtnership.

Income taxes—No federal or state income taxes are payable byP#rnership, and none have been provided forératttompanying consolidated financial statem
The Partners are to include their respective shafrPartnership income or losses, determined adn@me tax basis, in their individual tax returns.

The Partnership recognizes the tax benefit fronuragertain tax position only if it is more likelyah not the tax position will be sustained on exatiim by the taxin
authorities, based on the technical merits of &tipn. Tax years that remain subject to examimaliy major tax jurisdictions date back to the yeraded December &
2008. Federal and state income tax positions takeanticipated to be taken in the income tax retusre attributable to the Partners and not to titéye As of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, there are no knowrsiteinich would result in a material accrual attrdhle to uncertain tax positions.

Impairment of longived assets and loAived assets to be disposed-efThe Partnership reviews lordiged assets and certain identifiable intangiblesifmpairmen
whenever events or changes in circumstances imdibat the carrying amount of an asset may noebeverable. Recoverability of assets to be heldused is measur
by a comparison of the carrying amount of an assdtiture net cash flows expected to be generajethé asset. If such assets are considered to paired, th
impairment to be recognized is measured by the amby which the carrying amount of the assets ededhe fair value of the assets. Assets to be despof ar
reported at the lower of the carrying amount or Yailue less costs to sell. There was no impairmmbatge recognized during the years ended Dece®ihe&011, 201!
and 2009.

Subsequent events-Management has evaluated subsequent events thidagth 9, 2012, the date which the consolidatednitiel statements were available tc
issued.
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SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA PARTNERS, L.P.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

3. DEFERRED FINANCING AND LEASING COST:

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Paripepsid $602,463 of financing costs related to mleev note payable. For the year ended Decemberl, Zhe
Partnership wrote off $49,918 of financing cosiatedl to the previous loan paid off in 2011 (Se¢eN&). Amortization of deferred financing costs viée!,112, $9,98.
and $9,984 for the years ended December 31, 2011,

2010, and 2009.

The following is a schedule by year of future anzation of deferred financing costs, which are beamortized over the life of the note payable:

Year Ending December 31

2012 $ 150,61¢
2013 150,61¢
2014 150,61¢
2015 107,11:

Amortization of deferred leasing costs was $114, 339,360, and $110,145 for the years ended Decer@b&l, 2010, and 2009, respectively. An additici:8,090
$77,360, and $42,020 of commissions was expens2@lih, 2010, and 2009, respectively, due to tretedlleases having a life of less than one yeartofal commissic
amount of less than $1,000. The following is a dcie by year of future amortization of deferredsieg costs, which are being amortized over theeaetsye life of th
lease:

Year Ending December 31

2012 $ 118,48
2013 94,56
2014 65,66:
2015 53,68¢
2016 38,33t
Thereaftel 56,57t

$ 427,31
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SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA PARTNERS, L.P.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Partnership has entered into a managementragnéavith a property management company relat&etly, and will pay a monthly management fee o¥3d gros
receipts from the Properties, less any tlpedty management fees, 50% of all late paymentsrefuined checks collected, and an accounting fe&k? @80 per mont
Management fees paid to related parties for thesyeaded December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were ¥84065102,853 and $130,074, respectively. As afebeer 3]
2011 and 2010, there were $#nd $12,088 of accrued management fees, respgctilee management agreement also states thatkhied party may receive leas
commissions of 4.00% to 6.00%. Leasing commissjmaid to related parties for the years ended DeceBihe2011, 2010 and 2009 were $49,418, $53,8876idL74
respectively. All employees are currently employsdSealy Operating Company lll, Inc., a relatedtyjaand the Partnership periodically reimbursesrfaageme
company for the salaries of the onsite staff. Tharership also reimburses Sealy & Company, L.LaGelated party, for miscellaneous postage, cagiarges and ba
statement fees incurred.

During 2010 the Partnership paid $10,000 on bebfaealy Acquisitions, L.L.C., a related party, faosts incurred related to the loan renegotiathkdlhamounts wer
collected in 2011. The remaining related party inetgles represent amounts paid by the Partnershipebalf of the Partners for tax preparation antbiahregistratio
fees that are expected to be reimbursed at soneeittitme future. No interest is due and there arsat repayment terms on any of the related padgivables.

ACQUIRED INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND OBLIGATIONS

Acquired intangible assets and obligations wergy faiortized as of December 31, 2009. The net dratidn of acquired intangible assets and lialeiitfor the ye:
ended December 31, 2009 was $8,843, of which $13)8% related to net accretion into minimum reméreie for acquired below market leases.

NOTE PAYABLE

On December 12, 2006, the Partnership enterecaimtacquisition loan (the “Loanthp the amount of $28,750,000 with an unrelateditparty to obtain the Property. 1
Loan matured January 1, 2012, bore interest ated fiate of 5.7% per annum and required interdstmayments until the loan matured.

On June 23, 2011, WRT made a $20,641,000 bridge tiodhe Partnership which enabled the Partnerghgatisfy its $28,750,000 first mortgage loan alistounte
payoff amount of $20,500,000, resulting in $9,138,5f cancellation of debt that was reported aaia gn extinguishment of debt and accrued intereite consolidate
statement of operations for the year ended Decethe2011.
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SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA PARTNERS, L.P.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

NOTE PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

On September 29, 2011, the Partnership obtainddaapent financing in the amount of $14,000,000ibganterest at Libor plus 5.35% and maturing @ptémber 2¢
2015. In connection with the financing, the Parshg purchased an interest rate cap which caps lab@% through October 1, 2013. Net proceeds filoennew loa
plus additional capital contributions of $4,650,006m WRT and $3,100,000 from Sealy were utilizedpty off the bridge loan. The loan bears inteegshe USIL
LIBOR—BBA (one month) as normally published by BloombErgfessional Service, which was 0.30% at Decembg@11, plus a LIBOR margin rate of 5.35%, \
a floor on the LIBOR rate of no less than 0.25%e Tiaturity date of the loan is September 29, 2@/dth, monthly principal and interest payments beimade on the lo¢
based on a 30-year amortization schedule.

A total of $700,000 of the loan was not funded lva ¢losing date. It has been retained by the leasl@an unfunded reserve for leasing costs. No fhiads been disburs
as of December 31, 2011. The loan is collateraltaed security interest in the Property and angassent of rents and leases. The note is persogadlyanteed by relat
parties of the Partnership.

Future scheduled principal maturities are as falavDecember 31, 2011:

Year Ending December 31

2012
2013
2014
2015

7.

$ 170,85:
184,09¢
194,92°

13,420,00

$13,969,88
OPERATING LEASES

The Partnership leases the Property to tenantsr omteating leases with expiration dates extening020. The leases typically provide for minimuemtrand othe
charges to cover certain operating expenses. Mimifuture rentals on non-cancellable leases at Dbeefil, 2011 are as follows:

Years Ending December 31

2012 $ 2,109,38
2013 1,592,86.
2014 1,133,98!
2015 906,35t
2016 706,66
Thereaftel 1,599,341

$ 8,048,58
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SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA PARTNERS, L.P.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

8. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Company maintains its cash in bank depositgwdit times may exceed federally insured limitse Tompany has not experienced any losses in swcuats.

As of December 31, 2010, two tenants combined 0969, of the tenant receivables before the allowaibe entire allowance of $17,176 as of DecemberRB1(
relates to one of these tenants. There was nocaratentration in tenant receivable as of DecembeR@11.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Partners of
Sealy Newmarket General Partnership
Shreveport, Louisiana

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsheet of Sealy Newmarket General Partnership‘Rartnership”as of December 31, 2011, and the related conset
statements of operations, partners’ capital, asth aws for the year then ended. These consolidfie@ncial statements are the responsibility ef Brartnershig managemer
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hesnsolidated financial statements based on alit.au

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight lo@nited States). Those standards require thgplewe and perfori
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abouhehtite consolidated financial statements aredfeweaterial misstatement. The Partnership is ngtired to have, nor were
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal cdndneer financial reporting. Our audit included caesation of internal control over financial regog as a basis for designi
audit procedures that are appropriate in the cistantes, but not for the purpose of expressingpaman on the effectiveness of the Partnershipternal control over financ
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinidn. audit also includes examining, on a test basislence supporting the amounts and disclosurgbeinconsolidate
financial statements, assessing the accountingiptas used and significant estimates made by managt, as well as evaluating the overall finansiatement presentation.
believe that our audit provides a reasonable Hasisur opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all materespects, the financial position of the Parthigrais of December 31, 20
and the results of its operations and its cashdlfaw the year then ended in conformity with acdmgnprinciples generally accepted in the Unitedt& of America.

/sl Frazier & Deeter, LLC

March 9, 2012
Atlanta, Georgia



SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010 (UNAUDITED)

ASSETS
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Buildings and improvemen
Land
Tenant improvement

Total property and equipment, at ¢
Less accumulated depreciati

Total property and equipment, r

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RESTRICTED CASH

OTHER ASSETS
Acquired intangible assets, r
Deferred rent receivab
Deferred financing costs, net of accumulated amatitn of $96,737 and $67,716 for 2011 and 2
Prepaid expenses and other as
Tenant rent receivab
Due from related partie
Deferred leasing costs, net of accumulated amaidizaf $206,145 and $109,797 for 2011 and 2

Total other asse’
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS ' CAPITAL

LIABILITIES
Note payable
Accrued interest payab
Accounts payable and accrued expel
Unearned revenue
Tenant security deposi
Acquired intangible obligations, n

Total liabilities
PARTNERS' CAPITAL
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS ' CAPITAL

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ@gtstents.

2

2010

2011 (UNAUDITED)
$36,640,26. $36,291,69
6,286,501 6,286,50!
2,348,10. 2,044,22!
45,274,87 44,622,42
5,271,68:i 3,777,17:
40,003,18 40,845,25
436,58t 978,25(
5,358,24. 4,141,541
534,28( 734,28!
517,68t 396,29:
145,09¢ 174,11
37,22¢ 37,60¢
7,582 19,75(
84,04+« 13,30(
393,48¢ 309,01¢
1,719,40: 1,684,37.
$47,517,41 $47,649,42
$37,000,000 $37,000,00
4,805,64. 500,16
378,92! 301,28:
120,44¢ 197,53:
103,04¢ 137,12:
1,12¢ 1,95¢
$42,409,19. $38,138,05
$ 5,108,221 $ 9,511,36!
$47,517,41 $47,649,42




SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

2010 2009
2011 (UNAUDITED)  (UNAUDITED)
REVENUES
Minimum rent $ 2,628,89° $ 3,386,611 $ 4,033,490
Tenant Reimbursemer 379,43: 785,32¢ 490,80
Total revenue $ 3,008,331 $ 4,171,931 $ 4,524,29
OPERATING EXPENSES
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,648,56. 1,781,98:i 1,830,59:i
Repairs and maintenan 644,25( 1,048,71. 610,95«
Property taxe 336,18: 392,87t 396,57:
General and administrati\ 244,93t 261,78° 187,04.
Management fee 104,39¢ 144,64¢ 182,67!
Bad Debt 22,64¢ — —
Insurance 75,72 75,53:¢ 73,32:
Total operating expens: 3,076,69 3,705,54. 3,281,16:
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (68,367) 466,39 1,243,13.
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Other income 18,56: 18,99¢ 70,38
Interest expens (4,353,33) (2,422,50) (2,318,58I)
Total other expens (4,334,77) (2,403,500 (2,248,19)
NET LOSS $(4,403,14) $(1,937,11) $(1,005,06)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financagdistents.
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PARTNERS’ CAPITAL
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

BALANCE, DECEM BER 31, 2008 (UNAUDITED)
Distributions
Net Loss

BALANCE, DECEM BER 31, 2009 (UNAUDITED)
Net Loss

BALANCE, DECEM BER 31, 2010 (UNAUDITED)
Net Loss

BALANCE, DECEM BER 31, 2011

See accompanying notes to consolidated financagtstents.
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Sealy Newmarke

WRT -Atlanta,
Ventures, L.P. L.LC.

Total

$ 4,090,77' $ 8,692,900
(105,640  (224,49()
(321,620 _ (683,44)

$12,783,68
(330,14))
(1,005,06)

3,663,51  7,784,96
(619,876  (1,317,23)

11,448,48
(1,937,11)

3,043,63  6,467,73
(1,409,00)  (2.994.13)

9,511,36!
(4,403,14)

$ 1,634,633 $ 3,473,59

$ 5,108,22




SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

2010 2009
2011 (UNAUDITED)  (UNAUDITED)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss $(4,403,14) $(1,937,11) $(1,005,06)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash plexviby (used in) operating activitie
Depreciation expens 1,494,51! 1,594,341 1,620,52
Amortization of acquired intangibl¢ 199,18: 472,15: 605,44:
Amortization of deferred financing cos 29,02 29,02 29,02:
Amortization of deferred leasing co: 96,34¢ 64,07( 28,36:
(Increase) decrease |
Restricted cas (1,216,69) 203,00¢ (713,96%)
Deferred rent receivab (121,39) (219,96¢) (90,26°)
Prepaid expenses and other as 382 811 (3,139
Tenant rent receivab 12,16¢ 43,49¢ 3,33¢
Due from related partie (70,74¢) (23,300 —
Deferred leasing costs pe (180,819 (186,447 (158,52)
Increase (decrease) |
Accrued interes 4,305,47. 500,16¢ —
Accounts payable and accrued expel 77,644 (229,58)) 416,37¢
Unearned revenue (77,089 (107,099 193,88:
Tenant security deposi (34,077) 21¢ (2,069)
Net cash provided by operating activit 110,78: 213,78 923,91
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipm (652,44} (788,83)) (512,47%)
Net cash used in investing activiti (652,44} (788,83) (512,479
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Distributions to partner — — (330,14
Net cash used in financing activiti — — (330,145
Change in cash and cash equivale (541,667) (575,049 81,29°
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 978,25( 1,553,29! 1,471,99:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 436,58t $ 978,25( $ 1,553,29!
Cash paid during the year for inter $ 18,84t $ 1,893,31! $ 2,289,56

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanasstents.
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

ORGANIZATION

Sealy Newmarket General Partnership (“the Partighsha Delaware partnership, was organized May 2, 2@®ies December 31, 2056) by Sealy Newmi
Ventures, L.P. (“Sealy”) and WRT-Atlanta, L.L.CWRT") (collectively, the “Partners”o acquire, own, hold, manage, operate, mortgagelgp, sell, assign, trans
and lease certain commercial properties locate@€obb County, Georgia, (the “Property"Yhe Partnership acquired the Property on August2®®8 and beg:
operations.

(@)  Profits (Losses) Allocatio

Profits and losses are allocated to the Partneasdonrdance with the terms of the Partnership ageeé Capital contributions of the Partners doewrn preferre
returns. Profits are allocated as follows:

0] First, to the Partners, in proportion to and to é¢lxéent of the amounts necessary to cause theitaCa@xcounts to equal the balance of their Additl
Capital Contributions Preferred Return Accounts)

(i) Second, to the Partners, in proportion to and écetktent of the amounts necessary to cause thpitaCAccounts to equal the sum of the amount ref
to in tier (i) above, plus the balance of theipestive Additional Capital Contribution Accountsice

(i) Third, to the Partners, in proportion to and to élxéent of the amounts necessary to cause theital&gcounts to equal the sum of the amount refiitc
in tier (ii) above, plus the balance of their restpee Initial Capital Contribution Account Balancesd

(iv) Fourth, to the Partners, in proportion to and ®eéktent of the amounts necessary to cause thpitaCAccounts to equal the sum of the amount refs
to in tier (iii) above, plus the balance of thespective Initial Capital Contribution Account Bad&s; anc

V) Fifth, to the Partners, in proportion to and to éxéent of the amounts necessary to cause theitaC&gcounts to equal the sum of the amount reféix
in tier (iv) to be in the same proportions as thegpective Residual Percentages;

(vi) Sixth, any remainder allocated to the Partnergap@rtion to their respective Residual Percentagerésts
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

1. ORGANIZATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Losses are allocated to the Partners as follows:

@

(ii)

(iii)

(v)

V)

(vi)

First, to the Partners in proportion to andhe extent of the amounts necessary to cause tbaramby which such PartneGapital Accounts exceed i
sum referred to in tier (iv) of the profit allocati shown above to be in the same proportions asrtepective Residual Percentages;

Second, to the Partners in proportion to amdhe extent of the amounts necessary to redude RatnersCapital Accounts to the sum referred to in
(iv) of the profit allocation shown above; a

Third, to the Partners in proportion to aralthe extent of the amounts necessary to redude RaxtnersCapital Accounts to the sum referred to in
(iii) of the profit allocation shown above; a

Fourth, to the Partners in proportion to andhe extent of the amounts necessary to redude RatnersCapital Accounts to the sum referred to in
(ii) of the profit allocation shown above; a

Fifth, to the Partners in proportion to andthie extent of the amounts necessary to reduce Racthers’Capital Accounts to the sum referred to in
(i) of the profit allocation shown above; a

Sixth, to the Partners in proportion to, and togktent of the amounts necessary to cause thgiectige Capital Accounts to equal ze

Distribution of cash flow

The Partnership’s distributable cash, as definiedl] e distributed as follows:

@
(ii)

(iii)

First, to the Partners in proportion to their retjye Additional Capital Contributions Account bates until such balances are reduced to zero

Second, to the Partners in proportion to theireepe Initial Capital Preferred Return Accountdrades until their respective Additional Capital fEéreec
Return Account balances are reduced to zero

Third, any balance to the Partners in proportioth&r respective Residual Percente
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of presentation and principles of consolatatr The Partnership presents its consolidated finarsta&tements in accordance with accounting prinsigienerall
accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) as providethe Financial Accounting Standard Board’s Acding Standards Codification (the “Codification” %SC"). The
Codification is the single source of authoritataezounting principles applied by nongovernmentdities in the preparation of financial statememtsconformity witt
GAAP.

The Partnershig’ consolidated financial statements include itsoants and the accounts of Sealy Newmarket, L.Pi¢clwholds the Property, and Sealy Newme
General Partner, L.P. All intercompany profits,drades and transactions are eliminated in conswitat

Use of estimates—The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith GAAP requires management to make estimates assumptions that affect the repc
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosdreomtingent assets and liabilities as of the d#téhe financial statements and the reported ansoohtevenue ar
expenses during the reporting periods. Actual tesiduld differ from those estimates.

Property and equipment-Property and equipment, including property improeeis are recorded at cost. Major renewals and pesshof equipment are capitaliz
Repairs and maintenance are charged to operatsonsared.

Property and equipment are depreciated over trgtimated useful lives using the straightie method. Estimated useful lives are 5 to 39ryedar buildings an
improvements, and 15 years for land improvemenggprEciation of tenant improvements is computedgutiiie straightine method over the life of the respective le
Depreciation expense for the years ended Decenihex03.1, 2010 and 2009 was $1,494,515, $1,594,48% 4,620,523, respectively.

Cash and cash equivalertsAll highly-liquid debt investments with original aturities of three months or less are considerdsbtoash equivalents.

Restricted caskh-Restricted cash represents amounts escroweddpegy taxes, tenant improvements, commissiongirgpnd improvements, and debt service.

Tenant rent receivable-The Partnershig’ estimate for the allowance for uncollectible agcts represents the probable incurred losses wiithirenant receivables as
December 31, 2011 and 2010. The Partnership estnm@bbable incurred losses based upon an evaiuatiolelinquent accounts along with the Partnefshgwr
experience with collections and chargfés. There was no allowance for doubtful accowgf December 31, 2011 and 2010. There was badedpbnse recorded -
one tenant in the amount of $22,648 for the yededrDecember 31, 2011. There was no bad debt exf@nthe years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES(CONTINUED)

Deferred financing costs-Deferred financing costs are related to the Peship’s note payable. Financing costs are amortized,casrgonent of interest expense, ¢
the term of the loan using a method that approxes#ie effective-interest method.

Deferred leasing costs-Deferred leasing costs are related to commissiait for certain tenant leases. Leasing costs ggatized and amortized over the life of
respective tenant lease.

Accounting for intangible assets and liabilittesAccounting guidance for acquisitions of a busingssr to revised guidance effective for the firsnaal reporting peric
beginning on or after December 15, 2008, requiteat tipon acquisition, the purchase price is to lecated to the components of the acquisition basedhe
Partnership’s estimates and assumptions of eacp@oents fair value. These estimates and assumptions inipe@mount of costs allocated between compon@&hts,
also impact depreciation expense and gains ordase®rded on future sales of property. First Rhgnership determines the value of the physicggnty including lanc
buildings, and improvements utilizing an “as- iicaat” methodology. Factors considered by manageieheir analysis of the “as-if vacantalue include lost rentals
market rates during an expected leapeperiod and costs to execute similar leases dimofuincremental tenant improvements, leasing cassions, and other relaf
expenses. The Partnership also considers informatitained about the property as a result of gsgmguisition due diligence.

The balance of the purchase price is allocatecemartt improvements and acquired intangible asselmhilities. Tenant improvements represent thegthle asse

associated with the acquired leases and are vauedtimated fair market value on the acquisitiatecconsidering the remaining lease terms. Theyclassified as

component of property and equipment on the conat@dl financial statements and are depreciated theeremaining lease terms. Expiration dates of iaedunon-
cancellable leases extend to 2018. Acquired intdegissets and liabilities relate to the valueanfuiring a property with existing iplace operating leases and com
three forms: (i) acquired lease origination valy@sacquired above and below market in placedsaand (iii) acquired tenant relationships.

Acquired lease origination values are costs thénBeship estimates, based on terms generally esqed in the local market, it would incur to execlgiases with terr
similar to the remaining lease terms of theplaee leases, including commissions and othereglakpenses. They are recorded as a componentjoifedt intangibl
assets in the accompanying consolidated finantag¢ments and are amortized over the remainingstefithe respective non-cancellable leases.
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES(CONTINUED)

Acquired above and below market in place leasesem@rded based on the present value (using awdiscate that reflects the risks associated wighptoperty acquire
and the respective tenants) of the difference betw@ the contractual amount to be paid pursuarthé in place lease and (ii) managemeestimate of the fair marl
lease rate for a comparable in place lease ondheisition date, measured over a period equaléaeimaining norcancellable term of the lease. Above market ing
leases are classified as a component of acquitadgible assets in the accompanying consolidatexhéiial statements and are amortized as a redustimental incom
over the remaining terms of the respective leaBetow market in place leases are classified asmpooent of acquired intangible liabilities in thecampanyin
consolidated financial statements and are amortgegh increase to rental income over the remateimgs of the respective leases.

Prepaid expenses and other assePyepaid expenses and other assets include sueh éte prepaid insurance and vendor deposits.

Revenue recognitior-Minimum rent revenue is recognized on a straigig-basis over the term of the lease agreemegtsdess of when payments are due. Differe
between rents billed in accordance with the leas@g and the minimum rent revenue recognized dmaigbtdine basis are reported as deferred rent receiviabilee
consolidated accompanying financial statementsafiereimbursements are accrued as revenue in the gariod the related expenses are incurred bR an@mership. Fc
the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2@0Pdrtnership incurred $18,389, $297,764, andf&bsts related to tenant improvements on behal ténan
which are reimbursable to the Partnership per ¢heg of the lease agreement. These direct tenatg aoe presented as a component of repairs anttemance ar
tenant reimbursement revenue on the accompanyimgptidated statements of operations.

Income taxes—No federal or state income taxes are payable by#rgership, and none have been provided forératttompanying consolidated financial statem
The Partners are to include their respective shafr€artnership income or losses, determined oim@me tax basis, in their individual tax returiibe Partnershig tay
return and the amount of allocable Partnershipitgrof losses are subject to examination by fedamdl state taxing authorities. If such examinati@sallt in changes
Partnership profits or losses, then the tax ligbdf the Partners would be changed accordingly.
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES(CONTINUED)

The Partnership recognizes the tax benefit fronuragertain tax position only if it is more likelyah not the tax position will be sustained on exatiom by the taxin
authorities, based on the technical merits of &tipn. Tax years that remain subject to examimaliy major tax jurisdictions date back to the yeraded December &
2008. Federal and state income tax positions takeanticipated to be taken in the income tax retusre attributable to the Partners and not to titéye As of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, there are no knowrsiteinich would result in a material accrual attrdhle to uncertain tax positions.

Impairment of longdived assets and loAgved assets to be disposed-efThe Partnership reviews lodiyed assets and certain identifiable intangibles impairmen
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying amount of an asset may noebeverable. Recoverability of assets to be heldused is measur
by a comparison of the carrying amount of an assdtiture net cash flows expected to be generajethé asset. If such assets are considered to paired, th
impairment to be recognized is measured by the amby which the carrying amount of the assets ededhe fair value of the assets. Assets to be despof ar
reported at the lower of the carrying amount or Yailue less costs to sell. There was no impairmobatge recognized during the years ended Dece®ihe&011, 201!
and 2009.

Subsequent events-Management has evaluated subsequent events thidagih 9, 2012, the date which the consolidatedniiiel statements were available tc
issued.

DEFERRED FINANCING AND LEASING COST:

Amortization of deferred financing costs for theaygeended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 waB2i2fr each year. The following is a schedule ggryof futur:
amortization of deferred financing costs:

Year Ending December 31

2012
2013
2014

$ 29,02
29,02:
29,02:
29,02:
29,01

$  145,09¢
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

3. DEFERRED FINANCING AND LEASING COST(CONTINUED)

Deferred leasing costs are related to commissiaits fpr certain tenant leases. Leasing costs gitatized and are amortized over the life of thepective tenant leas
Amortization of deferred leasing costs was $96,3#68,070 and $28,361 for the years ended Decenih&031 and 2010 and 2009, respectively. An aduili®365, $-
and $2,752 of commissions was expensed in the yealsd December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, resplyctiltes to the related leases having a life of thas one year
a total commission amount of less than $1,000.fdhewing is a schedule by year of future amortiaatof deferred leasing costs:

Year Ending December 31

2012 $ 94,487
2013 84,99!
2014 68,68¢
2015 44,75¢
2016 17,49
Thereaftel 83,07(

$ 393,48¢
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

4. ACQUIRED INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND OBLIGATIONS

The Partnership’s acquired intangible assets afigations as of December 31 are:

2011 2010
Acquired lease origination valu
Original allocated value $ 570,710 $ 570,71
Less: accumulated amortizati (446,319 (388,61
124,39¢ 182,09!
Acquired above market in place lea:
Original allocated value $ 1,522,85. $ 1,522,85.
Less: accumulated amortizati (1,112,970 (970,66’)
409,88: 552,19(
Net book value of total acquired intangible as $ 53428( $ 734,28
Acquired below market in place lee
Original allocated value $ 16,13: $  16,13:
Less: accumulated amortizati (15,009 (14,179
Net book value of total acquired intangible obligas $ 1,12¢ $ 1,95:¢

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 arg] B@0amortization of acquired intangible assets $199,183, $472,151 and $605,443, respectivélthad amoun
$141,483, $348,574 and $423,733 of net amortizagsalting from acquired above and below markeilate leases was reported in minimum rent reveauthé year
ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, resplgctive
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Partnership has entered into a managementragnéavith a property management company relat&etly, and will pay a monthly management fee o¥3d gros
receipts from the Property less any thiraity management fees, 50% of all late paymentsranoined checks collected, and an accounting fe&2®25 per mont
Management fees paid to related parties for thesyeaded December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were, 3®M4$144,646 and $182,675, respectively. The geman
agreement also states that the related party magives leasing commissions of 3.00% to 6.75%. Lepsiommissions paid to the related party for theryemde
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were $34,570 24@%6 and $33,263, respectively. All employeescareently employed by Sealy Operating Companyliit., ¢
related party, and the Partnership periodicallynkrirses the management company for the salaritee afnsite staff. The Partnership also reimburgedyX Company
L.L.C., arelated party, for miscellaneous postaggjer charges, and bank statement fees incurred.

During the years ended December 31, 2011, 20102866, the Partnership paid $22,500, $10,000, &ndeBpectively, on behalf of Sealy Acquisitionsd, a relate
party, for costs incurred related to the loan retiajon. The remaining related party receivablgsresent amounts paid by the Partnership on behtie Partners for t
preparation and annual registration fees that gpeaed to be reimbursed at some time in the futdeeinterest is due and there are no set repayteans on any of tt
related party receivables. All amounts are expetdik collected.

NOTE PAYABLE

On August 20, 2008, in connection with the acqiosibf the Property, the Partnership assumed a0$87000 note payable (the “Notefpm the seller. The Note be.
interest at a fixed rate of 6.12% per annum andureaton November 10, 2016, at which time any unpaidcipal and interest are due. From December 20t
November 2011, monthly interest only payments are éfrom December 2011 until the maturity date, tligrprincipal and interest payments of $224,696 due. Th
Note is collateralized by the Property, an assigmnoé rents and leases, all deposits held by leraleaccount receivables and personal guarantees tiwvo affiliates ¢
Sealy. The Note had an outstanding balance of $87000 at December 31, 2011 and 2010. Interestnsepen the Note, exclusive of amortization of deféifinancin
costs, was $4,324,318, $2,393,483, and $2,289¢558¢€ years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, arf?] 2&pectively.

The terms of the Note require the Partnership tectliall tenants of all leases to pay their renécatly into a clearing account (“Rent Accountt) provide addition:
collateral to the lender. The Partnership must die@my and all other receipts into the Rent Acd¢awithin two days of receipt. All funds depositedthe Rent Accoul
will be transferred not less than weekly to thetfRaship’s account. The balance of the Rent Accauilhbe distributed in accordance with the agreatne
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

NOTE PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Principal maturities of the Note after DecemberZ111 are as follows:

Years ending December 31

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

$ 405,87¢
438,41(
466,40:
496,17¢
35,193,13

$37,000,00

Upon closing of the loan, the seller was requieddt aside certain amounts of the loan proceédsstrow accounts to pay future costs such asanea, repairs, tax
and leasing commissions. These escrow accountstveergferred to the Partnership upon assumptigdhefoan. The Partnership is required to make nipmthyment
into these escrow accounts to pay future costs ascimsurance, repairs, taxes and leasing commgsithe balances in these escrow accounts willisteitiited ir
accordance with the terms of the Note.

In 2010, the Partnership stopped paying interesherLoan after its November payment in order tpeedte the process of negotiating a debt restringjusf the Loal
with the special servicer. This was done to malalable the needed cash flows for capital expeneitand leasing commissions tolease the Property. Restricted ¢
for debt repayment consist of excess cash paibdedender monthly and held in a suspense accouibtrenegotiation of the Note is reached. The ietdd cash will b
used to reduce the principal balance of the Nate. '$ote 8.

The Partnership has submitted its proposal foaa loodification to the special servicer and is ently in negotiations with the special servicerrestructuring the Not
As of the date of the consolidated financial staets, no final agreement has been reached. Thengegtying consolidated financial statements do nolude an
adjustments that might be necessary should thedtahip be unable to restructure the debt andrueaiin existence as a going concern.
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

NOTE PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Since the Note is in default, the Note is subjedhe default interest rate as described in thed66.00% per annum in addition to the fixed a#t€.12% per annum, f
a total of 11.12% per annum. The default interestwed for the year ended December 31, 2011 and ®@% $1,850,000 and $97,632, respectively. Las &&e charge
equal to 5.00% of the payment amount due. For ¢z gnded December 31, 2011 and 2010, late fekk78,468 and $13,469 were included in accruedeaster

OPERATING LEASES

The Partnership leases the Property to tenantsr omteating leases with expiration dates extening020. The leases typically provide for minimuemtrand othe
charges to cover certain operating expenses. Mimifuture rentals on non-cancellable leases at Dbeefil, 2011 are as follows:

Years ending December 31

2012 $ 2,465,77.
2013 2,054,76!
2014 1,753,36!
2015 1,175,67.
2016 627,90:
Thereaftel 1,342,29.

$ 9,419,77.
8. RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Property has experienced a significant deétingperating cash flow stemming from a decline acupancy levels, lower market rents and increasedessions 1
compete in the weakened industrial real estate evdmkAtlanta, Georgia. Management of the Partriprbhlieves that a restructuring of the terms efltlban is necesse
to ensure adequate cash flow to make necessaralcagpenditures to the Property and to pay needadessions for re-tenanting.

Managemens proposal to the special servicer consists of dification of the Loan. Negotiations are still imogress with the special servicer and no agreentente
been finalized as of the date of the consolidatedntial statements. Management, however, beliévasa restructuring arrangement will eventuallyrbached. TF
partners are willing to invest additional equityetesure that the Partnership can continue its Gpasa The accompanying consolidated financiakstents do not inclu
any adjustments that might be necessary shoulBdhmership be unable to restructure the debt antintie in existence as a going concern.
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 (UNAUDITED), AND 2009 (UNADITED)

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISF

The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit&wdt times may exceed federally insured limitse Tompany has not experienced any losses in scclats.
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